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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing
Capital Land Ltd. (“BCL" or the “Company”; together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
Group's interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2017.

In the first half of 2017, growth in the global economy
picked up, while the US economy mostly recovered with
unemployment rate falling to its lowest level since the
financial crisis. The Federal Reserve also raised interest rates
twice during the first half of 2017 and the balance sheet
wind-down is expected in the second half. The euro zone
also continued to recover, and the European Central Bank
(ECB) maintained its ultra-loose monetary policy that appears
to have significantly reduced the political uncertainty across
the region. Alongside the strong recovery from developed
economies, emerging markets started to pick up as well. In
the first half of 2017, China’s economy maintained stable
growth, showing positive signs. Under the “new normal”,
thanks to the new development concepts and effective
supply-side structural reforms, the quality and efficiency of
the economy improved. With innovation policies underway,
GDP growth in China bounced back to 6.9% during the first
half of the year.

In the first half of 2017, a number of tightening policies were
released by the central government in order to ensure the
stable development of the property market. Concurrently,
the enforcement of city-specific measures and category-
based regulation has taken effect. The property market in
general saw continued divergence among cities. In first-
and key second-tier cities, residential sales volume fell due
to tightening policies and growth in prices also slowed. In
contrast, in third- and fourth-tier cities, both residential sales
and land sales experienced relatively strong growth as a result
of destocking policies that led to strong upgrade demand.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & K ® &

During the first half of 2017, the Group adhered to
“achieving quality growth” and proactively adjusted its
sales strategies and product supply in response to tougher
tightening policies in core cities. BCL achieved a significant
increase in contracted sales by developing and promoting
key projects in core cities, speeding up inventory clearance in
non-core cities, and steadily expanding in overseas markets.
During the first half, the Group recorded contracted sales of
RMB24.51 billion, an increase of 50.5% year-over-year, while
the average selling price was RMB22,721 per square meter
("sg.m.”), an increase of 26.7% year-over-year.

During the first half, the Group focused development on
six core cities in China, namely Beijing, Shanghai, Tianjin,
Shenzhen, Chongging, Chengdu, as well as Australia, and
acquired a number of projects in Beijing, Tianjin, Shenzhen
and Australia. The Group made approximately RMB11.53
billion of land investments with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 1,517,000 sq.m., which helped enhance
the Group’s footprint across core property markets. During
the period, the Group successfully entered the Shenzhen
market through acquiring the centrally located Longhua
project to expand its strategic presence and capture growth
opportunities in core cities.

During the first half, the Group’s outlets business continued
to see rapid growth. Beijing Capital Grand Limited (“Capital
Grand”) acquired the Kunming outlets project and the
Zhengzhou outlets project land plot A2, etc. With those
two newly-acquired projects, the Group has now deployed
outlets projects in 14 cities and remains No.1 nationwide
in terms of the number of outlets deployed. The Group will
continue moving towards the strategic goal of developing 20
outlets projects in the current five-year period. Concurrently,
the Group deployed a strategy to develop primary land and
renovate shantytowns across the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region.
In particular, the Group acquired the Beishicao shantytown
renovation project in Shunyi District, Beijing. The Group has
six primary land projects under development and is now
pushing forward multiple key projects. As a result, the primary
land development and industrial park business are scaling up
and have become a crucial business segment for the Group,
and will serve as a strategic platform to acquire key resources.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & K #® &

During the first half, the Group carried out its “BCL Made
2020" product strategy for “achieving quality growth”.
With an emphasis on improving product quality, the
Group continued to unveil flagship products with expert
craftsmanship, including the two best-selling high-end
product lines, “Tian Yue” and “Xi Rui”. Additionally,
the Group strove to improve product quality, marketing
effectiveness and property management capabilities. During
the period, the Group leveraged Big Data to drive product
positioning, product design and product innovation. The
Group also officially launched a sales management system for
its in-house sales team, thus improving the sales process. In
addition, a new customer service system, the “Rui Service”
property management brand that was developed by the
BCL-Vanke joint venture Shouwan Property Management
Service Company, boosted the quality of customer service and
the Group's overall property management capabilities. The
Group also made an equity investment in UrWork, whereby
BCL would be able to leverage on their brand resources and
extensive management expertise that would bring along
synergies to increase BCL's asset value and enhance its
management capabilities.

During the first half, while the Group’s financing activities
were all on track, it actively considered new financing
methods with the aim of broadening financing channels as
well as optimizing debt structure and lowering financing
costs. The Group successfully filed an offshore debt
application with the National Development and Reform
Commission (“NDRC"), which was the first of its kind been
accepted during the year. With the approval, the Group
issued two tranches of offshore senior notes for an aggregate
principle amount of USD500 million, one with a coupon rate
of 3.875% and another at 3.7%. Both tranches were rated
BBB by Fitch Ratings and helped effectively lower the Group’s
financing costs. Also, during the first half, the Group actively
pushed forward with its A-Share IPO plan and received the
first round of review feedback from the China Securities
Regulatory Commission (“CSRC"”). The Group’s application
for RMB10 billion of corporate bonds is in progress, and
the Group also explored new financing sources, including
the securitization of final payment from home buyers and
programs backed by investment properties.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & K ® &

During the period, the Group recorded revenue of RMB7.37
billion, representing an increase of 43.5% compared with
RMB5.14 billion in the corresponding period last year. It
recorded net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of RMB646 million, representing an increase of
12.7% compared with RMB573 million in the corresponding
period last year.

In the second half of 2017, in response to changing industry
policies and market dynamics, the Group will continue to
strive to achieve “quality growth” as a part of its core vision.
The Group will look to actively optimize its sales strategies
in order to achieve its annual sales target of RMB50 billion.
Concentrating on its six core cities and three metropolitan
areas (Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Yangtze River Delta and Pearl
River Delta), the Group plans to step up land investment
through merger and acquisitions and unlock the value of
secured resources and projects, as well as steadily push
forward overseas and outlets developments. By seeking
synergies with Beijing Capital Group Co., Ltd. (“Capital
Group”), BCL intends to obtain more resources in primary
land development and industrial property, in particular in
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region. The Group plans to build an
asset management platform through teaming up with new
business partners in order to improve operational capabilities
in an effort to revitalize and clear inventory including some
investment properties. Also, to meet customer demand, BCL
would continue to provide quality products and services that
cater to evolving customer demand and thus create product
premium. To realize A-Share equity financing, BCL will spare
no effort to push forward its A-share IPO plan. The Group
will also look for alternative low cost financing sources,
including corporate bonds, medium-term notes and asset
securitization.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to sincerely thank all of
our shareholders, partners, and customers for your long-term
support. BCL will remain committed to expanding its business,
enhancing competitive advantages, and striving to become
China’s most valuable integrated property developer.

Li Songping
Chairman

Beijing, 17 August 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER WM DA

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

During the first half of 2017, the Group’s revenue totaled
RMB7,368,346,000 (first half of 2016: RMB5,135,091,000),
up around 43% from the same period last year.
Operating profit increased around 14% year-on-year to
RMB1,575,757,000. Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company increased to RMB646,199,000 (first half
of 2016: RMB573,484,000). Earnings per share (basic and
diluted) was RMB21 cents (first half of 2016: RMB19 cents),
representing an increase of around 11% compared with the
first half of 2016. The Board resolved not to declare interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2017.

PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

During the first half of 2017, the Group focused on achieving
“quality growth”. The Group’s strategy revolved around
developing high quality products, capturing opportunities
presented by the various market conditions in key cities,
and adjusting sales strategies to maintain a balanced pace
in new project launches and inventory destocking in non-
core cities. Additionally, the Group worked to improve the
all-round capabilities of its in-house sales management in
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai. An information communication
mechanism that centered on marketing management was
also built up. All these measures helped the Group to achieve
substantial growth in its sales.

BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017

Fra MRS

ZE—tFEH¥F ARENEERABAR
#57,368,346,000 L (Z T —/NF FF¥F : A
R #5,135,091,00070 ) * ¥ & F [ BB 0 49
43% - EXEFHAEAR®1,575,757,0007C
BREFEREIERA14% o FBRF A TR
SEAE A ARE646,199,000T (— T — R4 E
F4F : 573,484,0007T) © EAFRKE A A
R¥O21T(ZTE—R"FLFF : AR®0.19
) REFRBERBEEZERN11% - EF
eEREITEREE_ZE—tFA=1THIE
RIFRERAR B o

—Tt ¥ AREAREE[FEENE
RINKETE  NERIITEREZR - AL
BEHBTHSEN  BAFBHERK 2
EHESE NIRRT ERFEL  2E
BIEREEEBHEEFEER  BUNEHE
BERRRZONERABRKY  SKRERHEE
REABIER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 12 [E &1 & A 2 47

Geographical distribution of property sales performance in 1H of 2017 and 1H of 2016
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During the first half of 2017, the total contracted sales area
of the Group's projects totaled approximately 1,079,000
sq.m., up 18.8% from the same period last year. Total
contracted sales were RMB24.51 billion, up 50.5% from the
same period last year. Average selling price was RMB22,721
per sg.m., up 26.7% from the same period last year. The
Group continued to strategically focus on its core cities and
effectively generated RMB22.46 billion, or 91.6% of its
total contracted sales, from six core cities and the Australian
market, representing a year-over-year increase of 47.0%. In
particular, Beijing was the major driver of sales growth as the
city alone contributed RMB10.61 billion, or 43.3% of total
contracted sales, representing a year-over-year increase of
150.0%.

In the first half of 2017, “Tian Yue” and “Xi Rui” series, the
two high-end product lines that the Group has been focusing
on, continued to provide quality products and services
that cater to customer demand and thus created product
premiums. During the period, the average selling price of the
two projects — the Capital of Western Village project and the
Tian Xi project — recorded an average selling price of more
than RMB80,000 per sg.m. and over RMB160,000 per sg.m.
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS % 2 & 51 & 9 47

Contracted Contracted
Contracted Average Sales
City Sales Area Selling Price Revenue
BN BAEL BN
W HEMEE HEHE HESH
(sgq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.) ("000 RMB)

(AR¥T/
(FFFAK) FITAK) (AR¥EFTT)
Beijing bR 270,639 39,207 10,611,033
Tianjin R 187,569 23,175 4,346,931
Shanghai abis] 58,922 30,211 1,780,123
Chengdu & &R 159,185 10,827 1,723,456
Chongging 5E 106,216 8,532 906,273
Sydney and Brisbane e R m B ETIE 74,886 41,267 3,090,355
Others Efb 221,424 9,278 2,054,283
Total &5t 1,078,841 22,721 24,512,454

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY P 2 Hb

During the first half of 2017, Capital Grand, the commercial
property arm of the Group, acquired the Kunming outlets
project, the Zhengzhou outlets project A2 land plot, etc. It
has now deployed outlets projects in 14 cities and remains
No.1 nationwide in terms of number of outlets. The Group
leveraged the advantage of franchise operations across the
nation, forging ahead with a number of strategic partnerships
and various brands across different projects as well as
introducing brands to new outlets. This business model is
shaping up to be systematically replicable,and would allow
the commercial property business to scale up.

During the first half, the Group strove to improve the
efficiency of outlet operations and increase brand awareness.
Concurrently, the Group actively expanded online channels
and developed new business categories. In addition, the Group
worked closely with Capital Grand's strategic shareholders on
multiple fronts, including commercial resources, operational
management and capital operations. As a result, the operating
results of the outlets business improved steadily, with four
existing outlets generating turnover of nearly RMB1.7 billion,
an increase of 33% year-over-year. Foot traffic reached more
than 10 million, an increase of 23% year-over-year. During
the period, the Group officially launched the self-operating
e-commerce platform “#8 MAX", successfully integrating
online and offline through business expansion.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In the first half of 2017, the Group, together with its joint
ventures and associated companies, completed construction

LRYE

of projects with an aggregate GFA of approximately 521,242  f&52. 18 F 5K o

“EtLFEHEF AEERAEEZEER
A BERRERRIIABMAEKEARER

sg.m.
Approximate
Completed Attributable
Project Type Total GFA Interest
BEAE X HRIEX
HE AW MEER REEMEE iR
(sg.m.)
(FHK)
Beijing Central Park Commercial 34,083 100%
bR R B EES
Beijing Xanadu Villa — Hezhu/River Story Residential 118,380 100%
ErEmE —E F=
Beijing Xanadu Villa Residential 77,134 100%
ErERE E=x
Chengdu Flora City Residential 149,464 100%
P EBTE HLI5 TF=E
Chongging Eco Village Residential 101,798 96.39%
BELFIM F=
Shenyang Qipan Hills First Villa Residential 40,383 50%
B EARILN5R E=x
Total &5 521,242
B EAEEROERAT Tt FRBRS
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In the first half of 2017, the Group continued to focus
investment on its six core cities, and actively acquired land
resources for primary land development and industrial
property development in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region. The
Group added eight new secondary land development projects
in Beijing, Tianjin, Shenzhen and overseas market, with a
total GFA of 1.517 million sg.m. and an aggregate amount of
RMB11.53 billion. Investment in Beijing, Tianjin and Shenzhen
accounted for 86% in terms of the land premium. During
the first half of the year, the Group entered the Shenzhen
market for the first time by acquiring a project in the Longhua
area, further expanding its roll-out in core cities. The project
is located in a popular area of central Shenzhen and has a
planned total GFA of 68,000 sgq.m. The project will benefit
from well-established amenities nearby and will be positioned
as a high-end project. In Tianjin, the Group acquired a new
project called “Tian Yue Hai He” via merger and acquisition,
a core project acquired at low cost. This project is a complex
atop metro-station that located in the heart of the Hebei
District of Tianjin and has a total GFA of 436,000 sg.m.

During the period, the Group proceeded to work on its
primary land and industrial property business in the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei region, and this will be one of its key business
lines for the long term. In the first half of 2017, BCL won
a bid for the Beishicao Shanty Town Renovation Project in
the Shunyi District, Beijing. The project has a site area of
60.8 hectares and is expected to help replenish the Group’s
land resources in its core cities. Additionally, the Company
accelerated its acquisition of primary land and industrial
property, including the Hebei Baoding project and Phase |I
of the Tianjin Wuging project in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
region. The Company will continue to rapidly secure new
land resources to effectively take advantage of opportunities
arising from the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei integrated development
program and the new development zone Xiong'an New Area.
In terms of primary land development, the Company signed
a strategic cooperation agreement with Everbright Financial
Holding Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Everbright Financial
Holding”) on their development of municipal infrastructure
projects and shanty town renovation projects in the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei region, including projects that are either
ongoing or in the pipeline. This cooperation should help to
effectively expand the Group's primary land development and
create a unique and compelling business model.
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BE_FT—tFAAE AEBETREHEAE
FEB1N21EFFHK - #h FEREES8E T
K RBAZEEMESI9B T K - HEaEH
FREEEIZE T K - LibEBERER
B 79%RBERME - 21%RREMVERE
fir - RELHREBBRARBARARAKIFLA
MBRFE - RRET -

As at 30 June 2017, the Company’s total land bank consisted
of a GFA of 11.21 million sq.m., and a total ground area of
8.68 million sg.m. The aggregate GFA attributable to the
Company’s equity interests was 8.19 million sgq.m., and the
ground area attributable to the Company’s equity interests
was 6.33 million sgq.m. Of the total land bank, approximately
79% is for property development, and 21% is for investment
properties and other uses. The existing land bank is
considered to be sufficient for the Group’s development over

the coming three years.

Total Total
GFA of Above
Land Bank Ground
Attributable Site Area Available GFA of
Project Project name Location Location Interest of Land for Sale Land Bank
BRIER *E AEHE
HRER EEZR WENE nEgH b EHER BRgER BEER
(sq.m) (sqm) (sq.m.)
(FAR) (FAR) (FAK)
HOTEL PROPERTIES
EENE
1 InterContinental Financial Xicheng District, Beijing Hotel 34% 10,658 58,161 42,900
Street Bejing
SRAMEEE FRIESE BE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
RENx
2 Fangshan Capital Outlets Fangshan District, Beijing Commercial 72.13% 90,766 196,494 106,891
FILEHS FRHELE #%
3 Huzhou Capital Outlets Taihu Lake Resort, Huzhou, Commercial 72.13% 302,693 300,49 300,49
Zhejiang Province
MRS IR RNTARREE R #%
4 Wanning Capital Outlets Liji Town, Wanning District, Commercial 55% 199,807 103,200 103,200
Hainan Province
BERR BHAEEmELE Bx
5 Kunshan Capital Outlets The East New Town, Kunshan, Commercial 72.13% 93,026 100,527 100,527
Jiangsu Province
BRI IHARNTRSI Bx
6 Nanchang Capital Outlets Nanchang, Jiangxi Province Commercial 72.13% 86,987 158,080 158,080
EEES IBEEE Ex
7 Hangzhou Capital Outlets Fuyang District, Hangzhou, Commercial 72.13% 101,691 112,280 112,280
Zhejiang Province
HRERE FIanMnERR Ex
8 Wuhan Capital Outlets East Lake High-tech Development Zone, Wuhan, Commercial 71.37% 89,757 107,560 107,560
Hubei Province
RERERY ML RETRAE Ex
9 Changsha Capital Outlets Xiangjiang New Area,Changsha, Commercial 21.63% 71,850 112,070 112,070
Hunan Province
ROBIHE HEERI MG Ex
10 Xi'an Integrated Outlets Project Xi'an Hi-Tech Industries Development Zone, Xi‘an, ~ Commercial 72.13% 81,301 122,970 122,970
Shaanxi Province
AZRERY RELEZTaRIEZRER B
11 Zhengzhou Capital Outlets Zhengzhou, Henan Province Commercial 72.13% 80,790 96,583 96,583
B RIRE AmsgHm [

EEl
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Total Total
GFA of Above
Land Bank Ground
Attributable Site Area Available GFA of
Project Project name Location Location Interest of Land for Sale Land Bank
ERIER RE AEBE
HRER BERER HENE S Eaith HHER BREER BEEE
(sg.m) (sq.m) (sg.m)
(FAx) (FA%) (FA%)
12 Jinan Capital Outlets Tangye New Town, Licheng District, Commercial 72.13% 114,929 129,776 129,776
Jinan, Shandong Province
R RS EETESERAHE [
13 Hefei Capital Outlets Binhu New Area, Hefei, Anhui Province Commercial 72.13% 87,913 96,494 96,494
AERERE FHESETENTE [
14 Chongging Capital Outlets Lujiao New Town, Banan District, Chongging Commercial 72.13% 74,349 113,600 81,600
ERARRS EEMCHRRANY [
15 Kunming Capital Outlets Wuhua District, Kunming, Commercial 61.31% 67,920 133,500 87,000
Yunnan Province
ERARRE EMEEATLER [
16 Lize Financial Business District Fengtai District, Beijing Office/Commercial 50% 18,859 196,411 171,901
Project
EECRENE FRTERE BFE/Ex
17 Beijing Haidian Yongfeng Haidian District, Beijing Office/Apartment 50% 59,750 106,130 64,859
Industrial Base Project Plot B2
TR EERRB p iy BFE/1B
18 Haileybury International School Wuging District, Tianjin School 90% 46,408 44,657 44,657
EERERER RETHEE g1
19 Sunshine Building Xicheng District, Beijing Office/Commercial 35% 8,840 52,095 34,163
B AR FRTEHE B7ER/B%
20 Capital Group Plaza Dongcheng District, Beijing Office/Commercial 100% 7,069 48431 35,867
TREARE FRREE BFR/Ex
DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY
HENE
21 Beijing Hujialou Project Xanadu Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential/Commercial 72.13% 74,349 113,600 81,600
TRRZEER i) IrmEkE fx/B%
22 Beijing Yuyuantan Project The Reflections ~ Haidian District, Beijing Residential 100% 17915 1,067 903
FRENERR HEE RiERE iz
23 Beijing Haidian Yongfeng Capital of Western  Haidian District, Beijing Residential/Apartment/ 100% 65,219 144,250 110,723
Industrial Base Project Plot F1 Village Commercial/Office
FRERX SRS AEEW RbiERR ftx/08/
Bf/B7E
24 Beijing Haidian Yongfeng Industrial Haidian District, Beijing Office/Commercial 50% 59,750 64,276 64,276
Base Project Plot B2
FRiEEKEES 218 FRTEEE 578/ B
25 Beijing Haidian Taipingzhuang Opus Beijing Haidian District, Beijing Residential/Apartment 25% 5379 2,864 2,864
Project
BEATHER PHEE RTEEE ftx/28
26 Lize Financial Business District Fengtai District, Beijing Office/Apartment 26,352 38,464 26,106
Project
ERCREHRE IRTEAE BYE/1%
LizeF02 100% 15,963 2321 12,415
EEf02
LizeF05 Tian Yue Mansion 100% 10,389 15,243 13,691
EEf05 PN
27 Beijing Zhaoguanying F1-01 Passion World Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/Commercial 100% 7.1 5,063 5,063
Project
JREZER-01ER TEHER IRTEEE 0E/Ex

BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 12 [E &1 & A 2 47

Total Total

GFA of Above

Land Bank Ground

Attributable Site Area Available GFA of

Project Project name Location Location Interest of Land for Sale Land Bank
BRIER RE REHE

HE R RRER BENE S Eaithl HHER BREER BEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m) (sq.m.)

(F7%) (Fr%) (¥7%)

28 Beiing Zhaoguanying Land Enjoyable Trees  Shunyi District, Bejing Residential/Apartment 100% 104,345 109,690 65,259
No. 4 Project
pcEa-lh) BEE RmERE Ez/2%
29 Beiing Zhaoguanying Land Enjoyable Bay Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/Apartment/ 100% 114,154 140,094 89,938
No.2 Project Commercial
TRE2 g bige RmERE fix/08/ %%
30 Beijing Shunyi No. 17 Project Xanadu Mountain  Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/Apartment 100% 85,056 75,298 46,687
FRIER 1 THEER il IRTERE /08
31 Beijing Zhaoguanying F2-01 Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/Commercial 100% 17211 43,657 34,757
Project
$FH2ER08R EETIESE 0%/B%
32 Beijing Shunyi Renhe Golden Future Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/Commercial 14.55% 40,669 15,948 15,948
Town Project
tRIEECHEER SHRAR il Ez/E%
33 Beijing Shunyi New Town Block ~ Capital Park #26  Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/Commercial 12.50% 88,702 101,811 87,958
No. 26 Project
FRIEEH266EER 64 E IrTHREER Ez/B%
34 Beijing Miyun Yun Feng Yuan Beijing Landscape  Miyun District, Beijing Residential 100% 334,855 72,078 59,502
Zhuang Project Vila
FREZZELAER FEL IRHEER fix
35 Beijing Miyun New Town Project  The Happiness Miyun District, Beijing Residential/Commercial 100% 56,54 78,767 52,042
FREEHIER B pAGibiEL /B
36 Beijing Miyun Tanying Town Miyun District, Beijing Residential/Commercial 100% 60,999 190,298 139,021
Project
TREEBLHER IREEE fz/E%
37 Beijing Pinggu Changchunyuan Pinggu District, Beijing Residential/Commercial 25% 220,878 293,854 150,566
Project
IRTAGEEER IR TAR /B
38 Beijing Changyang Land Novotown Fangshan District, Beijing Residential/Commercial 100% 90,389 3,398 967
No.4 Project
FREB4TER HHi8 FRHELE /B
39 Beifing Fangshan Gaojiao Park Nobles Mansion ~ Fangshan District, Beijing Residential/Apartment/ 100% 56,138 68,479 41,184
Project Commercial
TRELEHEER Ei IRHELE fix/ 08/ %%
40 Beijing Huang Xin Zhuang Project  Ealing Fangshan District, Beijing Residential 95% 114,166 141,474 103,689
FREFIER (FHE IRTRELE fi
41 Bejing Daxing Sun Enjoyable City Daxing District, Beijing Residential/Apartment/ 100% 61,512 49,353 45442
Village Project Commercial
TRAEEAR HaE IRAARE ft/08/m%
42 Bejing Daxing Huang Village Daxing District, Beijing Apartment/Commercial 100% 84,213 186,301 134,479
Project
TRAEEAR IRAARE RE/BE
43 Shanghai Songjiang Project Time Flowing Songjiang District,Shanghai Residential/Commercial 100% 65239 19,572 10,590
In Villa
HEITER #H LEHIIE /@
44 Shanghai Yingpu Street The Happiness Qingpu District, Shangha Residential/Commercial 100% 129,484 213,435 153,304
Community Project
LEEREREEER i LETERE /@

T tERBHRE
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Total Total
GFA of Above
Land Bank Ground
Attributable Site Area Available GFA of
Project Project name Location Location Interest of Land for Sale Land Bank
ERIER RE AEBE
HRER BERER HENE S Exithl EHER BREER BEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAx) (FA%) (FA%)
45 Shanghai Qingpu Xujing Project Qingpu District, Shangha Residential 100% 17,048 30,110 17,49
HEERRUER LETERR =3
46 Shanghai Yangpu Capital Of Vision  Yangpu District, Shanghai Residential/Commercial/ 100% 32,360 105,724 86,002
Pingliang Project Office
HERRTREE RHEL HETRER tx/H%/578
47 Shanghai Zhoupu Project Pudong New Area, Shanghai Residential 51% 69,433 175,426 121,044
LEERER LEmRRHE %
48 Shanghai Xinchang Project Pudong New Area, Shanghai Residential 50% 56,887 87,179 65,343
LiE5ER LEmRRHE fix
49 Shanghai Jiading Project The Great City Jiading District, Shanghai Residential/Commercial 60% 123,090 69,613 45,505
LEERRR Rl LEhERR frz/m%
50 Tianjin Shuangang 121 Project Fortune Class Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/Apartment/ 55% 255,038 69,804 63,611
Commercial/Office
REEEN1AE gl REHRER Ez/28/
B%/B7E
51 Tianjin Shuangang 122 Project Tianjin - A-ZTown  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 55% 183,511 7,849 0
RES#E12ER KEAT Town REMEEE fiz
52 Tianjin Huaming Project Noble City Dongli District, Tianjin Residential/Apartment/ 40% 271,830 70,800 70,800
Commercial
REEHER ERE RETRER fx/P8/ B4
53 Tianjin Xiging Project Landing House Xiqing District, Tianjin Residential/Office 40% 151,596 17,100 17,100
REBEAEE RiME RETAER kz/g7%
54 Tianjin Hongni River Project Tianjin Capital City ~ Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial 100% 257,093 139,429 35,626
REEETER REEE REMERE /@
55 Tianjin Lishuang Road Project Amicable Mountain  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 100% 108,344 26,588 1813
RARERAR Al RETZHE =
56 Tianjin MR Project Tian Yue River Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/Apartment/ 49% 06,888 260,365 249,065
Commercial/Office
KABEER REET RETALE ftx/08/
[E4E
57 Tianjin Beiyunhe Project Grand Canal Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/Apartment/ 100% 62,817 231,697 147,059
Milestone Commercial
Rt ETEE RARE RETALRE frz/08/ 5%
58 Tianjin Zhongshanlu Project Metropolis Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial/ 100% 22,455 110,906 83,906
Office
REflBER A#e RETALE 1%/ 5%/ 578
59 Tianjin Xinzhuang No. 5 Project ~ Poetic Life Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 100% 82,164 61,156 61,156
RAFERSHER Bl RATRER iz
60 Tianjin Hongxianli Project North Shore Center - Honggiao District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial/ 25% 106,920 174,695 153,355
Office
REIF2%ER Bzl REWARE [z/Bx/ 578
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Total Total

GFA of Above

Land Bank Ground

Attributable Site Area Available GFA of

Project Project name Location Location Interest of Land for Sale Land Bank
BRIER RE AEHL

HE R RRER BENE S Eaithl HHER BREER BEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m) (sq.m.)

(F7%) (Fr%) (¥7%)

61 Tianjin Wuging Project International Wuging District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial/ 1,024,363 421,756 387,889
Peninsula Office
REREER ar+s REMHAEE x/H%/ 578
Plot 08-02 100% 17,418 24,000 24,000
080252
Plot 01-05 100% 193,4% 15,983 15,983
01-0558%
Plot 03-02 100% 174,948 21,561 21,561
03024454
Plot 04-02 100% 187,3% 50,041 50,041
04-0255%
Plot 07-02 100% 49,871 24175 24175
07-025%
Plot 06-09 100% 40,541 39,290 39,290
06-095%
Plot 07-08 100% 24,584 23,829 23,829
07-0882
Jingzhu Square 100% 18,103 18,101 18,101
BES
Plot 03-06/03-07 30% 164,005 204,776 170,909
03-06/03-07305%
62 Shenzhen Longhua Project Longhua District, Shenzhen Apartment/Commercial/ 100% 9,519 67,59 43,59
Office
RlEEER AmEER RE/B%/E7E
63 Chongging Hongensi Project Hong'en Jiangbei District, Chongging Residential/Commercial 100% 229314 94,394 1047
International
Living District
EL S L REERLGER  EEMILLE fix/%%
64 Chongging Xiyong Project Chongging Eco  Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/Apartment/ 96.39% 146,394 132,738 30,201
Village Commercial
ERAAGER ERRA ERT)TEE fix/08/ %%
65  Chongging Jialingchang Project  Chongging Capital  Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/Commercial 30.40% 218,303 609,658 417,898
City
BREIERER EELY L fx/m%
66 Chengdu Jianshe Road Project Chengdu A-Z Town Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/Commercial 100% 68,270 1912 251
Sichuan Province
RBRFRER B#AZTom  RIERATHER fiz/m%
67 Chengdu Shengli Village Project  Chengdu First City ~ Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/Commercial 100% 78171 16,958 15,727
Sichuan Province
RBBHER HABERA BIIERBHHER fiz/m%
68 Chengdu Beiquan Road Project (it Villa Longquanyi District, Chengdu, Residential/Commercial 55% 75,019 47,965 152
Sichuan Province
DEDIEEEE RO BlIERBHRRER fiz/m%
69 Chengdu SCE Project Wanjuanshan Longquanyi District, Chengdu, Residential/Commercial/ 55% 106,786 92,940 29,812
Sichuan Province Office
w&)IHAEE Al B AmERER ftx/m%/578

e -
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Total Total
GFA of Above
Land Bank Ground
Attributable Site Area Available GFA of
Project Project name Location Location Interest of Land for Sale Land Bank
ERIER RE AEBE
HRER BERER HENE S Exithl EHER BREER BEEE
(sg.m) (sq.m) (sg.m)
(FAx) (FA%) (FA%)
70 Chengdu Qinglongchang Project  Chengdu Eco Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/Commercial 100% 87312 143,253 12,405
Village Sichuan Province
R#EESER KA BIIERBHRER /5%
71 Chengdu Huaxin Village Project ~ Galaxy No.1 Jinjiang District, Chengdu, Residential/Commercial 67.50% 95,663 112,566 50,929
Sichuan Province
RAEHER 1% BIIERBHEIE fiz/5%
72 Xi‘an Feng-cheng Road Project  Xi'an First City Xi'an Economic and Technology Development Zone,  Residential/Commercial/ 72.13% 355,909 558,042 344,239
Shaanxi Province Office
EREAER BRER RELERTEERIFER x/%% /578
73 Shenyang Shenying Road Project  Shenyang First City ~ Hunnan New District, Shenyang, Residential/Apartment/ 30% 175,348 79,150 48,700
Liaoning Province Commercial
EhReRER ERER RELRETERIE ftx/08/8%
74 Shenyang Yinhe Wan Project Qipan Hills Qi Pan Shan District, Shenyang, Residential/Commercial 50% 420317 347,898 332,698
First Villa Liaoning Province
EBEaEs Bl BEARRTHALR fix/%B%
75 Shenyang Shenzhong Street Shenyang Eco Hunnan New District, Shenyang, Residential/Commercial 100% 194,249 401,563 33,773
Project Village Liaoning Province
BRET AR L ynitil RELRETERIRE fiz/m%
76 Shenyang Hupowan Project Legendary Bay Qi Pan Shan District, Shenyang, Residential/Commercial 100% 231,666 132,069 132,069
Project Liaoning Province
EhRneEa EhnE RELRETHELR fiz/m%
77 Qingdao Chengyang Project Airport International Chengyang District, Qingdao, Commercial/Office 100% 92,455 86,438 86,438
Centre Shandong Province
EENRER ZEARAL LIREEETHER B3/ B8
78 Qingdao Central Park No. 1 Project Qingdao Central ~ Chengyang District, Qingdao, Residential/Apartment/ 100% 81,016 16,084 16,084
Park No. 1 Shandong Province Commercial
ERREIRER RS LREEETHER ftx/08/m%
79 Qingdao Yangbuzhai Project Qingdao Central ~ Chengyang District, Qingdao, Residential/Commercial 100% 38,805 m 1
Park No.1 e East ~ Shandong Province
Park
BERERER MEE-RE LREEETIBE /B
80 Qingdao Qiangianshu Project Sunny Xiangmi Lake Licang District,Qingdao, Residential/Commercial 100% 113,974 26 26
Shandong Province
BETTHER FXELH WREEEHFAR /B
81 Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Project  Yantai Sunny Chief  Fushan District, Yantai, Residential/Commercial 100% 195,609 57,957 57,957
Yard Shandong Province
EabrERER RabraEk LRERaHRLE /B
82 Zhenjiang National University Joyous House Zhenjiang Technological Development Zone, Jiangsu  Residential/Commercial 100% 111,364 14,622 14,621
Science Park Project Province
ATEFAEHHEER b IHEBITREREE /B
83 Kunshan Jinxi Project Kunshan Eastern ~—Jinxi Town, Kunshan City, Residential/Commercial/ 51% 550,037 265,826 265,826
Myster Jiangsu Province Hotel
BISEER Si-FANE  THERUDREE ftE/B%/BE
84 Wuxi Dongting Town Project Wuxi Gentle House  Xishan District, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province Residential/Commercial 100% 162,911 21,668 16,208
BRRSHER ERER THEEATHLE frz/B%
85 WuxiJichang Road Project Wuxi Joyous House - Wuxi New District, Jiangsu Province Residential/Commercial 100% 96,598 17,986 1,716
EHMSRER BB THEERTHE frz/B%
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Total Total
GFA of Above
Land Bank Ground
Attributable Site Area Available GFA of
Project Project name Location Location Interest of Land for Sale Land Bank
BRIEX A& REHE
iR ERER BEHE I i Eaitfl B EE BREmE BEEE
(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m)
(FAR) (FA%) (FA%)
86 Jiangsu Jiangyin Yuyue Project Jiangyin Auspicious  Yushan Bay, Jiangyin, Residential/Commercial 100% 78,258 132,177 117,547
House Jiangsu Province
TEHER TERRE TH#IEmELE fix/m%
87 Huzhou Renhuangshan Project Joyous House Renhuangshan District, Huzhou, Residential/Commercial 55% 53,865 3,791 0
Zhejiang Province
ANC2WER ANt MIERNTCELE fix/H%
88 Huzhou Taihu Project Huzhou Integrated  Taihu National Tourism Vacation Zone, Huzhou, Residential/Commercial/ 100% 580,986 387,449 358,336
Outlets Project Zhejiang Province Hotel
HNAER ANREREEAE MIEBNTANREERE ftx/%%/EE
89 Hainan Wanning Project Hainan Integrated ~Liji Town, Wanning,Hainan Province Residential/Apartment/ 440,415 142,629 142,629
Outlets Project Commercial
SHEEER BERRRNGAE SHEEETRLE /08 %%
1 Plot 55% 94,355 4,087 4,087
153
2Plot, 3 Plot 55% 157,546 553 553
2 35
5Plot, 6 Plot 100% 188,514 137,989 137,989
S 658
90 Kunshan Capital Outlets Project ~ Kunshan Integrated  The East New Town, Kunshan, Residential/Apartment/ 100% 354,912 374,633 374,633
QOutlets Project Jiangsu Province Commercial
BIARRIER BURKREGAE TRERLTRBIN fix/08/ %%
91 Nanchang Capital Outlets Nanchang Capital ~ Nanchang Capital Outlets Commercial 72.13% 86,987 32,560 32,560
Outlets
BEARRE EEESTE IEERAT #%
92 lJinan Capital Outlets Jinan Capital Outlets Tangye New Town, Licheng District, Commercial 72.13% 114,929 53,871 52,366
Jinan, Shandong Province
ERARRE ERRRRE WREEATEAER A HE #%
93 Chongging Capital Outlets Chongging Capital  Lujiao New Town, Banan District, Chongging Commercial 72.13% 74,349 15,000 15,000
Outlets
BRRIE SRR SRTERRBA i
94 Phase 2, Project Merrylands Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 21,043 74,429 28,066
Merrylands & 8 £ ARREERT 1%
95 Project Arden Brishane, Australia Residential 50% 16,409 41,603 9,542
ArdenE LY EEL B fix
9 Project Max Sydney/Brishane, Australia Residential 50% 28,7121 68,403 34,647
MawE RAHTERS/ REHHET iz
Total 11,213,337 8,678,646
it
e — " HRAIBXRBERAR —E—tFHhPRE
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As of 30 June 2017, the Group employed 2,084 professionals
who had an average age of 33.7. In terms of education, 75%
of employees held a bachelor’s degree or higher and 11.9%
of employees held a master’s degree or higher. Employees
with intermediate or senior professional titles accounted for
22.2%.

In the first half of 2017, the Group focused on executing its
strategy of achieving “quality growth” by building a robust
platform for sustainable development and upgrading its
organizational structure. The Group continued to strengthen
its business platform in core regions and integrated its
business and teams in areas including Beijing and Jiangsu.
Under the new organizational structure, the Group was
able to actively accelerate the development of innovative
businesses and unleash its potential for greater success
throughout China’s 13th Five-year Plan period.

The Group adopted a strategy for human capital that revolves
around attracting the highest quality talents in the industry.
With an ever evolving and ever-improving approach to talent
development, the Group looked to lure top professionals
from the industry. The Group provided tailor-made training
schemes to arm employees with the skills that the Company’s
development strategy requires, and provided various learning
platforms for employees to nurture leadership skills, sharpen
professional expertise, and practice new skills in the field. BCL
is dedicated to upgrading its pool of talent to ensure that the
Group can achieve sustainable growth over the long term.

The Group continually strives to promote a corporate culture
based on passion and trust, and endeavors to foster a work
environment that is full of joy, collaboration and innovation.
The Group’s corporate culture is closely tied to its strategic
goals, and is able to better focus the Group’s corporate
strategies.

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017

BE-_Z—+E X A=1H ~EEFELFHE
2,084 AMBENER - B TEEFHFR
3375k c BEFE c RBAR KU EBFESET
1575% » EFELTRAEEFEE T(511.9% °
HEEIH EARSABEE T(522.2% -

R FHF SREERFFEENE
RIE—TH NITERBUERSRRE Bk
B A BARBIT AR TR - TEINEZ O R
EEBFaRE  TRIER IHFRENE
BREFREIE BEEEAFEBRE
ERAMSBEREN  AEET=ABHEARE
BRIRHREE -

SEEBRFBEASRR  THTEERAL
BHER  BETERREE  YEGERERAS
ASREDEEREIIFE - HARKEES
TR BITEE  BEEREXETE @ RE
AT BBAL  REENAFERRERE S
SF e

SEIRERBENBFER - EREBENS—XL
Hm o SEFREIE  BRLFHAKNE
BXfEREEEBRBIANETES @ (REX
EEBORAR - ZNTESERREENER
X g



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 2 & &1 & 5 4T

Looking out to the second half of 2017, China property sector
will have “housing is for people to live in, not for speculation”
as an overarching theme. The Chinese government will
continue to enact city-specific measures and category-based
regulations over the property market, and tightening polices
in first- and hot second-tier cities are not expected to be
loosened in the near term. Monetary policy is expected to
be moderately tightened, resulting in stiffer credit conditions
for the property sector. The traditional business model
of property companies will be challenged as competition
has shifted in areas such as lean management, property +
innovation, and financial risk management.

In the second half of 2017, the Group will adopt the following
development strategies:

1. Execute "BCL Made 2020" product strategy and focus
on achieving “Quality Growth”. Led by the Group's
“Tian Yue” and “Xi Rui” product lines, the Group
will focus on building products with high quality
craftsmanship, enhancing product innovation through
precise research and development, and building
research systems that can take advantage of big data.
The Group also plans to reinforce its contract-signing
center and in-house sales team to create a full ecosystem
of client resources in core cities. For BCL's newly
launched customer service strategies, the Group will
focus on improving service quality and the brand value
of Shouwan Yuye. The Group will also apply customized
strategies in different cities and optimize its sales and
marketing efforts as it strives to achieve a full-year target
of RMB50 billion contracted sales.
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Acquire resources in an innovative manner and shift
investment focus from individual core cities to core
metropolitan areas. The Group’s investment focus
will be extended from focusing on six core cities to
core metropolitan areas around Beijing, Shanghai and
Shenzhen to meet the Company’s goal of scaling up,
and the new strategic focus will allow BCL to make
better use of its resources in core cities. The Group
will further enhance its synergies with Capital Group
and New Town Fund, in particular for primary land
development in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei, as well as
industrial property, to effectively take advantage of
the Group's resources for potential major projects.
The Group will expand its efforts in acquiring projects
through mergers and acquisitions while continuing to
keep an eye on opportunities in the auction market.
The Group will also create its own asset management
platform for investment properties, team up with
strategic partners, and speed up inventory clearance,
including commercial and office properties, and
residential investment properties.

Accelerate nationwide expansion of the outlets
business and promote lean operations management.
Leveraging Capital Grand’s red chip platform, the
Group will continue to execute its strategic goal of
“Twenty Cities in Five Years” by adopting an expanding
strategy of “Precise Expansion with Lean Operations
Management”. The Group will step up its efforts to
deploy quality outlets projects in target cities, and
also ensure that new projects will be launched on-
schedule with a high standard. The Group will adopt
the approach of lean operations management and
take advantage of the resources from Capital Grand'’s
strategic shareholders. With the aim of improving
consumer experience and increasing brand value, the
Group plans to utilize digital innovations to build an
efficient system in order to closely monitor consumption
demand. Through all of these efforts, the Group strives
to become an industry benchmark in China’s outlets
retail sector.

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017

1

REZRT AR RZOBTE - 8 ER
BRI - RERBEE NSRRI M IR
REBEERILR - B8 RYBRZROHZL
W - WERARRERRFR - W
BRRAZLHMERNES TN
HERAREBEXZAB LT MEES N
Rl ANERREL W —RFAERESR
WEXRT  BMEBEEEEAEBER
ERIAFRMSREREHORE @ B
BHBHAEDRRENANE  KREFAD
REEFamiTE - sIABREIES - M
RIEEEBME  FAUEESFEEEN
e

jJD RRREEIARE - R REL
KB ESERAE TR - BRI
Fﬁif—%i&JE’HXE%ET%‘% E AR
R BadE NERRE &%
bﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁi‘ﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw
REFBRBRAIERERAE X
E?f SIEEE  BUEREHBERNE
RES  BREEERRImEEER
AL - NBUR(CRIFT ARBE O - &2
Y RERBHEERRKRERS - ZH
TERFRETEMTERT -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & I8 E &1 s fl 5

Focus on equity financing and proactively respond
to market and policy risks. The Group will continue
to follow up and respond to feedback on its A-share
IPO, and update application materials as required so
as to ultimately achieve a breakthrough in A-share
equity financing. In terms of debt financing, the
Group will dynamically adjust financing activities
to meet funding needs, have debt under control,
optimize debt structure and strengthen financial risk
management capability. The Group will acquire more
land in core cities through joint ventures and expand
cooperation on project financing. BCL will also explore
cooperation opportunities to securitize its commercial
and office properties, as well as investment properties.
Supported by policy-backed projects, including shanty
town renovation projects and government-subsidized
housing projects, the Group aims to achieve financing
breakthroughs in corporate debt, medium-term notes
and other bond financings.
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In the first half of 2017, revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB7,368,346,000 (2016 1H:
RMB5,135,091,000), representing an increase of
approximately 43% from 2016. The increase in revenue was
mainly attributable to the increase in projects completed
and occupied as well as the revenue from primary land
development business during the period.

In the first half of 2017, the Group achieved a gross profit
margin after business tax of approximately 31%, representing
an increase of 22 percentage points as compared to 9% in the
first half of 2016, mainly attributable to the increase in gross
profit margin of projects completed and occupied as well as
the primary land development business during the period.

In the first half of 2017, operating profit of the Group
was approximately RMB1,575,757,000 (2016 1H:
RMB1,380,078,000), representing an increase of
approximately 14% as compared to the first half of 2016.

1. Financial Resources, Liquidity and Liability
Position

During the period of review, the Group maintained a
healthy liquidity position and a reasonable appropriation
of financial resources. As at 30 June 2017, the
Group’s total assets were RMB123,241,947,000
(31 December 2016: RMB119,459,640,000), of
which current assets were RMB96,419,055,000
(31 December 2016: RMB94,588,284,000) and
non-current assets were RMB26,822,892,000 (31
December 2016: RMB24,871,356,000); and total
liabilities were RMB96,193,951,000 (31 December
2016: RMB91,908,938,000), of which, current
liabilities were RMB54,223,733,000 (31 December
2016: RMB48,065,234,000) and non-current
liabilities were RMB41,970,218,000 (31 December
2016: RMB43,843,704,000), and owners’ equity
was RMB27,047,996,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB27,550,702,000).
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The Group has sound liquidity and solvency. Current
ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2017 was 1.78 (31
December 2016: 1.97).

As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s cash at bank and on
hand amounted to RMB16,934,497,000 (31 December
2016: RMB17,926,073,000), which represented
sufficient cash flow for operations. As at 30 June
2017, bank loans and debentures of the Group
amounted to RMB52,612,304,000 (31 December
2016: RMB54,382,104,000) in aggregate, of which
the long-term loans and debentures amounted
to RMB35,449,399,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB37,505,775,000). The bank loans were mainly used
to satisfy the capital requirements of the Group’s property
development projects.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group's gearing ratio was
approximately 78% (31 December 2016: 77%). The
gearing ratio of the Group is calculated as the total
liabilities divided by total assets.

Changes in major subsidiaries, principal jointly
controlled entities and associates

Beijing Xiangneng Real Estate Co., Ltd. (1L FNREE %
BPBRAA]), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in
January 2017, and 100% of its equity interest was held
by the Group.

Chongging Shouju Outlets Real Estate Co., Ltd. (EE &
EREFRATBEEGMR /AR ), a subsidiary of the Group,
was established in January 2017, and 72.13% of its net
assets was held by the Group.

Kunming Capital Outlets Business Operation
Management Limited. ( EFABRIRFKE X EEERET
[R27]), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in
May 2017, and 61.31% of its net assets was held by the
Group.

The Group acquired 100% equity interest of Shenyang
Haohua Land Limited (J&f5 2 ZEE B AF]) during
the period.
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During the period, the Group has entered into an
agreement with the partner in relations to the joint
development project of the property on the land at No.
19, Wuging through Tianjin Yongyuan Real Estate Co.,
Ltd (RIFKTTE X BRAA]) (the “Tianjin Yongyuan”),
a subsidiary of the Group, as the platform. The Group
and the partner agreed that, the finance, assets and
business in the existing real estate projects of Tianjin
Yongyuan shall be separated from those in the new
cooperative real estate project, and the accounts
shall also be maintained separately and be audited
individually.

The Group held 100% of net assets in the existing real
estate projects of the Tianjin Yongyuan, while in the new
cooperative project, 30% of the net assets was held by
the Group and 70% by the partner.

Entrusted Deposits and Overdue Time
Deposits

As at 30 June 2017, the Group did not have any
entrusted deposits in financial institutions in the PRC.
All of the Group’s cash was held in commercial banks
in the PRC in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Group has no bank deposits which are
not recoverable upon maturity.

Borrowings

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB4,473,890,000
(31 December 2016: RMB3,636,190,000) were secured
by certain properties under development.

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB2,193,000,000
(31 December 2016: RMB743,000,000) were secured by
buildings and land use rights in investment properties.

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB2,936,405,000
(31 December 2016: RMB3,343,360,000) were
secured by the guarantee provided by the Group for its
subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB2,093,144,000
(31 December 2016: RMB2,802,040,000) were
secured by the guarantee provided by the Group for its
subsidiaries, and secured by certain properties under
development of the subsidiaries.
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As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB700,000,000 (31
December 2016: RMB700,000,000) were secured by the
guarantee provided by the subsidiaries of the Group for
the Company.

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB680,000,000 (31
December 2016: RMB540,000,000) were secured by the
guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries, and
secured by investment properties of the subsidiaries and
their land use rights.

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB888,000,000 (31
December 2016: RMB720,000,000) were pledged by
the corresponding income right of land use rights under
development of the subsidiaries of the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB733,717,000 (31
December 2016: RMB739,327,000) were pledged by
bank deposits of the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB6,613,202,000
(31 December 2016: RMB7,773,813,000) were credit
loans obtained by the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB1,220,000,000
(31 December 2016: RMB1,220,000,000) were
secured by the guarantee provided by Capital Group
for the Group, and secured by land use rights under
development of the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, bank loans of RMB6,500,000,000
(31 December 2016: RMB6,500,000,000) were secured
by the guarantee provided by Capital Group for the
Group.

Corporate Bonds

In May 2015, the Group issued 5-year RMB listed bonds
in a principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000 with an
interest rate of 4.58% per annum.

In October 2015, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,500,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.7% per annum. The
issuer shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at the
end of the second year.
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In December 2015, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,500,000,000 with
an interest rate of 4.78% per annum.

In April 2016, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB700,000,000 with
a prevailing interest rate of 4% per annum. The issuer
shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at the
end of the second year.

In April 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,300,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.2% per annum. The
issuer shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at the
end of the third year.

In June 2016, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,300,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.1% per annum. The
issuer shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at the
end of the second year.

In June 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB1,700,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.26% per annum. The
issuer shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at the
end of the third year.

In July 2016, the Group issued 3-year RMB private bonds
in a principal amount of RMB2,000,000,000 with a
prevailing interest rate of 3.71% per annum. The issuer
shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at the
end of the second year.

In July 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private bonds
in a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 with a
prevailing interest rate of 3.84% per annum. The issuer
shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at the
end of the third year.
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Notes

In February 2014, Central Plaza Development Ltd.
(“Central Plaza”) established a Guaranteed Medium
Term Notes and Perpetual Securities Scheme (the
“Scheme"”), guaranteed by International Financial
Center Property Ltd. (“IFC") or, as the case may be, the
Company, for securities to be issued thereunder. Under
the Scheme, Central Plaza may offer and issue securities
in a principal amount of up to USD1,000,000,000.

In February 2014, Central Plaza made a drawdown
under the Scheme to offer and issue 3-year notes in
a total principal amount of RMB2,000,000,000 at an
interest rate of 5.75% per annum. In February 2017, the
notes have been repaid.

In February 2014, Central Plaza made a drawdown
under the Scheme to offer and issue 5-year notes in
a total principal amount of RMB250,000,000 at an
interest rate of 6.875% per annum.

In April 2014, Central Plaza made a drawdown under
the Scheme to offer and issue 3-year notes in a total
principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 at an interest
rate of 5.75% per annum. In February 2017, the notes
have been repaid.

In July 2015, Rosy Capital Global Limited (”“Rosy
Capital”), a subsidiary of the Group, issued 3-year RMB
term notes in a principal amount of RMB1,300,000,000
with an interest rate of 5.25% per annum, which were
guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Group and a keepwell
and liquidity support deed provided by Capital Group.

In January 2017, Central Plaza renewed the Scheme,
guaranteed by IFC or, as the case may be, the
Company, for securities to be issued thereunder.
Under the renewed Scheme, Central Plaza may offer
and issue securities in a principal amount of up to
UsD1,000,000,000.

In January 2017, Central Plaza made a drawdown under
the renewed Scheme to offer and issue 3-year notes in a
total principal amount of USD400,000,000 at an interest
rate of 3.875% per annum.
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Equity Instrument

As of 30 June 2017, Central Plaza issued a total amount
of USD850,000,000 senior perpetual securities. Such
securities were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the
Group including IFC. Such securities have no maturity
date and are redeemable at the option of Central Plaza
as the issuer. Central Plaza as the issuer may elect to
defer distribution with no times limit only if Central Plaza
or the Company does not declare or pay a dividend. The
securities are classified as equity instrument, where:

In April 2013, Central Plaza issued USD400,000,000
senior perpetual capital securities at a distribution
rate of 8.375%. In November 2014, Central Plaza
issued USD450,000,000 perpetual securities under the
Medium Term Notes and Perpetual Securities Scheme at
a distribution rate of 7.125%.

In January 2015, Tiandi Fangzhong raised a total amount
of RMB1,200,000,000. According to the terms of
Investment Agreement, the amount of non-controlling
interests recognized amounted to RMB1,075,200,000
after deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future. In July 2016, it is declared that
the 50% of the assets management plan’s principal
would be settled by the Group in January 2017. As
at 31 December 2016, the remaining non-controlling
interests recognized amounted to RMB537,600,000
after deducting the amount was reclassified to current
portion of non-current liabilities. In January 2017, the
above assets management plan was settled.

In July 2016, Xinghan Assets raised a total amount
of RMB3,000,000,000. According to the terms
of Investment Agreement, the amount of other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB2,895,291,000 after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group had arranged bank facilities for certain
purchasers of its properties and provided guarantees to
secure the repayment obligations of such purchasers.
The outstanding balances of guarantees amounted to
RMB7,299,752,000 at 30 June 2017 (31 December
2016: RMB6,648,906,000).

Such guarantees will be terminated upon: (i) the
issuance of the real estate interestship certificate
which will generally be available within six months to
two years after the Group transfers the interestship
of the relevant property to its purchasers; (ii) the
completion of the mortgage registration; and (iii)
the issuance of the real estate other right certificate
relating to the relevant property. As at 30 June 2017,
the Group provided a guarantee for its subsidiaries’
borrowing of RMB10,881,421,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB13,487,075,000).

As at 30 June 2017, IFC, a subsidiary of the Group,
provided guarantees for the guaranteed notes of
RMB250,000,000 and the senior perpetual capital
securities of USD850,000,000 issued by Central Plaza, a
subsidiary of the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, Capital Grand, a subsidiary of
the Group, provided a guarantee for the guaranteed
notes of RMB1,300,000,000 issued by Rosy Capital, a
subsidiary of the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, IFC, a subsidiary of the Group,
provided guarantees for the guaranteed notes of
UsD400,000,000 issued by Central Plaza, a subsidiary of
the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group provided a guarantee
amounted to RMB600,000,000 to Capital Jiaming
New Town Investment and Development Ltd. (“Capital
Jiaming”), a joint venture, for a long term borrowing
amounted to RMB1,200,000,000.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group provided a guarantee
amounted to RMB100,000,000 to Shenyang Jitian Real
Estate Co., Ltd (“Shenyang Jitian"), a joint venture, for a
long term borrowing amounted to RMB200,000,000.

Save as the above, the Group had no other material
external guarantee.
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

BEFIRABRANMEERRE
SHARE CAPITAL N
As of 30 June 2017, the total issued shares of the Company ARATR-ZE—+FNA=+HWHDETRND
(the “Shares”) is 3,027,960,000 which includes: ([#&5 1) %3,027,960,0000% - H A @3E :
Approximate
Number of percentages of
Shares share capital
igvip | BABN B ML
Domestic Shares R 1,649,205,700 54.47%
Non-H Foreign Shares FEHRINE AR 357,998,300 11.82%
H Shares HAZ 1,020,756,000 33.71%

3,027,960,000 100%
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS & #f fx AN 85 F1 3 Z iR 3R

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FEZREHFRKRIER

SHARES

So far as is known to any directors of the Company, as of ARERZZE—+FA=1+H SEMAMES
30 June 2017, the following parties (other than the directors ~ FTA1 * THIAL(WIEARR R ZE RSB RITH
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short A B)RARQ BN KRR, F B BIREF
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would — # RHEIEIEHIXVEBE2 R3ZMHME AN QE] 2 H#
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of — zZ==AE :

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Approximate percentages in

Approximate percentages in

relevant class of Shares (%) total issued Shares (%)
EEBERRA ZBHE (%) FERTRAZBENAAL(%)ET
Number of
Shares
directly and Direct Indirect ~ Aggregate Direct Indirect ~ Aggregate
Name of shareholders indirectly held  Class of Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
EEREERE
BRER ZRGHE  RGEH ERER BiERR BRAY ERRR BEEL EniY
Capital Group 1649,205700  Non-listed Shares 8217 - 82.17 5447 - 5447
EEH (Note ) 3 EmRA (long position) (long position)
g3 (18) (#8)
Beijing Rongtong Zhenghe Investment 357,998,300 Non-listed Shares - 17.83 17.83 - 11.8 11.82
Management Co., Ltd. ("Rongtong (Notes1and2)  E7MRG (long position) (long position)
Zhenghe”) (HF1R2) (#8) (#2)
IRREIAREERERAA(LRRE])
Guoda Limited 357,998,300  Non-listed Shares - 1783 1783 - 1182 1182
(Note3)  #t7Rh (long position) (long position)
(MzE3) (48) (#2)
China Resource Products Limited 357,998,300 Non-listed Shares 137 412 1783 9.09 273 11.82
("China Resource”) (Noted)  *L7Rb (long position)  (long position) (long position)  (long position)
hENEERAA(RENE]) (M34) (18) (#8) (#8) (18)
Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited 82,762,100 Non-isted Shares 412 - 412 273 - 273
("Yieldwell") ELETRG (long position) (long position)
BEERLEARAA(EE)) (48) (#8)
Reco Pearl Private Limited 165,070,000 H Shares 16.17 - 16.17 545 - 545
Hi% (long position) (long position)
(48) (#8)

= R RAERAT T LEhBES
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS & #f fg AN 815 F1 = Z iR 3

Approximate percentages in
relevant class of Shares (%)
HERENRG ZBOBDL(%)

Approximate percentages in
total issued Shares (%)
HERARGZBAEI(N)RS

Number of
Shares
directly and Direct Indirect ~ Aggregate Direct Indirect ~ Aggregate
Name of shareholders indirectly held  Class of Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
ERREEER
KR2R ZRGHE  RAE ERER BiEER R&aY ERER BiEEs Endy
Recosia China Pte Ltd. 165,070,000 H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 5.45 5.45
(Note5)  HE (long position) (long position)
iG#) (#8) (48)
Recosia Pte Ltd. 165,070,000 H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 5.45 545
(Note6)  Hi& (long position) (long position)
(FzE6) (#8) (42)
Government of Singapore Investment 165,070,000 H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 545 545
Corporation (Realty) Pte Ltd. (Note7)  H& (long position) (long position)
(M3E7) (18 (#8)
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS & ¥ B A8 0 A1 = Z A% &R

Notes:

1,649,205,700 Shares are directly held by Capital Group. As at 30 June 2017,
China Resource Products Limited is held as to 31.53% by Beijing Sunshine Real
Estate Comprehensive Development Company (Gt =[5 EHELR G FZE AR,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Capital Group. Accordingly, Capital Group
is not deemed to be interested in 275,236,200 Shares held through China
Resource and 82,762,100 Shares held through China Resource and Yieldwell
pursuant to the SFO.

275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO
indirectly held through Guoda Limited and China Resource. 82,762,100 Shares
are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly held through
Guoda Limited, China Resources and Yieldwell.

275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO
indirectly held through China Resource. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed
corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly held through China Resources
and Yieldwell.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly
held through Yieldwell.

165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO
indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited.

165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO
indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited and Recosia China Pte Ltd.

165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO
indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited, ~Recosia China Pte Ltd. and
Recosia Pte Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, as
of 30 June 2017, none of the parties (other than the directors
or chief executives of the Company) had any interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Wi -

1,649,205, 700 kM HEAIEBEERE - K=
—tERA=1TH FRUEARARBILRGEE
WELAFBEAREE31.53%KBE  MtRBLE
WELARAEARABEEISE2EHES - Bt B
BELFRBEES  HESETEEAEERTEY
ERFA®275,236,200 R MH REERBREMERE
G 82,762, 1000 A7 A s o

275,236,200 R ik B IR 7 F R B E K BI W RIER
EBHERS - 3B B Guoda Limited & B4 E M
A 82,762, 1001&&1%&13* &5 KB GRPIERIER
SEEERS  JhiEBGuoda Limited ~ REYE M B
HEERE -

275,236,200 % & (1R 1R 7% % M BB & B 48 (E AV
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82,762,100 B IR IBFE 25 K I B R PIR AR (R EE

i TnEBEERESE o

165,070,000 % & 13 15 4% & % & Hi & 1& B 445 1E R s
E 25 0 JhiE BReco Pearl Private LimitedE & #A °

165,070,000 % & 3 1R 45 78 75 Mo H1 AR B 4 AR 1E & 0R
[E#%5  JhEBReco Pearl Private Limited & Recosia
China Pte Ltd.fE#E#HA °

165,070,000 A% A& 17 4R 15 7% 55 I HR & 6 (7 9248 1E /R 0%
[E#E % 0 JhiEBReco Pearl Private Limited * Recosia
China Pte Ltd. &2 Recosia Pte Ltd.[#Z#F A °
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As at 30 June 2017, none of the directors, supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers. None of the directors, supervisors and chief
executives of the Company or their spouses or children under
18 years of age had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights
during the period.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial report
matters, including the review of the unaudited interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2017.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the six months ended 30 June 2017, the Company
had not redeemed any of its shares. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the period.
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OTHER INFORMATION H & ¥}

Long Term Incentive Fund Scheme

On 27 September 2007, the Company had adopted the
long term incentive fund scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
subsequently amended on 25 September 2009 and 14 March
2014 respectively. The Scheme is proposed to encourage
the directors, supervisors, senior management and core staff
members of the Company for closer ties of their personal
interests with the interests of the Company and of the
shareholders, as well as for alignment of their personal goals
with the common goal of the Company.

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the Company had
not purchased any shares of the Company under the Scheme.

Corporate Governance

During the period from 1 January 2017 to 30 June 2017, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” as set out in Appendix 14 to the “Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited” (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted a code which is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
(the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the company code
throughout the period.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS

EHRLATAEER

(=

AS AT 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
ZE—HFRNA=STH (BEFIEHN  SEENAARETT)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E—t& ZENE “E-tE ZERF
AA=TH +ZA=1+—H AA=TH +ZA=1+—RH
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
&bt A AH S
Notes Unaudited (Restated) Unaudited Audited
Assets BE zE PNE (i) PNy LR
Current Assets REEE
Cash at bank and on hand gL 4(1) 16,934,497 17,926,073 5,403,102 7,106,099
Financial assets at fair value NAREEFEREED
through profit or loss SAREERNSBEE 40Q0) 255,963 217,141 50,374 -
Trade receivables JEYRBR 3 4(4) 1,829,491 995,223 160 1,910
Advances to suppliers BNTE 4(6) 2,325,138 372,047 21,525 19,796
Interest receivable Y& 1M 30,581 26,235 26,235
Dividends receivable JEURBR 4(3) 17,600 12,000 - -
Other receivables H bR 4(5):16(1) 3,917,983 3,349,177 45,394,129 46,525,276
Inventories FE A7) 63,446,395 64,876,885 44,133 44,133
Assets classified as held for sale 2|5 BB SENEE 4(8) 9,921 9,921 - -
Current portion of —ERHNERED
non-current assets BE 4(14) 4,707,050 3,957,937 - -
Other current assets Hi e EE 4(9) 2,974,876 2,841,299 1,560 10,701
Total current assets RBEEAL 96,419,055 94,588,284 50,941,218 53,734,150
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial HHEsREE
assets 4(10) 2,390,462 2,390,462 70,000 70,000
Long-term equity investments & B3R & 411)162) 3,239,431 3,078,429 5,505,298 4,9%,783
Investment properties RELRIE 4(12) 16,804,565 15,146,259 - -
Fixed assets ETEE 4(13) 136,437 134,630 53,536 54,676
Long-term receivables REBPEUGR 4(14) 3,126,784 2,798,495 66,706 66,706
Goodwill S 4(15) - 172,137 - -
Long-term prepaid expenses  REIFHER 101,450 100,940 - -
Deferred income tax assets REMGHEE 4(16) 826,348 655,196 572,897 370,918
Other non-current assets HiErREEE 4017) 197,415 394,808 - -
Total non-current assets ERBEEST 26,822,892 24,871,356 6,268,437 5,559,083
Total assets BEMG 123,241,947 119,459,640 57,209,655 59,293,233
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS & R ARl EE & EF

AS AT 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
ZE—+FRNA=STH (BEIRREN - eEENBARETT)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—tfF ZENE —E-tE ZE-RF
~A=TH ‘I'_H_‘I' H ~B=TH +ZA=1+-H
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
&b Al NG AR
Notes Unaudited (Restated) Unaudited Audited
Liabilities and equity BERR RS fitz *EBS (E=it) e Bt
Current liabilities REBE
Short-term borrowings E%ﬁ%?ﬂ 4(19) 1,562,717 1,909,327 1,329,000 1,670,000
Financial liabilities at fair value LA % B E B L&)
through profit or loss SARHERNSRAE 42 67,189 - - -
Notes payables [ENZE 69,083 26,223 - -
Trade payables ERRH 4(20) 5,818,432 7,186,846 13,998 13,600
Advances from customers AR 421) 21,704,210 15,930,980 60,807 60,807
Employee benefits payable JE B T 37 422) 106,811 119,548 40,189 44,166
Taxes payable ERHE 4(23) 1,976,282 2,232,093 3,328 22,548
Interests payable FERF) 8 4(24) 495,445 547,854 359,064 403,906
Dividends payable SRR 4(25) 515,475 257,272 333,908 73,607
Other payable Htb IR 4(26) 6,307,901 4,888,089 16,468,395 16,415,765
Current portion of —FRIBHFERD
non-current liabilities B 4(27) 15,600,188 14,967,002 11,288,150 6,074,182
Total current liabilities RBEEA 54,223,733 43,005,234 29,896,839 24,778,581
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Long-term borrowings REER 4(28) 18,756,603 20,520,263 4,895,000 7,910,000
Debentures payable JE &S 4(29) 16,692,796 16985512 12,458,543 15,442,006
Long-term payables REBEMIR 4(30) 3,805,775 3,806,675 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities  EEFEHAE 4(16) 2,449,755 2,352,530 - -
Derivative financial liabilities 44 BaRE 4(31) 265,289 178,724 - -
Total non-current liabilities  FRE&ESH 41,970,218 43,843,704 17,353,543 23,352,006
Total liabilities ElEh) 96,193,951 91,908,938 47,250,382 48,130,587
Equity RRER
Share capital [N 4(32) 3,027,960 3,027,960 3,027,960 3,027,960
Other equity instruments ,H\Wiéﬁélﬂ 16(3) 2,895,291 2,895,291 2,895,291 2,895,291
Capital reserve BARAT 4(33) 653,652 716,380 3,113,441 3,113,441
Other comprehensive income {ﬁzi? H&Zm 4(34) 389,922 370,407 9,407 9,407
Surplus reserve Vo YN 4(35) 543,169 543,169 543,169 543,169
Retained earnings KBTI 4(36) 9,034,070 9,109,165 370,005 1,573,378
Total equity attributable to SENATIREEZ
owners of the Company &t 16,544,064 16,662,372 9,959,273 11,162,646
Non-controlling interests YRR ER 6(1)(b) 10,503,932 10,888,330 TEH Sl
Total equity RREZA 27,047,996 27,550,702 9,959,273 11,162,646
Total liabilities and equity ~ BERKREZL:T 123,241,947 119,459,640 57,209,655 59,293,233

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

Legal representative:
TEEFA

Person in charge of accounting:
E = n‘l—IMEmE /\

BRI BRAM R B MR AR D ©

Head of accounting department:
BIHEBEEEA

tﬁqﬂﬁﬁiﬁ‘t
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS

SR RAERER

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE_Z—tFNA=Z+TRHIENEREE (BREFRIFRIN  SEBMLAARETIT)
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30June 2017 30June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
HE-Z-tF BE-Z—E BE-T-t§ HE-T\F
AA=THE ARA=tBIE AA=THE  SA=THIE
~MERHHE ~E A ER AMEREE 7~ {E A A
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
aft =L AF] NG
Notes Unaudited (Restated) Unaudited Unaudited
Items 5H 53 REBEL (@Ei) RSEG REEE
Revenue 0N 4(37):16(4) 7,368,346 5,135,091 11,066 5,641
Less: Cost of sales W EERAK A(37):16(4)  (4,721,477) (4,287,310 - -
Taxes and surcharges e RHm 4(38) (371,176) (411,261) (622) (4,394)
Selling and distribution HEEH
expenses 4(39) (222,911) (254,939) - -
General and administrative EEEH
expenses 4(39) (313,126) (200,868) (91,463) (40,185)
Financial (expenses)/ B (ER) /WA
income - net - 38 4(40) (46,483) 217,941 (738,416) (594,097)
Asset impairment losses KERMBEBRX 4(41) (252,137) - - -
Add: (Losses)/gains arising from — fi1 - A1 BEEE
changes in fair value (1B%) Mzt 4(42) (37,506) 892,400 387 -
Investment income & W A(43):16(5) 104,815 289,024 18,502 17,725
Including: Share of Heh o S
profit of fagrs
associates and HEREKE
joint ventures 89,228 199,516 8,515 17,725
Other income Hibzs 4(44) 67,412 - - -
Operating profit XA 1,575,757 1,380,078 (800,546) (615,310)
Add: Non-operating income i BEINEA 4(45) 4,765 61,600 786 118
Including: Gains on Ao JERBEE
disposal of RENE
non-current
assets 9 134 - -
Less: Non-operating expenses IR =E 3 S 4(46) (3,258) (3,448) - (52)
Including: Losses on Hh: ERBEE
disposal of RERX
non-current
assets - (58) - -
Profit/(losses) before income tax 138,/ (&518)#5 1,577,264 1,438,230 (799,760) (615,244)
Less: Income tax expenses W FEHER 4(47) (555,244) (301,340) 201,979 158,054
Profit/(losses) for the period  Z#/%,/ (&) 1,022,020 1,136,890 (597,781) (457,190)
Including: The net profit of A AR 0
acquiree before BRPREAHA
combination under EANAIEBN
common control EHIE 5(1)(a) (3) 73,328 AEA TNEH
— Owners of the company -BBREARREN
SEF|E 646,199 573,484 TR Tam
- Non-controlling interests - DYREEE 375,821 563,406 AiER TER
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS & 6f & 2 & #1)F &

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_T—EFAA=THILAEARRE (FERIFERN  SREMSARETIT)

Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30 June 2017 30June 2016 30June 2017 30 June 2016
HE-Z-tF BE-ZT—E BE-T-t§ HE-T\F
AA=THE ARA=tHIE AA=THE  SA=THIE
~NMERHE ~E A ER ~MEREE ~E A HE

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
&b =i | AR
Notes Unaudited (Restated) Unaudited Unaudited
Items BH Mzt REET (g=it) REE ENCE
Other comprehensive Hit AR E MR %28
income for the period,
net of tax 19,515 (46,060) - (1,790)
Attributable to owners FENERARREELM
of the company FANENHETE 19,515 (46,060) - (1,790)
ltems that may be reclassified LA B E S BERRH
to profit or loss EtohrAas 19,515 (46,060) - (1,790)
Changes in fair value of AEHESREE
available-for-sale MrEEZY
financial assets - (1,790) - (1,790)
Recycling of changes in BIEE AR MRS
fair value of investment KRR EUREE
properties previously RrEEZY
recognized in other EHEL
comprehensive income (60,095) (30,329) - -
Currency translation BB EEE
differences kb 12,481 10,795 - -
Effective portion of RengEHERN
cash flow hedges BHEH 67,129 (24,736) - -
Total comprehensive Gaks/ (B8)8E
income/(loss) for the period 1,041,535 1,090,830 (597,781) (458,980)
Attributable to: BER
- Owners of the company SN &)
Gakns® 665,714 527,424 TER TER
- Non-controlling interests DHRRA
A tymsn 375,821 563,406 TER TNEH
Earnings per share for BhuEERBER
profit attributable to owners R AREERKRE
of the Company AHENE) 4(48)
Basic earnings per share EXBRkES
(RMB Yuan) (AR%7T) 0.21 0.19 TER NEH
Diluted earnings per share mESRkE
(RMB Yuan) (AR¥7T) 0.21 0.19 TER NEH

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BMIEFFSIHERMNT L B EHER AKX LS ©
financial statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
TEBEA TEEAHIENEBEA SERBEEA
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
EHRLAFARERER

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE_T—tFA=THINERERE (BREFRERN - @BBEUR/ARETIT)
Six months Six months ~ Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30June 2017  30June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
HECE-tF BE-T—E HE-T-tF HEIZ\F
AA=tHE AA=TBLE AA=THELE  SA=TAHLE
~MEAHE ~E A A M8 A HE 7~ {E A HrE
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
B Bt A N
Notes Unaudited (Restated) Unaudited Unaudited
Items HR i RBET (g&Eit) REET PN &
Cash flow from operating ~ & FBHELNRETE
activities
Cash received from sales of L in Y
goods and rendering of Ihelfapicken
services 11,377,865 9,934,146 1,722 5,641
Cash received relating to WE| i HA2EE)
other operating activities BBNES 4(49)(a) 170,547 120,864 10,681,470 1,711,753
Sub-total of cash inflows BETHRESFADG 11,548,412 10,055,010 10,683,192 1,717,394
Cash paid for goods and BEWD  BXBBIEH
Services B4 (5,435,025)  (13,618,060) - -
Cash paid toand on behalf ~ SFHABTIURABRT
of employees YREES (405,140) (344,568) (94,774) (124,232)
Payments of taxes and TRBEERE
surcharges (1,639,332)  (1,500,308) (4,499) (5,059)
Cash paid relating to other SRHEMELEEE
operating activities BENES 4(49)(b) (712,959)  (1,183,403)  (7,506,277)  (11,578,867)
Sub-total of cash outflows ~ E&FBREFH M5 (8,192,456)  (16,646,339) (7,605,550)  (11,708,158)
Net cash flows from REEHEENRS
operating activities REFE 4(50) 3,355,956 (6,591,329) 3,077,642 (9,990,764)
Cash flow from investing ~ REZFHELNELRE
activities
Cash received from disposal of W EZRZKEIHRE
investments 1,756,000 81,000 1,300,000 -
Cash received from returns on~ B & Yz i3I8
investments Be - 8,100 - -
Net cash received from REETEE EWEE
disposal of fixed assets, MEMREEERDH
intangible assets and ReFg
other long-term assets 165 1,097 - -
Cash received from disposal of  EEFARIKEIBE S
subsidiaries R 21,007 723,112 - 546,229
Cash received relating to other | H i EIREES
investing activities BENBES 4(49)(c) 2,314,530 1,282,099 1,016,360 483,615
Sub-total of cash inflows BEZHRETANE 4,091,702 2,095,408 2,316,360 1,029,844
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS & ff & A &lIR &= &

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HEZT—tFA=TRHINEREHE REAGZRI - @BEMAARETIT)
Six months Sixmonths  Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30June 2017  30June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
HE-E-tF BE-T—"E BE-ET-tF HEZZT\F
AA=tHE AA=TBLE AA=tTHELE  SA=TALE
~MEAHE 7~ ME A HAfE M8 A B 7~ {E A HE
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
B Bff A AR
Notes Unaudited (Restated) Unaudited Unaudited
Items HE izt RiZET (gEa) REET PN &
Cash paid to acquire fixed BRETEE  EBWEE
assets, intangible assets MEMRBEEL D
and other long-term assets Bs (1,246,907) (706,106) (38) (40)
Cash paid to acquire BREALNNES
investments (1,373,300) (55,800)  (1,840,000) (500,000
Net cash paid for disposal of ~ BEFATRIHES
subsidiaries peg-c] - (26,965) - -
Cash paid relating to other TRHHEMERE TS
investing activities BENRS 4(49)(d) (4,003,630)  (2,295,809) (2,533,965) (58,000)
Sub-total of cash outflows  REEHREFEE N5 (6,623,837)  (3,084,680)  (4,374,003) (558,040)
Net cash flow from RETHELENELRE
investing activities BE (2,532,135) (989,272)  (2,057,643) 471,804
Cash flows from financing B&ZBHELNRETE
activities
Cash received from capital RKHEREIMRE
contributions 1,000 980,000 - -
Including: Cash received from  Edf : FRFRUDE
non-controlling RERFEWE
interests' capital Bd
injection 1,000 980,000 - -
Cash received from borrowings ~ BVSEZKEIHE S 4,500,933 4,834,786 888,000 8,702,110
Proceeds from debentures BIBESRINRSE
issued 2,709,512 6,973,110 - -
Cash received relating to other Wi Z| E it REEEH)
financing activities BBEHNRS 4(49)(e) 3,907,772 1,726,633 288,000 -
Sub-total of cash inflows EETHRERANG 11,119,217 14,514,529 1,176,000 8,702,110

e
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS & ff X A IR &= &

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE_ZT—TFRA=THIENERSEE (RERIERIN @REL/ARETT)
Six months Sixmonths  Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30June 2017 30June 2016  30June 2017 30 June 2016
HE-Z-tF BE-T—"F HE-Z-tF HE_Z\F
AA=THE  AA=tHLE  ARA=tHLE  AA=TALE
~NERHE 7~ fE A ~NE A NE A &
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
B et L N:
Notes Unaudited (Restated) Unaudited Unaudited
[tems EH i KEES (EEqt) KEET RS
Cash repayments of BEEREINNES
borrowings (8,252,443)  (7,079,300)  (2,024,000)  (1,540,000)
Cash payments for interest AEBEA - FIBEREN
expenses and distribution FEXRBESE
of dividends or profits (2,177,030) (2,286,619) (1,207,534) (868,603)
Cash paid for repayments FRABEEEHE
of specific capital SRHES
management plan by
subsidiary (1,200,000) (650,000) - -
Cash paid for business R T EAH
combinations involving SRHES
enterprises under common
control (165,333) - - -
Cash paid relating to other TRHHEMEEETH
financing activities BRNRT 4(49)(f) (2,531,893)  (1,183,185) (667,808) (34,480)
Sub-total of cash outflows ~ E&FEHREFHH it (14,326,699)  (11,199,104)  (3,899,342)  (2,443,083)
Net cash flow from BETBELNRS
financing activities RERE (3,207,482) 3,315,425 (2,723,342) 6,259,027
Effect of foreign exchange EXBBHUELRES
rate changes on cash LEMNyE 30,395 16,895 346 (3,589)
Net decrease RERELEENTF
in cash BOE 4(50)(a) (2,353,266) (4,248,281) (1,702,997) (3,263,522)
Add: Cash at beginning of m:HReRAE
period ZEMHRE 16,558,753 18,204,114 6,606,099 6,449,828
Cash at end of period HARSRASSENGE 45000 14,205,487 13,955,833 4,903,102 3,186,306

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.

RIS IRER M TR RER BRI D

Legal representative:
PEABA

Person in charge of accounting:
Eu = D+I{}EE’]E /\

Head of accounting department:
SHRBEEA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EHRRESSB X

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_T—EFAA=THILAEARRE (FERIFERN  SREMSARETIT)

Unaudited
REEH

Attributable to owners of the Company
BERBLRREER

Other
Share  Other equity Capital - comprehensive Surplus~ Retained  Non-controling
Note capital  instruments fesenve income ~ reserves  eamings  interests  Total equity

Items %H i Rx EtEGIE  AADR HtEehE  BEOR  AORNE JEBRER BRERA:
Balance at ZE-RELCR

31 December 2015 St-RERHE 3,027,960 - 3516644 537541 495150 7768550 10,311,740 25,657,585
Business combination under ~ E—EETAZARH

common control 10) - - 23603 - - B33 - M
Balance at 1 January 2016 —%-7%-F-8

(restated) BinE(LER) 3,027,960 - 3540247 537541 495150 7745218 10,311,740 25,657,856
Movement for the HEZE-AENR

six months ended STREABAEE

30 June 2016 L - - (18975 (46,060) 465 (36764)  (351813)  (615,95)
Comprehensive (oss)income &4 (5i8) / iz

for the period

Profit for the period sl - - - - - 573484 563406 1,136,890
Other comprehensive loss EhigAEE - - - (46,060) - - - (46,060)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ &4 (85%8) /i

income R e - - - (46,060) - 53484 563406 1,090,830
Capital contribution and RERAMED AR

withcrawal by owners

Capital contrbution fom ~~ RERAER

owners - - - - - - 980000 980,000
Equity transaction with HOHRERS

non-controlling interests - - (185975) - - - (1617.710)  (1,803,685)
Profit distribution HEIR

Appropriations AL I - - - - 4,65 (4,656) - -
Profit distribution to owners — $REHAR - - - - - (605592)  (277509)  (883,101)
Balanceat30June 2016  =Z-~EXA=TA

(restated) BREE(EEH) 3,027,960 - 33420 491481 499806 7708454 9,959,927 25,041,900
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY & 0 % 8 # 2= & &) 3%

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE-T—tFANA=TRIEANEADRE FREHFRN  SBEMSARETT)

Unaudited
REEH
Attributable to owners of the Company
BRNBAARFER
Other
Share  Other equity Capital comprehensive  Surplus  Retained Nor<ontroling
Note capital instruments  reserve  income  reserves  eamings interests Total equity
Items i iz ke HBERIR  EALE EMGEUE  BHLE  AOEAE JUBRER RRERAH
Balance at Z5-7ETZH
31 December 2016 St-AERRE 3027960 2895291 692777 370407 543169 9,146,801 10,888,330 27,564,735
Business combination under  E—EHITAEAR
common control 1(i) - - 23603 - - (37,636) - (14033)
Balance at 1 January 2017 =Z-+%-F-8
(restated) BinE(gER) 3027960 2895291 716380 370407 543169 9,109,165 10,888,330 27,550,702
Movement for the BE-3-t5RA
six months ended StRLABAEE
30 June 2017 L - - (62728) 19515 - (75095  (384398)  (502,706)
Comprehensive income Grlngs
for the period
Profit for the period il - - - - - 06199 37581 1,022,020
Other comprehensive A AlG
income - - - 19,515 - - - 19,515
Total comprehensive income A SELEAH - - - 19,515 - 646199 375821 1,041,535
Capital contrbution and REEAHHSER
withcrawal by owners
Capital contrbution from ~~~ RERAEK
owners - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
Equity transaction with HOHRERS
non-controling interests - - (62400 - - - (537,600)  (600,000)
Business combinations A ThEAH
under common control - - (328) - - - - (328)
Profit distribution HEPR
Appropriations RMBSNE - - - - - - - -
Profit distribution to owners — $REHAR - - - - - (605592) (223619  (829.211)
Others Bt - - - - - (115700 - (115,700)
Balanceat30June 2017 =B-t+EARA=1R
BRHE 3,027,960 2,895,291 653,652 389,922 543,169 9,034,070 10,503,932 27,047,996

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.

Legal representative:
TEEFA

Person in charge of accounting:

TEEFTENREA BEHBREA
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RIS IRER M TR MER DB D

Head of accounting department:



COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AARREZZ KR

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HEZZT—tFA=THIENERAMSE GRERIERIN - SBBEMAARETT)
Unaudited
REEH
Other
Share ~ Other equity Capital - comprehensive Surplus  Retained
Note capital instruments reserve income  reserves  earnings Total equity
Items 1R izt k& BHERIA  EALE HtRGNE  BHOR  ASRAW RRERSH
Balance at 1January 2016  =—F-~&-F-8
B85 3,027,960 - 3347206 8,087 495150 1,746,792 8,625,195
Movements for the BE-E-REAXR
six months ended ZtEEAERGE
30 June 2016 EHETE - - - (1,790) 4656 (1,020877) (1,018,011)
Comprehensive loss FRpRAE
for the period
Loss for the period 58 - - - - - 457190 (457,190)
Other comprehensive loss B AE#R - - - (1,790) - - (1,790)
Total comprefensive loss A EEEEAH - - - (179) - (457190 (458.980)
Profit distribution MEAE
Profit distribution to owners — {REHHE - - - - - (p05592)  (605,592)
Other 14 . - - - 4% 4905 46561
Balance at 30 June 2016 ZE-AERBZTH
BRHE 3,027,960 - 3347206 6,297 499,806 725915 7,607,184
Balance at 1January 2017  =Z-+&-f-F
HBE 3,027,960 2895291 3,113,441 9,407 543,169 1,573,378 11,162,646
Movements for the HE-E-tE5AR
six months ended ZTREAERSE
30 June 2017 2HEDE - - - - - (1203373) (1,203373)
Comprehensive loss GapRER
for the period
Loss for the period FEE - - - - - (o7 (597.781)
Other comprehensive income A4 4 = - - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss GRBBREEAT - - - - - (581 (G9n.78Y)
Profit distribution HEsE
Profit distribution to owners — #EHAHE 4(36) - - = = - (605592)  (605,592)
Balance at 30 June 2017 ZE-tEXAZTH
HR6E 3,027,960  2,.895291 3,113,441 9,407 543,169 370,005 9,959,273

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

BRI RER M T RITERERVERED ©

financial statements.

Legal representative:
PEEBA:

Person in charge of accounting:
FESTITIENAEEA :

Head of accounting department:
BERBEEA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R M &

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (hereinafter “the Company”)
was established by seven companies (hereinafter “the
promoters”) on 23 July 2002, namely Beijing Capital Group
Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital Group”), Beijing Sunshine Real
Estate Comprehensive Development Company (hereinafter
“Sunshine Comprehensive”), Beijing Capital Sunshine
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital
Sunshine”), Beijing Capital Technology Investment Co.,
Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital Technology”), Beijing Capital
Hangyu Economic Development Co., Ltd. (renamed
Beijing Capital Development Co. Ltd. as at 28 April 2007,
hereinafter “Capital Development”. As at 4 December
2013, Capital Development renamed “Beijing Capital
Investment & Development Co., Ltd.” hereinafter “Beijing
Capital Investment”), China Resource Products Limited
(hereinafter “China Resource”) and Yieldwell International
Enterprise Limited (hereinafter “Yieldwell International”).
The Company’s place of registry is the People’s Republic of
China and is headquartered in Beijing, China.

The Company’s parent company and the ultimate
controlling party is Capital Group, a state-owned
enterprise established in Beijing.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in June 2003. And
as at 30 June 2017, the total share of the Company is
RMB3,027,960,000 with RMB1 per share.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the
Group”) are principally engaged in the real estate
development and investment, commercial real estate
operation, property consulting services and investment
holding.

The subsidiaries newly consolidated in the Group this
period are mainly as follows, as disclosed in note 5(1),

(2).

Company name
REEH

NCIE=ZN P

BEIBERMDAR AT (A THEIARE])
RoBEE-—F+ A=+ =HHILRE A
¥EEERAFTUATHEIGaIER]D - 4k
R EHELREREQR (A TEIEY
mAED AR EHABXEHEERETRA
BATHEIEaREE])) bR EaRg
BEERBRARI(ATHEIgaRR])) - tRE
AT EEREAERAR(R_ETL4F
WMAZ+N\BERAE It HAERBR
A AT IEHAER] RZZT—=
F+ZAWA - BRIERERA[EHAIR
BERREARAR ] LWTHBIEAKRE])
hEYEERATI(ATHEIFEYE]
BEEBEICEARAT(ATHEEER
B ERAFHESEEA (AT G 25
AR - Mt AREARLNSE
(AT RE DI R - @3Bt A E
bR e

ARANFRBMKEZER AR D RER]
S8 ES-—RRIUERWRINEAE D
% o

RRBIMN_ZBZ=FNAGEETEHARS
FIERRRIERFER LTRSS R=_F
—tERNA=ZTH  ARFNEREBA
[£#3,027,960,0007T - GAREE T °

ARBRFREATEBIAER]EE
REFHEREIRE  BRUMEEZIN
KEEREHEARES -

AEFFMASHEBENFRRTENT
FERMEER(1) ~ (2) °

Hereinafter as
S8

Shenyang Haohua Real Estate Co., Ltd. (i)
ESREBEERRRRN)

Beijing Xiangneng Real Estate Co., Ltd.
ERPEEEERAA

Chongging Shouju Outlet Real Estate Co., Ltd.
EREEREHMBEXEARAR

Kunming Shouchuang Outlet Commercial Management Co., Ltd.

ERERIREHXELEERRAT
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Shenyang Haohua
B RE

Beijing Xiangneng
b REE
Chongging Shouju
EEHE

Kunming Outlet
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(i) The Group completed the transactions of acquiring equity
interests of Shenyang Haohua in March 2017. As the Group and
the acquiree are under common control of Capital Group, such
transactions were treated as business combination involving
enterprises under common control. The financial information
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the six months
ended 30 June 2016 is restated accordingly (note 5(1)).

The Group completed the transactions of acquiring
equity interests of Beijing Liujin Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Liujin Real Estate”) and Beijing Donghuan
Xinrong Investment and Management Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Donghuan Xinrong”) in September and
December 2016 separately. As the Group and the
acquirees are under common control of Capital Group,
such transactions were treated as business combination
involving enterprises under common control. The
financial information for the six months ended 30 June
2016 is restated accordingly.

The company de-consolidated in the Group this period
are mainly as follows, as disclosed in note 5(2), 6(2).

Company name
ANEZHE

UNGIE- YN

(i) NoZ—EE=F  AEETKEESZEN
WiEEIR  AAREEEGREIRT EIKE
HKREEH - ZRBERRE BR —EH T RE
aff c ARBER _ZF-RF+-_A=+—8BRK
HE-ZT—ARFRNA=+HILAERBHEITS
AEHEEERHFER()) ©

IE=INm RVPEE
B/Ju(4E)

R-B—XENART=A  AEEHF
ERUNRESREAREERAAT
BrELBE DAL RRBERREER
ARAFATE [REER]) L EE
B AAEERESELRRBERS T
BEILERFES - R E R AR
—EH TR EAN - AEERE -2
FXA=+BIEAEASEM AN A
it -

AEABMAAHEENFRAREEIIR
T FERMERQR)  RQ2) e

Hereinafter as
5k

Qingdao Guoxin Yicheng Investment Co., Ltd.
BEEEEZHREFRAF

Tianjin Yongyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.
REBKXTEXEARAA

These consolidated financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors on 17 August 2017. The
interim financial statements were unaudited.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Group determined specific accounting policies and
accounting estimates based on its business operation
characteristics, such as provision for doubtful debts of
receivables (note 2(11)), measurement of inventories
(note 2(12)), measurement model of investment
properties (note 2(15)), and the criteria of revenue
recognition (note 2(24)), etc,.

The key judgments used by the Group determining
the significant accounting policies are disclosed in note
2(32).

Qingdao Guoxin
B55HEE
Tianjin Yongyuan
RIFKTT

R ERRBAATEFER T
NATERE - AU B REA LS
it

EEEFTBORME AR

REBBEEELEFSBTEAESHEK
RN TBERAERKIEE
REFHOFHR A1) - TE®
SHEFANE=(12) - BREMEEED
SFEERN(HE=(15) « MAWFEREZE
(fIsE=(24))% -

AEEGEREEENS T RRFEMERN
R AT S R IR —(32) ©




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7% i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = FESHBENGE G @)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(1) Basis of preparation (1) MEHERAVERER
The financial statements were prepared in R BHRFIEBH BHBR_ZEZE R
accordance with the Basic Standard and specific FZA+RA RN BEFRBARCR
standards of the Accounting Standards for ot - HEARER)  RIEAE
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of e N ABET (L TARE [0
Finance on 15 February 2006, and the Application o n) | REE o
Guidance for Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, Interpretations of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and other
relevant regulations issued thereafter (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises” or “CAS").
The financial statements were prepared on basis of R BRRAFES S HEM RS -
going concern.
The new Hong Kong Company Ordinance came FHEB(ARBIYR -_ZE—HE
into force in 2015, certain disclosure in this E o AP BRERONETHREDR
financial statements has adjusted accordingly. BEBCATHERDRI ESCEITHZ o

(2) Statement of compliance with the (2) ERELESTERMNER
Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises
The financial statements of the Company for the AABHEZ_ZE—+tFA=1H
six months ended 30 June 2017 are in compliance AN EAHEFBREATALES
with the Accounting Standards for Business HEBHESR BT =B
Enterprises, and truly and completely present the TARB ZZE—+tF R NA=Z+THHK
financial position of the Consolidated and the AHEARTBYRAUAREE -
Company as at 30 June 2017 and of their financial —+FRNAZ+THIEANERHBN
performance, cash flows and other information for SHEARIREKRENBR S REE
the six months ended 30 June 2017. BREE -

(3) Accounting year 3) BFHEFE
The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends e FEAANE—A—HEZT—
on 31 December. A=+—Hlt-

(4) Functional currency (4) RERA{LHEE
The functional currency of the Company and most AR E) R KBS F N B 50 R A
of its subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB"), while the BARK - KREF 7 i ESEE
functional currency of certain subsidiaries of the R A MR 2 F 1R A K RE IR AN #
Group incorporated in France and Australia are BEHEE o

local currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HEZZT—tFA=TRHIEAEABE (BREFAIFEEASN -

SREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(5) Business combinations

(a)

(b)

Business combinations involving
enterprises under common control

The consideration paid and net assets
obtained by the acquirer in a business
combination are measured at the carrying
amount. The differences between the
carrying amount of the net assets obtained
and the carrying amount of the consideration
paid for the combination is recognized
in the capital reserve (share premium). If
the capital reserve (share premium) is not
sufficient to absorb the difference, the
remaining balance is recognized in retained
earnings. Costs directly attributable to the
combination shall be recognized in profit or
loss for the year when occurred. Transaction
costs in the issue of equity securities and debt
securities attributable to the combination
shall be recognized in initial amount of equity
securities and debt securities.

Business combinations involving
enterprises other than common control

The consideration paid and identifiable net
assets obtained by the acquirer in a business
combination are measured at fair value on
the acquisition date. Where the cost of the
combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of the acquirer’s identifiable
net assets, the difference is recognized as
goodwill; where the cost of combination is
lower than the acquirer’s interest in the fair
value of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets,
the difference is recognized in profit or loss
for the current period.

(5)

EBE

T =i

ATBCR M & STl (48)

o =N

(a)

(b)

B —EH T RS H

BHITXNNA G EERRE
MFEEDREHEERE
BHITMEGHNFEERE(EE
XA EHERE(EER
ZR - ABREARNRE(BRA R
B): BARBE(BAHE)T
RINREE - BEBFUE -
RETEEAFEENEEN
MERARNZELERTAEHE
i o RIEEAMMBEITESNE
%&ﬂfr’lli{ SRR HE
CETAREMESFREBME
f’ﬁ?ﬂ’]ﬂﬁ%& REHH °

FE—EZEHTHRESH

BENBRENGHRAREAR

EamﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂioAﬁ&
ARAREHTMENHBEES
REERHRFEEARE
ERNENER BRAEE.:

BB A FE R EVS AR
BESUARFEEAAEE
MBRERE  STABHER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7% i 5% Fff 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)
(5) Business combinations (Continued)

(b) Business combinations involving

SREMSARETIT)

enterprises other than common control
(Continued)

For a business combination involving entities
other than common control achieved in
stages, in the separate financial statements,
the initial cost shall be the summation of the
book value of the previously held interest
before the acquisition date and the additional
investment cost on the acquisition date.
In the consolidated financial statements,
the previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured at fair value on the
acquisition date, and the difference between
the fair value and book value is recognized as
investment income for the current period. If
other comprehensive income was recognized
regarding the equity interests previously held
in the acquiree before the acquisition date,
the relevant other comprehensive income is
transferred to investment income for the year
acquisition occurs. Difference between the
sum of the fair value of consideration along
with the fair value of equity interests of the
acquiree held previously, and the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired on the
acquisition date is recognized as goodwill.

Costs directly attributable to the combination
shall be recognized in profit or loss for
the year when occurred. Transaction costs
in the issue of equity securities and debt
securities attributable to the combination
shall be recognized in initial amount of equity
securities and debt securities.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FESHBERMNEE G #)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(6) EHIMBHMRNERT L

(6) Preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and are de-
consolidated from the date that such control
ceases. For a subsidiary that is acquired in a
business combination involving enterprises
under common control, it is included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date
when it, together with the Company, comes under
common control of the ultimate controlling party.
The portion of the net profits realized before the
combination date is presented separately in the
consolidated income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
where the accounting policies and the accounting
periods are inconsistent between the Company
and subsidiaries, the financial statements of
subsidiaries are adjusted in accordance with the
accounting policies and accounting period of
the Company. For subsidiaries acquired from a
business combination involving enterprises other
than common control, the individual financial
statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted based
on the fair value of the identifiable net assets on
the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7% i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(6)

(7)

Preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

All significant inter-group balances, transactions
and unrealized profits are eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements. The portion of
a subsidiary’s equity, the portion of a subsidiary’s
net profits and losses and comprehensive income
for the year not attributable to the Company are
recognized as non-controlling interests and income
attributed to non-controlling interests as presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements
within equity, net profits and comprehensive
income respectively. Unrealized inter profit or loss
in transactions where the Company sells assets
to its subsidiaries are fully eliminated to the net
profits attributable to owners of the Company.
Unrealized inter profit or loss in transactions
where a subsidiary sells assets to the Company are
eliminated between the net profits attributable to
owners of the Company and the profit or loss of
the non-controlling interest in proportion to the
Company’s allocation to the subsidiary. Unrealized
inter profit or loss in transactions between
subsidiaries selling assets are eliminated between
the net profits attributable to owners of the
Company and the profit or loss of non-controlling
interest in proportion to the Company’s allocation
to the selling side.

A transaction will be adjusted from the perspective
of the Group in condition that assertions are
different when accounting entities are the Group
and the Company or its subsidiaries.

Cash

Cash comprise cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily drawn on demand.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HEZZT—tFA=TRHIEAEABE (BREFAIFEEASN -

SREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(8) Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into RMB using the spot exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into RMB using the spot exchange
rates on the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising from these translations are
recognized in profit or loss for the current
period, except for those attributable to
foreign currency borrowings that have been
taken out specifically for the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized as part of the cost of those assets.
Nonmonetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at historical
costs are translated at the balance sheet date
using the spot exchange rates at the date of
the transactions. The effect of exchange rate
changes on cash is presented separately in
the cash flow statement.

Translation of foreign currency financial
statements

The asset and liability items in the balance
sheets for overseas operations are translated
at the spot exchange rates on the balance
sheet date. Among the owners’ equity items,
the items other than “retained earnings” are
translated at the spot exchange rates on the
transaction dates. The income and expense
items in the income statements of overseas
operations are translated at the spot exchange
rates or the approximate rate of it on the
transaction dates. The differences arising from
the above translation are presented separately
in the owners’ equity, as other comprehensive
income. The cash flows of overseas operations
are translated at the spot exchange rates on
the dates of the cash flows. The effect of
exchange rate changes on cash is presented
separately in the cash flow statement.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=THEIENEAMSE (BRRERIFERN -

SREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets

(i)

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified into
the following categories at initial
recognition: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets
and held-to-maturity investments.
The classification of financial assets
depends on the Group's intention and
ability to hold the financial assets. The
financial assets of the Group are mainly
comprised of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss include financial assets held
for the purpose of selling in the short
term.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market, including trade and other
receivables, etc..
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FESHBERMNEE G #)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) 9) €@MIEE)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) =WMEEE)

(i) Classification of financial assets (i) 2HEEFHE)
(Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ESBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets are AHEECREERR
non-derivative financial assets that are TR EREFAEIEE A
either designated in this category or not AHEHENETES R
classified in any of the other categories BERAEE S REM
at initial recognition. Available-for-sale BENeREE -BEE
financial assets are included in other BEXART-@ARN
current assets on the balance sheet if 1§ E Rt E SR
management intends to dispose of them BEEEERBERPS
within 12 months of the balance sheet TAHEMRENEE -
date.

(i) Recognition and measurement (i) EERHATE
Financial assets are recognized at TREENAEEKA

fair value on the balance sheet when
the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial
instrument, and the relevant transaction

TRTAEARMN -7
FoBAREBEERE
BERAER - LR
BEFTEEEZHAA

costs are recognized in profit or loss for EHERNEREE -

the current period. Transaction costs HR 1S I 35 A B9 4E ﬁ%&%
that are attributable to the acquisition ERGAEHER A
of the receivables and available-for- hEMEENHEBRS

sale financial assets are included in their
initial recognition amounts.

ERFT AVRHEREE -

Fair values are used to determine the AREEFEEEE
subsequent measurements of available- é@b FFAEHEBEZNSR

for-sale financial assets. However, for
equity investments that neither have
quoted price available in an active
market nor fair values can be reliably
measured, cost method should be used
in measuring. Receivables are measured
at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=THEIENEAMSE (BRRERIFERN -

SREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Changes in fair value of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized as fair value gain
or loss into profit or loss for the current
period; Interests or cash dividends
gained during the holding period of
assets, and disposal gain or loss are
recognized into profit or loss for the
current period.

Gain or loss arising from changes in
fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets is recognized directly in equity,
except for impairment losses and
exchange gain or loss arising from
translation of foreign monetary financial
assets. When such financial assets are
derecognized, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized directly
into equity is recycled into profit or
loss for the current period. Interests
of available-for-sale debt instrument
investments, which are calculated by
actual rate during holding period, and
cash dividends related to available-
for-sale equity instrument investments
announced by investee companies are
recognized as investment income in
profit or loss for the current period.

Impairment of financial assets

Except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, the Group
assesses the carrying amounts of
financial assets at each balance sheet
date. If there is objective evidence
indicating that a financial asset is
impaired, the Group shall make a
provision for impairment.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEETEHENSEET#)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (9) €T AE)

(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) =WMEEE)
(iiij) Impairment of financial assets (i) EAZEEREE)
(Continued)
Objective evidence indicating impairment ~XHEMmEERERME
of financial assets refers to the matter MEBZEE EER
that actually occurs after the initial BEMNMEREERE
recognition of financial assets, it will FH - HZEREED
affect estimated future cash flows of BEFRRBRERER &
financial assets, and its impact can be 2 BAEEEHEZ
reliably measured by the Group. HEETA R ENSE
1B o

Objective evidence of impairment on RPAFAHLERETER
available-for-sale equity investments BREZHERENTEFE
includes the significant or prolonged BEERETAKEN
decline of the fair value of those equity AnBEEEERENIE
instruments. The Group assesses the ERM TR - REER
carrying amounts of available-for-sale EEBEBEXRAYRIEM
equity instruments individually at each HEUERZTAEKRES
balance sheet date. If the fair value BETRE B2 ER
of the equity instrument declines for ITEREREEAGBE
more than 50% (included) compared HHAABEEREY
with the initial investment cost or the BRI E KA E50% (&
decline lasts for more than one year 50% ) 1K 7 B 9] 1R 1%
(included), the impairment occurs; if BERAFERNEBE—
the fair value of the equity instrument F(E—F)oy - BIEXA
declines for more than 20% (included) HEBARMME SaEx
but not beyond 50%, the Group will ITEREREEARGE
take other relevant factors, such as HHARBEEREY
price fluctuations into consideration BRI E KA R20% (&
to judge whether the impairment 20% ) 1B 15 K 3= 3 50%
occurs. The Group applies weighted- B AEBESHFEEER
average method to estimate the initial HEEEREFENER
investment of the available-for-sale RE)EE - HEZES
equity instrument investment. TERERGEER
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iiij) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

When an impairment loss on a
financial asset carried at amortized cost
has occurred, the amount of loss is
measured at the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present
value of its estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred). If there is objective
evidence that the value of the financial
assets recovered and the recovery
is related objectively to the event
occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed and such
amount is recognized in profit or loss.

In the case of a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
arising from the decline in fair value that
had been recognized directly in equity is
removed from equity and recognized in
impairment loss. For an investment in an
equity instrument classified as available-
for-sale on which impairment losses
have been recognized, the increase in
its fair value in the subsequent period is
recognized in equity directly.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = FTESEERENGE G (@)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (9) emMIRAE)

(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) &WMEEHA)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (iii) EEERMEE)
(Continued)
In the case of decline in the cost model KA 2R HEE
of an avaliable-for-sale financial assets, TREEZFERER
the difference between its book value 1 L AR T B 1B B 4% BR 4R
and the present value of the cash LesEESRFmEHK
flow from the similar financial asset mEHARRRESREWN
under present market yields shall be BHENREZHENE
recognized in profit or loss. Accrued BoBMABR/BMERSL
impairment will not be reversed in the FFAEHES - BE¥A
future period. B BB KRBT
e[ o
(iv) Derecognition of financial assets (iv) £EEELILER

A financial asset is derecognized when SEEEMT NI
any of the below criteria is met: (1) the Z—HY) - T LA IERERR -
contractual rights to receive the cash M- BEBzZemEER
flows from the financial asset expire; (2) EmENE RER L ;
the financial asset has been transferred Q ZemEEDE
and the Group transfers substantially B BEXEEHERE
all the risks and rewards of ownership EFfERLETREN
of the financial asset to the transferee; 2\ Bex AN ¥ B EE RS 4e A
or (3) the financial asset has been FEQ  ZEemE
transferred and the Group has not EEEB  #HAXEH
retained control of the financial asset, R EERDLEBERE
although the Group neither transfers TREEMARE AT
nor retains substantially all the risks and Fra e Rk AR - 8
rewards of ownership of the financial EMETHZEREE
asset. P o
On derecognition of a financial TREERILHERE
asset, the difference between the HEEmEERRE /MY
carrying amount and the sum of the BARREEFAARR
consideration received along with the Rt AnBEEHR
cumulative changes in fair value that TR MBERE - TA
had been recognized directly in equity, is EHER -

recognized in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and other financial liabilities. The Group's
financial liabilities are mainly financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, derivative financial liabilities and other
financial liabilities, including payables,
borrowings and debentures payable.

Forward foreign exchange contract measured
by hedge accounting is accounted as
derivative financial liabilities. Other forward
foreign exchange contracts are measured at
fair value and the changes in fair value are
recognized in profit or loss.

Payables include trade and other payables etc.
which are initially recognized at fair value and
recorded at amortized cost using effective
interest rate in subsequent measurement.

Borrowings and debentures payable are
initially recognized at fair value less trading
expenses and recorded at amortized cost
using effective interest rate in subsequent
measurement.

Financial liabilities with repayment period
within 1 year (including 1 year) or in an
ordinary operation cycle are stated as current
liabilities; other financial liabilities with
repayment period over 1 year but repayment
date within 1 year from balance sheet date
are stated as current portion of non-current
liabilities; others are stated as non-current
liabilities.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (Continued)

(c)

A financial liability is derecognized or partly
derecognized when the current obligation
is discharged or has been partly discharged.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the derecognized part of the financial
liabilities and the consideration paid is
recognized in profit or loss.

Determination of fair value of financial
instrument

The fair value of a financial instrument that
is traded in an active market is determined
by the quoted price in the active market. The
fair value of a financial instrument that is not
traded in an active market is determined by
using a valuation technique. The Group uses
the valuation technique when it is applicable
under current conditions and there are
enough available data and other information
to support and the technique should
maximize the use of relevant observable.
Unobservable inputs are used under the
circumstance that the relevant observable
inputs cannot be obtained or not feasible.
Those inputs should be consistent with the
inputs a market participant would use when
pricing the asset or liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Offsetting of financial assets and

liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities should be
presented separately in balance sheet without
offsetting. A financial asset and a financial
liability should be offset when, and only
when, both of the following conditions are
satisfied: (i) The Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and the legal enforceable right is
now executable. (i) The Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to liquidate the
financial asset and settle the financial liability
simultaneously.

(10) Hedging activities

The Group sets forward foreign exchange contract
as hedging instrument to avoid foreign exchange
risks. Changes in cash flow of the hedging
instrument are expected to offset the changes in
cash flow of hedged items. The Group accounts
the hedging by using cash flow hedge.

Fair value of the hedging derivatives would be
classified as a non-current asset or liability when
the residual maturity of the hedged item is longer
than 12 months.

The Group continuously records its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows of hedged items (whether
the offset results are between 80% and 125%).
The Group adopts ratio analysis to assess
subsequent effectiveness of cash flow hedge.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEETEHENSEET#)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(10) Hedging activities (Continued) (10) EHREE)
Gain or loss on the cash flow hedging instrument AEEKREREERTEFNS
relating to the effective portion is recognized BEAAPBAEXRESRNI S E&
in other comprehensive income and presented FFAEMZE RS - WEFIEA KR
separately, amount of the effective portion is e ZBERERT >N KR
the lower of the absolute value of the two items TEIMIER B E R EIEERTE
below:
(i) Accumulated gain or loss on the hedging () ENITESEHRRORFH
instrument from hedging date; FIIEX
(i) Accumulated changes in present value of (i WEHIEE B EHMKOTERT
expected future cash flow of hedged item ARRERERENRTED
from hedging date. B o
Gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion, that HRERTAFGHBELRPBEEN
is gain or loss deducting the portion recognized EHOE o (IR EERER A HA
in other comprehensive income, is recognized in FaWmEmnEMASHESR) - 8l
profit or loss. FFAEHIES -
When the hedged item impact the profit or FHMEE N EPEENERTA
loss, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument MASRERERERHEAEXZE
recognized in other comprehensive income is TE SREBHIERERRERD - A
transferred out and recognized in profit or loss. CEWEANEARZIER—IF
However, when a hedged prospective transaction 3Fi%ﬂ§?ﬁ’]ﬁﬁ*’ P ZAIERE R P
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset, uEﬁ‘E’Jﬂ SoIEAEETEL
the gain or loss previously recognized in equity 5t A% IE & B & B V) 0A FE SR #0 BX
is transferred out from equity and included in KEP
the cost of the non-financial asset at the initial
recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(10) Hedging activities (Continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold,
the hedging contract terminated, or a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the Group no longer applies hedge accounting.
Any cumulative gain or loss recognized in equity
previously when hedging is effective will be
transferred out and recognized in profit or loss
till the prospective transaction ultimately occurs.
When a prospective transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
recognized in equity previously when hedging is
effective is transferred out and recognized in profit
or loss immediately.

(11) Receivables

Receivables comprise trade and other receivables.
Trade receivables arising from sale of goods or
rendering of services are initially recognized at fair
value of the contractual payments from the buyers
or service recipients.

(a) Receivables that are individually
significant and subject to separate
assessment for provision for bad debts

Receivables that are individually significant
are subject to separate impairment
assessment. If there is objective evidence
that the group will not be able to collect
the full amount under the original terms, a
provision for impairment of that receivable
is recognized at the difference between the
carrying amount of that receivable and the
present value of its estimated future cash
flows.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(11) Receivables (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Receivables that are individually
significant and subject to separate
assessment for provision for bad debts
(Continued)

The criterion for determining “individually
significant” is as follows: trade receivables
are all individually significant, for other
receivables, any individual amount exceeds
RMB30,000,000.

The method of providing for bad debts for
those individually significant amounts is as
follows: the amount of the present value
of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from the receivable below its carrying
amount.

Receivables that are subject to provision
for bad debts on the grouping basis

Receivables due from related parties with
amounts that are not individually significant,
which have been individually assessed for
impairment and not impaired are classified
into group of related parties. The provision
for bad debts is determined based on the
historical loss experience for the groupings
of receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics, taking into consideration of
the current circumstances.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(11) Receivables (Continued)

(b) Receivables that are subject to provision
for bad debts on the grouping basis
(Continued)

Basis for grouping is as follows:

Amounts due from related
parties

Group of related parties

Methods of determining provision for bad
debts by grouping are as follows:

No bad debts provided
according to low credit
risk upon assessment,
based on the principal
activities and the history
transactions

Group of related parties

Receivables due from third parties are subject
to separate assessment for provision, as there
is no similar credit characteristics among
them.

(c) Receivables with amounts that are not
individually significant but subject to
separate assessment for provision for
bad debts

The reason for making separate assessment
for provision for bad debts is that there exists
objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect the amount under the original
terms of the receivable.

The provision for bad debts is determined
based on the amount of the present value
of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from the receivable below its carrying
amount.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—tFRA=TBELENEAMSE (BRRERIFERN

C EREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(12) Inventories

(a)

(b)

Classification

Inventories include properties under
development, properties held for sale,
merchandise inventories and low-cost
consumables, which are measured at the
lower of cost and net realizable value.

Measurement of inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at the
actual costs. The costs of properties under
development and properties held for sale
comprise land cost, construction cost,
capitalized borrowing costs, and other
direct and indirect fees incurred during the
development period. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale at the actual costs.
For land use rights that are developed for
subsequent sales, the cost paid for land use
rights are classified and accounted for as part
of the costs of properties.

Public ancillary facilities comprise
government-approved public ancillary
projects, i.e. roads etc. The relevant costs
are recognized in the properties under
development, and are recorded by each
cost items, the cost paid for land use rights
are classified and accounted for as part of
properties under development.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(12) Inventories (Continued)

(b) Measurement of inventories (Continued)

Construction contract is disclosed at the
aggregate amount of costs incurred and
aggregate gross profit/(loss) recognized,
less the settlement amount. The excess of
the aggregate amount of costs incurred
and aggregate gross profit/(loss) recognized
over the settlement amount is recognized as
“Work in progress” under inventories; while,
it is recognized as “Advances for contract
work” under advances from customers when
aggregate amount of costs incurred and
aggregate gross profit/(loss) recognized is less
than the settlement amount.

Merchandise inventories are finished goods
purchased from external for retail, which
are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods is purchase costs agreed in
purchasing contracts. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FESHBERMNEE G #)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(12) Inventories (Continued) (12) BE (&)

() Measurement of net realizable value and
provisions of inventories

Provisions are determined at the excess
amount of the carrying value of the
inventories over their net realizable value.
Net realizable value is determined based on
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs
to completion and estimated selling expenses
and related taxes.

(d) The Group adopts the perpetual inventory

system.

(e) Low-cost consumables are amortized using
the one-off amortization method.

(13) Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the
Company’s long-term equity investments in
its subsidiaries, the Group’s long-term equity
investments in its joint ventures and associates.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the
Company is able to exercise control. Joint ventures
are joint arrangements of which the net asset is
attribute to the Group based on the legal forms,
terms of contract and other facts and the investees
over which the Group is able to exercise joint
control together with other ventures. Associates
are the investees that the Group has significant
influence on their financial and operating policies.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(13) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in
the Company’s financial statements using the
cost method, and are adjusted for preparing
the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. Investments in joint ventures and
associates are accounted for using the equity
method.

(a) Measurement of investment cost

For long-term equity investments acquired
through a business combination: for long-
term equity investments acquired though
business combination involving enterprises
under common control, the investment cost
shall be the acquirer’s share of the carrying
amount of owners’ equity of the acquiree on
the combination date; for long-term equity
investment acquired through a business
combination involving enterprises other than
common control, the investment cost shall be
the combination cost.

For long-term equity investments acquired
not through a business combination: for
long-term equity investment acquired by
payment in cash, the initial investment cost
shall be the purchase price actually paid,;
for long-term equity investments acquired
by issuing equity instruments, the initial
investment cost shall be the fair value of the
equity instruments issued.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FBREFHER sHbET ()
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)
(13) RERERE(#)
BEGTERBRERGE

(13) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement and (b)

recognition of investment income and
loss

For long-term equity investments accounted
for using the cost method, they are measured
at the initial investment costs, and cash
dividends or profit distribution declared by
the investees are recognized as investment
income in profit or loss.

For long-term equity investments accounted
for using the equity method, where the
initial investment cost of a long-term equity
investment exceeds the Group'’s share of the
fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets on the acquisition date, the long-term
equity investment is measured at the initial
investment cost; where the initial investment
cost is less than the Group's share of the
fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets on the acquisition date, the difference
is included in profit or loss and the cost of
the long-term equity investment is adjusted
upwards accordingly.
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SREMSARETIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(13) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement and

recognition of investment income and
loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments accounted
for using the equity method, the Group
recognizes the investment income or losses
according to its share of net profit or loss
of the investee. The Group discontinues
recognizing its share of net losses of an
investee after the carrying amount of the
long-term equity investment together with
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the investor’s net investment
in the investee are reduced to zero.
However, if the Group has obligations for
additional losses and the criteria with respect
to recognition of provisions under the
accounting standards on contingencies are
satisfied, the Group continues recognizing
the investment losses and the losses are
recognized as estimate debts. For changes
in owners’ equity of the investee other than
those arising from its net profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and profit
distribution, the Group adjusts the carrying
amount of long-term equity investments and
records its proportionate share directly into
capital reserve. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the Group’s share
of the profit distribution or cash dividends
declared by the investee. The unrealized
profits or losses arising from the intra-group
transactions amongst the Group and its
investees are eliminated in proportion to
the Group’s equity interest in the investees,
and then based on which the investment
gains or losses are recognized. For the loss
on the intra-group transaction amongst
the Group and its investees attributable to
asset impairment, any unrealized loss is not
eliminated.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(13) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Definitions of control, joint control and
significant influence

Control is the power over the investee when
the investor is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the
investee companies, and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over
the investee companies.

Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent
of the Group and the other parties sharing
control.

Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

Impairment of long-term equity
investment

The carrying amounts of long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are reduced to the recoverable
amounts when the recoverable amounts are
below their carrying amounts (Note 2(19)).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(14) Joint operations

Joint operations are operations with a contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other
parties jointly enjoy related assets and are
responsible to related liabilities. Under joint
operations, the assets and liabilities which belong
to joint operations and are related to profit
shares should be recognized separately or shared
by proportion; Revenues were recognized from
selling the Group's share in joint operations or
selling products of joint operations; expenses were
recognized separately or shared by proportion in
the joint operations.

(15) Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use rights
that have already been leased out, buildings that
are held for the purpose of leasing and buildings
that is being constructed or developed for the
purpose of leasing in future, are measured initially
at cost. Subsequent expenditures incurred in
relation to an investment property is included in
the cost of the investment property when it is
probable that the associated economic benefits
will flow to the Group and their cost can be
reliably measured; otherwise, the expenditures are
recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they
are incurred.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FESHBERMNEE G #)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(15) Investment properties (Continued) (15) REMEHE &)

The Group adopts the fair value model for
subsequent measurement of investment
properties. Investment properties are measured at
fair value model when the following conditions are
met:

(@) There is an active property market where the
investment property locates.

(b) The Group can obtain the market price or
the relevant information regarding the same
type of or similar property market, so as to
reasonably estimate the fair value of the
investment property.

Depreciation or amortization will no longer be
provided for investment properties measured at
fair value. Investment properties will be valued as
at the balance sheet date and its carrying amount
will be adjusted accordingly. The difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount
will be charged to the current profit or loss account
of the Group.

Where fair value of investment properties
under construction is not reliably measurable
but is expected to be reliably obtained after
the construction is completed, the property is
measured at cost until the earlier of the date
construction is completed or the date at which fair
value becomes reliably measurable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

SREMSARETIT)

(15) Investment properties (Continued)

When objective evidence indicates that the
purpose of the real estate has changed and the
Group converts investment property to owner-
occupied property or real estate inventory, the
property’s carrying amount is stated at the fair
value on the conversion date. The difference
between the fair value and the original carrying
amount is recognized in profit or loss for the
current period. When any owner-occupied
property or real estate inventory is converted to
investment properties to be measured through the
fair value model, the fair value on the conversion
date is recognized as the carrying amount of the
investment property. When the fair value on the
conversion date is less than its carrying amount,
the difference will be charged to profit or loss
for the current period. When the fair value on
the conversion date is more than its carrying
amount, the difference will be charged to other
comprehensive income.

An investment property is derecognized on
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
The net amount of proceeds from sale, transfer,
scrapping or damage of an investment property
subtract its carrying amount and related taxes and
expenses is recognized in profit or loss for the
current period.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(16) Fixed assets

(a)

(b)

Recognition and initial measurement

Fixed assets comprise buildings, motor
vehicles, and office equipment.

Fixed assets are recognized when it is
probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
related cost can be reliably measured. Fixed
assets purchased or constructed by the Group
are initially measured at cost at the time of
acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed
asset are included in the cost of the fixed
asset when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the related cost can be reliably measured.
The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. All the other subsequent
expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in
the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
the assets to their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives. For the
fixed assets that have been provided for
impairment loss, the related depreciation
charge is prospectively determined based
upon the adjusted carrying amounts over
their remaining useful lives.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—tFRA=THELENEAMSE (BRRERIFERAN

F EREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)
(16) Fixed assets (Continued)

(b) Depreciation methods of fixed assets

(Continued)

The estimated useful lives, the estimated rate
of residual value and the annual depreciation
rate are as follows:

TEGBERMG AT (@)

(16) EEEE (&)

(b) BEEEMRELEE)

BlE BEMIEFEAS? %
BRERRFFERIITAOT

Estimated rate Annual

Estimated of residual depreciation

useful lives value rate

FEEEAS® FEERER FHER

Buildings 10 — 40 year 0% —10% 2.3% - 10.0%
FERZEY 10 — 40%F

Motor vehicles 5-10 year 0% —10% 9.0% —20.0%
BERHITAE 5- 104

Office equipment 3 - 10 year 0% - 10% 9.0% -33.3%
WRERA 3-10%F

The estimated useful lives, the estimated
residual value of a fixed asset and the
depreciation method applied to the asset are
reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at least
each year end.

(c) When recoverable amount of fixed asset is
lower than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount should be written down to the
recoverable amount (Note 2(19)).

(d) Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. The
amount of proceeds from disposal on sale,
transfer, scrapping or damage of a fixed asset
substract its carrying amount and related
taxes and expenses is recognized in profit or
loss for the current period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. EEEEEMEETHET )
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(17) Borrowing costs (17) BRER

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition and construction of investment
properties or real estate projects that need a
substantially long period of time for its intended
use or sale commence to be capitalized and
recognized as part of the cost of the asset when
expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs
have been incurred, and the activities relating to
the acquisition and construction that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
have commenced. The capitalization of borrowing
costs ceases, when the investment properties
under acquisition or construction becomes
ready for its intended use, the properties under
development become ready for sale (generally after
Completion Certification granted), the borrowing
costs incurred thereafter are recognized in profit
or loss for the current period. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition or construction of the asset
is interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts
for more than 3 months, until the acquisition or
construction is resumed.

For borrowings that specified for acquisition and
construction of investment properties and real
estate projects and qualified for capitalization, the
capitalization amount is measured as current actual
interests of the specified borrowings subtract
interest revenue earned from unused borrowings
deposited at bank or investment income earned
from temporary investment activities with unused
borrowings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(17) Borrowing costs (Continued)

For general borrowings that occupied by the
acquisition and for construction of investment
properties and real estate projects qualified for
capitalization, the capitalization amount should
be the weighted average exceeds of accumulated
capital expenditures for capitalization over the
amount of specialized borrowings multiplied by
the weighted average effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate is the rate used to discount
the estimated future or the applicable shorter
period cash flows of the borrowings to the initial
measurement of the borrowings.

(18) Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include expenditures
that have been incurred but should be recognized
as expenses over more than one year in the
current and subsequent periods. Long-term
prepaid expenses are amortized on the straight-
line basis over the expected beneficial period
and are presented at actual expenditure subtract
accumulated amortization.

BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017

ES

[E22)
=

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

28

@ I G T 3 ()

(17) ERER(#)

HRBBETRENLIRHMKRE
MR EE A Ko B Hb EE A 25 TR B ik
AR —RER  HRRFEEXH
BB FPIE A 00 B AR S N
FIGHOR AT (5 A — AR SR EY hntE
FIHERM RGBT - RERE
REANER SR  BRMNXE
BERERSRFESRNERANE
REEANRIRERENTR DX
eI IGTER S REPTE M HOF XK -

(18) RHISHEH

EHRGHEREHREKELERH
REMARSHBEDS - D EHAR
E—FULNREER AR
S HEOHFOHE  YAERX
R A REHEE R FRIR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIERS - SRELSARETIT)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FEEFHERMEHEE )
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)
(19) REBAEERE

Fixed assets, intangible assets with finite useful EE&E CASHARNELE
lives, investment properties measured using the E HKAKAFENKREMLFEH

(19) Impairment of long-term assets

cost model and long-term equity investments ERHFRA 620 E BEd
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are FHRAKBERES  REEARE
tested for impairment if there is any indication XEBTFERETRE - ETRER
that an asset may be impaired at the balance = o 5)3%1@%?& HREAEEMTTK
sheet date. If the result of the impairment test EeBEXREEEERYN  KHE

RFHRREEEL T ABRERK -
AEeBELSEENRABERE
REERRIFEEEERTRK

indicates that the recoverable amount of the asset
is less than its carrying amount, a provision for
impairment and an impairment loss are recognized

for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. Provision for asset impairment is determined
and recognized on the individual asset basis. If it

BeREMNBEMEZANKS
- BEREREBEREREEERE
BAH LR - WREUHEIRE
EWTH&Z@&%‘Q&EH%JE’J PA#%
BEMBNEEMAETEEEMENA
WEolEHE - EEASRMBILESL
BeRANRNEEMS °

is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of
a group of assets to which the asset belongs to is
determined. A group of assets is the smallest group
of assets that is able to generate cash inflows
independently.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(19) Impairment of long-term assets (Continued)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the
financial statements is tested at least annually for
impairment, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that it may be impaired. In conducting
the test, the carrying value of goodwiill is allocated
to the related asset groups or groups of asset
groups which are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination. If the result
of the test indicates that the recoverable amount
of an asset group or group of asset groups,
including the allocated goodwill, is lower than its
carrying amount, the corresponding impairment
loss is recognized. The impairment loss is first
deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill
that is allocated to the asset group or group of
asset groups, and then deducted from the carrying
amounts of other assets within the asset groups
or groups of asset groups in proportion to the
carrying amounts of assets other than goodwill.

Once the above asset impairment loss is
recognized, it will not be reversed for the value
recovered in the subsequent periods.

(20) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of considerations
given in exchange for services rendered by
employees or compensation paid in order to
terminate the employment relationship. Employee
benefits mainly include short-term employee
benefits, demission benefits, termination benefits
and other long-term employee benefits, etc.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—tFRNA=TRIENEASRE (BRI

C EREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(20) Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits mainly include
wages or salaries, bonuses, allowances
and subsidies, staff welfare, social security
contributions, housing funds, labor union
funds, employee education funds, short-term
compensated absences and profit sharing
plan. When an employee has rendered
service to the Group during an accounting
period, the Group shall recognize short-term
employee benefits as liabilities and charge
to the cost of an asset or as an expense at
the same time. Non-monetary benefits are
measured in accordance with fair value.

Demission benefits

Demission benefits are classified as defined
contribution plan and defined benefit plans.
Defined contribution is demission benefits
plan in which the Group is not obliged to
make further payment after paying a certain
amount to individual funds. Defined benefit
plans is other demission benefits plan except
for defined contribution plan. During the
period, demission benefits mainly include
basic social pension security and unemployed
insurance, both of which are defined
contribution plan.

EEE
T =i

ATBCR M & STl (48)

(20) BT & ™M (&)

(a)

(b)

SRR

EHHFMeELIE %S 2
BhAnEEL C BITEAE - BE
%ﬁ% TERRE £FR
CEERAEE  TEMH
BT RE A
ﬂ%?ﬁﬂ%o$%§&%l
REREHEFEE - BER
%E%L% TR AR E
WHt ANE REZNAEEEEK
$ o JEEBGREFIZER
RRAEBEE -

AA,\

K £<«

BERER
ARG R B R AR ARl 0 AR
RRERFEIMRE X smaT
g - RERFAEEARER
BIYNESHFEEERE
THEAEE - PN RBHR
BRBANEE  REX &S
SRR AR E SR AT &I PAS O RE B
BENETE - RMEHR - K
SENBRRENEIEERE
TR EARRERR - 7T
BRERBMKAERR  DBR
FEfRFaTEl

83



84

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7% i 5% Fff 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(20) Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Demission benefits (Continued)

Basic social pension security

Employees of the Group participate in
the basic social pension plan set up and
administered by the government authorities.
Basic pensions are provided monthly
according to stipulated proportions and
basis, which are paid to local labor and
social security institutions. After retirement
of employees, local labor and social security
institutions will pay related pensions to
employees accordingly. When an employee
has rendered service to the Group during an
accounting period, the Group shall compute
and recognize liabilities according to the
above stipulation and charge to the cost of an
asset or as an expense at the same time.

The Group provides a pension scheme,
which is established under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”),
for all employees in Hong Kong. The
statutory contribution requirements to the
MPF Scheme are minimum 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income and
maximum of HKD1,500 monthly. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(20) Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Demission benefits (Continued)

(9]

Supplementary pension security plan

Qualified employees of the Group can
voluntarily join the supplementary pension
security plan. Supplementary pensions are
provided monthly based on employees’
social security basis published in April and
proportions of 5% from the Group and 5%
from employee, which are paid to trustee.
After retirement of employees, trustee
will pay related pensions to employees
accordingly. When an employee has rendered
service to the Group during an accounting
period, the Group shall compute and
recognize liabilities according to the above
stipulation and charge to the cost of an asset
or as an expense at the same time.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payables when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the employment contract expire,
or compensation provided as an offer to
encourage employees to accept voluntary
redundancy. The Group recognizes
termination benefits as liabilities and charges
to profit or losses at the earlier of the
following dates: when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of termination
plan; and when the Group recognizes costs
for restructuring which involving the payment
of termination benefits.

Termination benefits is disclosed as current
liabilities if it is planed to be paid within one
year after the balance sheet date.
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SREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(21) Equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Group are
classified as equity instruments when both of the
following conditions are satisfied:

(a)

The financial instruments have no contractual
obligation to pay in cash or other financial
assets to other parties nor to exchange
financial assets or liabilities under potential
adverse condition with other parties.

The financial instruments should and can
be settled via equity instruments of the
Group. For non-derivative instruments, the
instruments have no contractual obligation
to be settled by delivering fixed number
of equity instruments of the Group. For
derivative instruments, they can only be
settled through the exchange of fixed number
of the Group’s equity instruments with fixed
amount of cash or other financial assets.

Equity instruments except for ordinary shares
issued by the Company are presented as
other equity instruments on the balance
sheet. The amounts issued by the subsidiaries
and classified as equity instruments in the
consolidated financial statements of the
Group are presented as non-controlling
interest.

(22) Distribution of dividends

The amount of dividends is recognized as liability
in the current period in which it is approved by
general meeting of shareholders.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FESHBERMNEE G #)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(23) FEFFEE

(23) Provisions

Provisions for product warranties, pending
litigations etc. are recognized when the Group has
a present obligation, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount of the obligation can
be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
related present obligation. Factors surrounding
a contingency, such as the risks, uncertainties
and the time value of money, are taken into
account as a whole in reaching the best estimate
of a provision. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the best estimate is
determined by discounting the related future cash
outflows. The increase in the discounted amount
of the provision arising from passage of time is
recognized as interest expense.

The carrying amount of provisions is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

A provision is disclosed as current liabilities if it
is planned to be paid within one year after the
balance sheet date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FEEeHHERME (&)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(24) Revenue recognition (24) AR

The amount of revenue is determined in
accordance with the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable from the sales of goods and
the rendering of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business activities. Revenue is shown
net off rebates, discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognized when the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow
to the Group, the related revenue can be reliably
measured, and the specific revenue recognition
criteria have been met for each type of the Group's
business activities as described below:

(a) Sales of goods

(i) Revenue of sales of development
properties is recognized when all
the following conditions have been
satisfied:

e properties are completed and
accepted or regarded as accepting
after check;

e alegally binding sales contract has
been signed;

e all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the development
properties have been transferred
to the buyer;

e the Company does not retain
the management rights, which is
normally associated with owner,
on the development properties
sold and has no control over the
development properties sold. The
Company does not meet the other
criteria required when recognizing
revenue mentioned above.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEETEHENSEET#)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(24) Revenue recognition (Continued) (24) W AR (&)
(a) Sales of goods (Continued) (a) SHE®M(E)
(i) Retailed income, the Group sells (i ZTEUWA - $’Ei%35
products to individual customers RERNEEIRT

through its retail outlets. Sales of goods
are recognised in the accounting period
in which the Group sells a product to

X% ?.‘.?$§Elﬁ/éj;§
EECEmMARER
% BmAARELD

the customer, with all the significant F E R RN EE 2 8
risks and rewards of ownership of % HHEZEmE#E
the product been transferred to the B K 7N BE #9 B] 5E b ET

buyer and related costs been reliably
measured. Retail sales are usually settled

B ASEEMEER
BmEEHERA - TE

in cash or by credit card. WABEARSHAER
R&EE -
(b) Revenue from construction contract (b) BEERIWA

In the situation that result of the construction
contract can be reliably measured, contract
revenue and cost are measured by using
the completion percentage method on
the balance sheet date. The progress of
completion is determined by the percentage
of total actual contract cost incurred to the
total expected contract cost.

In the situation that result of the construction
contract can not be reliably measured,
contract revenue is measured at the
amount of contract cost, which is able
to be compensated, and contract cost is
recognized in the profit or loss for the period.
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immediately as expense in profit or loss, with RiEARIEER TR ST

no recognition of contract revenue. In the
situation that the uncertainty factors, which
may lead to the result of the construction
contract, can not be reliably measured no
longer exist, the related contract revenue and
cost are measured by using the completion
percentage method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

SREMSARETIT)

(24) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Revenue from construction contract
(Continued)

The expected loss which is resulted from
the excess of total expected contract costs
over the total expected contract revenue, is
recognized as expense for the period.

(c) Rendering of services

The Group provides service to external
parties. The related revenue is recognized
using the percentage of completion
method, with the stage of completion being
determined based on proportion of costs
incurred to date to the estimated total costs.

(25) Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary
assets or non-monetary assets that the Group
receives from the government, including tax
returns and financial subsidies.

Government grants are recognized when there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group is able to comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Monetary assets
of the government grants are measured as the
amount received or receivable. Non-monetary
assets of the government grants are measured as
fair value or notional value if the fair value cannot
be obtained reliably.

A government grant related to an asset is the
government grants acquired by the Group
that specified for acquisition and construction
or in other ways to form long-term assets.
For government grants related to income are
government grants other than government grants
related to assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FESHBERMNEE G #)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(25) BT HBh (&)

(25) Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to assets are
recognized as deferred revenue or writing down
book value of relevant assets and will be amortized
over the useful life of the related assets in profit
or loss using a reasonable method. Government
grants related to income which are used to
compensate expenses or losses in subsequent
periods, are recognized as deferred revenue and
realized in profit or loss or writing down relevant
costs for the year such expenses or losses occurred;
the ones which are to compensate expenses or
losses occurred in previous periods are directly
realized in profit or loss or writing down relevant
costs. Government grants in the same category are
disclosed in the same way, of which related to daily
operations are recognized in operating profit and
otherwise in non-operating income.

The book value of the borrowings with granted
prime interest rate received by the Group are
recognized at the value of net cash received, and
the borrowing costs are calculated on the capital
of borrowings and the granted prime interest rate.
The fiscal interest discount received are directly
writing down the borrowing costs related.
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on the differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
(temporary differences). Deferred income tax asset
is recognized for the deductible losses that can be
carried forward to subsequent years for deduction
of the taxable profit in accordance with the tax
laws. No deferred income tax liability is recognized
for a temporary difference arising from the initial
recognition of goodwill. No deferred income tax
asset or deferred income tax liability is recognized
for the temporary differences resulting from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities due to a
transaction other than a business combination,
which affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (or deductible loss). At the balance sheet
date, deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
income will be available to offset the deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses, and
deductible tax amounts.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FEEeHHERME (&)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(26) Deferred income tax assets and deferred (26) EEFIEHREENELERESHREA
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. FESHBERMNEE G #)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(26) Deferred income tax assets and deferred (26) EEFIEBHREENELERESHREA

income tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, except
where the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference, and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
be reversed in the foreseeable future. When it is
probable that the temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates will be reversed in the foreseeable
future and that the taxable profit will be available
in the future to offset the deductible temporary
differences, the corresponding deferred income tax
assets are recognized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
if all the following conditions are met:

e they related to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority; and

e  that tax payer within the Group has a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and current tax liabilities.

(27) Leases

A finance lease is a lease that substantially transfers
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset. An operating lease is a lease other than a
finance lease.

The Group does not have finance leases. Lease
payments under an operating lease are recognized
in the asset cost or in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the year of the lease.

Income from an operating lease is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the year of the lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(28) Maintenance and quality guarantee funds

Maintenance fund is collected from property
buyers according to related regulations on behalf
of housing administration bureau, by certain
percentage of selling price of property, the
fund will be delivered to housing administration
bureau upon registration of property ownership.
Maintenance fund is recognized in other payables
when received and is for the repair and update
for the common parts and equipment and public
facilities of the real estate specially.

Quality guarantee fund is reserved by certain
percentage of the project payment and when
the properties are completed it will be repaid to
constructor, in condition that there’s no quality
issue in agreed warranty period.

(29) Held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a component of the group
satisfying the following conditions is classified
as held for sale: (1) the non-current asset or the
component in current conditions can be sold
immediately according to usual trading terms;
(2) the Group has made a legally binding sales
agreement and has been approved for disposal of
the non-current asset or the component, and the
transfer will be completed within one year.

Non-current assets (except for financial assets,
investment property at fair value and deferred
income tax assets), which meet the recognition
criteria for held for sale are measured at the lower
of the fair value less costs to sell and the carrying
amount. Any excess of the original carrying
amount over the fair value less costs to sell is
recognized as an asset impairment loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(29) Held for sale and discontinued operations
(Continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale, the
assets and liabilities in the disposal groups are
classified as current assets and current liabilities
and should be listed on the balance sheet
separately.

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group that either has been disposed of or is
classified as held for sale, and can be distinguished
from other components within the Group: (i) the
component represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations; (ii)
is part of a single coordinated plan to disposal of
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations; (iii) is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively for the purpose of resale.

Profit or loss from discontinued operation listed
in income statement includes profit or loss from
operating and the disposal.

(30) Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments based
on the internal organization, management
requirements and internal reporting system
and the reportable segments is determined and
segment information is disclosed based on the
operating segments.

An operating segment is a component of the
Group that satisfies all of the following conditions:
(i) the component is able to earn revenues and
incur expenses from its operation activities; (ii)
whose operating results are regularly reviewed
by the Group’s management to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment
and to assess its performance, and (iii) for which
the information on financial position, operating
results and cash flows is available to the Group.
If two or more operating segments have the
similar economic characteristics and satisfy certain
conditions, they could be aggregated into one
single operating segment.
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Iﬂl>

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. E2EETHBEEM
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

ml)

& st oe

i

(31) Purchase shares in subsidiaries from non- (31) BEF LA EBRRER AR

controlling interests and partial disposal
of interest in a subsidiary without loss of
control

For the transaction with non-controlling interest
to partially or wholly acquire interests in a
subsidiary after obtaining the control rights over
the subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are measured consistently following
their value at the acquisition or merger date in the
consolidated financial statements. The difference
between additions in long-term investment due to
the interest purchase and additions of shared net
assets of the subsidiary calculated by the additional
share proportion should be recorded in capital
reserve (share premium). In case share premium
is not sufficient to offset the difference, retained
earnings should be adjusted.

For the transaction to dispose long-term equity
investment in a subsidiary with non-controlling
interest without losing control rights over the
subsidiary, the difference between the proceeds
from disposal of interests and the decrease of
the shared net assets of the subsidiary is adjusted
to capital reserve (share premium). In case share
premium is not sufficient to offset the difference,
retained earnings will be adjusted.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(32) Critical accounting estimates and
judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical
accounting estimates and key judgments applied
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are as follows:

(i)

Property development cost

Critical estimates and judgments on
budget cost and development progress
are required in determining property
development cost. The budget cost and
development progress of the project
is reviewed by the Group on a regular
basis and adjusted as appropriate.
Should the actual cost differs from the
budget cost, such difference will impact
the relevant property development cost
or main operation cost.
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SREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(32) Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes for
the business of property development.
There are many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Significant judgment is
required in determining the provision for
land appreciation tax (“LAT"). Where
the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will
impact the tax provisions in the year in
which such determination is made.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually whether
assets have suffered any impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(19), If there is objective
evidence that the carrying amount of
assets is in excess of its recoverable
amount, a provision for impairment
and an impairment loss are recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEGEEE sT{dET (&)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(32) Critical accounting estimates and (32) EEREFAETMHE (&)
judgments (Continued)
(a) Critical accounting estimates and key (a) EEEHMAAREBEREBR
assumptions (Continued) (&)

(iv) Provisions for doubtful debts of (iv) WG EERER
receivables
The Group tests annually whether REBEMZE (DR E
receivables suffer any impairment ARER - AEBEFFA
in accordance with the accounting AEBKIER T LR R
policy stated in note 2(11). If there is B -BBERARALEER
objective evidence that the Group will H%ﬂﬂ/?iﬁzﬂg%lﬁ% 8 IR
not be able to collect the full amount B U B FRIEE - 5t
under the original terms, a provision REREEIL T ARE
for impairment of that receivable is Bk e
recognized.

(v) Deferred income tax assets (v) EBELZFEHEE
Judgment for whether deductible AEEBTEBRRELERS
temporary differences and deductible MEER FTEHAHE
losses can be reversed in the future FOE R A E AN AT K 0
period is required from the Group in EIREARK B &) AT 8
recognizing deferred income tax assets. O 1T HE - AEE
For deductible temporary differences HREEMEEAEFE
and deductible losses, the Group E’\J—HEE?DJEETE%DEHEE?D
recognizes deferred income tax assets to BrlE =8 DAR AR
the extent that it is probable that taxable % AR AT &
profit will be available in the future to BRI FEADLPTISRR
offset the deductible losses. R - WREENELT

FRISTHBE -
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F EREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(32) Critical accounting estimates and

judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key

assumptions (Continued)
(vi) Fair value of investment properties

The Group adopts fair value model

for subsequent measurement of
investment properties. Where fair
value of investment properties under
construction is not reliably measurable
but is expected to be reliably obtained
after the construction is completed,
the property is measured at cost until
the earlier of the date construction is
completed or the date at which fair
value becomes reliably measured.
Critical estimates and judgments are
required in determining the timing to
adopt fair value model for subsequent
measurement of investment properties,
the Group make such estimates and
judgments based on the area, market
condition, and development progress
of the investment property project and
obtains independent valuations for its
investment properties at least annually
from an independent professional
valuer as a third party. The fair value
is determined in accordance with the
methods below:

e Current prices (open market
quotations) in an active market
for the same or similar investment
properties;
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BE_Z—TFRNA=TRIEANEABRE FRERIFERIN -

SREMSARETIT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(32) Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions (Continued)

(vi) Fair value of investment properties

(Continued)

° When such information above
is not available, then use recent
trading prices in an active
market of the same or similar
investment property, and take the
factors of situations, dates and
locations of transactions, etc. into
consideration;

e  Based on the estimated rental
income generated in the future
and the present value of the
related cash flows.

(vii) Provision for the impairment of

inventories

The Group measures the inventories
at the lower of cost and net realizable
value at the balance sheet date. The
calculation of net realizable value needs
assumptions and estimates. If the
management changes the estimated
selling price and the estimated costs
and expenses to completion, the
estimated net realizable value would
be affected; such difference will impact
the provisions for the impairment
of inventories which have been
recognized.

T ERHBERNGHEE )

(32) EES AT MAE (&)

() EESHMAAREBERERR
(%)

(vi) REME®ELLEE
(%&)

o  EAENBREHAER
UFEHERITH S
B 2RIGE
M5 _ERAEEL
B EMN RIS
B XEBRS
FrERBERE

o ERMEFRRER
B & W A A R
RenEMNRERT

E"

(vii) FESEEE

AREBREEARFBEXRA
¥ 77 & 1R RR K AN B A] 4
WFENETE - o
RFEEMNTEFTENA

BREMEET - IMRER
EBHMmAEERERTT
BEERENRARE
BAEETEFE B
VETFEMNAREFE
BT ZEEBHE
RNTEREERGEL
S

101



102
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(32) Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(b) Critical judgments on application of

accounting policy - revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy stated
in note 2(24), the assessment of when an
entity has transferred the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to buyers requires the
judgment according to the circumstances of
the transaction. In most cases, the transfer
point of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the date when the buyer check
and accept the property or when the buyer
is regarded as checking and accepting the

property.

As disclosed in note 10, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties. These
guarantees will expire when relevant property
ownership certificates are mortgaged to
banks by the purchasers. The Group believes
that significant risks and rewards associated
to the ownership of the properties have been
transferred to the purchasers when the buyer
check and accept the property or when the
buyer is regarded as checking and accepting
the property.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)
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BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

3.

TAXATION =. MIA
The types and rates of taxes applicable to the Group are AEEERNEENRERAER KX RN
set out below: T
Type Taxable base Tax rate
wHE T BRI B2
Enterprise income tax Taxable income of subsidiaries located in the 25%
PRC
REMRET HR B A F A R AT P15 58
Income from taxable dividends of non-resident 5% - 10%
enterprises and investments disposal in
mainland China
FEERBRNEHRF YA RS E A EE
HEBWA
Taxable income of subsidiaries located in Hong 16.5%

Value added tax
("VAT") (a)

¥ {EFi(a)

LAT

THIRER

City maintenance and
construction tax

P R AR R

Education surcharge

B BN

Property tax
FEM

Kong
BB TR AEARD A

Taxable value added amount (calculated at
taxable sales multiplied by applicable tax
rate, deducting the input
VAT deductible in current period)

JIE AN 750 485 (B 58 (I AN T BB HR PR AN B SH B BR SR A
BRATEARE A T ENE IR R0 EREE

FTHE

Taxable value added amount through sales of
properties

R E TS AN IR E R

Amount of VAT and business tax paid

FEAN & TR MR BRI AR

Amount of VAT and business tax paid

FEAN & TR MR ER A

Taxable residual value of properties
FE®E TR E

Rental income of properties
FEEMHSHA

3%, 5%, 6%

1%, 17%

30% - 60%

5%, 7%

In accordance with the
policy of the company’s
registration place

2N BT R AR

1.2%

12%
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BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

3. TAXATION (Continued) =. WIEE)
(@) In accordance with the Circular on the full (a) WBEMBH  BERWEELERDBEM

implementation of Levying Value Added Tax in
place of Business Tax (Caishui No. 36, 2016), since
1 May 2016 levying value added tax in place of
business tax is implemented in all industries in the
PRC. Construction industry, real estate industry,
financial industry and service industry etc. apply
to value added tax in place of business tax.
According to the regulation, sales revenue from
the real estate development and investment, and
commercial property operation of the Group apply
to the value added tax since 1 May 2016, of which,
real estate development project with construction
permit stating the commencement date is before
30 April 2016 applies the rate of levy collection of
5%, otherwise applies the general rate of 11%.
The commercial property operation business
applies the rate of 5% and 17%. These businesses
applied to business tax with the rate of 5% before
1 May 2016.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . SHE B ERRIE R M EE

STATEMENTS
(1) Cash at bank and on hand (1) E¥ES
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E 5 —E—RF
~NA=1+H +t=-—A=+—8
(restated)
(g&&E )
Cash on hand EiFE 4 720 1,023
Bank deposits SRITIER 16,835,396 17,908,747
Other cash balances EmE®ES 98,381 16,303
Total A&t 16,934,497 17,926,073
Including: deposits overseas Heh : FAERINFRIE
4% 876,506 2,251,770

As at 30 June 2017, bank deposits includes
supervised advance from customers, security
deposits for certain mortgage loans to customers,
certain loan and bond interests amounted
to RMB2,630,629,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,351,017,000). The Group has reclassified
the above amount to restricted bank deposits.

Including: as at 30 June 2017, the carrying
amount of supervised advance from customers
was RMB1,683,155,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB592,931,000). According to the requirements
of some local authorities (such as in Beijing, Tianjin
etc.) in the PRC, real estate developers need to
open supervised bank account when applying for
pre-sale permit for new commercial property. All
the advances received from property customers
should be transferred to such account. Which are
supervised by regulator and all cash payment from
such account should coincide with the construction
progress in order to ensure the cash being used for
property construction on a priority basis.

RZEBE—tFA=+H " F 177
KRB FE A R % 2,630,629,000 7T
ZE-RF+ZA=1+—8: AR
#1,351,017,00070) WIEEEE &
© - EFRBEFRES REIK
HERRBEE2SE  AEBEEBEES
HEXRES o

Efh RZFTE—+tF~A=+
H A5ERALEEEEESE
& AR ¥ 1,683,155,000L ( — &
—XF+ZA=+—8: AR#
592,931,000t ) * R IE B » H (&
(b~ KESH) MRS E g
BHNTEEESEEIENHAT
NHEREREREEETERA
AUYBEEESEER,  BmBEE
EEe T AEREREESE
EEREF  MEMmARIKEIREE
ERBERAXEELES  BEESD
BREARIEER -

BRAR —ZE—tFHHRSE

105




106

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &HrE B ERRIA R WEEg)

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(1) Cash at bank and on hand (Continued) (1)

As at 30 June 2017, the secured deposits for
borrowings amounted to RMB915,062,000 (31
December 2016: RMB728,993,000).

As at 30 June 2017, other cash balances
amounted to RMB98,381,000 are deposits
for bank acceptance bill (31 December 2016:
RMB16,303,000). The Group has classified such
amount to restricted bank deposits.

(2) Financial instruments at fair value (2)
through profit or loss

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

ERES(#E)

=8

R_ZE—+FEXA=Z+H K&EH
BRmE A ARM15,062,000( =
T—RE+-_A=+—0: AR
728,993,0007T) A& KB E R

W—ZE—+FA=Z+H HEE
&+ AR¥98,381,000t (=
—R"NE+-_A=+—8: AR¥
16,303,0007T) AIR1THH EE(RE
SHEHR AEBEEBESBEEZR

URAEBEEFAEEEZBTAE

HEaNERTIA

(a) ULAREBEEFAEEHEZBHIA
EMEENSREE

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—EB—+fF —E—RF
ANA=+H +=—A=+—H

Beijing Urban Construction Design 4t sk i 8 51 3¢ E £ E
& Development Group Co., Ltd. BB BER AT (A TIE
("Beijing Urban Construction”) T4t FIER 1)

— Listed company on HKEXx (i) —&B EmAEN) 205,589 217,141
Others HAt 50,374 -
Total A&t 255,963 217,141

(i) As at the balance sheet date, the trading equity
instrument are securities listed on Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the fair values
are determined by the closing price on the last
trading day of that period.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, AHtBrEERRIB B M ®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial instruments at fair value (2) URAEEFEBESBHTAE
through profit or loss (Continued) HEsNEMIAE)
(b) Financial liabilities at fair value through (b) LUARBEFEEHEZFHFA
profit or loss EREENEMAE
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
AA=+HA +=ZA=+—8
Derivatives (i) 74 T () 67,189 -
(i) In 2017, the Group entered into capped cross (i) R-ZT—+F rEEETH
currency swap and capped forward contracts for ZERSINEEBERENERX
certain foreign currency liabilities such as medium- EWEHRENSRAEH  Z
term notes, etc, which belong to derivatives. The AHBITETERE  AEEBH
Group recognized such derivatives as financial ERUAREBEFEEEZT
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. AAERHERNERAERE -
(3) Dividends receivable (3) EWER
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF

~A=tE +=A=t-8

Tianjin Xinming Real Estate Co., Ltd. RZHEIFASEEREL

(“Tianjin Xinming”) A (ATHE [R2FE ) 12,000 12,000
Beijing Urban Construction b EERE 5,600 _
Total = 17,600 12,000
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BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Trade receivables

M. &K mREAIERNE@E)

(4) EWERRX

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E-tF kAN

AA=+H +=—A=+—8

Trade receivables FE U BE =Xk 1,836,491 1,002,223
Less: provision for doubtful debts B IR (7,000) (7,000)
Net THER 1,829,491 995,223

Most sales of the Group are in the form of cash
and advanced payment. Other sales are collected
subject to the agreed terms on sales contract.

REBERMBHHEAWEIRS - 18
Woke g sUETT - HRAIRIEBEA R
#OTE B FOE 2 YR o

(@) The aging of trade receivables by invoice date

is analyzed as follows:

(a) FEUWERFIZE AR B HIMERES
DT -

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

NA=+H +=-—A=+—H

Within 1 year N 1,683,223 370,636
1 to 2 years — 3|4 8,127 47,907
2 to 3 years —R=F 46,319 470,967
Over 3 years —FUE 98,822 112,713
Total &t 1,836,491 1,002,223
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BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Trade receivables (Continued)

(@

The aging of trade receivables is analyzed as
follow (Continued)

As at 30 June 2017, trade receivables
of RMB1,224,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,122,000) is overdue but not impaired.
Based on the financial circumstance and the
credit records, the Group thought the trade
receivables are collectable. Analysis of trade
receivables are as follows:

.

BB HRRIAR M e #)

(4) BWERFR(E)

(a)

R BR TR IR AR B BV BR
DT (42)

R—ZT—tFEXA=Z+H"
FEU AR A A R 11,224,000
T(ZE—R"E+=_A=+—
B : AR¥1,122,0007T) 2 #
HERRE - ERHEF B
R B E SRR AT
REBREEIDFHIEAAMK
[ - 5305 B AR SR & HA AR
RO T:

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF

ANA=+H +=—A=+—H

Over 3 years =FMNE

1,224 1,122

As at 30 June 2017, trade receivables
of RMB7,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB7,000,000) is overdue and impaired
with aging over 3 years, which is fully
impaired with amount of RMB7,000,000 (31
December 2016: RMB7,000,000).

R-ZE—+FA=Z+H @&
HB B A REB KM ERR
154 ARE7,000,0000 (==
—R"EFE+ZA=1+—H: AR
¥ 7,000,0007T ) © BREC R B
= HERERBRSEAA
R # 7,000,000 ( Z & — X
F+ZA=+—8: ARk
7,000,0007T) °

BRAR —T—tETHKE
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BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE M #)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Trade receivables (Continued) (4) FEWERMRE)

(b) The trade receivables classified by their (b) MEWERFIRER ST -
categories are analyzed as follows:

30 June 31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
~A=tH +=ZA=+—8
Primary land development (i) T B AR () 1,667,951 636,858
Property sales EHEMEEEP 145,862 339,223
Investment properties KEMEREETP 13,324 10,909
Others EAph 9,354 15,233
Total &5t 1,836,491 1,002,223
(i) The amount is due from Land Reserve Centers 0] 2R IE A FE UK R T L M EE IR
of Tianjin arising from primary land development HORIE  RAEEERED
in Wuging District cooperated by the Group and T EE RO HFAELRR
Land Reserve Centers of Tianjin. BR—RFEEEEL -
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
Z8-tEAAZTH B RETZA=T-H
Provision for Provision for
Book value doubtful debts Book value doubtful debts
HEeAE SRER RESRE BRER
% of % of
total % of the total % of the
Amount  balance  Amount provision ~ Amount  balance  Amount provision
{5 HE {h8% it
] ] ] ]
28 (%) 2B % 28 (%) £F (%)
Significant individual BECHEAUESR
amountand subjectto  EHEEEER
separate provision for
doubtful debts 7,000 1 (7,000) 100 7,000 1 (7,000 100
Receivables that are subject ESEHIERRARES -
toseparate provison  EBHRERER
for doubtful debts
with no similar credit
characteristic 1,829,491 99 - - 995,223 9 - -
Total 8t 1,836,491 100 (7,000) 01,002,223 100 (7,000 1
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. &HBERERIEEME@®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5) Other receivables (5) HAuEWRK
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—B—tF —T—RF
~A=+HA +=ZA=+—8H
(restated)
(ge&Ea)
Receivables due from joint ventures fEUS& & A BI1E KK
(note 9(6)) EERN)) 1,460,418 1,031,422
Receivables due from associates JFEE L gt R B 1 PR
(note 9(6)) (P EE1(6)) 1,207 1,313
Other related parties receivables JiE Ui L At R B 5 OB
(note 9(6)) (P EESL(6)) 54,141 240,369
Receivables due from FEU BN BIRIE
parent company (note 9(6)) CERG)) 292 1
Land deposits and TR RES R EHA
other guarantee deposits RES 356,331 846,362
Prepaid for cooperation projects TaRIEE A ER 1,065,000 -
Receivables from primary JRE U2 £+ — AR B 2% 3R (i)
land development (i) 129,547 125,852
Consideration receivables from BRETAGRE R ERE
disposal of subsidiaries’ equity and & :%3(ii)
claims for debts (ii) 408,180 393,829
Consideration receivable from G B NG|
disposal of associates’ equity A% 4 FE 17,511 17,511
Collect and remit payment on behalf & Ut g zi8E 138,327 187,959
Others HAith 408,820 546,350
Total &t 4,039,774 3,390,968
Less: provisions for doubtful debts & : SR (121,791) (41,791)
Other receivables — net R 3,917,983 3,349,177
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=THEIENEAMSE (BRRERIFERN -

4.

SREMSARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5) Other receivables (Continued)

U]

(ii)

The receivables from primary land development are
receivables mainly from Land Reserve Centers of Beijing.

As at 30 June 2017, the receivables are mainly due
from HuaQian Company for the disposal of overseas
equity interests of Beijing Tiancheng Yongtai Real Estate
Co., Ltd., an original subsidiary of the Group, which
amounted to RMB79,219,000, and the consideration
due from the disposal of original subsidiary Outlets
Property Investment Guang Dong Ltd. (hereinafter
“Qutlets Guangdong”). For the six months ended 30
June 2017, according to the difference between the
expected amount of recovery amounts and the carrying
amount, the Group recognized provision for doubtful
debts of RMB80,000,000 for the receivables due from
Outlets Guangdong.

The aging analysis of other receivables are as
follows:

Pg.

&t

(5)

IS ERRIA B M et (4%)

Hit R (&)

@M

(i)

fEd i —BAEEREERANEEE
Wb R L IR AR D RIE o

RZZ—tFA=+H  ZREEX
BRANAFERGERFARILRK
WoKFEEBRAR AT [ REK
FBIREELENBBERERD
A AR79,219,0007T + A K f& U A
AFEERERFAFRSRNEXE
REBAR (AT [EAEER]) S
BN ERFIR B2 T —LFRX
A=ZTRLEREARRE  AEERE
BRFARRAERSHREAREEENE
B RTIRFE MR A R R R R
AR#80,000,0007T °

H i U RE DTN T -

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

AA=+tH +ZA=+—H

(restated)

(Fg &)

Within 1 year —F AR 3,416,251 2,749,452
1 to 2 years —B|—4F 115,596 137,753
2 to 3 years TR =4 29,578 65,806
Over 3 years ZFUE 478,349 437,957
Total &3t 4,039,774 3,390,968

As at 30 June 2017, other receivables
amounted to RMB79,219,000 (31 December
2016: RMB75,256,000) are overdue, but
based on the financial position and analyst
of credit record, the Group believes that the
receivables are recoverable and not impaired,
so are not subject to separate assessment for
provision for impairment.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, &I BERRE B #E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5) Other receivables (Continued) (5) HMEWRKE)
(b)  Analysis of other receivables categories are as (b) EHARUFILERISTAT -
follows:
30 June 2017 31 December 2016 (restated)
“E-tERA=TH “5-r"EtZA=T-R(BER)
Provision for Provision for
Book value doubtful debts Book value doubtful debts
i) BRER RERE SRER
% of %
total % of the of total % of the
Amount balance  Amount provision  Amount  balance  Amount  provision
g it (8% g
] LAl ] ]

e (%) 2B (%) 8 (%) &® (%)

Receivables with amount that  EESHEAWEE
areindividually significant ~ SHERBER

and subject to separate

assessment for provision for

doubtful debts 307,662 8  (80,000) 26 - - - -
Receivables that are subjectto A4 HRERER

provision for bad debts on

the grouping basis

- Group of related parties BB A 1,516,058 38 - - 1,273,105 38 - -
Receivables that are subject to EEHEREREY -

separate provison withno B HRRRER

similar credit characteristic 2,174,263 53 - - 2,076,072 61 - -
Receivables with amount ~ EBELBHTERR

that are not individually ~ EXE:FRERER

significant but subject to

separate assessment for

provision for doubtful debts 41,719 1 (41,79) 100 41,791 1 (41,79 100
Total At 4,039,774 100 (121,791) 33,390,968 100 (41,791) 1
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE M #)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6) Advances to suppliers (6) FE(ITIE

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E-tF kAN
AA=+HA +=ZA=+—8H
Advances to suppliers for land FEf 3R 1,943,162 82,233
Advances to suppliers for construction &1+ Ti25 281,213 203,438
Prepaid sales commissions BREERS 100,763 86,376
Total &5t 2,325,138 372,047

(@) The aging analysis of the advances to (@) FERFIBZERERSTOT

suppliers is as follows:

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
—E-tFXA=TH —E-A"F+-A=1+-H
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
EEE hiEs
xd /] s
A (%) £l (%)
Within 1 year —EHA 2,311,597 99 337,448 91
QOver 1 year —FF 13,541 1 34,599 9
Total At 2,325,138 100 372,047 100
The advances to suppliers with aging over 1 i BR S R R — SF VTR FIR
year are mainly prepaid sales commissions FEREMNEEMS  BANIE
of property sales. As such properties are not BEEEREINEEGRG  Z
available for usage, the advances are not FIH M ARG o

recognized as expenses yet.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, AHtBrEERRIB B M ®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(7) Inventories (7) &8
(@) Inventories are classified as follows: (@) HTEDEWT :
30 June 2017 31 December 2016 (restated)
ZE-tERAZTA ZE-ETZA=T-R(EER)
Book  Provision Book Book Provision Book
balance  forinventory value balance ~ for inventory Value
RERE FEkE
RERE EE FEEE  KEHE GERRE
Properties under development BEHA 49,684,117 (15,685) 49,068,432 50428650 (15,685 50,412,965
Properties held for sale FEER 13,079,441 (51.967) 13,027,474 13,743,967 (57913) 13,686,054
Land under development REm 325,375 - 325,375 446,846 - 446,846
Work in progress () BRTREE() 378,482 - 388 299691 - 299,691
Other Eft 46,632 - 46,632 31,329 - 31,329
Total Aif 63,514,047 (67,652) 63446395 64,950,483 (73598) 64,876,885
(i) Construction contract (i) BESEIR
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRE
RA=t+H +t=A=+—H
Costs incurred plus gross BB ARG R

profit recognized E7 378,482 299,691
Less: payment settled B BPREERER - -
378,482 299,691

Working in progress before BRI AR&ZERE
provision for impairment 378,482 299,691

Less: Provision for impairment J& : ER I A&E
of work in progress PRE A - -
Work in progress — net B I ARGERFE 378,482 299,691
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

M. aHFHHRREBERNEE)

(7) Inventories (Continued) (7) FE(#E)
(b) The movement of inventories’ book balance by TEREGEABEGHSN
in current period is as follows: W
31 December 30 June
2016 Additions Reductions 2017
—TF —E-tE
+=A=1+—-8 REEm RERD AA=tH
(restated)
(&)

Cost AR
Properties under development R 50,428,650 3,198,258 (3,942,791) 49,684,117
Properties held for sale BRER 13,743,967 3,942,791 (4,607,317) 13,079,441
Land under development BR3ed 14 446,846 74,521 (195,992) 325,375
Work in process BRIABE 299,691 78,791 - 378,482
Others Hit 31,329 15,900 (597) 46,632
Total At 64,950,483 7,310,261 (8,746,697) 63,514,047

(¢ Analysis of provisions of provision are (0 TGTEMREEHESTWOT :
classified as follows:
Additions Reductions
A KD
31 December 30 June
2016 Provision Reverse Write-off 2017
R ZE-tF
+-R=1-H i &n B RAZTH
(restated)
(@&t

Properties under development RERA 15,685 - - - 15,685
Properties held for sale R%ER 57,913 - - (5,.946) 51,967
Total GHI 73508 - - (5,946) 67,652

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the
properties held for sale with the carrying
amount of RMB4,446,796,000 (six months
ended 30 June 2016: RMB4,133,726,000)
has been recognized as cost of sales.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

7

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2017, the financed costs
capitalized in the properties under development
amounted to RMB6,465,848,000 (31 December
2016: RMB5,706,115,000). For the six months
ended 30 June 2017, the capitalization rate is
5.26% (six months ended 30 June 2016: 6.21%).

As at 30 June 2017, certain land use rights in
the properties under development amounted
to RMB2,849,893,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB3,394,742,000) have been mortgaged
as security for long-term borrowings of
RMB1,841,890,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,604,190,000) (note 4(28)(b)).

As at 30 June 2017, certain land use rights
and buildings in properties under development
of the Group with a carrying amount of
RMB6,414,873,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB6,808,126,000) have been mortgaged
as security for long-term borrowings of
RMB2,632,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB2,032,000,000) (note 4 (28)(b)).

As at 30 June 2017, certain land use rights in
properties under development of the Group with
a carrying amount of RMB3,540,127,000 (31
December 2016: RMB4,202,310,000) have been
mortgaged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB1,300,144,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,341,640,000), which were guaranteed by
the Company as well (note 4(28)(d)).

M. AP ERAIAR M (#)

(7) #E#E)

R-ZE—+tFNA=Z+HHRAE
KAFBSERERER NS
% AN R 6,465,848,000L (= &
—XF+-—A=Z+—8: AR#
5,706,115,00070) « B E =T —+
FRAZTHIENEAHMB  BEX
LR AB526%(HE-ZT—/RNFENA
= tHIENEAEM  6.21%) °

RZE—+FNAZ+H A&
EREXNATEEAEAEARE
2,849,893,000L( =T —"F+=
A=+—R8: AR%3,394,742,000
TO) B T ARG RT - W
B REIE K ARY1,841,890,000
T(ZE—XRE+=-A=+—H8: A
R#1,604,190,0007T) (M EPU(28)
(b)) °

RZZE—+FXA=Z+H &x&
ERENAFEEREEAEBEARE
6,414,873,0007L( =T —RFE+=
A=+—H8 : AK%H6,808,126,000
TN T REREERZEDE
HHEET RS RPERARE
2,632,000,000C(=ZF—RF+=
A=+—H8 : AR%2,032,000,000
7 ) (B =EPR(28) (b)) °

R-ZZE—+tFA=Z+H £&
ERBEKRATFERAEBAEARYE
3,540,127,0000( = ZE —R<F+ =
A=+—8: AR®4,202,310,000
J0) By £ AR R IR AR ER 1T I A
ARRAFRARRERHER  IEE
HA{E A R #1,300,144,0007T (=
E-RNE+-_A=1+—8: ARK
1,341,640,0007T) (FIFEPU(28)(d)) °
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(7

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2017, certain land use rights and
buildings in properties under development with
a carrying amount of RMB1,183,934,000 (31
December 2016: RMB3,765,248,000) have been
mortgaged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB493,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,460,400,000), which were guaranteed by
the Company as well (note 4(28)(d)).

As at 30 June 2017, certain buildings in properties
under development with a carrying amount of
RMB7,557,000 (31 December 2016: Nil) have been
mortgaged as security for long-term borrowings of
RMB300,000,000 (31 December 2016: Nil), which
were guaranteed by the Company as well (note
4(28)(d)).

As at 30 June 2017, certain land use rights
in properties under development with a
carrying amount of RMB1,058,025,000 (31
December 2016: RMB1,058,025,000) have been
mortgaged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB1,220,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,220,000,000), which were guaranteed by
Capital Group as well (note 4(28)(d)).
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(7)

BE#®)

R-ZE—+FXXAZ+H &&E
EREXNATEEAEAEARE
1,183,934,000C(ZF—RF+=
A=+—H: AR#3,765,248,000
L)WM THERAEREERZEY
EHRGRITAEBARA AT LA
REER BRERHAEBERARE
493,000,000L( = F—XF+=-A
=+—H : AR®1,460,400,000
7 ) (MI=EPT(28)(d)) °

R—ZE—+FXXAZ+H A&
ERERATEREEBARYE
7,557,000 (=& — XN F + =
A=+—8B ) NEEZEY
EIHGRITTAARAET AR
BEER DEERHERARE
300,000,0007c( = ZE—<F+=A
=+—H : &) (MEmEEs)d)) °

WNZE—+HENA=Z+H A&
ERBENATFEEREAEEARE
1,058,025,000 C( —E—RF+=
A=+—8: AR®¥1,058,025,000
TO) R L {E AR A IRITI A E
BlEEEAFARIRHER  BEER
HifE sk AR #1,220,000,0007C (=
E-RNE+-_A=1+—8: AR%
1,220,000,0007T) (FFFEPU(28)(d)) °
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—TFRNA=TRIEANEABRE FRERIFERIN -

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL .

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(8) Assets classified as held for sale

SREMSARETIT)

BB HRRIAR M e #)

(8) BORBEFENEE

30 June 2017
ZE—tERA=TH
Book value  Impairment
before of
classified as  assets held
held for sale forsale  Book value
gn A
BEBFER HERE
WIREEE SEERNEERE REEE
Long-term equity investments (a) REER 4 () 9,921 - 9,921
31 December 2016
“F-RETA=T-R
Book value
before  Impairment
classified as of assets
held for sale  held for sale Book value
e
BEREN  BERE
WEEEE BERNEEE L]
Long-term equity investments (a) REER A () 9,921 - 9,921

(@) The Group entered into an equity transfer agreement
on 10% share of Hainan Boao Lecheng Real Estate
Development Holding Ltd. (hereinafter “Hainan Boao
Lecheng”) with a consideration of RMB20,000,000 (note
4(26)(i)). As such transaction has not been completed,
the Group classified the book value of the investment
amounted to RMB9,921,000 as assets classified as held
for sale. The Transaction was not completed as at 30
June 2017 for the delay of equity transfer procedure,
although the Group has made continuing efforts and
take all necessary actions. The Group sticks to the plan
and intention of the transaction, and is negotiating with
counterparty and strives to complete the transaction in
2017. As at 30 June 2017, the Group will still treat the
long-term equity investment to Hainan Boao Lecheng as
assets held for sale.

NEBERZE NG M EELHNFA L
BB AR (AT [ErmEELEN])
10%RIECEZREE R Z - RIE
{8 & A R % 20,000,000 T (Ff 7% 1
(26)(i)) ° #Z 10% & # R ST Ak T 78 &
¥ BUBEREEEAR9,921,000
TEDABEREEERE - BEX
EECELFES HARKRRATE X
ZATE) LA E) )G R 1 B Ll 2 AR A
HEETK  BRANBREERRER
EHMER  BEREE-T—tF
NAZT BRI TERZERE o AEE]
RAEZREERNAENEERE - B
AIEERZX Y HFEHRER - BAER
Tt FARKBRERS - Bt
M-_Z—tEXA=1+H  A£HED
AN TREEEEN N RRE
BREED ARHERENEE -

Tl SN
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, AHtBrEERkRIB B M (E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(9) Other current assets (9) HtRBEE

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

ANA=+H +=—A=+—H

(restated)

(&)

Prepaid taxes TEgH e 2,734,359 2,744,386

Pending deduct and withholding VAT = #8310 & 28 #I8E 240,517 92,310

Others HAit - 4,603

Total & 2,974,876 2,841,299
(10) Available-for-sale financial assets (10) T EEREE

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

~A=tE +=A=t-8

Available-for-sale equity instruments LA AR BETE
— At fair value (a) — A SRS TAQ) 2,320,462 2,320,462

Available-for-sale equity instruments A st &

— At cost (b) — At HE#ESE T E(D) 70,000 70,000
Less: impairment provision R RE LR - -
Net TEEE 2,390,462 2,390,462
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10) Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

(a)

As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
available-for-sale equity instruments at fair value held by
the Group are the right to yields and remaining property
division in real estate development project of Tiancheng
Yongtai held by the Group.

Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost are
mainly equity of non-listed companies held by the Group,
which have no active market quotation. The range of
variation of fair value’s reasonable estimates are wide
and the various probability adopted to determine the
fair value estimates can not be reasonably determined,
resulting in fair value not reliably measured. The Group
has no intention to dispose such investments yet.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group holds 0.97% equity
interests of the total shares of CDB Siyuan (Beijing)
Investment Fund Ltd. (hereinafter “CDB Siyuan”),
therefore the Group does not have significant influence
on CDB Siyuan. The largest risk exposure equals to the
book value of the shares the Group held on 30 June
2017, i.e., RMB50,000,000.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group holds 10% equity
interests of the total shares of Beijing Capital Financial
Assets Transaction Information Service Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Capital Financial Service”). Therefore the
Group does not have significant influence on Capital
Financial Service. The largest risk exposure equals to the
book value of the shares the Group held on 30 June
2017, i.e., RMB20,000,000.

The Group does not have significant influence on the
investees mentioned above, therefore the investments
are classified as available-for-sale financial instruments.

.

BB HRARIA R M at(

(10) THHESREE(#)

(a)

RZBE—EFRA=Z+ERZZ—R
FrZA=t+—H KEENRARE
BFfFEMAHEENEETALSAS
EZ AR KERERE KR
KRR E D BLHE -

IR AFENAHEESHEETR
RAKBERANFFLTRERE - &
LB BERRBTSRE HARE
ERBHAHNEHEHEAR A%
BRANEEDABEMEOBED
AT  FILERAEBETHE
ASE AKEHBREESLRE
HyatEl o

RZE—tEFXNA=+H  AEEF
EEARR(ULR)REESAR AT
(AT [ERER])097% G » &
SRHBFRBRTHFEEAFXE K
SEEZESHERARBO ALAE
ERENECEEABERANKEE
A R#50,000,0007T °

RZZE—LFRNA=+H AEHF
EUAREBRERMEERZEERY
BHBERRABD(ATEIEASR]
0% - HAlIERAFEEEARE
ERRARKERS FARAFALEER
YRMAR AREHEAERTFE
BERFEXAREZY  AKEEEE
EROKKREARK O RANEEMEN
HHEEREXRANKEEEARY
20,000,0007T °

AEEH AR EATNTREEEX
FE O AUBEFEATHEEEST
AE -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE K@)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (11) REIRERE
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tE ZE—RF
AA=tH +=ZA=+—8H
Joint ventures (a) S E@Q) 1,843,058 1,720,019
Associates (b) Bt 2 (b) 1,396,373 1,358,410
Total A5t 3,239,431 3,078,429
Less: provision for impairment of & RERERE
long-term equity investments B LR - -
Net R 3,239,431 3,078,429
There is no significant restriction on sale of the REBMAGFEERREREEER
long-term equity investments of the Group and el EEEp NS

collection of the investment income.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /g,
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

B Ot SRR 1A B R ()

(1) REBRERE(E)

(@) Joint ventures (a) &&hHE
Changes in this perod
KREREE
Share of Cash
Share of other diidend ~ Provision Provision
31 December  ncreasein  Decreasein et profit/ comprefenie Otherequity — or profit for 30 June for
2016 ivestment investment~ (osses)  income movement  declred  impaiment  Others 017 impaiment
i St REREAE  EbhR TERRE  HRAE “E-tE
TRETE ENMRE WORE MFEE  WGEE EbERRD  RiFHE B B AB=TE  EEE
Shenyang len Real Estate Co, td.  BEEREZERA
(“Shenyang ftian’) (B %55 J) 106,154 - - b - - - (19 1055%
Befjng Wenzhu Real Estate Co, Lid. StRESEHERERR
(*Befjng Wanzhu') ) BEARINTR
[REE]) 5905 - -8 - - - -
Capitlfaming New Town BEEHiERE
Ivestment and Development Ltd. ~ ZRARAT () TR
(“Capita Jaming’) (B8l
(Note 612)a) (EER(2)aN) 166,170 - - (43) - - - - 1659
Tinjn Hallyoury Intemational School K2 B A ER 0
(“InternationalSchoal”) () (BT [EmER ) - - - - - -
Tinjin Tonghua Qlangyu nestment - X 2EEFFREER
and Management o, Ltd. BRAF(TE
(*Tonghua Qiangyu’) i) [EEE )i - - - - - - - ) .
Thuha Henggin Shoujuchuengin IR EEE B BEIERE
Fquity Fund Management Company (2542847
("Zhuhai Henggin Fund Management (1) V78 (%5582
Company') ) ELERNA ) 3776 - - (6% - - - - k%80 -
Thuhai Henggi Ruyuan Wehwe ~ FKSBER #EERE
Fouity vestment Fund (L) FADL(ERER)
(*Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu (TR ReRE
Wehua Fund") Note620l0) ~ FiEEES))
(I 2 e - - (s - - N
Shangha Shoujia Real Etate Co, td, HEEEE2ERAT
(*Shanghai Shouji’) (WFRILEEE)
(Note 6(2Jalf) (FEEAQ) ) 3%,700 - - 1351 - - - - 5 -
Shanghai Henggu Rea LERERNERE
Estate Development o, Lt ARARATE
(“Shanghai Hengau’) ) [ L5EE Y 117,08 - RO (P - - - - 159U -
Shanghal Songming Real Estate LS SERETRAR
Development Co, L. DANTR
(“ShanghaiSongming’) ) [ S %46 - - 286 - - - - am )

-5

Eiﬂﬁﬁﬁl‘ﬁ 7—7 tiﬂiﬂﬁﬁiﬁ‘t
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE K@)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (Continued) (1) RIPRERE(#E)
(a) Joint ventures (Continued) (a) AERHE(E)
Changes in this perod
REEREY
Share of (ash
Share of other dvidend  Provision Provision
31 December  Iceasein Decreasen  netprofit) compehensie Otherequity —— or proft for 30June for
06 investment investment— (osses)  income movement  dedared  impaiment  Others 2017 impairment
i REEEEE  Ebse sEERE  HREE 251

TR BNRE MORE MFEE  hERE AbEERD RAINR e i AAZTE HERR

Beijng Tongchuang Jlong FERESEERERAA
Real Estate Co. Ltd. (I\TR [REi2 %] i
("Tongchuang Jinlong) (i) 20272 - - (179 - - - - - 13478

Capitel Qingv (Kunshan) Real Etate. E&IEHES (1)
Co.Ltd. ("Capita Qingh’) BRARATE
{Note 6(21al) - Eiid)
(at7vi2ta) PN - - By - - - - - W3

Beijng Jnlong Yonghui Real Estate 3t R4ikEE 2
Co, Lid. ("Inlong Yonghui") i)~ ARARI(H TR

[ 9,008 - - (1,06) - - - - - 7,946 -
Befjng Dacheng Guzngyuan IrERtEEE
Real Estate Co, Ltd BRAAITR
("Dacheng Guangyuan’) () [t 6,594 - - B - - - - - 260 -

Shouwan Yuye Shanghal) EEEZ(LB)NERA
Property Semices Co, Lt BRAAITR
(“Shouan Yuye”) ) (5882l - - - - - - - - - ) -

Tnjn Lianjn RealFstate Co, Ltd. ~ RE 2R ERE
(‘Tianjin Lanjin’) Note 6Q)all) ~ BRAZ(ATHE

[RE82])
(02 el 2840 - - - - - - - B -
Befjng Shangbodi FRAERERR
Ivestment Consufant Co, Ltd.—— ERAT(NTE
(*Shanghodi’) ) Tt 173585 - - 603 - - - - - 179678 -
Shanghai e ndustia Co, td.  HEEHEZARA
(*Shanghl Zhyue’) (W78 MEEW )
(Note 6(2)avi) (KA i) 240,069 - - (18 - - - - T -
Tianjin Yongyuan Kk
(Note B(2)(a)vi) (Bs8i6)ii) - 9,003 - - - - - - 9003 - -
Totd . 1008 90 - s - - - -1 18805
The related information of the joint ventures BEPERNRRBAES
are set out in note 6(2). FBIFERQ) °
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. &6 BREzRIEE I
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (Continued) (1) RERERE(E)
(a) Joint ventures (Continued) (a) AERHE(E)

(i) In June 2012, the Group acquired 30% (i) ZE-ZF XA AEEBBR
equity interests of Beijing Wanzhu by capital HEIMSIEREBE30% R E -
injection. However, according to the Articles EBREILREEARER K
of Association of the company, the Group and S B B H AR SR A RIE G L R
other shareholders jointly control Beijing Wanzhu, BENMEREY - Bt EE
therefore it is recognized as a joint venture. REZELERZEH -

(i) The net assets of International School are negative (i) RERRNEFHREIFE
due to continuous losses in the past years. As the ERE  AEEHHTESR
Group does not have the obligation to bear the AEEIMNEBERNRL Bt
additional losses beyond the share, the Group ERREEENFEEEAR
recognizes the carrying value of the long-term SEAENOER  EBRY
equity investment at zero other than negative. RERENEHERLRT
For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the HE-_Z—+FXA=THL
unrecognized investment gains amounted to NERHIME  AKBEEEN
RMBS5,389,000 (for the six months ended 30 & Wz A AR 5,389,000
June 2016: the unrecognized investment losses T(HEZZ-R"EFRA=+
amounted to RMB131,000). As at 30 June 2017, A8 ABME  AERNE
the accumulated investment losses that are not BIEKXARM131,00000) -
recognized amounted to RMB3,145,000 (31 RZZE—t+FA=+H 2
December 2016: RMB8,534,000). AIAREANRERLBARK

3,145,000 ( — B —XNFE+ =
A=+—8: AR¥8,534,000

JT) e

(i)  The Company holds 40% equity interests of (i) ADFFAEBERFI0%RK
Tonghua Qiangyu. According to the Articles - RBEARER  BEERET
of Association of the company, the Company WEBELALBARA
and other shareholders jointly control Tonghua HEMRE BRI BEA ER
Qiangyu, therefore it is recognized as a joint FoRARGEERAECEZ
venture. The net assets of Tonghua Qiangyu B BERFAR-_ZT—F
are negative due to the losses in 2016. As the EERERFEERE K&
Group does not have the obligation to bear the BHETBEAAEEIIMERD
additional losses beyond the share, the Group B8 BUEBRRHEEED
recognizes the carrying value of the long-term FEHBEHRNEEAEZEN D
equity investment at zero other than negative. R ESRIREREN
For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the FEHERLART BHE-Z
unrecognized investment losses amounted to tFRA=Z+TBIEREAS
RMB6,965,000 (for the six months ended 30 M AERNEEBXAA
June 2016: RMB1,186,000). As at 30 June 2017, R #6,965000c (HZE=F
the accumulated unrecognized investment losses —REXNA=ZTHIERERE
amounted to RMB17,491,000 (As at 31 December o AR ®1,186,0007T) -
2016: RMB10,526,000). RZE—+tFRA=+H8 "
BRAARERHNREBERAA

R #17,491,000t (=& — X
F+-—_A=1+—8: AR%
10,526,0007%) °

T ERHERE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(@) Joint ventures (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Company holds 40% equity interests of
Zhuhai Henggin Fund Management Company.
According to the Articles of Association of the
company, the Group and other shareholders
jointly control Zhuhai Henggin Fund Management
Company, therefore it is recognized as a joint
venture.

The Group acquired 28% equity interests of
Shanghai Henggu. However, according to the
Articles of Association of the company, the
decisions of relevant operation activities of
Shanghai Henggu require the unanimous consent
of the Group and other shareholders, therefore it
is recognized as a joint venture.

The Group acquired 28% equity interests of
Shanghai Songming. However, according to
the Articles of Association of the company,
the decisions of relevant operation activities
of Shanghai Songming require the unanimous
consent of the Group and other shareholders,
therefore it is recognized as a joint venture.

The Group acquired 25% equity interests of
Tongchuang Jinlong. However, according to
the Articles of Association of the company,
the decisions of relevant operation activities
of Tongchuang Jinlong require the unanimous
consent of the Group and other shareholders,
therefore it is recognized as a joint venture.

BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(@) Joint ventures (Continued)

(viii)

(i)

The Group acquired 14.55% equity interests of
Jinlong Yonghui. According to the Articles of
Association of the company, the decisions of
relevant operation activities of Jinlong Yonghui
require the unanimous consent of the Group and
other shareholders, therefore it is recognized as a
joint venture.

The Group acquired 12.5% equity interests of
Dacheng Guangyuan. According to the Articles
of Association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Dacheng
Guangyuan require the unanimous consent of
the Group and other shareholders, therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.

The Group acquired 51% equity interests of
Shouwan Yuye. According to the Articles of
Association of the company, the decisions of
relevant operation activities of Shouwan Yuye
require the unanimous consent of the Group and
other shareholders, therefore it is recognized as
a joint venture. The net assets of Shouwan Yuye
are negative due to the losses. As the Group does
not have the obligation to bear the additional
losses beyond the share, the Group recognizes
the carrying value of the long-term equity
investment at zero other than negative. For the six
months ended 30 June 2017, the unrecognized
investment losses amounted to RMB4,731,000
(for the six months ended 30 June 2016: Nil). As
at 30 June 2017, the accumulated unrecognized
investment losses amounted to RMB8,059,000
(31 December 2016: RMB3,328,000).

The Company acquired 51% equity interests
of Shangbodi. According to the Articles of
Association of the company, the decisions of
relevant operation activities of Shangbodi require
the unanimous consent of the Company and other
shareholders, therefore it is recognized as a joint

venture.

.

BB HRRIA R M aE(

(11) RERERE(#E)
(a) &EREE)

(vii) ANEBEFFA S EKIE14.55%
BRtE - RIBFAFIER - £8EXK
ERREEES N BLEBANER
HEMBRR —HEEET LR
F o AMBHEARAE D EX
:é;c

(ix) AEBEFHERKEI25%
ARHE - IRIBEARIER - ERK
EMEBZYHNAGCRAEE

HEAMRE - BEEE A

CELEEEAEEDEZ

°

/i

oA

s

x) AEEFEHEEESI%R
- REAFER HBEEX
WIEEEB L EALCBASEE
HEAMRE — BRI Z & R
o RAUBEERAELER
H EHEEXHREBBEENT
BERE AEEYETAR
AEBEIMERHET - AL
HREBENFEEEHAS
EEAENDER  EERER
BERENEAERLAT - &
EZE—+FRNA=ZFTHILER
B A AR - RERHNREEBR
BANR4,731,000T (HE—=
T—RNFENA=THIEXMEA
HiRE s &)  RZZ—tF KA
=+H B ARERANKER
kA ANR#S,059,000t (=%
—RNE+ZB=1+—8: AE
#3,328,0007T) °

(xi)  ARBFRAEHEHS1% B
REQFERE - HiGHAIER

EB) ISR B AR A R B b
R-—BAB®RTERE - Bt
BEERAERERE -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE K@)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (Continued) (1) RIPRERE(#E)
(b) Associates (b) EpEi3E
Change i this period
REEREY
Other (ash
Share of - comprehensie dvidend  Provision Provision
31 December  Increasein  Decreasein  netprofit  income Otherequity — and profi for 30June for
206 investment  investment— (osses)  movement  movement  decared  impaiment  Others 2017 impairment
i S i S Ep SERNBE  RNE T8t

T2RE- BNRE MJRE MERE  hERE EEED RAEAR i b AASTE BEER

Beijing GoldenNet Property Ivestment ¥ 74 B4 E £ 2 &R

Adiser (“Galdentet’) () VE-1E= 1) Y - - @) - - - - - B
Befjng Sunhine ity Commercial ~ J( R B £AERD

Investment Co, Lt DANTR

(Sunshine City Commercial”) [Bh)) 190,541 - -l - - - - - 0108
Shenyang Capital Real Estate Co, Ltd, BB EEIFAELERAR

("Shenyang Xinzi") (TR EB#E]) 267209 - - 881 - - - - (30) 268,060 -
Tnjn Xinging Red Estate Co, Ltd. REEE¥EE£RRAT

("Tianjin Xinging") (TR Rz 205,125 - - ) - - - - - 265119 -
Tianjin Xinming REHE 3,740 - - (1,609 - - - - - 82,09 -

Befjng Financi Stret temationel 3 F4HEELERER
HotelCo, Lt. NAATRI£8E
("Finandial Street Hotel") (i) EE)i - - - - - - - - - - -

Capital Qingh Cutwre Toursm -~~~ EEF BB (B1L)

(Kunshan) Co, Lid. BRARNTE

(*Capital Qinghv Culture”) s dd) 15009 - - (64 - - - - - %5 -
Changsha Happy Footbridge RUEEREREER

nvestment Co, Lt DA

(Changha estment’) i)~~~ T8 )i 0o B3 - - - - - - BB -

Thongguencun tegrated Gt~ 4 BHERERE
Garden (Note 62)al) (HEE el 35U - - (a%0) - - - - - 318564 -

Thuha Henggin Ruyuan Jiang Eouity 35 BEE R 2R
Ivestment Fund (LP) (‘Zhohal -~ & (BRAE)
Henggin Ruyuan Jlng Fund”) ~~ (H\ VR (3455

(Note 62)a) FnEkEs))
(HEE~ el - - - - - - - - - - -
Totdl A% 13840 BIW - 4m - - - - (0 13937
The related information of the associates are EBECERNESABES
set out in note 6(2). BHEERQ) °
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

0

(ii)

The Company holds 14% equity interests in the
GoldenNet, and has significant influence on board
of the directors of GoldenNet, which is responsible
for determining the business decision in relevant
activities, therefore it is classified as an associate.

According to the Articles of Association, the
Group holds 59.5% equity interests in the
Financial Street directly and indirectly, and enjoys
34% profit of the Financial Street. The Group
takes one out of three seats in the board of
directors, which is responsible for the business
decisions in relevant activities, therefore the
company is classified as an associate.

The net assets of the Financial Street are negative
due to continuous losses in the previous years.
As the Group does not have the obligation to
bear the additional losses beyond the share,
the Group recognizes the carrying value of the
long-term equity investment to zero other than
negative. For the six months ended 30 June 2017,
the unrecognized investment losses amounted
to RMB5,695,000 (for the six months ended 30
June 2016: RMB5,987,000). As at 30 June 2017,
the accumulated unrecognized investment losses
amounted to RMB62,647,000 (31 December
2016: RMB56,952,000).

B 5 IA B M et (&)

(1) RRERE(E)

(b) Ep&RZE(E)

)

(if)

ARBFA T BB 4% -
HEWMEFTTEEEAY
8 MEESAEREZAA
HEEB L ERE - SR
AR D ERBERT o

RESHEBENARER
RAREEREEATEEHR
59.5% KR 1E + = H34% KUK
HE EEEERE=DZ—
B MEEEAEEREZA
RIMEREVE B M AS BORSR -l
RNAEDEREEDE -

cHMEEEREEBBERF
BERA AEEYHETAR
APEREIMEBRET - BHULTERE
REZFENFHEEERAEE
AENGER  EBRARE
RENEEERLAS - BE
—E—+FXA=ZF+HIENE
RHAR - ARWIEEBKXE
AR #5,6950007T (B ==
T-RNEAXNB=1+AHIEANEA
HiM : AR¥5,987,0005T) :
RZZE—+tFXA=+tH 2
AAABRHNBREBREARAA
R #62,647,0007C (=& — X
F+-ZA=1+—8: AR%
56,952,0007T) °

AR E

BRAR =%+

12¢)
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEABRE FRERIFERIN -

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(11) Long-term equity invest
(b) Associates (Continued)

SREMSARETIT)

ments (Continued)

(i) In 2016, the Group set up Changsha Investment

together with other sh

areholders and the Group

holds 30% equity interests of the company.
According to the Article of Association of

Changsha Investment,

the Group has significant

influence on the board of the directors, which is
responsible for determining the business decisions

in relevant activities, t

herefore it is classified as

an associate. For the six months ended 30 June

2017, the Group increa

se the capital of Changsha

Investment by amount of RMB33,300,000.

(12) Investment properties

(b)
(iii)

M. aHFHHRREBERNEE)

(11) RERERE(#E)
BE¥(E)

RZT—RNEFE AEEHEH
R EAER EXREE - R
BERARIRDEE  WHEH
30% MM - RIBARER &
EEUHRIBREEEEAFE
FE MEFETAEARTEX
ARSI EIRE - i)
ERRE D EABENR - B
EE—+FRNA=ZFTHILEERN
EAHE  AEBEHRDPEE
& AR #33,300,0007T °

(12) REMEHE

Investment Investment

properties properties

under under

Completed  development  development

investment measured measured
properties  at fair value at cost Total

N A E

BAT STER MR%EF

REWR REPREAM REH
BiE BiE FiE ait
31 December 2016 ZERETZA=T-H 7543451 6,854,000 748808 15,146,259
Additions rHER 7,450 564,708 91,954 1,534,112
Transferred from inventories (i) BEEL() 56,344 - - 56,344

Gains on change in fair value MrEEEDER

(Note 4(42)) (MzEm42)) (28,494) 96,344 - 67,850
Transfers (i) (i) - 110,948 (110,948) -
Less: provision for impairment B REEE - - - -
30 June 2017 “Z—+EXA=1H 7,578,751 7,626,000 1,599,814 16,804,565
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12) Investment properties (Continued)

U]

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, certain
subsidiary of the Group decided to change the purpose
of certain properties held for sale to long-term operating
lease. The initial cost of such investment properties is the
carrying value of the properties held for sale at transfer
date amounting to RMB56,344,000.

As at 30 June 2017, some of the investment properties of
the Group are still under construction, of which the fair
value can not be reliably determined but is expected to
be measured reliably after the completion, therefore the
Group measures such investment properties at cost until
the date construction is completed or the date at which
fair value becomes reliably measurable, when is earlier.

As at 30 June 2017, certain land use rights and
buildings in investment properties with book
value of RMB4,395,303,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,884,803,000) have been pledged for long-term
borrowings of RMB2,193,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB743,000,000) (note 4(28)(b)).

As at 30 June 2017, certain land use rights and
buildings in investment properties with book
value of RMB1,070,670,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,379,870,000) have been pledged for long-term
borrowings of RMB280,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB540,000,000), which were guaranteed by the
Company as well (note 4(28)(d)).

As at 30 June 2017, certain land use rights in investment
properties with book value of RMB609,422,000 (31
December 2016: Nil) have been pledged for long-term
borrowings of RMB400,000,000 (31 December 2016:
Nil), which were guaranteed by the Company as well
(note 4(28)(d)).

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the capitalized
financial costs in the investment properties under
development amounted to RMB177,932,000 (for the six
months ended 30 June 2016: RMB219,558,000). The
capitalization rate is 5.26% (for the six months ended 30
June 2016: 6.21%).

.

Bt

HRFRIAE M

(12) REMFEHEE)

@M

(i)

REEZZT—tFAA=THILNE
AHE AEBEHSFARBBIR
FBBENT > RBREREARE
KERERAR KREUEHENILR
BREXRANAERBTFENREREEB
AR #56,344,0007T °

RZZE—LFXRA=1+H  KEEP
DREMFEWERERERD  BELD
REBEEEASERE  BESZE
EXTROQABEEHFENFET
B BAKEEURAHEZSOE
EREMEE REAABEEN
ASHERRTTIR(MEAT) B
AR EERE -

RZZE—+tFXA=Z1+H A%H
BREMEHEFAEABEARY
4,395,303,000 L (ZFE—RNF+ =
A=+—8: AK¥1,884,803,000
TR THERAEREERENE
WHEET ERHBERARY
2,193,000,000 (= E—XE+ =4
=+—08: AR743,000,0007T) (M
FEP(28)(b)) °

R-ZTE—+tHEXA=Z+H  2&E
BREEEwEFAEEEEARY
1,070,670,0007c (= F —~F+= A
=+—H: AR%1,379,870,0007T )
BT REREEREYEIMLGR
7 WEHARA AT ARREER -
15 & Hi {8 3k A R # 280,000,000 7T
(ZE—RE+ZB=+—80: ARE¥
540,000,0007T ) (F&EPU(28)(d)) °

WZZ—tFXNA=1H  A&£HE
BUHEREWERAEEEEAARE
609,422,000 (ZZ— XN+ = A
=+—B  #\) WL AEIKRGR
7 WEHARAATARREER -
/5 & 5 {§ 5k A R # 400,000,000 7T
(ZZE—RE+ZA=+—8: 8)(H
FEPU(28)(d)) °

HE-Z—+FXA=1+HLA~EAR
Hif - BAMEEt AR B MR HENE
HBEAAR177,932,000 T (&
BT -RNENA-THLEREARAH
R AR#219,558,0007T) AR
BEENMLEENERLEAFN X
5.26% (HE=T—R"FA=1+HL
JNE A ERR  6.21%) ©
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &MU BERKRIEE T E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(13) Fixed assets (13) BEEE
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles  equipment Total
FE - BEY EHTA WARE At
Cost RE
31 December 2016 —E-XF+-A=t-H
(restated) (&) 127,270 62,326 68,362 257,958
Increase REREA 4372 995 6,664 12,031
Purchase BE 4372 995 6,664 12,031
Decrease RERAD - (99) (159) (258)
Disposed and written-off RERME - (99) (159) (258)
30 June 2017 “E—+ESAZTH 131,642 63,222 74,867 269,731
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE
31 December 2016 ZE-"E+ZA=1-H
(restated) (EEi) (21,236) (48,983) (53,109) (123,328)
Increase N i) (2,695) (2,024) (5,349) (10,068)
Provision itie (2,695) (2,024) (5.349) (10,068)
Decrease RERAD - 9 3 102
Disposed and written-off RE R - 99 3 102
30 June 2017 “E—+ESAZTH (23,931) (50,908) (58,455) (133,294)
Provision for impairment AEEE
31 December 2016 (restated) —E-XF+-A=t-H - - - -
Increase AREE I - - - -
Decrease gy - - - _
30 June 2017 “E—+tFxA=1H - - - -
Net book value FREE
30 June 2017 ZE—+E A=TH 107,711 12,314 16,412 136,437
31 December 2016 “E-RF+ZA=t-H
(restated) (&) 106,034 13,343 15,253 134,630

HE-_Z—tFNA=F+HL~MHE
RHEFTAEEERNTEERA
AE#10,068,000T(HE-ZT—~
FRNA=ZTHIEANEASM : AR
#9,893,0007T) °

For the six months ended 30 June 2017,
depreciation expense charged in administrative
expenses amounted to RMB 10,068,000 (for the six
months ended 30 June 2016: RMB9,893,000).
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. &HBERERIEEME@®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14) Long-term receivables (14) REAFEWFR

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E-tF  ZE—RF
ANAB=+H +—A=+—H

Receivables due from joint ventures JEU & & A B KK

(Note 9(6)) (BFEES(6)) - 196,500
Receivables due from associates JRE UK BSE 5 N B 2R 3R
(Note 9(6)) (FzEL(E)) 664,786 664,786
Australian Dollar (“AUD") debt JEUUR TTIEHE
investment receivables (a) &) 3,354,200 2,421,192
Receivables from primary land JE S £t — A%
development (b) 2 5K (b) 3,814,848 3,473,954
Total N 7,833,834 6,756,432
Less: Current portion of long-term 3 : —FE R Z|HAHY
receivables R EARE R (4,707,050)  (3,957,937)
Net HER 3,126,784 2,798,495
(@)  This receivable is the principal and interest of the AUD (@) BFERKNEBEERANGEWEE
debt investment in real estate development project in ERMERERTRENEAS R
Australia, of which the principal amounted equivalent B RZIZE—+FERA=+H X2
to RMB2,691,002,000 with interest rate 20% at 30 e AR £ET492,691,002,0007T -
June 2017, and will mature from July 2017 to December FMER20%  A2BR_FE—+F
2020 respectively. The principal and interests will tAEZZ-_TF+=AHHEHE
be recollected at the maturity date. Among which, FE R EARS o He - KE RF
RMB1,391,069,000 will be recollected before 30 June Bira AR £E491,391,069,0007T
2018, therefore it is reclassified as long-term receivables R -ZZE—\FERA=+RHAKD -
within one year. HR-_Z—tFAA=ZTHEHHEZE

—FRIERERPEE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEABRE FRERIFERIN -

SREMSARETIT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14) Long-term receivables (Continued)

M. aHFHHRREBERNEE)

(14) REIEBWR (&)

(b)  Beijing Liujin Real Estate Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Liujin by IRESEEXEBFERECAF(ATHE
Real Estate”) is mainly engaged in the primary land [ZeBX D EIEREURILERTA
development(rebuilding project of shanty town) in SHEBEN LT —REZE(PE
Xihuangcun, Shijingshan District, Beijing. The primary REGE)ER c ZBEBHEBRFT
development costs invested by Liujin Real Estate and the RGBSR SR ESEXMNR
primary development profits calculated at a certain profit BB — AR5 B PR A | R — 7E B 3
margin will be refunded by the district government after FEN-AMBERE Rt F
being examined by relevant authorities. As at 30 June NA=Z+TH Z2BXBNLH K
2017, the primary development costs and the relevant HERERARAAMBHORARE
profits amounted to approximately RMB3,814,848,000 3,814,848,000 T ( —Z T — N &F + =
(31 December 2016: RMB3,473,954,000), of which, A=+—8: AR¥3,473,954,000
RMB3,315,981,000 will be recollected in 2017, such L) - He - AR%3,315,981,0007T
amount was reclassified as current portion of non- EHRZE—tFRE - WEEE
current assets. DEE-FRNIHNIERDEE -

(15) Goodwill (15) &&

31 December 30 June
2016 Increase Decrease 2017
“ENE ZE-tf
tZA=T-R AEEN  AEHS  AASHE

Goodwill BE

Beijing Capital Grand Limited HElERERAT

("Capital Grand") (AT [EelER]) 172,137 - - 172,137
Less: Impairment provision W HEER - (172,137) - (172137)
Net A 172,137 (172,137) - -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(15) Goodwill (Continued)

M. AP ERAIAR M (#)

(15) BE (&)

Goodwill listed above was generated from the
acquisition of 65.1% equity interests of Capital
Grand (formerly known as “Beijing Capital Juda
Limited” before 7 June 2017) in 2013, as a result
of expected economic effect of integrating and
expanding the domestic and foreign financial
platform of the Group and Capital Grand. The
goodwill is mainly attributed to the business
operations held by the listing platform of Capital
Grand. The recoverable amount of the goodwill is
determined at the higher of the present value of
estimated future cash flows from Capital Grand'’s
each asset group and the market value of Capital
Grand. The recoverable amount of Capital Grand’s
investment properties is based on the estimated
market rent price, rents growth rate, interest rate,
profit rate, and discount rate, detailed information
refers to note14(1); The recoverable amount of
Capital Grand’s inventories is the present value
based on estimated sales price and cost related.
As at 30 June 2017, according to the Group's
recoverable amount of Capital Grand'’s each asset
group, a full impairment provision for the goodwvill
is recognized.

tiEEAE—_ T —FENREEE
TERES1%BEELE - HREE R
FRAEE R E ISR R IRAINETR
HREEF &M TEHRA B M ATEL »
ZEEAGENEEIEREM TSR
FIsBRNSEER - mENTRE
CRHRIEBEAEASEEMRNTER
KEKBEREREMFLIEKRET
REIMMISEEAS T - HAlE
AEBEREUEEMEN R KEE
ERFERmEAe el REXR
FEE - FEREBETERERE
E o BEEFLAMETTH): FE
FAE WS EERTERTHEEREMN
HEREERAMRERTE R
—+tFXA=Z1+8 " BEAEEYH
BEERZEEAN O SHEE
ITRE - FiEEREETIERE
P

AR —E-LFPHEBE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE K@)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(16) Deferred income tax assets and deferred (16) EXEFIEBREENELEREHREA
income tax liabilities &
(a) Deferred income tax assets before (a) RREHENWELEMEBEE
offsetting
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
“Z-t&XA=1H “E-RFE+ZA=t—H
Deductible Deductible
temporary temporary
differences differences
and Deferred and Deferred
deductible income deductible income
losses tax assets losses tax assets
A4 AT
TRMERE  EEMSH ERMEE  BEHMGH
RAEHEE EE RUENESE BE
Provision for impairment B H & &
of assets 40,314 10,078 40,314 10,078
Accrued salaries and other TEI2 T & & HAth
cost and expenses AE 212,996 53,249 276,908 69,227
Accumulated losses ZEHER 3,364,084 841,021 2,511,082 627,771
Internal unrealized profit KN EBRER
elimination 8 359,120 89,780 438,764 109,691
Total &5 3,976,514 994,128 3,267,068 816,767
Including: Hep:
Amount of reversal BER—FR
expected within 1year  (5—%)&E[
(including 1 year) ik 62,054 117,781
Amount of reversal BRI —FEq
expected beyond 1year #4458 932,074 698,986
Total Gl 994,128 816,767

136 BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(16) Deferred income tax assets and deferred

m. aHBE®REAIERKE@E)

(16) EEFIEHREENELMREBHE

income tax liabilities (Continued) &(#&)
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities before (b) AREHEWELFREHRER
offsetting
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
“E-tFXA=1H “F-R"ET-A=1-H
Taxable Differed Taxable Differed
temporary income tax temporary income tax
differences liabilities differences liabilities
e BLME h EEMEN
OR#tER 8 xR A&
Withholding income tax ~ R3NARBFTEH 88,530 8,220 88,530 8,220
Available-for-sale financial  [{EHESE
assets (i) EE() 292,952 73,238 292,952 73,238
Business combination other ~ 3E[F—1%#| T
than common control tEAH 685,024 171,256 696,948 174,237
Capitalized interest BRILFE 3,429,128 857,282 3,056,796 764,199
Changes in fairvalue of st ANBZHZEH
investment properties BHENLEE
recognized in profit or loss &%) ([if3E M (42))
(Note 4(42)) 5,107,905 1,276,976 5,058,159 1,264,540
Changes in fairvalue of ~ Ff AEZHREH
investment properties BEHEAAER
recognized in other 28)(Mimes)
comprehensive income
(Note 4(34)) 534,428 133,607 614,555 153,639
Depreciation differences of % & fEEHEH
investment properties WEER 173,336 43,334 163,908 40,977
Primary land development £t — % 214,488 53,622 140,204 35,051
Total At 10,525,791 2,617,535 10,112,052 2,514,101
Including: Hep
Amount of reversal expected R —ER(&—%F)
within 1 year BEMNEH
(including 1 year) 483,821 225,001
Amount of reversal expected T8zt — A&
beyond 1 year M 2,133,714 2,289,100
Total At 2,617,535 2,514,101
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &0 R IA B MY ()

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(16) Deferred income tax assets and deferred (16) EXEFIEBREENELEREHREA
income tax liabilities (Continued) &(#&)
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities before (b) RAREENELFESHERE

offsetting(Continued)

(i) As at 30 June 2017 and at 31 December 2016,
the taxable temporary differences of available-for-
sale financial assets are mainly generated from the
profit of the right to yields and share residual in
properties of Tiancheng Yongtai project held by
the Group.

(c) The deductible temporary differences and (c)
deductible losses with no deferred income tax
assets recognized are as follows:

(%)

(i) RZBE—tEFRNA=ZTREZ
E-RF+ZA=+—RHB 7
HEESRMEERATER 1T
EZRITBREANAKEMESR
R KFRIE B oW 1 R R
BEATRHEEENE AR -

AEBEARERELEASREE
RN B M R N AT R
BRI

30 June 31 December

2017 2016
—B—tfF —E-REF
~A=tH +=ZA=+—8

(restated)
(g&Eq)

Deductible losses A NEE
Deductible temporary differences AJ3EINErFE=R

3,058,148 2,610,680
533,079 286,888

Total &5t

3,591,227 2,897,568
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, &I BERRE B #E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(16) Deferred income tax assets and deferred (16) EXEFIEBHREENELERESHRA
income tax liabilities (Continued) &(&)
(d) The deductible losses with no deferred (d) REREEMESREERAIK
income tax assets recognized will be expired MEBEBRATFERRE -
as follows:

30 June 31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
ARA=+H +=—H=+—8
(restated)
(=)
2017 —ET—+tF 290,826 290,826
2018 —E-N\F 297,482 297,482
2019 —E-NEF 532,248 532,248
2020 —E-FTF 668,652 668,652
2021 T —F 821,472 821,472
2022 —E - 447,468 -
Total &5 3,058,148 2,610,680
(e) The net balance of deferred income tax assets (e) HHEMIELMSHEEME
and liabilities after offsetting are as follows: RSB aEFEITAT :
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
“E-t§XA=1H “E-RETZA=t—H
Balance Balance
Offsetting after Offsetting after
amount offsetting amount offsetting

ERSHE HEERE EfeE HBRRE

Deferred income tax ETFTER

assets BiE 167,780 826,348 161,571 655,196
Deferred income tax EIEETEH
liabilities BfE 167,780 2,449,755 161,571 2,352,530
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(17) Other non-current assets

(17) EfERBEE

M. aHBEmREAIERNE@E)

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
ANA=+H +=—A=+—H
Prepaid land deposits for investment  J&{H& & 14 = i EE
property T iR 85,329 394,808
Prepaid for AUD debt investment BRI ERIEE R 112,086 -
Total &5F 197,415 394,808
(18) Provision for impairment of assets (18) EEREEME
31 December 30 June
2016 Additions Reductions 2017
ZERF —E—tF
+-A=t-H A0 AHRL AA=1H
(restated) Reversal Write off
(&) & 5
Provisions for bad debt 1ZER % 48,791 80,000 - - 128,791
Including: Hep
trade receivables FEUR TR IR B 7,000 - - - 7,000
other receivables H iR
R 41,791 80,000 - - 121,791
Provisions for FEREEE
inventories
impairment 73,598 - - (5,946) 67,652
Provisions for goodwill F&iEEEE
impairment - 172,137 - - 172,137
Total A 122,389 252,137 - (5,946) 368,580

BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /g,
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(19) Short-term borrowings

BB HRRIAR M e #)

(19) EHER

As at 30 June 2017, short-term borrowings
of RMB888,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB720,000,000) are pledged by the
corresponding income right of land use rights
of properties under development of the
subsidiaries of the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, short-term borrowings
denominated in USD equivalent to
RMB233,717,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB239,327,000) are pledged by certain
bank deposits of the Group.

As at 30 June 2017, the range of annual
interest rate for short-term borrowings is
2.43% to 7.15% (31 December 2016: 2.57%
t0 8.00%).

30 June 31 December

Currency 2017 2016

—E—+HF —E—RF

K iE AA=tH +=—A=+—8

Trust borrowings =ARE® RMBA E# 441,000 950,000
Secured borrowings, EREK

including: Hrh

Pledged (a) H 1 (a) RMBA R 888,000 720,000

USDZ=7t 233,717 239,327

Total &5t 1,562,717 1,909,327

(a) Pledged borrowings (a) BERER

RZZET—tFXA=+8"
52 HA & 5 A R 888,000,000
T(ZE—R"F+=ZA=+—
H : AR #720,000,0007T)
RAARERFRBFEEKAS
R o b 15 PR AR T A W R R
BEREN o

R-ZZ—+F < <A=+H"
HHETERTAEARE
233,717,000 ;t ( — & — X
F+-_A=+—H:  AR¥
239,327,0007T ) 2 BB A & E
WITFHRIERERBA o

R-ZE—+FA=Z1+H &
HEFMNAERHEAE243%
E715%(ZE—XRF+A
=+—H 2.57%%8.00%) °

Al —F—tFRHRE

_

5 1R A
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE K@)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(20) Trade payables (20) FEfFIRFX
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
AA=+HA +=ZA=+—8H
(restated)
(&)
Construction payment payable FEAT TR 5,806,039 7,143,052
Others Eb 12,393 43,794
Total =k 5,818,432 7,186,846
(@) The aging analysis of trade payables are as (@) ERIRFIRE AR B B ERER
follows: DHTWT -

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

~A=tE +=A=t-8

(restated)

(g &Eat)

Within 1 year —F LA 4,670,639 5,858,185
Over 1 year —F Lk 1,147,793 1,328,661
Total BEF 5,818,432 7,186,846
Trade payables with aging over 1 year are —FUALEREMIEREZ BE

mainly construction payment unsettled. RNETEENRNITER
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. &HBERERIEEME@®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(21) Advances from customers (21) WA

30 June 31 December

2017 2016
—E—tE ZE—RF
~A=+HA +=ZA=+—8H
(restated)
(Je&Eam)
Advances from sales of properties HEIEE
under development (i) FEE () 21,650,565 15,892,016
Other Eb 53,645 38,964
Total =18 21,704,210 15,930,980
(i) Advances from sales of properties under development (i) FERERERETERANEEIL D
are mainly the amounts proceed from customers. As BMERZEEENEAEER  ENHA
such properties are not available for usage at the end EREBAMARMNER  REFEK
of the year, the corresponding revenue has not been A - BRI E -
recognized. And the amounts are still recognized in
advances from customers.
As at 30 June 2017, advances from customers with RZZE—+FRA=+H KK
aging over 1 year amounted to RMB3,842,185,000 HE-—FOHNRRRE/SARK
(31 December 2016: RMB2,168,010,000) are 3,842,185,000c(ZE—RF+=
mainly advances from sales of properties under A=+—H8: AR#%2,168,010,000
development. ) FERFEUMEREIBRENESE

&
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m. 5B RERIEEME@®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(22) Employee benefits payable (22) P08 T 5
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RE
ANA=+H +t=—A=+—H
(restated)
(&)
Short-term employee benefits N SEEETE))
payable (a) 105,779 116,531
Defined contribution plans FETERTEIRTF AT El(b)
payable (b) 1,032 3,017
Total &5t 106,811 119,548
(a) Short-term employee benefit payable (a) EHHM
31 December 30 June
2016 Additions  Reductions 2017
“E—REF —E—+tF
+=A=1+—H AHEE AN AEREAL SA=1H
(restated)
FE309)
Wages and salaries, 1% 8% 28
bonuses, allowances and %8s
subsidies 80,290 330,712 (343,161) 67,841
Staff welfare BTENE - 532 (532) -
Social security contributions  # & (R & 1,608 12,799 (13,810) 597
Including: Hep
Medical insurance BERRE 1,299 10,899 (11,769) 429
Work injury insurance TERRE 156 1,100 (1,147) 109
Maternity insurance EERRE 153 800 (894) 59
Housing funds FEAES - 13,180 (14,184) (1,004)
Labor union funds and TeLENRT
employee education YERE
funds 9,594 4,114 (4,581) 9,127
Profit-sharing plan FlEsZstE 7,985 - - 7,985
Director's emoluments 554 16,848 4,205 (405) 20,648
Others short-term Hib 5 B
employee benefit payable 206 1,720 (1,341) 585
Total =Hi 116,531 367,262 (378,014) 105,779
The Group does not provide non-monetary ANEEE AR TIRENIEE
benefit to employee. R F] o
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, AHtBrEERRIB B M ®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(22) Employee benefits payable (Continued) (22) FEEE T 5rEM (&)
(b) Defined contribution plans payable (b) RERFFTE
31 December 30 June
2016 Additions  Reductions 2017
ZE-RE “Z—tF
+=—B=t+—H ARERE N AR,  SE=1H
Basic social pension EREEZRR
security 2,642 22,804 (24,816) 630
Annuity FEHE 196 1,266 (1,305) 157
Unemployment insurance k¥R % 179 1,071 (1,005) 245
Total Azt 3,017 25,141 (27,126) 1,032
(23) Taxes payable (23) EXHE
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
AA=+H +ZH=+—H
(restated)
(g &Eat)
Enterprise income tax payable FERZ D EFRST 696,157 753,357
Land appreciation tax payable JER I8 (EF 924,301 1,047,402
VAT payable R (AR 314,104 344,369
Others Hib 41,720 86,965
Total &5 1,976,282 2,232,093
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. aptegERRIEE W)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(24) Interests payable (24) EFFIR

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
~A=tH +=ZA=+—8
Interests payable due to debentures R ESFE
payable 391,875 438,450
Interests payable due to long-term REMERER TS
borrowings 74,581 81,565
Interests payable due to short-term 72 HAfE SR AN AR
borrowings 20,023 14,448
Interests payable due to long-term REER FRIERFE
payables 8,966 13,391
Total A&t 495,445 547,854
(25) Dividends payable (25) FE{SBR R
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET-REF
~AA=+H +=ZA=+—8H
Capital Group EEIESE 329,841 -
Dividends of other equity instrument g8 &EE S
by Shanghai Xinghan Asset ERAB(LATE
Management Co., Ltd. [EmEE])
(“Xinghan Asset”) T ARRA 4,067 73,607
Reco Ziyang Pte Ltd KIS REBR AR
("Reco Ziyang”) (AT EERE] 109,253 109,253
Dividend of senior perpetual securities 5 4k sk 48 & 5 I F 72,314 74,412
Total A&t 515,475 257,272
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &R ERRIA R W EEg)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(26) Other payable (26) HAFERK

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E-LF ZE-RF
AA=+H +=ZA=+—H
(restated)
(& &)

Payables to associates (Note 9(6)) AR NEIEE L N
(MtzESL(6)) 192,055 108,513

Payables to joint ventures (Note 9(6))  FEffA& & N ALK
(H3EI06)) 754,150 685,389

Payables to other related parties JE A1 EL At B Bt 77 SRR
(Note 9(6)) (MtsEAL(B)) 4,134,429 2,040,620

Collection of deeds tax and R R EEES

maintenance funds on behalf of

government 185,173 158,557
Tender bond KIZRFES 49,270 51,071
Deposits from customers BE2 87,858 131,566
Payables for routine business AT L A A5 8 1 SRR 518,149 1,200,793
Advances from equity transfer (i) FE YRR REE EE () 20,000 20,000
Others H1 366,817 491,580
Total &5t 6,307,901 4,888,089

(i) As at 30 June 2017 and at 31 December 2016, this
balance is the advances from disposal of 10% equity
interests of Hainan Boao Lecheng amounted to

RMB20,000,000 (Note 4(8)(a)).

R-F—t&<A=
FHZA=t—8"
R 4Lk 10% A A

+AR=ZZE—X
ZRBREES
TE U o AR 4 88

FIE A R 20,000,000 7T (P 51 7H(8)

(a)) »

T~ T =

SERAT —F

—tERBKRE 147
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &0 R IA B MY ()

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(27) Current portion of non-current liabilities (27) —"FREHHERBERE

30 June 31 December
Currency 2017 2016
—E—tF —Z—RF
¥®iE S<H=1tH +tZ—A=1t—H
Long-term borrowings —FAEIHH RMBA K
due within one year RHIER
(Note 4(28)) (Mi7EP(28)) 8,712,038 7,173,140
Debentures payable —FAEIEH RMBA R
due within one year FERHES
(Note 4(29)) (M7Em(29)) 5,488,150 5,493,862
Long-term payables —F R RMB A R
due within one year REFE R
(Note 4(30)) (M$7EPU(30)) 1,400,000 1,700,000
Equity instrument AT LR RMBA K
terminated in advance =& - 600,000
Total &5t 15,600,188 14,967,002
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &R ERRIA R W EEg)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowing (28) REAfERK

30 June 31 December
Currency 2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
e AA=tH +ZA=+-AH
Unsecured borrowings HEIEES RMBAR™ 6,172,202 6,823,813
Secured borrowings, including:  #E{R{ER - Heh
~ Guaranteed (a) — R (a) RMBAEH 2,712,202 3,301,320
HKD& & 890,299 742,040
USDZETT 33,904 -
— Mortgaged (b) — 3 (b) RMBAR™ 6,666,890 4,379,190
— Pledged () —E#(0) RMBAR™ 500,000 500,000
- Guaranteed, mortgaged (d) — 1% /##(d) RMBAR™ 3,993,144 4,562,040
- Guaranteed, pledged — R ER RMBA R - 585,000
- Guaranteed, mortgaged, —{RE /B RMBA R
pledged 2Bt - 300,000
— Borrowings from debt —EERERE RMBA R
investment plan () &3k (e) 6,500,000 6,500,000
Subtotal NEt 27,468,641 27,693,403
Less: Long-term borrowings due & : —F R E|HM K
within one year including: HEH o
Unsecured borrowings ERER RMBA R (2,100,000) (1,080,000)
Secured borrowings: FERER - Hep -
- Guaranteed (a) — R (a) RMBA (1,053,904) (911,500)
— Mortgaged (b) —EH(b) RMBAR™ (1,659,890) (90,000)
— Pledged () ,’%ﬁﬁ( ) RMBAR™ (500,000) -
- Guaranteed, mortgaged (d) — 1% /##(d) RMBAR® (898,244) (2,006,640)
- Guaranteed, pledged —IR:E E RMBA R - (585,000)
— Borrowings from debt — BRI A2 RVMBA R
investment plan (e) B (e) (2,500,000) (2,500,000)
Subtotal NEt (8,712,038) (7,173,140)
Long-term borrowings - Net ~ #%8 18,756,603 20,520,263

g—t¢¢%ﬁ%
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

. &0t SRR B I aE48)

(28) REIERR (&)

(a) Guaranteed borrowings (a) HRF|EX
As 30 June 2017, the guaranteed borrowings RZZE—+FRA=+H XK
denominated in CNY, HKD and USD SEARE BELRETRE
equivalent to RMB3,636,405,000 (31 BRITEARBHETFOARY
December 2016: RMB4,043,360,000). 3,636,405,000 L ( =& — /X
Of which, principal amounted to FT+_A=+—H: AR%
RMB2,936,405,000 (31 December 4,043,360,0007T,) © HA - {5
2016: RMB3,343,360,000) were AAR¥2,936,405,0007T (=
guaranteed by the Company; principal of E-RE+ZA=+—8:
RMB700,000,000 (31 December 2016: A R #3,343,360,000 7T ) A
RMB700,000,000) are guaranteed by RRAGRBEREAN  ER
certain subsidiary of the Group. Among the A K #700,000,0007C (=&
borrowings above, interests of principal of —RETZA=T—H: A
RMB2,746,108,000 are payable quarterly and R % 700,000,000 7T ) B A&
RMB890,297,000 are payable semiannually. Bz FRAlA/ARRAIEMHE
RMB1,053,904,000 should be repaid on or REAN - DliERP - AR
before 30 June 2018, and such amount was ¥ 2,746,108,000 7T A9 f& 5% F
classified as long-term borrowings due within BE=EAZFH—R AR
one year in financial statement. # 890,297,000 7T H) {& X 7| B
BHEIN—R: A2AR
#1,053,904,000 T X = F
—NERA=THAMEE &
EMB®RE FIRA—F AT
HRREER -
(b) Mortgaged borrowings (b) EHMERK

As at 30 June 2017, the mortgaged
borrowings amounted to RMB6,666,890,000
(31 December 2016: RMB4,379,190,00).
Of which, bank borrowing of
RMB1,841,890,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,604,190,000) were secured by
the mortgage of certain land use rights
in properties under development of the
Group (Note 4(7)), bank borrowing of
RMB2,632,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB2,032,000,000) were secured by the
mortgage of certain land use and buildings
in properties under development of the
Group (Note 4(7)), bank borrowing of
RMB2,193,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB743,000,000) were secured by the
mortgage of certain buildings and land use
rights in investment properties of the Group
(Note 4(12)).
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AREBIEFERLFTARE
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F+-_A=+—H: ARE
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AAR#1,841,890,0007T (=
E—-RE+ZA=1+—8": A
R #1,604,190,000 7T ) JA A&
EE R AP R T 1 A
ERIEIMEA(HEMN®Z)) :
g % A R % 2,632,000,000
T(CE—RF+-_A=+—
H : AER#2,032,000,0007T)
AAEBEMAERAS L
FRAEMEEEEYIELSK
FMHFMET)  ERARE
2,193,000,000 70 ( = & — /X
F+-_A=+—H: ARE
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A MIFER(12)) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /g,
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

BB HRRIAR M e #)

(28) ‘Egﬂ{a T)\(Zi

(b) Mortgaged borrowings (Continued) (b) EHER(E)
Interests of principal RMB6,092,515,000 ot B R AR ¥
above are payable quarterly and 6,092,515,000 7T K {& 3 71| &
RMB574,375,000 are payable monthly. B=EALZH—K AR
RMB1,659,890,000 should be repaid before 574,375, OOOTEEI’M%t B
30 June 2018, such amount was classified as BAZ—k - Hp - K& A
long-term borrowings due within one year in E%1,659,89O,0007Eﬁ’§ﬁ<\_
financial statement. T-N\FEANA=+HAEE
WEMBHREKR LR R—FR
R REER -
(c) Pledged borrowings (c) E#HER
As at 30 June 2017, the pledged borrowings = +tH&FXA=+H"
of the Group amounted to RMB500,000,000 & I E?‘Eﬁ% R AR

(31 December 2016: RMB500,000,000),
which are pledged by bank deposits of the
Company with interests paid quarterly.
RMB500,000,000 should be repaid before

500,000,000 7t ( = & — X
F+-_A=+—8: AR¥
500,000,0007T ) *+ B A A A
NEBTFEEREREBA &

30 June 2018, such amount was classified as FAMBEEB=EAZNN—IR K
long-term borrowings due within one year in SRR _Z—N\FRA=TH

financial statement.

AIERE - BMEMBRE IR
B—FRBHHNRIMER -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(d) Guaranteed and mortgaged borrowings

As at 30 June 2017, the guaranteed and
mortgaged borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB3,993,144,000 (31
December 2016: RMB4,562,040,000). Of
which, RMB493,000,000 (31 December
2016: RMB1,460,400,000) were guaranteed
by the Company and the mortgage of certain
land use rights and buildings in properties
under development of the Group (Note 4(7));
RMB1,300,144,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,341,640,000) were guaranteed by the
Company and the mortgage of certain land
use rights in properties under development
of the Group (Note 4(7)); RMB300,000,000
(31 December 2016: Nil) was guaranteed by
the Company and the mortgage of certain
buildings in properties under development of
the Group (Note 4(7)), RMB1,220,000,000
(31 December 2016: RMB1,220,000,000)
were guaranteed by the Capital Group and
the mortgage of certain land use right in
properties under development of the Group
(Note 4(7)); RMB280,000,000 (31 December
2016: RMB540,000,000) were guaranteed
by the Company and the mortgage of certain
land use rights and buildings in investment
properties of the Group (Note 4(12));
RMB400,000,000 (31 December 2016:
Nil) were guaranteed by the Company and
the mortgage of certain land use rights in
investment properties of the Group (Note 4

(12)).
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(d)

ReE - EIREK

RZE—EFXA=FTH &
SERE - BHERETA
R #3,993,144,000 T ( = &
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o B A R#493,000,000
T(ZZE—RFE+_A=+—
H : AE#1,460,400,0007T)
MARNE AT A AREER
WHAEERAEREAFH L
HAFE R B E 2y (K st
(7)) ERBIEIEREA - BERA
R #1,300,144,000 T ( = &
—RNF+ZA=Z+—H: A
R ¥ 1,341,640,000 7T ) B 4
RElBTRARIREER - WA
REBEFREBER AR LHE
A (KI s (7)) 1E BRI E
A ¢ &R AR ¥300,000,000
T(ZE—R"F+=—A=+—
H: & BARAATARAR
HER  WAREERENR
FREEEEY (M)
EREEEAN  ERARK
1,220,000,000 7t ( = & — X
F+ZA=+—8: AR¥
1,220,000,0007T ) B & Al &£
B &FRaREER - WHAE
SE KA A L AR
(M@ IEREIBEAN : &
A R #280,000,0007T ( =
T—RE+-A=+—H: A
E # 540,000,000 7T ) B & 2
RlATARIREER  THh
AREEBHREEEWESRN -
HE AR E R &y (K s
rH(12)) fEBIEIRME A o &3
A R #400,000,0000 (==
—RNE+ZA=+—0 &)
MAARRATARREER
WHEAEEREEEHESRH
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—tFRNA=TRIENEASRE (BRI

4.

C EREMSARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(d) Guaranteed and mortgaged borrowings

(e)

(Continued)

Among the borrowings above, the interests
of RMB3,384,145,000 were payable quarterly
and of RMB608,999,000 were payable
monthly. The principal of RMB898,244,000
should be repaid before 30 June 2018, and
such amount was classified as long-term
borrowings due within one year in financial
statement.

Borrowings from debt investment plan

As at 30 June 2017, the Group received
RMB6,500,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB6,500,000,000) through certain debt
investment plan. The borrowings were
guaranteed by Capital Group with interest
payable quarterly. All the principal should be
repaid by installments before October 2019.
Of which, the principal of RMB2,500,000,000
should be repaid before 27 August 2017,
such amount was classified as long-term
borrowings due within one year in financial
statement.

As at 30 June 2017, the range of annual
interest rate for long-term borrowings is
3.19% t0 9.20% (31 December 2016: 3.19%
10 9.50%).

M. aHEEH

HRIAE M

(28) REIERR (&)

(d)

(e)

RE - ERERE)

o g xR R %
3,384,145, oowﬁ’ﬂ%ﬂﬂé

BZEAAZN - AR¥
608,999,000 T K & K F| B &
BALZMN—RK: K& AR

898,244,000 TIEA =ZZE — N
FRA=THRMEE - WEH
Bk LA R A—FAEHRN
RHEBERK ©

BRERESEIER

R_ZT—+tFXA=+H XK
EEEEREE %?ﬁu%}\
R #6,500,000,000 7T ( — &
—R"NF+ZA=1+—H: AR
¥ 6,500,000,000 7T ) ° % X
HREHAEBRBER  FE
FZ@EAINN—K K&JE
BA_f NE+ Ao HE
o FMERF A2 AR
MZ,SOO,OOO,OOOEE&E\F\\—
—+tFENA-tLEAEE
WERBHRER P RAE—FA
B ER R EE R -

RZE—+tFXA=F+H &
HEFMNAEEHEF3.19%
FI20%(ZFE—R"F+=A
=+—H 3.19%%9.50%) °
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE K@)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(29) Debentures payable (29) EffES
Including:
interest
accrued
Issuedin  Amortization  Redemption at book value
31 December current  at effective in current 30 June in current
2016 period interest period 2017 period
B
“E3F BRI S
t-A=t-H KBRS g%  KBEE  AB=TH FIRHE
Corporate bonds RAES 17,936,189 - 10,504 - 17,946,693 385,962
Medium term notes G- iEd 3,247,666 2,685,198 4516 (3,0000000 2,937,380 91,804
Other notes EfZR 1,295,519 - 1,35 - 1,987 34,125
Including; Her:
debentures payable due ~ —F M|
within one year EftEs (5493,862) TER TER TER  (5488,150) TER
Net e 16,985,512 NER oyl TER  16,692,7% TR
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. &HBERERIEEME@®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Debentures payable (Continued) (29) EffEH (&)
Information about the debentures payable is as EHFEREENT :
follow:

Book value in Date of Issued amount

original currency Issuance Duration in original currency

RERE 7R ErlR  RMBMEE

2 billion medium term note (i) 0EFHZE() 2,000,000 170212014 Matured on 1,965,029
“E-NE-At+A 17022017
“TtF
ZATtRIE

250 millon medium termnote ()~ 2.5ERAEE() 250,000 1700212014 5 years 25,627
“E-MEZATA 5E

1 billon medium term note (i) 10EFHEE() 1,000,000 0410412014 Matured on 1,002,261
“Z-REMARA 170022017
“TtF
“ATtRIE

3hillon corporate bonds (i) K EVAG )] 3,000,000 27052015 5 years 2,972,100
“E-RERACTHA 5

2.5 billon private corporate bonds (i) 25(&7.% (i) 2,500,000 260102015 3 years 2,490,600
ZE-RETACTAR 3

2.5 billion private corporate bonds () 25, & (i) 2,500,000 09/12/2015 3 years 2,490,300
“E-RETZANA 3

1.3billon note (v) 13EZEV) 1,300,000 30/07/2015 3 years 1,291,940
“F-REtA=TH I

2.3 billon private corporate bonds (v) ~ 23/ Ef&(vi) 2,300,000 181042016 5 years 2,291,650
ZE-ERATIA 5E

700 million private corporate TELEEN) 700,000 18/0412016 3 years 697,460
bonds vi) 5 ERATNR 3E

2.3 billion private corporate bonds (v) - 23(EFLEE(vi) 2,300,000 01/06/2016 3 years 2,290,800
“E-ERA-H 3E

1.7 billon private corporate bonds (vi) 17 &7 &(vi) 1,700,000 01/06/2016 5 years 1,693,200
“E-E/A-H 5E

2billon private corporate bonds (v) 20 R, E & (vi) 2,000,000 19/07/2016 3years 1,993,075
ZEELATAR I

1 billon private corporate bonds (v)  10fERLE(E(vi) 1,000,000 190072016 5 years 996,538
ZEELATAR 5

400 million USD medium term note () 4EFE TP HAZ () 400,000 250012017 3 years 396,006
I il 3%

Al —F—tFHRHJE 155
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Debentures payable(Continued)

U]

As at 10 February 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company announced the establishment of medium-
term notes and perpetual securities program. Under this
program, Central Plaza Development Ltd. (hereinafter
“Central Plaza”) can offer and issue securities to
professional and institutional investors, with a principal
limitation of no more than USD1 billion (or equivalent
in other currency units). Securities will be issued
on different release date and with different terms.
International Financial Center Property Ltd. (hereinafter
“IFC") and some of its subsidiaries provided guarantees
and the Company entered into a Keepwell Deed for the
medium-term notes. Pursuant to the Keepwell Deed, the
Company will undertake to cause Central Plaza to remain
solvent and going concern at all times, and guarantee
both Central Plaza and IFC have sufficient liquidity to
ensure timely repayment in respect of the bonds and the
guarantee in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the bonds and other obligations under the Keepwell
Deed.

As at 17 February 2014, Central Plaza issued medium
term notes amounted to RMB2,000,000,000 and
received proceeds of RMB1,965,029,000 net of relevant
issuance costs. The bond carries a fixed annual interest
rate of 5.75% paid semiannually and with a maturity
period of 3 years. The principal and the interests for the
last period will be fully repaid on the maturity date. This
medium term notes were fully repaid on the maturity
date of 17 February 2017.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Debentures payable (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

As at 17 February 2014, Central Plaza issued medium
term notes amounted to RMB250,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB245,627,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries a fixed annual interest rate of
6.875% paid semiannually and with a maturity period of
5 years. The principal and the interests for the last period
will be fully repaid on the maturity date.

As at 4 April 2014, Central Plaza issued medium term
notes amounted to RMB1,000,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB1,002,261,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries a fixed annual interest rate of
5.75% paid semiannually. The principal and the interests
for the last period will be fully repaid on the maturity
date. This medium term notes were fully repaid on the
maturity date of 17 February 2017.

As at 25 January 2017, Central Plaza issued medium
term notes amounted to USD400,000,000 and
received proceeds of USD396,006,000 equivalent to
RMB2,709,512,000 net of relevant issuance costs. As
at 30 June 2017, the net issuance proceeds equivalent
to RMB2,685,198,000. Capital Group entered into a
Keepwell Deed for the medium-term notes. The bond
carries a fixed annual interest rate of 3.875% paid
semiannually. The principal and the interests for the last
period will be fully repaid on the maturity date.

.

BB HRARIA R M at(

(29) BNES (&)

(i)

(%)
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Debentures payable (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 20 May 2015, the Company received “An
approval to Beijing Capital Land Ltd. on public issuance
of corporate bonds” (“Zhengjian [2015]896") from
China Securities Regulatory Commission to approve
the Company’s request to issue domestic corporate
bonds no more than RMB3 billion. As at 27 May
2015, the Company issued domestic corporate bonds
of RMB3,000,000,000 and received proceeds of
RMB2,972,100,000 net of relevant issuance costs. The
bond carries a fixed annual interest rate of 4.58% with
a maturity period of 5 years, and the interest will be paid
every year. The principal and the interests for the last
period will be fully repaid on the maturity date.

As at 6 October 2015, according to approval of Shanghai
Stock Exchange (SSE letters [2015]1780), the Company
was approved to issued non-public corporate bonds no
more than RMBS billion to qualified investors in domestic
China.

As at 26 October 2015, The Company issued nonpublic
corporate bonds of RMB2,500,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB2,490,600,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries issuing interest rate of 4.70%
with a maturity period of 3 years, and the interest will
be paid every year. The issuer is entitled to adjust the
coupon rate and the investors to sell back the bonds
at the end of the second year. The principal and the
interests for the last period will be fully repaid on the
maturity date. As at 30 June 2017, it is reclassified as
non-current liabilities due within one year in financial
statements.

As at 9 December 2015, The Company issued nonpublic
corporate bonds of RMB2,500,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB2,490,300,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries issuing interest rate of 4.78%
with a maturity period of 3 years, and the interest will
be paid every year, principal and the interests for the last
period will be fully repaid on the maturity date.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Debentures payable (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

As at 30 July 2015, Rosy Capital Global Limited
(hereinafter “Rosy Capital”), a subsidiary of Capital
Grand, issued note amounted to RMB1,300,000,000 to
the professional and institutional investors. Rosy Capital
received proceeds of RMB1,291,940,000 net of relevant
issuance cost. The notes carry a fixed annual interest
rate of 5.25% paid semiannually and with a maturity
period of 3 years. The principal and the interests for
the last period will be fully repaid on the maturity date.
Capital Grand provided unconditional and irrevocable
guarantees and Capital Group entered into Keepwell
Deed for the note. Pursuant to the Keepwell Deed and,
Capital Group will guarantee Rosy Capital have sufficient
liquidity to ensure timely repayment in respect of the
note and the guarantee payable in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the note and other obligations
under the Keepwell Deed.

As at 25 December 2015, according to approval of
Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE letters [2015]2599), the
Company was approved to issued non-public corporate
bonds no more than RMB10 billion to qualified investors
in domestic China.

As at 18 April 2016, the Company issued private
corporate bonds of RMB2,300,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB2,291,650,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries an issuing interest rate of 4.2%
per annum and with a maturity period of 5 years. The
issuer is entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors to sell back the bonds at the end of the third
year. The principal and the interests for the last period
will be fully repaid on the maturity date.

As at 18 April 2016, the Company issued private
corporate bonds of RMB700,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB697,460,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries an issuing interest rate of 4% per
annum and with a maturity period of 3 years. The issuer
is entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the investors to
sell back the bonds at the end of the second year. The
principal and the interests for the last period will be fully
repaid on the maturity date. As at 30 June 2017, it is
reclassified as non-current liabilities due within one year
in financial statements.

Pa.

Bt

HRIAE M

(29) BNES (&)

(v)

(vi)
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K2 %% T A A Rosy Capital Global
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Debentures payable (Continued)

(vi)

(Continued)

As at 1 June 2016, The Company issued private
corporate bonds of RMB2,300,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB2,290,800,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries an issuing interest rate of 4.1%
per annum and with a maturity period of 3 years. The
issuer is entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors to sell back the bonds at the end of the second
year. The principal and the interests for the last period
will be fully repaid on the maturity date. As at 30 June
2017, it is reclassified as non-current liabilities due within
one year in financial statements.

As at 1 June 2016, The Company issued private
corporate bonds of RMB1,700,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB1,693,200,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries an issuing interest rate of 4.26%
per annum and with a maturity period of 5 years. The
issuer is entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors to sell back the bonds at the end of the third
year. The principal and the interests for the last period
will be fully repaid on the maturity date.

As at 19 July 2016, The Company issued private
corporate bonds of RMB2,000,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB1,993,075,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries an issuing interest rate of 3.71%
per annum and with a maturity period of 3 years. The
issuer is entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors to sell back the bonds at the end of the second
year. The principal and the interests for the last period
will be fully repaid on the maturity date.

As at 19 July 2016, The Company issued private
corporate bonds of RMB1,000,000,000 and received
proceeds of RMB996,538,000 net of relevant issuance
costs. The bond carries an issuing interest rate of 3.84%
per annum and with a maturity period of 5 years. The
issuer is entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors to sell back the bonds at the end of the third
year. The principal and the interests for the last period
will be fully repaid on the maturity date.
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4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &R ERRIA R W EEg)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(30) Long-term payables (30) REAFEFRRK

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—B—tF —E—RF
~A=+HA +=ZA=+—8H
UBS SDIC Capital Management Co., &R EREIE QT
Ltd. (“UBS SDIC") (a) (LA TR 3w ER 1) (a) 2,800,000 3,100,000
Pingan Trust Co. Ltd. FREAEREERA
("Pingan Trust”) (b) (AT [ FZ{E5E1)(b) 1,200,000 2,400,000
Huaneng your Trustee Limited FEREEMETAR AR
("Huaneng Trust”) (c) (LATTFE (815510 1,200,000 -
Others Hip 5,775 6,675
Less: Long-term payable due B —ERI RS
within one year FEA R (1,400,000) (1,700,000)
Net HEE 3,805,775 3,806,675

As at 30 June 2017, this amount was the
borrowing principal due to UBS SDIC of the
Group. RMB2,800,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB2,800,000,000) were guaranteed by the Company
with an annual interest rate of 7.3%, and the principal
will be repaid before July 2018 by installments, in which,
RMB1,400,000,000 should be repaid in July 2017,
therefore it was classified as current portion of non-
current liabilities in balance sheet.

As at 31 December 2016, RMB300,000,000 was
secured by the mortgage of certain land use rights and
guaranteed by the Company. This amounts have been
repaid as of 30 June 2017.

@ WRZZE—+FXRA=Z+H %%
EEMBERKBRKER  ARE
2,800,000,000 L (= —XF+=A
=+—H8: AE%2,800,000,0007T)
BARARIEHRERNG  FF XA
73% KeER=ZZT—\FLAFH
HE® - A+ - AR%1,400,000,000
TR T —+F+ AR Rl
BH/RERIRE—FAIHOER
BfE-

RZBE-—XNE+A=+—HB =K
SEEMBEEKBERES  ARYK
300,000,0007T F 7 &8 3] 1 2 AR AR R Y
T AR WHAQARATA
RIRHERRE  BE_T—+t&AX
A=+H AEEBDEE FRFE -
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4.

SREMSARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Pa.

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(30) Long-term payables (Continued)

(b)  Asat 30 June 2017, this amount of RMB1,200,000,000
(31 December 2016: RMB2,400,000,000) were the
principal due to Pingan Trust with a maturity period
of 3 years and an annual interest rate of 4.275%. This
amount were guaranteed by the Company and pledged
by equity interests of certain subsidiary of the Group.

(0 Asat 30 June 2017, this amount of RMB1,200,000,000
(31 December 2016: Nil) were the principal due to
Huaneng Trust with a maturity period of 3 years and
an annual interest rate of 4.98%. This amount were

guaranteed by the Company.

(31) Derivative financial liabilities

BB HmARIAR st (#)

(30) REAEN (&)

(b) RZE—tFNA=+H £&%H
ERFZEANEREISABARYE
1,200,000,000 T ( —ZE — &+ F
=+—H: AR¥2,400,000,005T) °
BB AIF  AARRAATARIR
HER - WARNEBE 2 FRRIREE
REREA - FIERBL275% °

© RZTE—+tFXA=+H %K%
EEMNEEREEAIRXREAARE
1,200,000,0007c (= ZF—~F+= A
=t+—R: &) BEXHRAEIF A
K 54.98% - AR AIREEREA

(31) fTETmER

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REFE

AA=+H +ZHA=+—H

Derivative financial liabilities

Forward exchange contracts

— cash flow hedges

TEERAE
EHISNE S )
- REREEH

265,289 178,724

In order to avoid the exchange risk of AUD debt
investment (Note 4(14)(a)) and some of the HKD
borrowings, the Group has purchased foreign
exchange contracts matched with the maturity
date of the cash flow. As at 30 June 2017,
the contracted value of the forward contracts
are AUD798,571,000 and HKD825,000,000
(31 December 2016: AUD605,880,000 and

HKD825,000,000) separately.
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4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, AHtBrEERRIB B M ®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(32) Share capital (32) B#&
Changes in this period
AEEREE
Transferred
31 December s of from 30 June
2016 shares  Allotment reserve Others  Subtotal 2017
50k ZE-tE
+=h ~A

=t-R EhEk ER  AHDER Eft it =tH

==

Non-outstanding shares WRTER

held by domestic BRzAEER
legal entity 1,649,206 - - - - - 1,649,206
held by oversea legal entity — ENEARER 357,998 - - - - - 357,998
Outstanding shares Rk
H share Hi% 1,020,756 - - - - - 1,020,756
Total fit 3,027,960 - - - - - 3,027,960
(33) Capital reserve (33) EXNE
31 December 30 June
2016 Additions  Reductions 2017
—E-RF —Z—tF
+=A ~NA
ET=F AREE M REHD =tH
(restated)
(&)
Share premium (i) BARE()
(Note 6(3)(i)) (PREER(3)0)) 716,380 - (62,728) 653,652
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(33) Capital reserve (Continued)

M. AP ERAIAR M E)

(33) EXDBK(#E)

31 December 30 June

2015 Additions Reductions 2016

It i —EAF

+=A ~A

ET—E ARHREE AN AERL =1H

(restated) (restated)

(EEi) (i)

Share premium (i) BB () 3,540,247 - (185,975) 3,354,272

The Group completed the transaction of purchasing
equity interests of Shenyang Haohua in March 2017,
which was a business combination involving enterprises
under common control (Note 5(1)). Shenyang Haohua
was acquired by Beijing Capital Investment, the promoter
of the Group, from a third party in June 2015. The
share premiums as at 30 June 2016, 31 December 2016
and 2015 are restated accordingly with amount of
RMB23,603,000.

The Group completed the transactions of acquiring
equity interests of Liujin Real Estate and Donghuan
Xinrong in September and December 2016 separately.
As the Group and the acquirees are under common
control of Capital Group, such transactions were treated
as business combination involving enterprises under
common control. The Share premium as at 31 December
2015 had been restated when the Group prepared the
financial statements for the year of 2016.
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SREMSARETIT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(34) Other comprehensive income

.

Other comprehensive income
in balance sheet

B EHRARIBE T (E)
(34) Efttima W=

Other comprehensive income in income statement for
the six months ended 30 June 2017

EESBRTAMGANE BESZ-tERA=TALAEREBARRP LG HE
Less:
Transfer into
profit or loss Attribute
Attribute previously Attribute to the
to owners recognized to owners non-
of the in other ofthe  controlling
31 December Company 30 June Amount  comprehensive Less: Company interests
2016 after taxes 2017  before taxes income Income taxes  aftertaxes after taxes
-
i SN2 Be  —3-tf xH A B K
+=h BER ~A figH Htaks B SRR SBR
Sr=f BAF =tH HBLEE AHEARE HEHER §AF HERR
Other comprehensive income cannotbe b/ R ERER BRHIE M
reclassified into profit or loss thereafter: &AMz
- Share of other comprehensive income  1E45% MR B BN T4
in the investees cannot be recassified BBk ERNEMEA
into profit or loss at equity method hErzENhE = = = = = = = =
Other comprehensive income maybe L4 EDEEREHE
reclassified into profit or loss thereafter: &AMz
- Share of other comprehensive income B FERIRE B (4
in the investees can be recassified into ~~ BEHERBHENEH
profit or loss at equity method SalETZENNE 31,984 - 31,984 = = = = =
- Changes in fair value of investments ~ RFEEAREMELE
properties transferred from D BEEHE)
inventories (a) 460,916 (60,095) 400,821 - (80,127) 20,032 (60,095) -
- Changes in fair value of derivative EERAELAAEEEY
financial liabilities (123,368) 67,129 (56,239) 89,223 283 (22,317) 67,129 -
- Difference on translation of foreign ~ SMERZHEZE
currency financial statements 875 12481 13,356 12,481 - - 12,481 -
Total Rt 370407 19,515 389,922 101,704 (79,844) (2.385) 19,515 -

(@)  For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the Group sold
some of the properties in inventories, of which fair value
gains previously recognized in other comprehensive
income amounted to RMB60,095,000 (For the six
months ended 30 June 2016: RMB30,329,000) was
accordingly transferred into profit or loss in this period.

(a) HE-_ZT—+FXA=1+HLNEAR
e ASEARESHHOME -
ZBOMERBTABENTEEE
FFAHRMGAERENE D  REE
BEEEALZHEZNGEAAR
¥ 60,095,000 L (BHE =T — X F
ANA=+THILEXNEABRM: ARY
30,329,0007T) °

- o o

- HRAIBXRROHABRLAF —F

T FEPHEHE
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4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE M #)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(34) Other comprehensive income (Continued) (34) HibmEa W= (2)
Other comprehensive income Other comprehensive income in income statement for
in balance sheet the six months ended 30 June 2016
BEAERT AR NE BEZZ- "5 A TRIEANERSEHERT A A UG
Less:
Transfer into
profit or loss Attribute
Attribute previously Attribute tothe
10 owners recognized to owners non-
of the in other ofthe  controling
31 December Company 30 June Amount - comprehensive Less: Company interests
2015 after taxes 2016 before taxes income  Income taxes  after taxes after taxes
=18
—Z-1% fit ZF-F H AIEETA Btk Fitk
+=8 GER ~A Gl Htsahs B GER GER
S 847 =tH REE AEBAER  FERER SN SRR
Other comprehensive income cannot be WM& B DR BRI
reclassified into profit or loss thereafter: &AM
- Share of other comprehensive income BB TR A BRI
in the investees cannot be reclassified B BRNEMEA
into profit or loss at equity method BEPZENNE - - - - - - - -
Other comprehensive income maybe WA HRES B BEHH
reclassified into profit or loss thereafter. 474U
- Changes in fair value of available-for- ~ AHESBEEN L BE
sale financial assets #YER 8,087 (1,790) 6,297 (2,387) - 597 (1,790) -
~Changes in fair value of investments B SEARAERE
properties transferred from D BEEY
inventories 566,688 (30,329) 536,359 - (40,439) 10,110 (30,329) -
- Changes in fair value of derivative EERBEALBEED
financial liabilities (28,181) (24,736) (52,917) (32,981) - 8,245 (24,736) -
- Difference on translation of foreign ~ JMEFZEZSE
currency financial statements (9,053) 10,795 1,742 10,795 - - 10,795 -
Total L 537,541 (46,060) 491,481 (24,573) (40,439) 18,952 (46,060) -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(35) Surplus reserve

M. aHEHHRRBBNEE)

(35) E&r &

31 December Other 30 June

2016  Additions adjustment Reductions 2017

—E-RE —E-tE

t=A ~A

== KRR HipR® THHD =tH

Statutory surplus reserve EERBRLES 543,169 - - - 543,169
31 December Other 30 June

2015 Additions  adjustment  Reductions 2016

“E-1F 5%

-4 A

=+-A RERRREE A AEED =t+A

Statutory surplus reserve EERBLES 495,150 - 4,656 - 499,806

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Company'’s Articles of Association and resolution
of the board of directors, the Company should
appropriate 10% of net profit of the year to the
statutory surplus reserve, and the Company can
cease appropriation when the statutory surplus
reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can
be used to make up for the loss or increase the
paid in capital after approval from the appropriate
authorit ies. The Company did not appropriate
statutory surplus reserve for the six months ended
30 June 2017 (for the six months ended 30 June
2016: Nil).

The Company appropriates for the discretionary
surplus reserve after the shareholders’ meeting
approves the proposal from the Board of Directors.
The discretionary surplus reserve can be used to
make up for the loss or increase the paid in capital
after approval from the appropr iate authorities.
The Company did not appropriate discretionary
surplus reserve for six months ended 30 June 2017
(for six months ended 30 June 2016: Nil).

BRB(REARAMBEARE) - A
RAERREFGHIRE » ARQF
REZFNBO10%RBUEE & 8
NEE BETEHRAES RFRE
ERIRAKS0% A L - AT RER
B EERB ARG ER A
RBHER  HEEMRA - HE
—E—tFRA=TRHIEXNERH
A ARBIARFHOEAERBKAE (R
ET-RFRA=TRHIEREAR
HAR : ) o

ARARIEERBAREHIRINER
EFTeRE  KREXRSHE -
TERBR AL EETARE
HWARIFEBBRIGEINRA - &#E
—E—+FRNA=ZTHLEREARE
M ARG RFRERRBATED
(BEZZ—R"FARAA=THIAE
R ERR - &) o

BIRAR —F— tEhMEs
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(36) Retained earnings

In accordance with the resolutions of shareholder’s
meeting on 20 April 2017, the Company
distributed the cash dividends of 2016 to all
shareholders with RMB0.20 per share. The
Company distributed cash dividends amounted
to RMB605,592,000 calculated at 3,027,960,000
issued shares.

In accordance with the resolutions of shareholder’s
meeting on 29 April 2016, the Company
distributed the cash dividends of 2015 to all
shareholders with RMB0.20 per share. The
Company distributed cash dividends amounted to
RMB605,592,000, calculated at 3,027,960,000
issued shares.
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BE-_ZT—tFNA=-THER

GRFE  ARAAEEBREIR
BT -RFHESKRF  BRA
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, AHtBrEERRIB B M ®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(37) Revenue and cost of sales (37) BXWAMEERAK
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016

BE-ZT—tHF BE-_ZT—RF
AA=tHB ARA=+HL
IEAREAHE N EREE!

(restated)

(geE)

Revenue from main operations (a) FEEBKIA() 7,325,694 5,071,562
Revenue from other operations (b) H A ZE A (o) 42,652 63,529
Total &5t 7,368,346 5,135,091
Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2017 2016

BE-Z2—tHF HE_FT—RF
AA=t+RHLE RH=tHLE
NERHE N EDEE !

(restated)
(=)
Cost from main operations (a) FEEKAR() 4,717,989 4,282,552
Cost from other operations (b) HAth 2K 2R (b) 3,488 4,758
Total A5 4,721,477 4,287,310
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, AHtBrEERkRIB B M (E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(37) Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (37) EXWAMEERAR (&)
(a) Revenue and cost of sales from main (a) FEEBBAMELEKLRAK
operations
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 (restated)

BE-Z—tERA=TAL HE_TZ-—"FAA=THLE

ANEAHE NE AR (&)
Revenue Cost of sales Revenue  Cost of sales

frommain  from main from main from main
operations  operations operations operations
FEEBBA FEEBRE  FEEBRA  EEEBRA

Sale of properties FiEHE 5,677,420 4,446,796 4,744,207 4,133,726
Consulting services AHBA 7,385 - 12,199 -
Primary development — Mm% 1,447,680 266,801 170,320 145,346
Rental revenue of REMEFHEBA

investment properties 193,209 4,392 144,836 3,480
Total D 7,325,694 4,717,989 5,071,562 4,282,552
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, AHtBrEERRIB B M ®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(37) Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (37) EXWAMEERAR (&)

(b) Revenue and cost of sales from other (b) HEKWAMEMERKAK
operations
Six months ended Six months ended

30 June 2017 30 June 2016

BE-ZE—+tEXA=ZTHLE BE-T—A~FA A=THILE
AME R A N EAHRE (K Er)

Revenue Cost of sales Revenue  Cost of sales

from other  from other ~ fromother  from other
operations  operations operations operations
Hit¥BWA HeXBRs HtEBRA EoEKKE

Temporarily rental income FREHHRE 18,299 - 41,645 1,718
Other operations Hin ¥ 24,353 3,488 21,884 3,040
Total At 42,652 3,488 63,529 4,758
(38) Taxes and surcharges (38) Hi& K Hin
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016 Standards

BE-ZT—tHF BE_Z—KRF
ARA=tHLE RA=+HLE

~ME A H N8 A HAE AR
(restated)
(gsEat)
Business tax BN 90,037 239,678 Note 3
S2RME=
Land appreciation tax 4y s a7 188,752 122,221 Note 3
2RME=
Others Hit 92,387 49,362
Total At 371,176 411,261
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . BB ERRIA R WEEg)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(39) Expenses by nature (39) EAEMEDE
FERPOEERAN - HEBHAM
EEBREBEESE  JRET

Cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and
general and administrative expenses in the income

statement classified by nature are as follows:

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2017 2016

BE-Z—tF BHE-_Z—~

AA=+HIE SA=t+HIL

~ME B Hi 718 A EAfE

(restated)

(Fg &)

Costs of properties sold EHbEEIE B B9k A 4,363,192 4,092,595

Costs of primary land development T3 — F BB AR 266,801 145,346
Cost of operation of investment WEYEELE N

properties 1,904 2,105

Wages, social security and welfare (i) IT& - #1% REFI() 268,651 111,164

Administrative office expenses THHAE 70,665 57,271

Tax expenses B - 13,186

Depreciation and amortization T B 5 16,668 26,531

Travel and entertainment expenses EZIRBEHE 7,090 11,498

Intermediary service fee RN RS E 46,799 35,476

Audit fee ZHER 2,785 2,374

Audit related or non-audit services ZEHBEER X

expenses FZBER 2,366 3,323

Marketing and commission fee BN AEEM 167,230 204,319

Others EHh 43,363 37,929

Total A5t 5,257,514 4,743,117

(i) Including the basic social pension insurance for (i) Hp  HE-_ZT—+FRA=+H
the six months ended 30 June 2017 amounted to EREAMMBEEREZRBA

RMB15,612,000 (for the six months ended 30 June

2016: RMB8,734,000).
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIERS - SRELSARETIT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL .

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(40) Financial expense/(income) - net

B Ot SRR 1A B R ()

(40) AEER, (W) —F8

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2017 2016

BE-Z2—tHF BE_Z—RF

AA=+HIE SA=t+HIE

7~ fE A Hi 7 1E A AR

(restated)

(g Eat)

Interest expense MBS H 1,587,515 1,844,089

Including: Bank borrowings Heh o SRITER 601,578 949,385

Corporate bonds NRESH 528,265 368,567

Other liabilities EMasE 457,672 526,137

Less: cost of capitalized interest W BAEF B (1,002,040) (1,547,874)

Interest expense — net F B B F5E 585,475 296,215
Interest income B A (562,297) (514,802)
Exchange gain/(loss) — net e X 18 — 558 10,066 (16,469)

Others Hh 13,239 17,115
Net it 46,483 (217,941)
- - S EaERRpAERAT —T - cFEmEs

AR =%
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE M #)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(40) Financial expense/(income) — net (Continued) (40) BB, (W) —FE (&)
Interest expenses analyzed by the maturity FE = B IR RITE R E A E KA
between bank and other borrowings are as BEASTOT :
follows:

Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BE-Z—tExA=tHL BEZZT—~E~A=THLE
~MEAEA NEAEE
Bank Other Bank Other
borrowings  borrowings  borrowings  borrowings
RITER HitifE PRITER Hir a0

(restated) (restated)
(i) (@E)

Wholly repayable within RE&—HENH

5 years EREZARER 543,298 985,937 891,423 894,704
Not wholly repayable within 4 —H8% A

5 years ELFZROER 58,280 - 57,962 -
Total Azt 601,578 985,937 949,385 894,704
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, &I BERRE B #E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(41) Asset impairment losses (41) EERERX
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016
BEZZ—tF BHEZZ—F
AA=+THIL NA=Z+HIE
7N B # 7~ {8 A B
Provision for impairment of inventories &tHi2EERERE
(Note 4(5)) (MH3ERT(5)) 80,000 -
Provision for impairment of goodwill  FHI2pg &R E £
(Note 4(15)) (MtEEPH(15)) 172,137 -
Total &5t 252,137 —

(42) (Losses)/gains arising from changes in fair

(42) DABEESB(BX) W

value
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016
Q:l:— = tfﬁ E«t:l:— = /\_\f'E
/\E——i—a-u: /\)EI_+E|JJ:
7@ A i E 7~ 1E A B
(restated)
(ge&El)
Investment properties measured at fair LA AR BEEITZE

value model (Note 4(12)) FEMRERRE

(MI5EPT(12)) 67,850 933,053
Financial instruments at fair value NAnEETEAEH

through profit or loss BEETASHERN
SRIA (78,354) (25,629)
Derivative financial instrument (i) TTESRITAG) (8,898) (6,568)

Realized fair value gain in BERHEEOEEA R
properties sold EEZHBE (18,104) (8,456)
Total &5t (37,506) 892,400

— aﬁug;ﬂwﬁm A8 =% tERmES
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &0 R IA B MY ()

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(42) (Losses)/gains on changes in fair value (42) DAREEEE(BX) WHEE)
(Continued)
(i) The derivative financial instrument is the exchange (i ZUTESMIARREREENRT

forward contract accounted by cash flow hedging (Note
4(31)), for the six months ended 30 June 2017, the losses
on changes in fair value amounted to RMB1,129,000 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2016: losses on changes
in fair value amounted to RMB399,000) represent the
ineffective portion of such cash flow hedging.

A M EHIMNES L (FIFE/mET)) - &
E-ZT—tFXNA=Z1+HLEAREAR
HE - EARBEEPELABEIAR
1,129,000 L (REZ=ZFT —XNF X
A=+HBIENEAHME : BRARE
399,0007T) BEHEMAHBH ©

(43) Investment income (43) BEWE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016

Z—+H HEZZT—RF
=+H1k RNA=+HIE
~E B Hi RS 7~ & B HAr

(restated)
(g =)
Share of net profit or loss of investees (R EZ Ak DD
under equity method (Note 4(11)) WIR B BAFERM
D EE(FIsEE (1)) 89,228 199,516
Gains from disposal of subsidiaries BREFAFTRE R - 84,801
Others Hib 15,587 4,707
Total A&t 104,815 289,024
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. aoteBeERRIE R ME )

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(44) Other income

(44) Htths

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016
BE-Z—tF& HE_Z2—7F
ANA=+tHIE S~A=t+HIE
7~ B B HifE 7N {E A HAR
Financial incentives of LAT T Hb I (E R B A E) 67,000 -
Others HAth 412 -
Total &5 67,412 -
(45) Non-operating income (45) EE KA

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016
BE-Z—t& HE_Z2—7F
ANA=+HIE KSNA=Zt+HL
7~ 1B B Hi [ 7N {E A HAR
(restated)
CE=Zim)

Gain from disposal of EMBEERENE
non-current assets 9 134

Including: gain from disposal of HEo: EEEE
fixed assets RENE 9 134
Government grants BT B 1,227 2,008
Non-payable default fine EETNNENS - 55,731
Others Hih 3,529 3,727
Total &5t 4,765 61,600
e ) EJE%HE@%FE’L\ﬁ —E -t FHPHRE 177
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL v,

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(46) Non-operating expense

B HRARIBEE T E)

(46) &R

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016
BE-Z—tF BHE-Z—F
NA=+HLE SA=F+HIE
~ME A H 7~ E A HARE
(restated)
(&)

Loss from disposal of IERBEEREEX
non-current assets - 58

Including: Loss from disposal of B AFEEE

fixed assets BEEEX - 58
Default fine EHE - 374
Delaying payment fine ook 1,338 2,624
Others Hih 1,920 392
Total A&t 3,258 3,448
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &R ERRIA R W EEg)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(47) Income tax expense

(47) FRBHEH

PRC income tax is computed according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. The
applicable PRC income tax rate is 25% for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2016: 25%,).

According to the current tax law in Hong Kong,
profit tax in Hong Kong is calculated by 16.5%
of taxable profit. For the six months ended 30
June 2017, except for several subsidiaries in Hong
Kong are subject to Hong Kong profits tax, other
subsidiaries in Hong Kong have no Hong Kong
taxable profits.

Withholding income tax should be charged against
income from taxable dividends of non-resident
enterprises in mainland China and investments
disposal in mainland China with the tax rate of
5%-10% according to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC.

FEMEMFRERETEBRZE
REERFE BE-_FT—LFRX
A=+tRIEXNEANE @R+ E
PIEMER25% (BE-FT—/NFX
A=1+HI1EXEAHRE : 25%) -

RIBBBRITHERTE  HEHME
B FE ER B s ) 3% BB 16.5% FY 1 %
FEAMER  BE-_Z—+F A
=+ HIENEAHME - BERES
FTRABEFTEHMERT G F
G B FRBIWESBEF SR

FEABHIFEREEFTRIETE
MERARMER - BIR5% —10%
T4 2R 35 B 750 P ) A B I A S G A
SRR NMRBPAEHR

R A

'FE’L\‘E 2t FRHRE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE M #)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(47) Income tax expense (Continued) (47) FRSBiEBRHE)
The amount of taxation charged to the TREEFAGHINBRZAFEH
consolidated income statement represents: EReR:
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016

BE_ZT—tHF BE-FT—RF
AA=t+HAL RA=tHILE
ANEAHE N BRI

(restated)
(&)

Current income tax based on tax law 2 5% N EER T
and related regulations STEME SR 606,158 108,198
Deferred income tax IRIEPTISR (50,914) 193,142
Total &t 555,244 301,340
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. &HBERERIEEME@®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(47) Income tax expense (Continued) (47) FRBHEBR (&)
Reconciliations from income tax calculated & ERE 0N R 8RB 2R A
based on the applicable tax rates and total profit HABEFENMSHASN ARG
presented in the consolidated financial statements MER :

to the income tax expenses are listed below:

Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2017 2016

Z—tF HE_ZT—FXF

+HLE SA=+HLE
7~ ME A HE 7~ 18 A BAfE
(restated)
(geeE)
Total profit MR 1,577,264 1,438,230
Income tax expenses calculated at REABE25%TED
applicable tax rates (25%) Frig®i 394,316 359,558
Tax differences of investees at different #i% & S EZ R
rate 2 (24) -
Share of net profit of joint ventures and &z =Z Bk DD
associates WA QB FBEN
(R (22,307) (49,879)
Profit not subject to tax JEFE AT UL A (13,628) (24,973)
Writing off deferred income tax assets  jfh[@ LABT € E 5HEEY
recognized in previous years BLEFEREE 19,615 -
Utilisation of deductible temporary VAR & AR MERIE T
differences for which no deferred FriSTi & E/rl 0
income tax asset was recognized in TRt ER
previous years (1,487) (12,288)
Deductible losses for which no deferred & Ei R HERIEIE TS H
income tax asset was recognized BEMMEKMNER 111,867 26,071
Impairment provision for which no B HRERERERSH
deferred income tax asset was BERREEE
recognized 63,034 -
Expenses, costs and losses not TEMBRAIEA -
deductible for tax purposes BRAMEL 3,858 2,851
Income tax expense FSHER 555,244 301,340
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. 5B RERIEEME@®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(48) Earnings per share (48) B W=
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) EXxsRWE
Basic earnings per share is calculated EASRKRENEBERE QR
by dividing the consolidated net profit TLimARAR R A& BHF FDE R A
attributable to owners of the Company by the BRRIBEATIEINE AR A A4
weighted average number of ordinary shares FHHETE -

issued during the period:

Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2017 2016

BE-ZF—tHF BE-ZT—RF
ARA=+HLE SRHA=tHIE
NE A FE N E A

(restated)
(g =Eat)
Consolidated net profit SEBEREART R
attributable to owners of the R BB A GFFF)E
Company 646,199 573,484
Weighted average number of KRR BTSN
ordinary shares issued 35 A% B ANHRE S 19 E5
(in thousands) (FR%) 3,027,960 3,027,960
Basic earnings per share EAREGRKEE
(RMB cents per share) (ANREETER) 0.21 0.19
Including: He:
— Basic earnings per share relating — & & & E ARG
to continuing operations (AREETEHR)
(RMB cents per share) 0.21 0.19

182 BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. &HBERERIEEME@®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(48) Earnings per share (Continued) (48) ERWZE(£&)

(b) Diluted earnings per share is calculated (b) WESRKZUBEREES
by dividing the consolidated net profit ELRRARZENEBERER
attributable to owners of the Company by AERRARER A A GOFFE R
the adjusted weighted average number of DA EE AR R R BITEINE
ordinary shares issued during the period BREINETHEGEE - BE
based on the dilutive potential common ZE—tFARA=THLERE
shares adjustment. Diluted earnings per share ABRRBE=ZZT—RFHA
are equal to the basic earnings per share =t+HIEANEABHE - AAF
since the Company has no dilutive potential TrEEEMBINERE LR
common shares for the six months ended 30 i - Bt - mEgRKREEFER
June 2017 and 2016. ERGRYE -

(49) Notes to the cash flow statements (49) BEeREREEHITE

(a) Cash received relating to other operation (a) WEMHEMEKETHEEN
activities Rn&

Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2017 2016

BE-ZT—tHF BE-ZT—RF
ARA=+HLE ARA=tHIE
NE A HE N fELA B

(restated)

(Fe &)

Interest income from bank RITHBHA 77,793 114,238

Government grants received W B &9 BT 78 Bh 2008 68,639 2,008
Cash received from daily WS ) A 458 S 1 2R K

operation funds 24,115 4,618

Total &5t 170,547 120,864
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE K@)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(49) Notes to the cash flow statements (49) RERERBETEE)
(Continued)
(b) Cash paid relating to other operating (b) XZANMEMEKLEITHEEN
activities R&
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016

BE-ZF—tHF BE_ZT—RF
ARA=t+HL RA=tBLE
NE A FE N E A

(restated)
(g E=at)
Cash paid to daily operations AT H A T R
funds 328,151 100,440
Administrative fee and office EEBRNE
allowance 145,983 111,044
Marketing and promotion EIHHEEE
expense 115,417 128,786
Sales commission and agency fee & kN & 103,763 67,001
Guarantee fund paid for land ST HRES
deposit - 755,610
Service fee and others FEERHM 19,645 20,522
Total A&t 712,959 1,183,403
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, AHtBrEERRIB B M ®E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(49) Notes to the cash flow statements (49) RERERBETE L)
(Continued)
(c) Cash received relating to other investing (0 WENHEMEREZTHEEN
activities Re
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016

BE-ZT—tHF BE_ZT—RF
ARA=+RHLE RHA=TtHLE
ANEAHE N EDEE!

(restated)
(Fe &)
Returns of principals and interests Uy [al B3 B 77 & & HrfE
from related parties e MFE 2,233,330 1,135,184
Returns of principals and interests IR {&E#ERE RS K&
from creditors’ investments PSS 15,615 140,977
Others Hh 65,585 5,938
Total At 2,314,530 1,282,099
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, & BERRIBEE M #)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(49) Notes to the cash flow statements (49) BRERERBEEHITE(E)
(Continued)
(d) Cash paid relating to other investing (d) XZAHEMEREZTHEED
activities Re
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016

BE-ZF—tHF BE_ZT—RF
ARA=t+HL RA=tBLE
NE A FE N E A

(restated)
(g E=at)
Principals paid to related parties i BgHsE 5 &S 8k 1,978,000 841,061
Cash paid for cooperation TRIBEBEGFRER
projects 1,065,000 -
Cash paid for creditors’ T HERERE R
investments 742,352 721,456
Cash paid for primary land S —BEBIRER
development 218,278 733,292
Total &t 4,003,630 2,295,809
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, &I BERRE B #E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(49) Notes to the cash flow statements (49) HEREXREETE(Z)
(Continued)
(e) Cash received relating to other financing () WEMHEMEBEZTHEEAN
activities R&
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016

BE-ZT—tHF BE_ZT—RF
ARA=+RHLE RHA=TtHLE
NE A B 7N fELA #ARE

(restated)

(Fe &)

Borrowings from related parties U ZIREEE: 5 & S ISR 2,707,772 1,726,633
Proceeds of other long-term FRREGHEAM
borrowings by subsidiaries REMBEBREER

(Note 4(30)) (PEERE(30)) 1,200,000 -

Total &t 3,907,772 1,726,633

(f) Cash paid relating to other financing (f) XAWNEMEBEZTHEEN
activities Re

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2017 2016

BE-_ZT—tHF BE-ZT—RF
ARA=+HLE ARA=tHIE
ANEAHE INEDEEIE

(restated)
(g &Eat)
Repayment of borrowings from  FA GRS GEREEZ
transferring creditor’s rights by ~ &&3k
subsidiaries 1,500,000 100,000
Principals and interests paid for  {Ei& R 7 &2 e
borrowings from related parties &% k2 1,004,593 1,081,785
Others Hit 27,300 1,400
Total A&t 2,531,893 1,183,185
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /.
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(50) Supplemental information of cash flow
statement

Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows
from operating activities

&t

HENBABREE

OTHERWISE STATED)

RS R I8 B B FE (&)

(50) REREXRBREHR

EBRERE

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016
BE-Z—tF %Z:l:_ T — N
/\H + E .Lt /\ }Ej _+ El ﬂ:
~ME A B 7~ A BAfE
(restated)
(Z<<< )
Profit for the period SFHE 1,022,020 1,136,890
Add: Provisions for asset impairment i : BEREEE
(note 4(41)) (BI=EH(41)) 252,137 -
Depreciation of fixed assets BEF&EERE
(note 4(13)) (FF3EPI(13)) 10,068 9,893
Amortization of long-term REGEHERDY
prepaid expenses b 6,600 16,638
Gains on disposal of fixed assets, BEEETEE -
intangible assets and other BIVEEMEM
long-term assets REEER T (9) (76)
Interest expenses B E 111,037 (121,094)
Losses/(gains) of change in fair AL IEE=E)
value BR (W) 19,402 (900,856)
Investment income (note 4(43)) B
(B3EmH(43)) (104,815) (289,024)
Increase in deferred income tax RIEFTSIHEER
assets 0 (171,152) (221,134)
Increase in deferred income tax BEREHEERN
liabilities 20 97,225 414,276
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERRL
(3m) 2,220,310 (2,743,069)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted ZIRHIIR B H
cash (341) F (1,183,855) 737,776
Increase in operating receivables et EINIE B 1Y
0 (3,025,733) (6,963,012)
Increase in operating payables 4R E T IR B B
i*jju 4,102,721 2,331,463
Net cash flows from operating activities &4 & 8)EE 4+ 1)
REMEFHE 3,355,956 (6,591,329)
For the six months ended 30 June 2017 and HE-_Z— ti/\ﬁ + B 1E7SE
2016, there were no significant investing and RAEEREZE —RNFARA=T
financing activities not relating to cash receipts and B 1k A 18 A BBR - ?ﬁ$ifﬁ&fﬁ(£4&

disbursement.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N, &I BERRE B #E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(50) Supplemental information of cash flow (50) REREBRBAER (&)
statement (Continued)

(a) Change of cash and cash equivalent (a) RERBESEENFLHER
Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2017 2016

BE_F—tHF BE-ZT—RF
ARA=+HLE ARA=tHIE
ANEAHE N fELA HAfE

(restated)
(Jg&Ea)
Cash at the end of the period IS HI R A %E 14,205,487 13,955,833
Less: cash at the beginning of B B REYEREE
the period (16,558,753) (18,204,114)
Decrease in the period ReEMREEEY
FRARE (2,353,266) (4,248,281)
(b) Obtain or dispose subsidiaries (b) HBHEEFAH
Cash flow information of disposal or BHE-_ZT—+FXXA=1THIE
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group NEAHRE - AREBERSE
for the six months ended 30 June 2017 is EFAREBNESRERRN
disclosed in note 5. 2R MER -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. apteBERRIEE W)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(50) Supplemental information of cash flow

statement (Continued)

(c) Cash and cash equivalent

(50) RERERBRER (&)

() RERRESEEYW

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E 5 —E—RF
~NA=+H +t=-—A=+—8H
(restated)
(&)
Cash BE 16,934,497 17,926,073
Including: Cash on hand Hr: ERFES 720 1,023
Deposits that can be A BB AR X AP HY
drawn on demand SRITER 14,204,767 16,557,730
Less: restricted cash at bank B ZRIRHIE
RITTER (2,729,010) (1,367,320)
Cash and cash equivalent at BARBe MRS
period end =B 14,205,487 16,558,753
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

5. CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE h. AHEBENE
(1) Business combinations involving (1) E—EHTHEESH

enterprises under common control

(a) Business combinations involving
enterprises under common control for
the six months ended 30 June 2017

(a) BE-ZT—tHFXA=tHL
NERBEBENE —ZHT
BESH

Qperating cash Net cash
Revenuefrom ~ Netprofitfrom  Revenuefor Nt profit for flow from flow from
Thebasisfor  1Janvary 2017 Tlanuay 2007 sikmonths  sikmonths 1 January 2017 1 January 2017

Equity atio Combination ~ combination ~ to combination o combination ended ended tocombination ~to combination
Acquiree aqured  The citera date date date date  30June2016 30 )une 2016 date date
a3 HECFE CEHFE CEAR

-t -A-RE BECRNE MASTAE A-RE A-EE
-fi-BE ofBR ARSTRE AEREER  AMER SRER

BAR-EHT siEe  afiBR  AlAM AERERR  AlGh afREE  QdARe
fath JEwhl AxakbE AA i 1 00 FHE  AfARA R FERdRE  NERE
Shenyang Haohua () 100% Undercommen  March 2017 Completon n - B - 3,306 (020 (1%)

control before industrial
and after the registration
{ransaction
] 0% AFFENE F-(ER IEERRN
HR-5#
[P
(i) In June 2016, the Group entered into an equity ) RZB—RFRA - AEER
transfer contract with Capital Group, the HERERTREEE G
parent company of the Group, to acquire the EEEZE2E100%KE @ &
100% equity interests of Shenyang Haohua. GREREAREN-_Z—X
Shenyang Haohua was acquired by Beijing Capital FERNARE=ZFMEHRF -
Investment from a third party in June 2015. The ZRHGER-_ZE—tF=A%
transaction was completed in March 2017 and K EEBEFEFRAEERR
was a business combination involving enterprises HAISEEES - Bt AL E
under common control. ZRPERE—EHTOEE
Ao
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

5. CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE
(Continued)

(1) Business combinations involving
enterprises under common control

f. AHFSENEE (&)

(1) B—EZHTHEEEHE)

(Continued)
(b) Combination cost and book value of net (b) EHRARBEBHFEEERE
assets acquired EENOT :
Shenyang
Haohua
EERE
Combination costs CXIBEN
Consideration paid in cash S TREE 275,556
Less: cash for repay debt of acquiree  J& : IBEEELE (275,228)
Total combination costs B HAR 328
Less: Book value of the identifiable B SR R E A ERE
net liabilities acquired ELEN 14,036
Capital reserve written down AR ERNTE 14,364
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

5. CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE h. aHEENEE8)
(Continued)
(1) Business combinations involving (1) BE—Z4THLEESHE)
enterprises under common control
(Continued)
() Book value of assets and liabilities at (0 WEBFREHANEE: &
combination date are as follows: BREEESRMOT :
Combination 31 December
date 2016
Book value Book value
—E-RF
&4t +-A=t+—H
REEE REEE
Cash at bank and on hand BERES 131 326
Other receivables Hib U R 2,261 2,933
Inventories FE 283,088 333,856
Other current assets EfmEEE - 1,826
Fixed assets BE&E 140 187
Less: trade payables B FETIREX 6,773 41,726
Other payables H M ERR 261,791 286,698
Advances from customers TEMER K 24,521 24,571
Taxes payables BT & 6,571 156
Employee benefit payables & 1< B T 357 B — 10
Net liabilities FRE (14,036) (14,033)
Less: Non-controlling interests & : &R E g - -
Net liabilities acquired RS FaE (14,036) (14,033)
(2) Changes of consolidation scope due to (2) HitRENEHEERS
other reasons
In January 2017, the Company set up a wholly- KRR _ZE—+F-—ALERY
owned subsidiary, Beijing Xiangneng, by capital 2EFREHILRAEE
injection.
In January 2017, the Group set up the subsidiary, AEER_Z—+F-—ARERY
Chongging Shouju, by capital injection. FRAIEEEE °
In May 2017, the Group set up the subsidiary, REEBR-_T—+FRALERY
Kunming Outlets, by capital injection. FRARIBARE -
In March 2017, Qingdao Guoxin cancelled AEEBZFRATERERZ
registration after the approval of State —+tFZARIFTHRERRZE
Administration for Industry and Commerce of the AiH e
PRC.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMEEBPRELS
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EF2ARAPHER
(a) Component of the Company (a) EKENER
(a1) Subsidiaries incorporated by (a1) XA BBARV FH
promoters at establishment of the BEARAHFLA
Company
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
KARRERELS LG ]
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
ZE-tf it I3t it
iftEx NAZTR +ZA=1-A R +ZA=1-A
Place of
main  Placeof  Nature of 30June  31December  Direct Indirect  Diect Indrect  Direct Indirect  Direct  Indect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
EE
“E-1f t-h O ER O BE O ER MR BR MR ER MR
FAA%E TEEEN BMM BB ABZTR R M G G ) W (W) () (%)
Befing Rongjin RealEstate ~ Befjng,  Befjng,  Property UsD UsD 10 85 0 45 LU 0 45
Development Co, Ltd. ~ thePRC  thePRC  development — 6,360000 6,360,000
("Rongjin Company”) and sales
TRASRUERBERLT ARG ARG RMERE i i
(TR e Jiéil3 6,360,000 6,360,000
Bejing Sunshine Jindu Bejing,  Beiing, Property RVB RB 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Properties Co,Ltd. thePRC  thePRC  development 370,000,000 370,000,000
("indu Company") and sales
TREREBESARAD KRT  MRT  RMERE ARR  ARE
(e Exad)) RisE 370,000,000 370,000,000
Centra Plaza () Hong Kong BV Investment UsD1 USD1 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Management
Centre Plza ) EE HBME REEE i1 e
7HE
FC Hong Kong BV Ivestment UsDt USD1 100 = 100 - 100 = 100 -
Management
ig Bt ABER REER eS| eS|
7HE
(i) As at 30 June 2017, Central Plaza, a (i) RZZT—tF~A
subsidiary of the Group, has issued mid- =+H XxEHEZ
term notes amounted RMB250,000,000 F A @ Central Plaza
and USD400,000,000 (As at 31 December BERTREAAR
2016: to RMB3,250,000,000) (note 4(29) ¥ 250,000,000 7T #1
(). 3% JT 400,000,000 7T
(ZE-—RFE+T=A

=+ —H8: AR
3,250,000,000 7T, ) ) &
EAZRHR (P FERE(29)()) ©
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMERBPAELSE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRRPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)
(a2) Subsidiaries obtained from business (a2) BRLELSHRMENF
combinations AYST|
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AEEERERLS EEEY ]
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
TE-tE EpE JE-t% ERE
s #A=TH +ZA=1-A RA=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  drect  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indrect
Name operation  registration business 017 2016 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
St tSh ER OBE O R MR OBR O OBR O BE OMB
FhTER TEMEY S EERE REZTE =B ) ) ) ) %) (%) () (%)
S.C.Real Estate Development ~ Bejjng, ~ Befjng,  Property RMB RVB 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
(o, Ltd. ("5.C") thePRC  thePRC  development 640,000,000 640,000,000
and sles
BIHERAAERRRRAT ART  MRW RMERE MER ARE
(TR 8 RHE 640000000 640,000,000
Befing HYHL Real Estate Beiing,  Beiing,  Property UsD 1) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Development Co,, Ltd. thePRC  thePRC  development 10,000,000 10,000,000
and sales

IREGERENERRLE AT fRm  EHERE ES i
hiE 10,000,000 10,000,000

=0

Beiing Anhua ShijiReal Estate ~ Bejjng,  Beijng,  Property UsD 1) 55 45 5 4 60 40 60 4
Development Co,, Ltd. thePRC  thePRC  development 30,000,000 30,000,000
("Anhua Shii") and sales
IREELERNERSAR LR HRT  BuERE o e
DATRIzELL]) Rigg 30,000,000 30,000,000
Tianjin Banshan Renjia Tanjin,  Tianjin, ~ Property UsD 1) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co, Ltd. thePRC  thePRC  development 74,000,000 74,000,000
and saes

REFUASERRROA  AER RER BMERE A
REE 74000000 74000000

Bejing Sunshine City Beiing,  Beiing,  Property UsD 1) 50 50 50 50 60 4 60 4
Real Estate Development thePRC ~ thePRC  development 20,000,000 20,000,000
Co, L1d. (*Sunshine City") and sales

FRBRRHERRAT  FRT ART BHERE i i
(HTRIExH) it 20000000 20000000

e s
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMEREPAELSE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRAPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)

(a2) Subsidiaries obtained from business (a2) BRLELSHRMENF

combinations (Continued) Aa](#E)

Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ADEEERERLS AATRARLS
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
TE-tE ENE tE-tE EpE
ifER RA=TH +ZA=1-A RA=TH +-A=1-H
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  Idret  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indect
Name operation  registration business 017 2016 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
EtF I8 BEE O OBE O ER MR O OER  BR O EE W
FhREH TEMEY Gt EERE #B=TR =R (%) W G %) (%) (%) ) (%)
Chongging Capital Xinsh Chongging Chongging  Property UsD ) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Redl Estate Development development 95,000,000 95,000,000
(o, Ltd. and sles

ERRENEEZERLT  ERT ERT  RMERE i i
hiE 95,000,000 95,000,000

Beiing Xinbocheng Real Estate ~ Bejing, the ~ Beijng, the  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Development Co,, Ltd. PRC PRC development 89,000,000 89,000,000
and sdles

IRFEARMERRERLA ART  dmm  BHERR ARR  \RE
RHE 89000000 89000000

Qingdao Yangguang Binhal ~~ Qingdao ~ Qingdao ~ Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Properties Co,, Ltd. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales
EERRERERERAA  ERT  EET  RBuERE ARE  ARE
Rigg 50,000,000 50,000,000
Qingdao Qiangjanshu Yantd  Yantai  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Redl Estate Development development 20,000,000 20,000,000
(o, Ltd and sales
EBTTHERERAR  EBT  EET  RuERE ARE  ARE
Rig 20,000,000 20,000,000
Yantai Yangguang Lidu Yot Yantal  Property RMB RV - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Redl Estate Development development 50,000,000 50,000,000
(o, Ltd. and sgles

BERAFERAERR  EET  BET  BUERE ARB \RE
BRAE RHE 50000000 50000000

e=ti}
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEHMEERAESE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFREHRERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)
(a2) Subsidiaries obtained from business (a2) BRLELSHRMENF
combinations (Continued) ATIE =)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
KA RERLH ENEEY ]
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
TE-tE i i TE-tE i
s #A=TH +ZA=1-A #A=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  hdrect  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indrect
Name operation  registration business 017 2016 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
i
St tSR ER OBE O ER MR OBR O OBR O EE OMB
FhTER TEMEY Gt EHRE #B=TR =R (%) G G %) () %) % (%)
Yantai Yangguang Lizhen Yanta  VYantai  Propery RMB RMB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Redl Estate Development development 75,000,000 75,000,000
(o, Ltd. and sles
EEhrEERMERE  BET  BET  RMERE ARE  ARE
BRAT Rigg 75,000,000 75,000,000
Yantai Yangguang Xinye Yatal  Yantal  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Development development 75,000,000 75,000,000
(o, Ltd. and sles
EERYFIRARRE  EEm  EET RMERE ARR  ARE
BRA Rigg 75,000000 75,000,000
Thejiang Huisheng Real Estate ~ Huzhou  Huzhou ~ Property UsD 1) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, Ltd development 20,000,000 20,000,000

and sales
MIEREZERAT BE BT RuERE £ £
e 20000000 20,000,000

Thejiang Outets Property Huzhou  Huzhou  Propery Usb 1) - - - -
Real Estate Co, Lid development 40,000,000 40,000,000
and operation
HIRGREERARAR  MF  MF  BuERE £y e
fge 40,000,000 40,000,000
TinjncoCityfamingRonghe ~ Tiamin -~~~ Tianjin, ~ Property RMB RV 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development Co, Lid. development 60,000,000 60,000,000
("Tianjin iaming") and sles
REERNSHRANTRE REm REm RMERE ARE  ARE
BRARATRIR2RE) Rig 60,000,000 60,000,000

- o o
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

\

/

<. EEMETEROERE)

(1) EFRFAHRNERE)

(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EKEEMBR(E)
(a2) Subsidiaries obtained from business (a2) BRLELSHRMENF
combinations (Continued) AE](#E)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
KARGERELA ANARARLA
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
25t i 23-tE i
s #A=TH +ZA=1-A #A=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  Idret  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indect
Name operation  registration business 017 2016 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
55
§tF 8 BEE O OBE O ER MR OER OBR B W
FhA4E TEHEN e FEKE ARZTE B G ) ) %) %) ) (%)
Capital Grand (i) HongKong Cayman ~ Investment HKD HKD - Ny -9 - Ny -9
Idands ~ holding 7815385 7815385
R B RREE REER b it
7815385 7815385
Xi'an Capital Xinkal Xian Xian Property UsD ) - Ny -9 - Ny - N
Real Estate Co, Ltd. development 165,000,000 165,000,000
("Xian Xinkai () and sales
EREHMRERERAT  ERT  BET RHERE i 9
Rigg 165,000,000 165,000,000
Huzhou Capital Rongcheng~~ Huzhou ~ Huzhou  Property RMB RAB - 5 - 5% - 5% - 5%
Real Estate Co, Ltd. development 60,000,000 60,000,000
and sales
BNEERAERERAT MW B RMERE AEE  ARE
Rigg 60,000,000 60,000,000
Befing Xingtai liheng Beiing  Befing  Property RMB RV - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Redl Estate Co,, Lid. development 45,000,000 45,000,000
and sales
YREFSNERARAT  MRm MR RMERE ARE  \RE
i 45,000,000 45,000,000
Befing Yongyuan Jintai Bejing  Being  Investment RMB RV 100 - 100 - 100 = 100 -
Investment Management Management 5,000,000 5,000,000
Co, Ltd. (*Yongyuan Jinta")
PRATEFREERERAT HnF  HRT  REER ARE  ARE
(IWTRIKTeR) 5000000 5000000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEHMEERAESE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRAPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)
(a2) Subsidiaries obtained from business (a2) BRLELSHRMENF
combinations (Continued) AE](#)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
KARGRRELA ENEEY ]
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
5t i i t3-tE i i
fta #B=1A +A=1-A #A=1A +=A=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  ndrect  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indrect
Name operation  registration business 017 2016 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
EE
T§tF I8 B OBRE O ER MR O OERE  OBE O EE W
FATER TEMEY Hfe EERE REZTE =B ) ) ) () %) (%) () (%)
Liujin Real Estate Beiing  Befing  Property RMB RV : 100 - 100 : 100 - 100
development ~1,720,000,000 1,720,000,000
and sles
LeE2 YRE o fRE BAERE MER ARE
REE 1720000000 1,720000000
Donghuan Xinrong Befing  Beijng  Propertyleasing RMB RV 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
10,000,000 10,000,000
FEER ¥Em o JRm BERE ARE  ARE
10,000,000 10,000,000
Thuhai Hengojn Capital Thai Thuha Ivestment RMB RVB - %39 - 98 - 6647 EE 1)
Real Estate Eco Vilage Management 249,000,000 249,000,000
Equity Ivestment Fund
(Limited Partnership)
('Eco Village Fund")
KEERREERAMMRE RET KO REEE AER ARE
RAAE(ERAT) 249000000 249000000
(TR thgES)
Chongging Shouyong Chongging  Chongaing  Property RMB RV - %39 - 98 - 100 - 100
Real state o, Lid. development 80,000,000 80,000,000
(Shouyong Real Estate") and sles
EREKERRRAA EBT ERD RMERE AER ARE
(ITRIEAEE) Rigg $0,000000 80,000,000
Shenyang Hachua Shenyang  Shenyang  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(Note 5(1)) development 335,000,000 335,000,000
and sales

ARzE(Ea) 5

=1
R
Eic
=

FHERE ARE  ARE
kg 335,000,000 335,000,000

- o o
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES 7.

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

EHEAM TR T AES(#)

(1) EFRFAHRNERE)

(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EKEEMBR(E)
(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREM S L]
incorporation or by other means B F e
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
KARGRRELA ENEEY ]
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
5t i 5t i
e #A=TH +ZA=1-A #A=TA +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  dret  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indrect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
55
St TSR ER OBE O ER MR OBR O BR O EE OMB
FhTER TEHEY e FEKE REZTE =B ) ) ) () ) (%) () (%)
Beiing Capital Xinzi Beiing  Bejing  Property RMB fuB 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate Ltd. development 496,590,000 496,590,000
("Befing Xinzi") and dles
YREEFAERARAT  MRW MRT RMERE MER ARE
(TR mifE) REE 496590000 496590000
Beiing Shangboya Befing  Bejng  Investment RMB RV 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Ivestrment Consultant Management 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co, Ltd. ("Shangboye”)
YRARERAERARAT tRm dRT RAER ARR  ARE
aHE )] 30,000,000 30,000,000
Tianjin Xinchuang Tanjin, — Tianjin, ~ Property UsD 1) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Ltd. thePRC  thePRC  development 25,000,000 25,000,000
and sdles
RETFAERARAR  RER X RHERE i 9
Rigg 25,000,000 25,000,000
Chengdu Capital XinziRedl ~~ Chengdu ~ Chengdu ~ Property Usb 1) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development Lid. development 30,000,000 30,000,000
and sales
NAEHFRERERLY BT AT BuERR £y 9
Rigg 30,000,000 30,000,000
Jiangsu Capita Real Estate W Woxi Property UsD 1) 60 L) 60 Q0 60 4 60 Q0
Development Lid. development 12,500,000 12,500,000
(*fangsu Capital’) and sales
THEHESARAT BT OERT RuERE i 9
(Tl TEE) Rigg 12500000 12,500,000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMEERHERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRAPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREMF LT
incorporation or by other means B F AR ()
(Continued)

Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AR RERLS ANARARLA
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
t3-tE i i tE-tE i
s #A=TH +ZA=1-A #A=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  ndect  Direct Indirect  Diret Indect
Name operation ~ registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
St tSh ER OBE O ERE MR OBR O OBR BE OME
FAA%R TEMEY S EHRE RAZTR =B ) ) %) ) ) (%) () (%)
Beiing Capital Land Chengdu ~ Chengdu  Property RMB RV 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Chengdu Co, Ltd. development 150,000,000 150,000,000
(" Capital Chengdu') and sles
EEERIARRAT BT RS RHERE AER  ARE
(TR =88] REg 150000000 150000000
Chenodu Capial YiduReal ~ Chengdu ~ Chengdu ~ Property UsD 1) - 5 - 5 - 60 - 60
Estate Development Co, Ltd. development 100,000,000 100,000,000
("Chengdu Yidu') and sales
TERARAERARAT  NBT  AET  RMERR i £
(TR IaES) REE 100000000 100000000
Tianjin Capital Xinyuan Tanjn— Tnjn ~ Property UsD 1) - 5 - 5 - 5 - 60
Real Estate Development development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Co, Ltd.("Tianjin Xinyuan") and sales
REEHMEERERA] AT RE RHERE 9 9
(WTRIR#HE)) it 95,000,000 95,000,000
Tianjin Capita Xingang Tanjn— Tanjn  Property UsD 1) - 5 - 5 - 5 - 60
Real Estate Development development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Co,, Ltd. "Tianjin Xingang") and sales
REEHFEERERAY  RET KB RHERE £ 9
(WTRIR#HE ) i3 95,000,000 95,000,000
Wi Capital Xindong Wod Wi Property RuB RB 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Development development 100,000,000 100,000,000
(o, L1d. ("Wuxi Xindong”) and sles
EREHFRERERAY  ERT  BHT  RuERE ARE  ARE
AR i) REE 100000000 100000000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) Component of the Company (Continued)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through

\

/

<. EEMETEROERE)

(1) EFRARWERE)
(a) TEEEHBH(E)
(a3) BB HE XA MG X

BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017

incorporation or by other means B F R A ()
(Continued)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
KARRERELA LN
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
Z5-tE i Z§-tE i
s #A=TA +ZA=1-A RA=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  hdret  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indrect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
8t TSR ER OBE O ERE MR OBR OBR BE OME
148 1EREN e EERE ARZTE R ) ) ) ) % %) W)
Beiing Chuangxin Janye Beiing Investment RMB RV - Y ] - Y -8
Real Estate Investment Ltd. Management 50,000,000 50,000,000
("Chuangxin Janye”)
TREFERMEREERAT LR haER AER  ARE
50,000,000 50,000,000
Jingjn Tongcheng (Tianji) ~~ Tianjin Property RMB RVB - 90 - 90 - 90 - 90
Ivestment Co,, Lid. development 250,000,000 250,000,000
RERA(RRIRERRAE  REF FHERE AR®  ARE
250,000,000 250,000,000
Beijng Capital Qutlets Property ~ Beijing Property UsD 1) - Ny -8 - Ny - N8
Investment Fang Shan Ltd. development, 127,000,000 127,000,000
sales and
operation
TREERSRERUER  MRT  HRT  RHEREES g i
BRAR hEe 127,000,000 127,000,000
Beijng Capital Znongbei Beijng Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Development development 100,000,000 100,000,000
(o, Ltd. and sales
FREEMLERRRE LR ART BuERE ARE  ARE
BRAR i 100,000,000 100,000,000
BECL Investment Holding Ltd. ~ Hong Kong  Hong Kong ~ Investment Ush UsD 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
('BECL") Management 9,900,000 9,900,000
BEREIRERAA B e i 9
(WTRIEERE) 9900000 9900000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMERBPAELSE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRAPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREMF LT

incorporation or by other means B F AR ()

(Continued)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AR RERLS . INEYY A
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
“§-tE i Z5-tE i
ifER RA=TA +-A=1-H RA=TH +-A=1-H
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Diect  Indrect  Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect
Name operation ~ registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
St tSh ER OBE O ERE MR OBR O OBR BE OME
FA7%E TEEEY S RERE ~AZtE  =1-H (%) A R R () B Y B ('Y R Y
Befjng Anshunyuan Real Estate  Befjng ~ Beijing  Property RMB RV - % - 9% - % - 9%
Development Co, Lid. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales

LFREERNERRERDS KA HRT BHEME AR®  ARE
hiE 50,000,000 50,000,000

Thenjing XianjiReal Estate ~~ Zhenjiang ~ Zhenjiang ~ Property UsD 1) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Development Co,, Ltd. development 40,000,000 40,000,000
and sales

EIREEREROA T OBIT RUERR £ £
it} 40,000,000 40,000,000

Thejiang Shouxin Real Estate ~~ Huzhou ~ Huzhou  Property UsD 1) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Development Co,, Ltd. development 24,500,000 24,500,000
and sdles

FIEEERARLA MmN RMERE n i

RiE 24,500,000 24,500,000

Thejiang Huzlong RealEstate ~ Huzhou ~ Huzhou ~ Property Usb 1) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Development Co, Lid. development 67,000,000 67,000,000
and sales

HITEEERRRAA ME o ENE BuERE £ 9
i 67,000,000 67,000,000
Bejing Ruiyuanfengi Bejing  Befing Property RMB RV 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate Development development 10,000,000 10,000,000
(o, Ltd. ("Ruiyuanfengj’)
PRETERERRRAT  ART ART BuERE ARE  ARE
(HTEMAnes]) 10000000 10,000,000

- o o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

\

/

<. EEMETEROERE)

(1) EFRFAHRNERE)

(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EKEEMBR(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREM S L]
incorporation or by other means B F R A ()
(Continued)

Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AEERERLS ANARARLA
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
T2-1f 56 TE-1f 5N
s #A=TA +ZA=1-A RA=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  hdret  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indrect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
“EtF 2§ BERE O OBE O ER MR O OERE  BR B W
148 1EREN e EERE ARZTE R ) ) ) ) % %) W)
Capital Tianshun nfrastructure  Befjng ~~ Befing ~ Property RMB RMB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Investment Co, Ltd. development 100,000,000 100,000,000
BAREERRERELRAR LA MRT  BHERE ARR  ARE
100,000,000 100,000,000
Hainan Outlts Real Estate ~—~ Wanning ~ Wanning ~ Property UsD 1) - 55 - 5 - 5 - 5
Development Co,, Ltd. development 14,000,000 14,000,000
BRSRERNERY  BET EE BuERR i i
BRAE 14,000,000 14,000,000
Jangyin Yuyue Real Estate ~~ Jiangyin ~ Jiangyin~ Property Usb ) - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Development Co, Lid. development 49,000,000 49,000,000
and sles
TEHEZARAT BT IET  EMERE i i
i 4,000,000 49,000,000
Qingdao Xinli Weiye Qingdao ~ Qingdao  Propery RMB RV - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Redl Estate Development development 90,000,000 90,000,000
(o, Ltd and sles
EERURRRMERE  B&T  ESM  RMERE ARE  ARE
BROT Rigg 90,000,000 90,000,000
Capital Guoxin Asset Beiing,  Befing,  Assets RMB RV 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Management Co, Ltd. thePRC  thePRC  management 100,000,000 100,000,000
("Capital Guoxin')
BHEGERERERAY  MRM JRm EEER AER  ARE
AT ) 100,000,000 100,000,000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEHMEERAESE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRAPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREMF LT

incorporation or by other means B F AR ()

(Continued)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AR RERLS ENEEY ]
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
I g 50 “E-tf 50
s RA=TH +ZA=1-A RA=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Place of  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  ndrect  Direct Indirect  Direct Indect
Name operation  registration business 017 2016 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
50
EtF 2§ BERE O OBE O ER MR OERE OBR B MR
FAA%R TEOEY S RERE RAZTR =B M) ) %) ) () (%) () (%)
Hainan Outets Tourism Wanning ~ Wanning~ Development UsD 1) - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5
Development Co,, Ltd. construction 9,000,000 9,000,000
and property
management

RERGRIRERRERLT BB EED MRENEER £ i
VEGE 9,000,000 9,000,000

Capital Outets (Kunshan) Kunshan ~ Kunshan ~ Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Development development 300,000,000 300,000,000
(o, td. and sales

BRER(RLERARAT EL FHERE ARE  ARE

hiE 300,000,000 300,000,000

=
=t
&m
=
=

Shenyang Capital Xinyun Shenyang ~ Shenyang  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co, Ltd. development 20,000,000 20,000,000
and sales

APEHTEERARAY ARG ERT  RMERY ARE  ARE

RiEg 20000000 20000000
SASDatang Weiye Holdings~~ France ~ France el estate EUR tUR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100

business 25,000,000 25,000,000

AERRRERRAA HEORE AEEERER o B

25,000,000 25,000,000

=t

Hainan Capital Qutlets Wanning ~ Wanning ~ Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate (o, Ltd. development 20,000,000 20,000,000
and sges

EEEHERERERLA  BET B2

he
=t

FHERE ARE  ARE
Rig 20,000,000 20,000,000

- o o
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) Component of the Company (Continued)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through

(1) EFRFAHRNERE)

(a) TEEEHBH(E)

N, EEMERPESE)

(a3) BB HE XA MG X

incorporation or by other means B F R A ()
(Continued)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
A RERLS KAARARLA
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
Z3-tE 55 T2-1f 5N
s #A=TH +ZA=1-8 RA=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main  Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  Idrect  Direct Indirect  Diect  Indect
Name operation  registration business 017 2016 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
EnE
3tF 0 tDh ER OBE O ER MR OBR O OBR BE OME
FAAER TEMEY S EHeE AATR B %) ) ) G ) ) (%) (%)
Befing Jinri Wealth Befing  Bejng  Investment RMB RV - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Investment Management Management 50,000,000 50,000,000
(o, Ltd.
YREGHERAERARLD KRW  HRE  RAER ARR  ARE
50,000,000 50,000,000
Capital Dongying (Kunshan) ~~ Kunshan ~ Kunshan ~ Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real estate Development development 300,000,000 300,000,000
(o, Ltd. and sales
BAREGLIRMERE BT RLT  BHERR AER ARE
BRA REE 300000000 300000000
Tianjin Tongcheng Real Estate ~ Timjn~~ Tiamjn~ Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, Ltd. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales
RERAESAROA RET O RET BHERE AR®  ARE
Rigg 50,000,000 50,000,000
Befing Zhongzhi Dingfu Befing  Beiing  Investment RMB RVB 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate Co, Ltd. Management 100,000,000 100,000,000
("Befing Zhongzhidingfu’)
YRRESRRMEREAR MRm MR REER AEE  ARE
RAIATRIRESE]) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Bejing Tiancheng Befing  Befing  Propery RMB RV = 50 - 50 - 60 - 60
Yongyuan Investment development  1,997,109,000 1,997,109000
Management Co, Lt and sles
('Tiancheng Yongyuan”)
YRRBATERERAT  Em MR RMERE AEE  ARE
(WTRIRAR) REEE1,997,109000 1997,109000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMEREPERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRAPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)
(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREMF LT
incorporation or by other means B F AR ()
(Continued)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ATFERERS . INES ]
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
ZE-tk 50F Z5-tE 50F
iR ~AZTA +A=1-A ~AZ1A +A=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Diect  Indrect  Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
CE-tF IR ER BB OER OBk ER 0 BR ER MR
FhHEH TERE HfM ZEME #B=tR =R (%) (%) o) ) (%) (%) ) (%)
Tianjin Xingta Jiin Real Estate ~ Tiamin~~ Tianjn~~ Property RMB RV - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, Ltd development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales

REEFSAERERLA  AER RER BMERER  ARR ARW
i 50000000 50,000,000

Qingdao Guorin (note 52) ~ Qingdeo ~ Qingdao ~ Investment N/A B NA NA -0 NA NA -0
Management 10,000,000
FeBE(ER0) ERT  BBO  REER 78R AR¥
10,000,000
Beiing Chuangrui Xiangan ~~ Befjng ~ Beiing  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co, Lid. development 60,000,000 60,000,000
and sgles

YRERERESERAT MR MET BuERE ARE  ARE
hiE 60,000,000 60,000,000

Shanghai Songchaung Shanghal  Shanghal  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co, Ltd. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales

LEMEERARDT  LER LER  BMERR ARR  \RE
RHE 50000000 50000000

Befjng Ykaiyou Real Estate ~~ Befjng ~ Befing  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 10
(o, Ltd. development 20,000,000 20,000,000
and sales

bl FECH YU U N CUBMN - ARR  \RE
RHE 20000000 20000000

- o o
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEHMEERAESE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRRPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EKEEMBR(E)
(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BEHEREMFHXH
incorporation or by other means B F R A ()
(Continued)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AEERERLS ANARARLA
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
T2-1f 56 TE-1f 50
s RA=TH +ZA=1-A RA=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  hdret  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indrect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
“EtF 2§ BERE O OBE O ER MR O OERE  BR B W
FAA%E 1EREN e EERE ARZTE R ) ) ) ) % %) W)
Shanghai Capital Zhengheng ~ Shanghal ~ Shanghai  Property RMB RV 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate Co, Ltd. development 10,000,000 10,000,000
("Shanghai Znengheng")
LERSIERESARLT LT LER  BHERD MER ARE
(PRI LELE)) 10,000,000 10,000,000
Beiing Guijamao Real Estate ~ Befjng ~ Being  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o td. development 30,000,000 30,000,000
and sales

YFEERESERDE  MEM HET BuEEE ARE  ARE
it} 30,000,000 30,000,000

Tianji Xingta jhong Tanjn— Tnjn  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co, Ltd. development 30,000,000 30,000,000
and sales

REEFSMEREROA  R3H REF BuERR ABR  \RE
RHE 30000000 30000000

Bejjng Lianchuang Shengye ~~ Befjng  Befing  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Development development 10,000,000 10,000,000
(o, Ltd and sales
TRBHESEAERE  ART MR RHERE ARE  ARE
AR i 10,000,000 10,000,000
Chengdu Capital Zhenghua ~~ Chengdu ~ Chengdu ~ Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Redl Estate Co,Ltd. development 30,000,000 30,000,000
and sgles

IARIIEERRRLY A

=t
=
me
=3t

FHERE ARE  ARE
it 30,000,000 30,000,000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMEREPERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFLAPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BBHEL A M A

incorporation or by other means B F AR ()

(Continued)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ANARRRERLH AATRARLS
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
“E-tf 50 ZE-1f 3
ifER ~A=TH e ~A=TH +-A=1-H
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Diect  Indrect  Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
§tF 2§ BEE O OBE O ER MR O OERE BB B W
FA7%E TEEY S RERE RAZTR  Zf-R (%) G ) () (%) %) (%)
Befing Chuangrui Hua'an Befing  Beiing  Property RMB RV - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Etate o, Lid. development 30,000,000 30,000,000
and sales

YREREREEERAT MR MRT BuEE AR®  ARE
hiE 30,000,000 30,000,000

Befing Xujia Real Estate Beiing  Befing  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, ltd. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales

YFREEFERDE YET 4ED RUERE ARE  ARE
it} 50,000,000 50,000,000

Tianjin Xingtal Jsheng Tanjn— Tnjn ~ Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co, Ltd. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales

REBFSEEREROA  REF RER BMERE ABR  \RE
RHE 50000000 50000000

Tianjing Hongtai Weiye Tanjn— Tnjn ~ Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real state Co,, Lid. development 30,000,000 30,000,000

and sales
REERERRMERE  R¥ AW BuERE ARE  ARE
AR Rig 30,000,000 30,000,000
Shanghal Shouging Shanghal  Shanghal  Property RuB RAB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Redl Etate Co,, Lid. development 50,000,000 50,000,000

and sges

LEERERARAT & e RMERR ABR \RE
RHE 50000000 50000000

e=1i}

- o o
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

\

/

<. EEMETEROERE)

(1) EFRFAHRNERE)

(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EKEEMBR(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREM S L]
incorporation or by other means B F R A ()
(Continued)

Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
KATRERELA ANARARLA
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
T2-1f 56 T2-1f 55
s #A=TH +ZA=1-A #A=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  drect  Direct Indirect  Diet  Indect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
50
tF tDf ER OBE O ERE MR OBR OBR BE OME
148 1EREN B EERE Y - U B N Y N U R € B N YR €
Shanghai Shoupu Real Estate ~ Shanghal ~ Shanghai  Property RMB RV - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, Ltd. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sles
HEEREFARAT L&f LET  BMERE AEE  ARE
Rigg 5,000,000 50,000,000
Befing Tianzhiying Real Estate ~ Befjng  Beijng  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, ltd. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales
YRRREEFARAT YRT O ARD BHERE AER ARE
RiEg 5,000,000 50,000,000
Befjng Jnyifeng Real Estate ~~ Befjng  Befing  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, Ltd. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales
LREREEFERAT RT o ARE BHERE AEE ARE
Rigg 50,000,000 50,000,000
Befjng Baochitong Real Estate ~ Befjng ~ Befing  Property RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, Ltd. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales
YREHRESERAA YRm o fRE BAERE AEE  ARE
Rig 50,000,000 50,000,000
Shanghai Shouhu Ivestment ~ Shanghal  Shanghai  Property RMB RAB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, Ltd development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sles
LEERRERRAT LR LER BuERE ARE  ARE
RiE 50,000,000 50,000,000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEAMEERARELRE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFLAPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BBHEL A M A

incorporation or by other means B F AR ()

(Continued)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ANARRRERLS . INEYY A
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
TE-1f 50F TE-1f 56
- ~A=TH +-A=1-H ~A=TH +-A=1-H
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Diect  Indrect  Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
EnE
“EtF fZf BERE O OBE O ER MR O OERE  OBR B W
Fh7%E TEEY S RERE RAZTR  Zf-R (%) (%) %) (%) (%) %) % ()
Shanghai Shouyang Shanghai ~ Shanghai  Property RMB RV - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Ivestment Co,, Lid. development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales

LEERRERRDA HER HER RuERE AR®  ARE
hiE 50,000,000 50,000,000

Hangzhou Capital Outlets Hangzhou  Hangzhou  Property RMB RVB - Ny -8 - Ny -9
Real Estate Co, Lid. development 335,000,000 335,000,000
and
management
MNEERAREEEERAR T O RMERR ARE  ARE
RAEEE 335000000 335000000
Jiangyi Capital Outets Nanchang ~ Nanchang  Property RMB RVB - Ny -8 - Ny -9
Real Estate Co, Lid. development 459,000,000 459,000,000
("Jiangxi Outlets”) and sales
IREHRSRAERARAR B2 BET  RMERY AER  ARE
REE 459000000 459000000
Wuhan Juda Outlets Wehan ~ Wuhan  Property RMB RVB - - - -
Commercial Management development 208,000,000 208,000,000
(o, Ltd and
management
JEEHEARRERER  AET  MET RuERR ARE ARE
BRAR TEER 208,000,000 208,000,000

A7 =%
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEABRE FRERIFERIN -

SREMSARETIT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

\

/N

EHEAM TR T AES(#)

(1) EFRFAHRNERE)

(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EKEEMBR(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREM S L]
incorporation or by other means B F R A ()
(Continued)

Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AEERERLS ANARARLA
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
T2-1f 56 TE-1f 5N
s RA=TH +ZA=1-A RA=TH +ZA=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  hdret  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indrect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
“EtF 2§ BERE O OBE O ER MR O OERE  BR B W
FAA%E 1EREN e EERE ARZTE R ) ) ) ) % %) W)
Xian Shouju Commercia Xian Kian Property RMB RVB - Ny - NS - Ny -9
Development and development 335,000,000 335,000,000
Management Co, Ltd and
management
EEEFRERAERARAY BRT  ERT BUERE AEE  ARE
ROEEE 335000000 335000000
Thengzhou Juxin Outlets Thengzhou  Zhengzhou  Property RMB RV - Ny -8 - Ny -8
Industral Co,, Ltd. development 200,000,000 200,000,000
and
management
SipEERERERAT BT O EMEER ARE  ARE
REPEEE 200000000 200000000
Juyuan Xincheng (Tianjin) Tanjn — Tenjn  Management RMB RV 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Ivestment Commerdil and consulting 500,000,000 500,000,000
(o, Ltd.
BRGHRRIREERER RET R REEEREN  ARE ARE
RAATRBRESRE) 500,000,000 500,000,000
Juyuan Xincheeng (Tianjin) ~~~ Tiamjn~~ Tianjn~~ Wholesale RMB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Commerical Management 500,000,000 500,000,000
(o, Ltd. ("Juyuan Xingcheng
Investment”)
TREARREEARLT R REm HENEER AER  ARE
500,000,000 500,000,000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMERBPAELSE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRAPHERE)
(a) Component of the Company (Continued) (a) EEEMBR(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREMF LT

incorporation or by other means B F AR ()

(Continued)
Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
AEERERLS . INEYY ]
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
ZE-1f 5N TE-1f 50
ifER Y +-A=1-H RA=TH +-A=1-H
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Direct  ndrect  Direct Indirect  Diret  Indect
Name operation  registration business 017 216 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
5
§tF 2§ BERE O OBE O ER MR OEE  BR B W
FA7%E TEEEY S RERE RAZtE =1-H (%) I ) 5 I () I Y R 'Y R Y
Beiing Yongyuaning Beiing  Befing  Property RMB RuB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co, Lid. development 30,000,000 30,000,000
and sles

IRKREERARAT  HRR ARE BMERE ARR ARE
RHE 30000000 30000000

Shanghai Yujng RealEstate ~ Shanghal ~ Shanghai  Property RMB RV - 51 - 51 - 51 - 51
Development Co, Lid. development ~ 2,000,000,000° 2,000,000,000
("Shanghai Yujng") and sgles
HERERAEREARLT LA LR RMERE AER  ARE
(W8T Liswg)) REE 2000000000 2000000000
Shanghai Xuani Real Estate ~~ Shanghal ~ Shanghai  Property RMB RVB - 51 - 5 - 51 - 51
Development Co,, Ltd. development  2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
and sales

LEEBBMEREARDT LEh  LAT  BMERR ARR  \RE
RHE 2000000000 2000000000

Befjng Youda Real Estate Beiing  Befing  Property RMB RVB - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10
(o, Ltd. development 90,000,000 90,000,000
and sales

IREEERARAT TR MR RuERE ARE  ARE

R#E 90,000,000 90,000,000

Sap
=

Shangha Shoujing Ivestment ~ Shanghal  Shanghai  Property RuB RVB - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(o, Ltd development 50,000,000 50,000,000
and sales

LRETRERROT  LER  LER BMERE ARR \RE
RHE 50000000 50000000

- o o
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEABRE FRERIFERIN -

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

SREMSARETIT)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) Component of the Company (Continued)

N, EEMERPESE)

(1) EFRFAHRNERE)
(a) TEEEHBH(E)

(a3) Subsidiaries obtained through (a3) BAHEREM S L]
incorporation or by other means B F R A ()
(Continued)

Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
KLEFERER S ENGEYL A
Registered capital 30 June2017 31 December 2016 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
“E-tf I “E-tE I
s RA=1A t2A=1-A RA=1A t2R=1-A
Place of
main Placeof  Nature of 30June 31December  Direct Indirect  Diect  Indiect  Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect
Name operation  registration business 017 2016 (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
IE
BtE 1R ER OBE O ERORE BB OBR OER B
FhA%R IEASY dfp  EHeE RAZTR OB G G ) ) %) %) (%) (%)
Jinan Shouju Real Estate Jnan Jinan Property RN RMB 9 - 9 -
(o, td. development 210,000,000 210,000,000
and sales
EYREEARLA Egm o BT BAERE ARE  ARE
REE 210000000 210,000,000
Hefei Chuzngju Outets Hef  Hefel  Property RMB RMB 9 - 19 -
Commercial Management development 800,000,000 800,000,000
(o, L1d. and sales
ARHERRERERARLA AT AER  BHERE ARE  ARE
REE 800000000 800,000,000
Bejing Yangreng Bijng  Bejng  Propery RV (7— SR . WA WA
(Note 5(2) development 500,000,000
and sales
FrlsEaQ) 76 4RT BHERE ARE
g 500,000,000
Chongaing Shouju Chongging  Chongaing ~ Property RMB NA 9 NA NA 9 NA NA
(Note 52) development 200,000,000
and sales
EREE(R0) BT ERT  BHERE AR
REE 200000000
Kunming Outlets Kunming ~ Kunming  Property RMB NA 620 NA NA 620 NA NA
(Note 512) development 10,000,000
and sales
ERER(HR0) BAT BET BAERE ARE
Jigs 10,000,000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMEETAER )
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFAThHERE)
(b) Subsidiaries with significant non- (b) BEEESERAEENTA
controlling interests =i
(b1) Non-controlling interests from (b1) HEERREBEELE
common equity interests EELEREENNF
AT
Dividends

Loss distributed
Equity attributable to non-

interests tonon  controlling
portion held  controlling interests Non-
bynon- interests for forthe  controlling
controlling thesix  six months interests
interests months ended ended as at
(%) 30June2017 30June 2017 30 June 2017

Bz
“B-tF B2

REZTAL I3t
AEREE  AASTAL 3-tf

SBRRM BER AMERHE AAZTA

KREH SERR moURR SRR

Name FRRER (%) 5 DRER B
Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 45 (3.701) - 269,540
Tianjin Xingang R 45 (3,008) - 184,644
Chengdu Yidu ek 45 (10,283) - 397,793
Tiancheng Yongyuan NG 50 (7,822) - 1,588,749
Shanghai Yujing Lk 49 (1,628) - 975,054
Total GHI (26,502) - 3,415,780
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMEEPERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRRPHERE)
(b) Subsidiaries with significant non- (b) FEEEI>EREERRZNTFA
controlling interests (Continued) A(E)
(b1) Non-controlling interests from (b1) AEZEBERREBERFE
common equity interests (Continued) EZLHERRERZNF
AE(E)
The financial information of partly- TMBEZEL2E T LA
owned subsidiaries above for the B EZ0BERS RN
current period: N
Financial information as at 30 June 2017
ZE-tEXAZTREERR
Non- Non-
Current  current Total  Current  current Total
assets  assets  assets liabilities liabilities liabilities
E k) E k)
REEE B EERT  NBER B 8fa
Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 1,028,150 2,778 1,030,928 431,951 - 431,951
Tianjin Xingang PN 516,638 107 516,745 106,424 - 106,424
Chengdu Yidu KA 1,080,770 10 1,080,780 196,795 - 196,795
Tiancheng Yongyuan RAATE 740,862 4,611,466 5,352,328 275,775 1,899,055 2,174,830
Shanghai Yujing e 5,703,823 2,284 5,706,107 3,716,201 - 3,716,201
Financial information as at 31 December 2016
“EAETZAZ-BEERR
Non- Non-
Current — current Total  Current  current Total
assets assets assets liabilities  liabilities liabilities
£ 30 E 30
TEEE EE EEART TBERE B BEAF
Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 891,969 56 892,025 284823 - 284823
Tianjin Xingang REHE 1,075,950 36 1075986 658,848 - 6583848
Chengdu Yidu R ZEEE 1079416 19,631 1,099,047 192,211 - 192211
Tiancheng Yongyuan FEAKTT 684,405 4412611 5097016 800,387 1,103,487 1,903,874
Shanghai Yujing Lisuie 5461345 2,257 5463602 3,470,374 - 3470374
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, HEMFERBPAELSE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRAPHERE)
(b) Subsidiaries with significant non- (b) FEEELSHRIEZNTA
controlling interests(Continued) B(#&)
(b1) Non-controlling interests from (b1) AEBERREBERFE
common equity interests (Continued) EZLHERFRERZNF
AE (&)
The financial information of partly- TMBEZEEE T LA
owned subsidiaries above for the period WEFEMBEEIRN
(Continued) : T(E) -

Financial information for the six months ended

30 June 2017

BEZR-tERAZTRALABARBEHRR
Cash flows
Total from
comprehensive operating
Revenue Net loss loss activities
feiEy
XA BEE BRERER RERE
Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 430 (8,225) (8,225) 37,529
Tianjin Xingang KA 14,184 (6,818) (6,818) (679,098)
Chengdu Yidu g = (22,851) (22,851) 5,192
Tiancheng Yongyuan AT - (15,644) (15,644) 1,451,112
Shanghai Yujing LEi#E - (3322) (3322) -

Financial information for the six months ended

30June 2016
HEZZ— "5 A=A E A BREE HA
Cash flows
Total from
Net  comprehensive operating
Revenue profit/loss) profit/loss) activities

R/ Feks/ L)
L2300 (B8)  (BR)4# Reng

Tianjin Xinyuan KEHE 59,409 3,704 3704 (12,89)
Tianjin Xingang REME 137,691 95526 9526 104,504
Chengdu Yidu REED 75,602 (17,919) (17,919) (23,761)
Tiancheng Yongyuan AT - 396,755 396,755 (24,052)
Shanghai Yujing LhnE - - - (5,450,000)
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEABRE FRERIFERIN -

SREMSARETIT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-
controlling interests (Continued)

(b2) Equity instruments issued by

N, EEAMERFAESE)

(1) EFRARWERE)

(b) FEERLEERREZNTLD
R(#&)

(b2) 7R AIH I FAITHIH M

subsidiaries of the Group EHZTAH
Profit
attributed
to non-
controlling Dividends
interests  distributed Non-
for the forthe  controlling
six months  six months interests
ended ended as at
30 June 2017 30 June 2017 30 June 2017
S
—E-tF 8z
AAE=THL -l of -3
~MEAHE AA=tAHL
BER ~MEBHE —E-tF
DHRRH mPERR ~A=1H
B PRRE  DBERRER
Senior perpetual securities  FRFEITEH
issued by subsidiary (i) KEEH() 223,624 225,722 4,962,843
Perpetual convertible bond ~ FRAFEITKA
securities issued by AR B (i)
subsidiary (ii) 47 - 945,244
Total A&t 223,671 225,722 5,908,087
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6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMERAPNERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (1) EFRAPHERE)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-
controlling interests (Continued)

(b2) Equity instruments issued by

(b) FHEERIERREZNTLD

R(#)

(b2) 72 A|# 4P R 1T RY A fth

subsidiaries of the Group (Continued) E&HTAE)
(i) As of 30 June 2017, Central Plaza issued (i) HE-ZT—-—tH& XA
Senior Perpetual Securities amounted to =+ B - Central Plaza

USD850,000,000. The securities were
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Pursuant to the terms of Perpetual
Securities, the Group has no contractual
obligation to repay its principal or to pay

2 5t % 17 850,000,000
ETRMKBEES - %
BEAAEEETFA
AIRMHER AEEAE
HEBIRAEERNS

any distribution. The Perpetual Securities do o 2 AT 9 R FLE Y
not comply with the definition of financial BRET  BUZES
liabilities and are classified as equity VAHEERAENTE

instruments by the Group. Subsequent
distribution declared will be treated as
dividend to non-controlling shareholders.

As the issuer, Central Plaza may elect to
defer distribution without any frequency
limitations only if Central Plaza and the
Company do not declare or pay dividends.
Including:

In April 2013, Central Plaza issued
Senior Perpetual Securities amounted
to USD400,000,000, equivalent to
RMB2,506,000,000, at a distribution
rate of 8.375% per annum. And non-
controlling interests amounted to
RMB2,333,945,000 was recognized after
deducting the relevant costs and inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In November 2014, Central Plaza issued
Senior Perpetual Securities amounted
to USD450,000,000, equivalent to
RMB2,759,625,000, at a distribution
rate of 7.125% per annum under the
Medium Term Note and Perpetual
Securities Program. After deducting
relevant issuance costs, the Group received
RMB2,728,222,000 and recognized
non-controlling interests amounted to
RMB2,628,898,000 net of the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

- EAKEAGHER
WRABLEB RS
HEEIRAE RS AL A
e R Y D B RH T B
DECRIE -

%?:J/\Central Plaza AJ
BIEBRESA - ELER
HAZEMBRS - B
Central Plaza 5 & 2 7]
FERIZAERF - BT
BERE D AT - Erp -

RZFT—=FWA -
Central Plaza % 77 B &
/%400,000,000% 7T * #r
A AR #2,506,000,000
THRBKEES - F
& 58375% &%
B A kA TER KK
AR B DALE -
ROHB R R AR
2,333,945,0007T °

WZZT—mE+—F8 -
Central Plaza 18 &
B =R ok B At
&l - % 17 450,000,000
ExT  WMAEARE
2,759,625,000 7T 8 &
WMoKBEES - FEFE
7.125% - B EEE

ArBBESTHAEAR
& 2,728,222,000 7T
MBRAIBRERRTA
BEH DAL HER
LHBRRER AR ﬁ%
2,628,898,0007T °
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EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-
controlling interests (Continued)

(b2) Equity instruments issued by
subsidiaries of the Group (Continued)

(ii)

In November 2016, Capital Grand entered
into a subscription agreement with a fully-
owned subsidiary of Sino-Ocean Group
Holding Limited (hereinafter “Sino-Ocean”)
and KKR CG Judo Outlets (hereinafter
"KKR") to issue 95,192,308 ordinary
shares to Sino-Ocean and KKR respectively.
Meanwhile, Capital Grand issued perpetual
convertible bonds securities (the “PCBS”) in
the principal amounts of HKD657,594,260
to Sino-Ocean and in the principal amounts
of HKD420,096,153 to KKR.

The Group has no contractual obligation
to repay the principal or pay any assigned
interests, and the instrument will or may
not be settled in a variable number of
equity instruments. Therefore, the PCBS
does not comply with the definition
of financial liabilities. The principal
deducted by issuance cost amounted to
RMB945,197,000 was recognized as non-
controlling interests in the consolidated
financial statements. Subsequent
distribution declared will be treated as
dividend to non-controlling interests.

For six months ended 30 June 2017, profit
attributed to non-controlling interests
amounted to RMB47,000.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

TN

7EEC A 2 BB R A0 2

fm (

(1) EFRFAHRNERE)
(b) FEEERIEERREZNTLD

R(#&)

(b2) 7R AIH 5P R 1T RY A ftE
#ETAE)

(i)

RZZE—RFE+—A -
HEERBEERFEE
EBRBERRABIZEEA
FRA(ATHEIER
FEE]) RKKRCG
JUDO OUTLETS (JA 78
[KKR])Z TR -
53 5l [\ 3R ¥ & B B KKR
217 E A% 95,192,308
B - BB H Al K
3R ¥ & B & KKR
TR AT Rk EH
KEeSEIRABE
657,594,260 7T & &
420,096,1537C °

AEBEGHERILE
EBEAS LI MEMD
MRS SR=F-OF: % )
BAXMNAZHENE
=T HETEE Bt
oK A A B R 5B A T
HaemaENTES
AEMBREITBRER
A A R # 945,197,000
TEASBEAHEEE
REVERFEERS - &
=5k A D AR RIME
BELEBRRNFES
FoRTE o

BE_Z—tFRA
=+ HIEARERBE -
BERLBEBRROER
RANER¥EAT,0007T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, HEMFERBPAELSE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEAELENBELEPNER
associates
(a) Basic information of significant Joint (a) EERELENBELENE
ventures and Associates BER
Strategic
to the
Group's
operation
Place of main Place of Legal Nature of HEEEH  Registered 30 June 2017
Businesstype  operation  registration representative business =HAR capital ZE-tEXB=1H
i ohil TELLH i EAR EHNHE {1 HMHER Shared interest Voting right
KR TABHLA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)  Direct (%) Indirect (%)
EE(%)  BE%)  BEE%)  BE%)

Joint ventures
e
Shenyang Jitian Limited Shenyang  Shenyang ~ HuWeimin ~ Property Yes usb - 20 - 0
Company development and 40,000,000
sales
EBEX EREERA  ERA E5T HER FHEREREE & eI
40,000,000
Capital Jiaming ()~ Limited Beijing Bejing He Chunxing  Land Primary Yes RMB - 35 - 35
Company Development and 175,000,000
Sales
) ERELLT  MRA by &R H-GEE R N
R 175,000,000
Zhuhai Hengain Limited Zhuhai Zhuhai NA Investment Yes RMB - 67.5 - 3333
Chengdu Weihua ~ Partnership Management 15,000,000
Fund (i)
RERERHEE ERABLE KA TR NaR REEE £ N
E2(i) 15,000,000
Shanghai Shoujia (iv) ~ Limited Shanghai Shanghai HuWeimin ~ Property Yes RMB - 60 - 60
Company development and 100,000,000
sales

A7 =%
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEHMEERAESE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEELENBETERNER
associates (Continued) (&)
(a) Basic information of significant Joint (a) EERELENBELENE
ventures and Associates (Continued) BES(E)
Strategic
to the
Group's
operation
Place of main Place of Legal Nature of HEEES  Registered 30 June 2017
Businesstype  operation registration  representative business RREE capital Z2-tERAZTA
i3 ITOEn  Efi EARR HBHE BBt &R Shared interest Voting right
KR TABHLA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)  Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%)  BE(%)  BE(C)  HE%)

Joint ventures
aEd%
LEEE() EREFRA LR b HER BHEREREE = N
100,000,000
Capital Qinglv (v) ~ Limited Kunshan Kunshan Hu Weimin Property Yes RMB - 51 - 57.14
Company development and 300,000,000
sales
BEIEN) EREERA  BUF B HER FHERZREE = N
300,000,000
Tianjin Lianjin (vi) ~ Limited Tianjin Tianjin Mao Tie Property Yes RMB - 25 - 25
Company development and 125,000,000
sales
REBE() BEREFAA  REM REM i FHERERHEE = ARH
125,000,000
Shanghai Zhiyue (vii) ~ Limited Shanghai Shanghai Wuweimin ~ Property Yes RVB - 50 - 50
Company development and 500,000,000
sales
EEER i) ERERAA  LER L& HER FHERERHE R AR
500,000,000
Tianjin Yongyuan (vii) Limited Tianjin Tianjin Jiang Hebin ~ Property Yes RVB - 30 - 333
Company development and 30,010,000
sales
REKTCvil) EREfAR  KEm KEM L) FHERERHE R ARE
30,010,000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIERS - SRELSARETIT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

N, EEMERPEDE)

(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and 2) EEEL¥NBELERWES
associates (Continued) (&)
(a) Basic information of significant Joint (a) EECELENBECENER
ventures and Associates (Continued) ER(&)
Strategic
tothe
Place of main  Place of Legal Group's Registered 30 June 2017
Businesstype  operation  registration representative Nature of business operation capital ZE-tERAZTA
HREED
RBEH
bEEN  IZEEW  if EAGE  ERME B EftER Shared interest Voting right
HRLA il
Direct (%) Indirect (%)  Direct (%) Indirect (%)
EE(%)  EE() BB BE(W)
Associates
Betz
Sunshine City Limited Company  Bejing Beijing YangNing  Properties development No RMB 35 - 3 -
Commercil and management 72,190,000
[ BRERRE  kEE TR LE hEBEREE 2 ARE
72,190,000
Shenyang Xinzi Limited Company Shenyang ~ Shenyang ~ Cao Yue Property development  Yes UsD - 30 - 30
and sales 92,500,000
BEHE RREfNR B BT Bl FHERERBE ® 3
92,500,000
Tianjin Xinging Limited Company ~ Tianjin Tianjin QinYi Praperty development  Yes UsD - 40 - Q0
and sales 95,000,000
REHE RREfRR  REm RET £ FHEREREE R £n
95,000,000
Tianjin Xinming Limited Company - Tianjin Tianjin WangWei  Property development Yes UsD - 40 - 40
and sales 95,000,000
REHH EREFAA  RED R T FHEFERBE R i
95,000,000
Zhongguancun Limited Company  Bejing Beijng Migo Jun Praperty development  Yes R\B - 50 - 50
Integrated Circus and sales 1,000,000,000
Garden (i)
PERER RREALR  dtmm FRE £E FHERERBE # NEH
SRR 1,000,000,000
Zhuhai Henggin Limited Partnership Zhuhai Zhuhai /A Investment Yes RMB - 304 - 333
Ruiyuan Jiaing Management 51,000,000
Fund (i)
KWEEERTER ARABLX KD %ET I¥chi e 3 NEH
E&(ii) 51,000,000

Investments in above equity are accounted for

using the equity method.

AEEY bR BRI R A
WAL -

= AR ROERLT —T - tEEHES
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and
assoclates (Continued)

(a) Basic information of significant Joint
ventures and Associates (Continued)

(0

(i)

In May 2013, the Group acquired 35% equity
interests in Shouchuang Jiaming by capital
injection. According to the Articles of Association
of Shouchuang Jiaming, decisions about the
relevant activities of Shouchuang Jiaming require
the unanimous consent of the Group and other
shareholders sharing control therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.

Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu Weihua Fund is
limited partnership established by Zhuhai
Henggin Fund Management Company as
the general partner(“GP") in 2015, and the
Group subscribes 22.52% of the intermediate
units in the Fund, which holds 100% equity
interests in Chengdu Jinhui Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Chengdu Jinhui”). The fund has a
total scale of 1,200,000,000 shares amounted
to RMB1,200,000,000. In 2016, the Fund paid
the capital and fixed earnings to senior limited
partners and the Group, as the intermediate
partners, and the capital to subordinate limited
partners. The Group reclassified such amount
to other receivables. In 2017, Zhuhai Henggin
Fund Management Company, the original
GP withdrew from the partnership and was
replaced by Zhuhai Hengqin Chuangyuan Huijin
Fund Management Company (hereinafter
“Chuangyuan Huijin”). The fund has a total
scale of 400,000,000 shares amounted to
RMB400,000,000. Of which 270,000,000 shares
were purchased by the Group. According to the
partnership agreement, the Group and Beijing
Chuangyuanhui Assets Management Co., Ltd.
(parent company of Chuangyuan Huijin, and also
the new senior limited partner) share the control
over Chuangyuan Huijin jointly, and the partners
still have the right to share extraneous earnings of
the Fund, therefore the fund is still recognized as a
joint venture.
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N, EEM TR

(2) EEELENBELEPNES

(&)

(a) EEAELENBELXNE
BEE(E)

)

(if)

RZZE—=FEA A£EA
BIEEIMG B A H35% K
#OERBEEERH#HATE
T8 o A SR R E A BR R AR
BRSSO ERIEE - Bt
BEERAELERE -

KERERMBEEE S BKE
HEESBTEBRAFEAR
EBABPAR_ZT—AEEHR
BRINEREELE - K
SERBEKREESHMESE
HE2252% MR EAMDE -
ZESHEAEXNMLERIBREE
EHERAT (AT [ E S
E1)100% Mt - BEEHRE
7 1,200,000,000 1 © # % %8
A A R ¥ 1,200,000,000 7T °
RZT—RNEE  REFEEK
HEEFESREBEEATES
B XA TEABRRAEE
BAENPHELEEBEANREARN
EREERE UWRAEEE
ARE o REE A AU H
EBEENFRELBEKSMDE
BEHOEEHMERR -RZF
—tF  KEEEKSREER
SHREBABAKREGBEEES
EEARANARY - REEH
WE B FNLTBAEEA
BEAKESEERTESEE
EEBRAF(ATEIET
EBel) ZESBEERER
400,000,0001% * #EEAAR
#400,000,0007T, * HPAEH
B %8 £270,000,00010 ° 1R
BEBHEEERE  A%E
HiLFAITTEEAEREERA
RI(BITESME QR - FTNE
EMAREIKA) ELREZGIEIT
EEWBB@EE  SREBA
MEEKREEEREREEES
Bk oiiE  BEAEE
MGEIEAREELEZRE -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIERS - SRELSARETIT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES 7.

(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and
associates (Continued)

(a) Basic information of significant Joint
ventures and Associates (Continued)

(ii) (Continued)

According to the partnership agreement, the
distribution order is as follows: The general
partner enjoy distributing initial investment firstly.
If there is excess distributable earnings after the
above distributions, the fund should distribute
the income to the partners based on the agreed
portion of the partnership agreement.

EEAMERT A ES(#)

(2) EEELENBELEPES

(%)

(a) EERELENBELENE
BiER(#)
iy  (#)

RIEABHE  EENOERIR
FoT  EEDREBEEA
MEEAS  ENAA DR
B o BIIRMEBMENE
ML PIR R BAEBADE

: Eﬁﬂgiﬂﬁfﬁﬁl‘ﬁ T—? tﬁqﬂﬁﬁiﬁ‘t
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and
associates (Continued)

(a) Basic information of significant Joint
ventures and Associates (Continued)

(iii)

Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan Jialing Fund is limited
partnership established by Zhuhai Hengqin Fund
Management Company as the general partner in
2014, and the Group subscribe 20.73% of the
intermediate units in Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan
Jialing Fund, which holds 100% equity interests
in Chongging Shouhui Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Shouhui Real Estate”). The fund has
a total scale of 2,200,000,000 shares amounted
to RMB2,200,000,000. In 2016, according to
Shouhui Real Estate’s financial condition, the Fund
settled the investment capital and distributable
earnings of senior and intermediate limited
partners, and paid the capital to senior limited
partners with fixed earnings. For the six months
ended 30 June 2017, the Fund paid the capital
to the intermediate limited partners, which is
the Group with fixed earnings. In 2017, Zhuhai
Henggin Fund Management Company, the
original GP withdrew from the partnership and
was replaced by Chuangyuan Huijin. The fund has
a total scale of 1,500,000,000 shares amounted
to RMB1,500,000,000. Of which 456,000,000
shares were purchased by the Group. According
to the partnership agreement, the Group has
significant influence on the Fund, therefore it is
classified as an associate of the Group.

According to the partnership agreement, the
distribution order at the clearing day and the
settlement day of the fund is as follows: senior
limited partners can get expected annual earnings,
and intermediate limited partners can get
expected fixed earnings, which is about 10%. The
senior limited partners enjoy distributing initial
investment and expected earnings firstly, followed
by distributing initial investment and expected
earnings to intermediate limited partners, then to
the subordinated limited partners, and lastly to
the general partners. If there is excess distributable
earnings after the above distributions, the fund
should distribute the income to the partners
based on the agreed portion of the partnership
agreement.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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6.

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and
associates (Continued)

(a) Basic information of significant Joint
ventures and Associates (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Group held 60% equity interests of Shanghai
Shoujia. According to the articles of association
of Shanghai Shoujia, the significant operation
policies require unanimous consent and Shanghai
Shouijia is recognized as a joint venture of the
Group.

The Group hold 51% share of Capital Qinglv.
According to the articles of association of Capital
Qinglv, the significant operation policies require
unanimous consent and Shanghai Shoujia is
recognized as a joint venture of the Group.

In 2016, the Group set up Tianjin Lianjin together
with other shareholders and the Group holds
25% equity interests of the company. According
to the article of association, the Group and other
shareholders share the control over Tianjin Lianjin
jointly, therefore it is recognized as a joint venture.

In 2016, the Group set up Shanghai Zhiyue
together with other shareholders and the Group
holds 50% equity interests of the company.
According to the article of association, the Group
and other shareholders share the control over
Shanghai Zhiyue jointly, therefore it is recognized
as a joint venture.

\

/\.

FHMEREAPERE)

(2) EEELENBELEPES

(#)

(a) EERELENBELENE
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vy ZAEEHBLEERE0%RK
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B LBERIEREERR
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HtEERAERERE -

v ATEEFBHASTKRS1%K
o BRBEASKRORAE
B BABRZEREERR
FRETER-HEAERBRS
HUt#EERA ERERE -

Vi) RZT—AEE AfEHEH
fRREE R XREE - K2
BEARRERE  WHEH
25%[XHE - REBEABER X
SRR AR N ELERAR
SEEEMBRFE-HRABEES
R AMHEHEAAED
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Vi) RZTE—RFE AEESEH
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
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6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and
associates (Continued)

(a) Basic information of significant Joint
ventures and Associates (Continued)

(viii)

(ix)

In January 2017, the Group entered into an
agreement with Zhuhai Siping Investment
Consultation LLP.(hereinafter “Siping
Investment”) to jointly develop the Wuging No.19
plot, which was obtained by Tianjin Yongyuan
in December 2016. According to the agreement
and since the signing date, the Group holds 30%
equity interests of the Wuging No.19 plot project
while Siping Investment holds 70%, and the
Group share the control over Tianjin Yongyuan
jointly with Siping Investment. Therefore, Tianjin
Yongyuan is de-consolidated as at 10 January
2017 and recognized as a joint venture of the
Group. Unrealized gains from downstream
transactions between Tianjin Tongcheng and
Tianjin Yongyuan are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's equity interests in Tianjin Yongyuan
as at 30 June 2017, which is amounted to
RMB9,003,000.

The Group holds 50% equity interests in
Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit Garden.
According to the Articles of Association of
Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit Garden, the
decision of Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit
Garden need the unanimous consent, otherwise,
the Group need to follow the other shareholders’
decision. According to the concerted action
agreement, the Group have significant influence
on Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit Garden and
it is recognized as an associate.
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6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMEETRERE)

(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) EEELENBELEPHER

associates (Continued) (%)

(b) Key financial information of significant (b) EERELENTENKRER

joint ventures
Zhuhai Henggin Zhuhai Henggin
Shenyang Jitian Shouchuang Jiaming ~ Ruiyuan Jialing Fund ~ Chengdu Weihua Fund Shanghai Shoujia
 CEP ELEE! KERERTEREE  HERENHREE LEER

30June 31December 30 June 31December  30June 31December  30June 31December 30 June 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE “BF CE-tE TN ZE-tF “EE CE-tF B F ZE-tE Ef
»B 1ZR ): I »B 1ZR "B tZR »B - 1ZR
R =Zt-A =t =t-R  =tA =t-A  =tR =t-A =t =f-A

Current assets THEE 130030 1507635 1926797 1833404 NARER 357273 3424230 2933777 19199 2,273,188
Indluding: cash and B RefiRe

cash equivalent N 14,937 9238 30627 30739 WARER 160485 971233 TR26TT 354143 307687
Non-current assets FrRYEE 52,840 32501 6,827 6327 NIATER 0 2,250 290 3,015 1,026
Total assets AEAH 186970 1540136 1933624 1840231 NARER 3572844 3426480 2934067 1965014 2274214
Current iabltes k=4 80941 1324176 260537 25464 NARER 13784 1695980 1153567 765318 963,047
Non-current abilties ~ JEREIAME 191,150 - 1194262 1135248 NAREE 2200000 1730500 1780500 316000 650,000
Total liabilties 8E4; 2000 134176 1454799 1360712 NATER 3572844 3426480 2934067 1081328 1,613,047

Atibutable to owners of - EERSATRE
the Company Ex 50% 50% 35% 3%  NATER 40% 40% 40% 60% 60%

Netassets calculated by~ R3¢ i+ B4
the percentage of shares  FEE )
holding (i) 107,440 107980 167589 167832 N/ATER 956 (1,063) 1458 530212 396,700
Reconciiation items ERE
- Unrealized profitfom - RERHAER
intrargroup ransaction % (184) (1820 (1660  (166) NATER (96) 1063 (148 : -

Book value of investment A E M EIRER)
injoint ventures FHEE 105506 106,154 165927 166170 N/ATER - - - 530212 39,700
Marketvalueof oint ~~ EAFHENAS
ventures (Public PERENAARE WARER NATER WATER NATER WATRER NATER  WATER  NATER  WATER  NATER
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMEREPAELSE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) EEELENBECETRNER
associates (Continued) (&)
(b) Key financial information of significant (b) EESELENTEVKRER
joint ventures (Continued) (#&)
Capital Qinglv Tianjin Lianjin Shanghai Zhiyue Tianjin Yongyuan
BHER REHE LEEH REAT

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt TR AF SR-tE R ZRtF ZF N SR-tE D3R
~A =R ~A 1A A =R ~A 2R
=t =1-A =tR  =f-A =t =1-H =tR  =f-A

Current assets TEEE 540450 739359 4,087,019 3545757 2133902 2,637,383 1787713  NATER
Including: cash and A ReRRe

cash equivalent ZEY 37,58 10621 98598 719000 16611 139,641 80 NATER
Non-Current assets FRYEE - - I 79 266 21 - NANER
Total assets BEA 540450 739359 4,087,000 3545836 2134168 2637404 1787713 NATEE
Current liabiltes NN 69199 267335 2380411 943625 3487 506266 1,757,703 NATER
Non-current liabiltes FrRBBE - - 1600000 2488612 1633000 1,633,000 - NATER
Totalliabiltes BEa 69199 267335 3980411 3432237 1636487 2139266 1757703  NATER

Attributable to ownersof ~ EERBARRE
the Company Ex 51% 51% 25% 25% 50% 50% 0% NANER

Net assets calculated by~ &35k Bzt &4
the percentage of shares S EAERE()

holding (i) 240,338 240,732 26,670 28,400 248,841 249,069 9,003 NATER
Reconcilation items AEER
-Unrealized profitfrom  —RBRFAER
intra-group transaction - - - - - - (9,003 NATER

Book value of investment in - $f4 20 £5 A

joint ventures GEER 20338 240732 26670 28400 208841 249,069 - NATER
Market value of joint FELRBERNSS
ventures (Public) PERBNAAEE  NATEE  NATER  NATEER  NATER  NATEER  NATER  NATEE  NATER
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMEREPERE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) EEELENBECETRNER
associates (Continued) (%)
(b) Key financial information of significant (b) EESELENTEVEREER
joint ventures (Continued) (#&)

Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan ~ Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu Weihua

Shenyang Jitian Capital Jiaming Jaling Fund Fund Shanghai Shoujia
EREX EEEH KERERTERES RERERHELES LEER
Six months Sikmonths ~ Sixmonths Sikmonths ~ Sixmonths Sikmonths ~ Sixmonths Sikmonths ~ Sixmonths Six months
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended

30June2017  30June2016  30June2017  30June2016  30June2017  30June2016  30June2017  30June2016  30June2017  30June 2016
Bz HE BE HE BZ HE BE EE BE B
3-tF TN I3-tF R CEtFE TR Bt CEhE IR-tR CRE
#R=tR  AAZTA AA=TR AA=tA RABSTR AAStR AAETE AASTR ARETR ARt
tABREE  LAEAER  LAEAEE  EAER  LABAEE  LEREM  LAERER  LAERER  LAEAEE  LRANR

Revenue LN 13,059 - - - NATER - - - 72,259 -
Interest incomelexpense) BRRA/(BR) 2 L 181 08 NARER 561 2) 4516 1,568 2683
Income tax expenses FEHER 359 48 - - NIATER B 20 7349 (74173) -
Net s fprofit B(ER)/HE (1,080) (1299 (695) (L13)  NIATER (3,103 (6,041) am s (2943)
Other comprefensive income ~~~ EgA 4% - - - - NATER - = - = -
Total comprehensive Ba(Be)/ hing

(lossfincome (1,080) (1295) (695) (1143 NIATER (3.105) (6,041) 2,04 W50 (2.945)
Dividends from joint REERERE

ventures REAELENET = - - - NABER - - - : -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and
associates (Continued)

(b) Key financial information of significant
joint ventures (Continued)

Shouchuang Qinglv
ERIEHR
Sixmonths  Six months
ended ended
30June 2017 30 June 2016
BZ S
ZE-tE ZEF

~A=tE  R~A=TH
IEABEAEE I ERHRE

N, EEMER

HAE o ()

(2) EEELENBELEPHES

(&)
(b) EERELENTIEUKESR
(#&)
Tianjin Lianjin Shanghai Zhiyue Tianjin Yongyuan
PR ) LEEH REAT
Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths
ended ended ended ended ended ended
30June 2017 30June 2016 30June 2017 30June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Bz S BZ HE Bz e
2t BN ZE-tE B ZE-tE B
AAETE  ~A=tHE  ®A=tR  A~A=TR AA=TA ~A=tA

EAARHE NERSE ILABARE

ILARAER LAERSE ILARASE

Revenue BEIA 1,673 43,663 - - - NATER - NANEE
Interest income/lexpense) — BEFEUA pi] 200 2,653 119 % NAREA - NATER
Income tax expenses FEHER 39 (1,747) - - - NATEA - NATEA
Net (loss)profit 2R/ (mm) 5,239 (6,921) (1,765) (456)  NATER - NATER
Other comprehensive income  E-fifz 4 Mz - - - - - NATER - NARER
Total comprehensive e(BR)/haeE
(loss)income (m) 5239 (6,921) (1,765) (456)  NATER - NATER
Dividends from joint ventures & EA£ERE 380
REALAEHRA - - - - - NATER - NATER
(i)  The Group, based on the amount assigned to () AEELEECESHTE

owners of the Company in the consolidated
financial statements of joint ventures, calculates
asset proportion by its shareholding.

The amount in the consolidated financial
statements of joint ventures has taken the
influence of the fair value of identifiable asset
and liability of the investee joint venture into
consideration and the unified accounting policies.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HEZT—+tFA=THIEAEASRE (BREFRIZRAN - @BBEMLAARETIT)
6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMEFERBPERE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) EEELENBECETRNER
associates (Continued) (&)
(c) Key financial information of significant () EEBRELENTEHNRER
associates
Yangguanyuan Shenyang Xinzi Tianjin Xinqing
Br%E BB REHE
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZEtE ZB-RF ZE-tE ZERF ZE-tE ZEZE
~A A AR e ~A +t2A
=tH Zt-H =t Zt-B  ZtR  Zt-H
Current assets MEEE 286,935 295,421 973814 1324169 667,196 667,387
Including: cash and A BeARg
cash equivalent =&Y 13,288 7143 9,157 5,079 4,125 10,776
Non-current assets EEHEE 1,061,933 1,022,720 20 20 6 2
Total assets EEA 1,348,868 1,318,141 973,834 1,324,189 667,202 667,889
Current liabilities VL 55,124 50,861 69,372 422,664 3,102 3,773
Non-current liabiliies ~ FEREIEE 717,637 721,292 - - - -
Total liabilties BEAH 772,761 772,153 69,372 422,664 3,102 3,773
Attributable to owners of  EERBATRE
the Company ey 35% 35% 30% 30% 40% 40%
Net assets calculated by s st E60
the percentage of shares FEENE()
holding (i) 201,638 191,096 271,339 270,458 265,640 265,646
Reconcliation items Fusg
- Unrealized profit from - 5AER
intra-group transaction 7% (555) (555) (3.279) (3249 (521) (521)
Book value of investment - ${B& M £ E
in joint ventures MEREER 201,083 190,541 268,060 267,209 265,119 265,125
Market value of FEARBENE
associates (Public PERENDAEE NATER  NATER  NATER  NARER  NARER  NAER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

assocC

EHEAM TR T AES(#)

/\.
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) EEELENBELEFNER
iates (Continued) (%)
(c) Key financial information of significant () EEHECENTIEUBRES
associates (Continued) (%)
Zhongguancun Integrated  Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan
Tianjin Xinming Circus Garden Jialing Fund
REHH TENEHERE REEERIERES
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tf IR ZE-tE ZEE 0 ZE-tE 0 I35
~A =R AA =R y: =R
ZtR  =t-H =tR =t =tE =t
Current assets RHEE 123,478 730859 1851838 1648194 3446233  NANER
Including: cash and A BeARE
cash equivalent ZEM 14,348 18,242 221,068 130,279 134912 NANER
Non-current assets FrgaE 19,886 18515 1,587,586 1,496,771 07 NANER
Total assets BEAH 743,364 749374 3439424 3144965 3446440  NANER
Current liabilities RHAE 131,179 133,076 283,186 161963 1,246,440  NATNER
Non-current ligbilities ~ #r#aE - - 251909 233595 2,200,000  NATER
Total liabilities BEAS 131,179 133076 2,802,205 2497917 3446440  NAMER
Attributable to owners of EBRIAZRE
the Company B 40% 40% 50% 50% 0% NATER
Net assets calculated by fgiTRst flstE4)
the percentage of shares  FEERE()
holding (i) 244,874 246,519 318,564 323524 - NANER
Reconciliation items ABEE
- Unrealized profit from  —pE%55E%
intra-group transaction 7% @19 119 - - - NAVER
Book value of investment - &2 MEHERIVES
in joint ventures FAEE 242,095 243,740 318,564 323524 - NANER
Market value of associates A FHENEL %
(Public) BENDAEE NARER  NATER  NATER  NANER  NATER  NARER
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMEERHERE)

(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) EEELENBECETRNER

associates (Continued) (&)

(c) Key financial information of significant () EEHECENTIEUBKESR

associates (Continued) (#&)
Sunshine City Commercial Shenyang Xinzi Tianjin Xinqing
BE% BRI R#iE

Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths
ended ended ended ended ended ended

30 June 2017 30June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BZ HE S S BE Hz
“E-tE B CE-tE B RE CE-tE ZBE
AB=tR AA=tH ~A=tE  A~R=tHE #”B=tR ~A=TH
EAEASE (AEASE  LAERHE  LSBARE  LABASE  LERERE

Revenue =30 22,032 10,628 25,336 50,713 - -
Interest (expense)/income  ErF5(BR) /A (13,368) (17550) 57 - 16 29
Income tax expenses ~ FEREBR - (7,636) (979) (3,192) 5 2%
Net profitf(oss) FHE/ (B8) 30,119 3,288 2,936 9,575 (15) (75)
Other comprehensive — ffig Al

income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive &4 /(588

incomef{[oss) 30,119 3,288 2,936 9,575 (15) (75)

Dividends from associates 7@ AR E
el - - - - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEABRE FRERIFERIN -

SREMSARETIT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES 7.

(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and

associates (Continued)

(c) Key financial information of significant

associates (Continued)

FHMEEPMER®E)

(2) 5%
= (E)
EEBRELCENEIRMBE

B(#&)

(c)

Zhongguancun Integrated

EEMBEDERNE

Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan

Tianjin Xinming Circus Garden Jialing Fund
RENH HENERERE KERERTERES
Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths
ended ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 2017 30June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BZ HE BZ Hz BE EE
“F-tE  Exf  ZE-tE  EE  ZE-tE T
~AZtR  AAZtE ABEtR ABZtE AAStR AAZHA
EAERSE  E~RASME  LAEAEE  LSERER  LAEAEE  LAEARE
Revenue EEIA 1,430 3,795 - NANER 305762 NIAMNER
Interest income HERA 34 U 1003 NARNER 1671 NATER
Income tax expenses  FTAHER 131 1,206 3307 NATNER 13619 NANER
Net loss FHR (4112) (3619) (99200 NATER (17172)  NATER
Other comprehensive  EfpizAls
income - - - NANER - NATER
Total comprehensive loss A E#E4% (4112) (3619 (99200  NATER (77172)  NATER
Dividends from associates ~EEASEIBINRE
el = - - NANER - NANER
(i) The Group, based on the amount assigned to (i) REB B S PES I

owners of the Company in the consolidated
financial statements of associates, calculates
asset share in proportion to the number of shares

owned.

The amount in the consolidated financial
statements of associates has taken the influence of
the fair value of identifiable net asset and liability of
the investee associates into consideration and the
unified accountant policies.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—TFRNA=TRIEANEABRE FRERIFERIN -

(Continued)

SREMSARETIT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMERBPAELSE)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2 EEECENBELEFHER
associates (Continued) (&)
(d) Summary information of insignificant (d) FTEESELENBELEN
joint ventures and associates EHEE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BE-Z—tHF HEZZT—F
/\H —+ E /\H _+ E
WERERAERE b7~ {8 A HRE
Joint ventures: BEE
Total book value of investment R &ABEEEEAT 525,474 546,628
Subtotals by the percentage of %1% B &A% . 1
shareholding STEMARTE
(Loss)/Profit for the period (i) E(EE),FIEG) (7,320) 3,211
Other comprehensive income (i) H#b4x4 Uz - -
Total comprehensive e (B1E) e
(loss)/income ke (7,320) 3,211
Associates: T
Total book value of investment & &BEEEES 101,452 22,020
Subtotals by the percentage of TEIJRIEEHFH%:HEIJ
shareholding FTEREETH
Loss for the period (i) @Eﬁ,ﬂ( ) (119) (156)
Other comprehensive income (i) H#b4R4& UrzE() = -
Total comprehensive loss FAERESE (119) (156)
(i) The calculation of net profit and other (i) FAEMEMGE REEEZE
comprehensive income has taken the market value EBRGRERASREEMA
of recognized assets and liabilities at acquisition [EGOAY {“TEDA&%%—‘;%BZ
date and its accounting policy adjustments into KT ER
consideration.
(e) The financial guarantee related to joint (e) A% %I E AR A
ventures is disclosed in Note11. BYfE+— o

‘ﬁ-mﬂ? -=

tﬁqﬂﬁﬁiﬁ‘t
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7% i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=THEIENEAMSE (BRRERIFERN -

6.

SREMSARETIT)

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
(Continued)

(3) Transaction with non-controlling interests

0]

Specific Assets Management Plan

In 2015, Beijing Tiandi Fangzhong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Tiandi
Fangzhong") Established Fangshan Specific
Asset Management Plans and raised a total
amount of RMB1,2000,000,000. According
to the terms of Investment Agreements,
the raised funds are subject to no fixed
repayment terms. Unless the Company or
its assigned subsidiary declares dividend, the
Group may elect to defer the distribution
without any frequency limitations. The
Group has no contracted obligation to pay
the principal or interests to other investors
under the Specific Asset Management Plans,
therefore the investment from the specific
asset management plan complied with the
definition of equity instrument and were
recognized as non-controlling interest in the
consolidated level. Non-controlling interests
amounted to RMB1,075,200,000 was
recognized after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—TFRNA=TRIEANEABRE FRERIFERIN -

SREMSARETIT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
(Continued)

(3) Transaction with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

0]

Specific Assets Management Plan
(Continued)

In 2016, the Group issued a prepayment
announcement to redeem 50% of the
principal of the Specific Asset Management
Plan in 2017. Since the Group had the
inevitable payment obligation pursuant to
the Investment Agreement, such amount did
not meet the definition of equity instrument
any longer and was reclassified as current
portion of non-current liabilities after
issue of prepayment announcement, and
a decrease in capital reserve amounted to
RMB62,400,000 was recognized accordingly.
As at 31 December 2016, the remaining non-
controlling interests recognized amounted
to RMB537,600,000 after deducting the
amount reclassified to current portion of non-
current liabilities.

In 2017, the Group prepaid the principal
of Tiandi Fangzhong Specific Asset
Management Plan of RMB1,200,000,000,
and a decrease in capital reserve amounted to
RMB62,400,000 was recognized accordingly.

/\.

FHMEREAPERE)

(3)

BFRALBRRNRS (#)

()

HREETB(E)

RZE—RF - XEERE
BEFEELGRAEERAN
£) RBUFERZ=ZE—tF
BEZEEEIM50% @ AR
REB S BT E 2R
E% THHEAGEZIANTE
 AUEZREEBMEED
ARESEZ—FRNIHMIE
mEBAEZE - WHEERLDE
RAEARYE2,400,0007T -
LR RERSBARE
537,600,0007T °

ﬁ%ﬂriwﬁﬁzﬁ%/\ﬁﬁ%
200 000,000 @ Wik &E
NATEANERM62,400,0007T ©
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

7.

INTERESTS OF NON-CONSOLIDATED SPECIAL
PURPOSE VEHICLE

In June 2016, the Company entered into the equity
trusteeship agreements (hereinafter “Trusteeship
Agreement”) with the shareholders of Sichuan
Capital Yuanda Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd., Huludao Chuangrong Investment Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Chuangrong Investment”), Huludao
Capital Investment Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“Huludao Investment”), Huludao Capital Industrial
Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Huludao
Industrial”), Huludao Capital Longwan Development
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Huludao Longwan"),
Xishuangbanna Xietong Duchang Investment Co.,
Ltd. (hereinafter “Xietong Duchang”), Jinghong
Xietong Real Estate Co., Ltd., Jinghong Hengtong
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Shaoxing
Capital Sunshine Real Estate Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“Shaoxing Yangguang”) and Xishuangbanna Jingyuan
Investment Development Co., Ltd. (collectively
“Trusteeship Companies”). The Company shall exercise
the shareholder rights by trusteeship (except for the
right to profit, residual properties distribution and
disposition), including but not limited to the right to
attending shareholders’ meeting, voting, nomination,
recommendation, supervision, proposal and questioning
etc. The Company shall perform supervision, propose
suggestions for the trusteeship companies and
appoints individuals for directors, supervisors and chief
executives on behalf of the trusteeship companies’
shareholders. According to the Trusteeship Agreement,
the trusteeship expenses are calculated as 0.2% of the
sales revenue of trusteeship companies within maximum
of RMB900,000 and minimum of RMB500,000.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

7.

INTERESTS OF NON-CONSOLIDATED SPECIAL
PURPOSE VEHICLE (Continued)

In June 2017, the Company entered into an agreement
with the shareholder of Shaoxing Yangguang to
terminate the equity trusteeship, and both parties of the
agreement shall not entitle to any right or obligation
under the trusteeship agreement.

As of 30 June 2017, the Group has no equity interests
in the above trusteeship companies and treated them
as interests of non-consolidated special purpose vehicle
except for Shaoxing Yangguang. These trusteeship
companies are principally engaged in the real estate
development, and the revenue are mainly from the real
estate project. As at 30 June 2017, the Group has not
transferred assets to the trusteeship companies,and has
no obligation or intention to provide financial support to
these trusteeship companies.

Other interests of non-consolidated special purpose
vehicle is disclosed in note 6(2).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The reportable segments of the Group are the business
units that provide different products or service, or
operate in different areas. Different businesses or areas
require different marketing strategies, the Group,
therefore, separately manages the production and
operation of each reportable segment and valuates their
operating results respectively, in order to make decisions
about resources allocation to these segments and to
assess their performance.

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the Group
identified seven reportable segments as follows:

—  Beijing segment, which is mainly engaged in real
estate development, sales and related business in
Beijing region.

—  Shanghai segment, which is mainly engaged in real
estate development, sales and related business in
Shanghai region.

+.

J\.

ERMAG HI B RRBEMNLGE
Bl ERP &R E)

RZZFB—EFRA AAGRAHEGLE
XZBERBBRETEES DR €5
TEBMALELE HE T T E RN
&% e
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EXSINTMEEERE R AERAREERA
AGHBEENEBLEE - FERA QA
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REFMERBREMELNMNE - BE
“ZE—+FRA=TH rEERBEE
BEEXERA QR - XEENFHERG
EHBARREVBIHNEGNEE -

AEBEMERBASFHBREREEN
R IR PrRaF RMENRQ) -

7
AEENREDBERHETEERKIR
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

—  Tianjin segment, which is mainly engaged in real
estate, sales and related business in Tianjin region.

—  Chengyu segment, which is mainly engaged in real
estate development, sales and related business in
Chengdu and Chonggqing region.

—  Other segment, which is mainly engaged in real
estate development, sales and related business in
other regions, including Shenyang, Xi‘an, Jiangsu,
Zhejiang, Hainan and etc.

—  Outlets business segment, which is mainly engaged
in outlets businesses in different regions.

—  Other investment property segment, which is
mainly engaged in the investment property
operations other than outlets business.

For the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group
identified six reportable segments as follows: Beijing
segment, Tianjin segment, Chengyu segment, Shanghai
segment, Other segment and Investment property
segment. Due to the substantial expansion of the
development and operation of outlets business in
different regions, it becomes a core business unit of
the Group and constitutes an individual reporting
segment. The segment information for the six months
ended 30 June 2016 was restated as disclosed in unit of
investment properties separately.

Inter-segment transfer prices are determined by
referring to sales price to third parties.

Assets are allocated to segments based on the location
of assets and the segments’ operation. Liabilities
are allocated to segments based on the segments’
operation. Indirect expenses of the segments are
allocated to the segments based on the proportion of
each segments’ revenue.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) . DEMEE (&)
(1)  Segment information for the six months ended 30 (1) BEZZE—tFA=+THIEAE
June 2017 and as at 30 June 2017 are as follows: ABEE=ZE—+tFA=+tHS
l:llg'flzl /\_.\§|J j—\pu —|—
Inter-
Investment segments
Property development and sales properties Unallocated ~ elimination Total
RAEK  ARE
FHERRHERRBEY RELFHE &8 it fit
Outlets
Beiing  Shanghai  Tianjin  Chengyu ~ Others  husiness  Others
RIRE
¥R L X2 it ] A £5 Efh
Revenue from external customers HARHRA 2,192,316 70725 2683632 913763 1303635 134,018 59,191 11,066 - 1,368,346
Inter-seqment revenue AHRRAMA - - - - 3,003 - - - (300) =
Cost of sales from main TEERRL
operations (1787,633)  (35,688) (1,059,890) (815,994 (1,014,392) - (4392) - - (4717,989)
Interest income FEMA 144,480 1,535 39,426 709 8,146 3 52 421008  (53880) 562,297
Interest expense flsEE (133,699) (5895)  (21,706) (139)  (11261)  (71,476) (19 (395160) 53880  (585475)
Share of proftoss) of HREAAEPENRE
associates and joint ventures (iB%)/ & oM7) 13479  (338) (3852 (117) (1) 5582 - - 898
Provisions fro assets BERERLR
impairment loss - - - - - - - (52137 - (252137)
Depreciation and amortization FEENENE (2,059) (42)  (309) (19) (150 66 (108)  (4434) - (16,669)
Total Profit/loss) 5/ (Eig)ea 23131 140,986 1,514,071 17998 148506  (40419) 10462 (517471) - 1,577,264
Income tax expenses FEHER (93771)  (6326) (389726)  (35866)  (45270) 8489  (16244) 23470 - (555,244)
Net profitloss) B/ (EE) 149360 134660 1124345  (17868) 103236  (31930) 54218  (494,001) - 1,022,020
Total assets BElE 39,537,955 17,727,833 13171808 3926650 11390415 9,096,665 9,012,098 34,640,614 (15,262,091) 123,241,947
Total liabilties BEEE (37,033,193) (16,118,064) (8,614,280) (1,509,008) (4,144,782) (3,116,239) (2,154,272) (37,526,844) 14,020,821 (96,193,951)
long-term equity investmentson~ HBEAERALEY
associates and joint ventures RERERE 489433 994218 533887 - 62896 73289 519648 - - 303931
Increase in non-current assets ) FERSEEILME() 340,969 54 201 - 7904 834449 362720 822,198 - 236849
(i) Non-current assets do not include financial assets, long- (0) FRDAETEDESBEAE - KAK

term equity investments and deferred income tax assets. BRATBLEASTAE «
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) J\. DEMER (&)

(2) Segment information for the six months ended 2) BE_Z-—RFRNA=ZTBHIEAE
30 June 2016 and as at 31 December 2016 are as ABEER=ZZE—XRF+= H =+—
follows (restated): BoEpE B8R T (&E) :

(@) Segment information for the six months (a) BE-ZE—R"F~A=1H
ended 30 June 2016 (restated): IEREABES B ES(EE
i)

Inter-

Investment segments
Property development and sales properties Undlocated ~ eimination Total

OEH R
FHEREHERERES [RAkENE % it Aif

Qutlets
Bejing  Shanghai Tianjin ~ Chengyu Others  business ~~ Others

IR L8 R i -4 # it

Revenue from external HIRHRA

customers 1344,779 73129 206979% 482,079  1,020472 9,178 48658 - - 5135091
nter-segment revenve — AHERZRA - - - - - - - - - -
Costof salesfrommaln~—~ TEEBAHA

operations (1001227)  (6369) (1,777760)  (450,195)  (89,721) - (3.480) - - (42825)
Interest income HEWA 306,273 4,560 51,121 970 19,140 785 758 194,697 (63502) 514,802
Interest expense fIEER (159,855) (179) Q247 (18524)  (33481)  (99222) (950) (45,259 63502 (296,215)
Share of profit of HEENREREY

associates and RENE/(BX)

Joint ventures 18,695 (7,000) (1919 51,154 4,762 - 13384 - - 199516

Provisions fro assets BERERAR

impairment loss - - - - - - - - - -

Depreciation and FEENEHE

amortization (2,79) (309 (988) (174) 872 (15630 (4,354) (1414) - (26531)
Total Profitoss) e/ (Ee)es 48282 (1713) 14178 (210400 (79273) 255666 602,606 72,19 - 1438230
Taxes expense HERER (48,144) 339 (33,266) 589 13088 (96,387)  (119604) (20945 - (301,340)
Net profflos) 58/(58) BAET (380) 10850 (04SN 68 1929 430 5180 1380
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) J\. DEBMER (&)

(2) Segment information for the six months ended 2 BE_Z-XREXRA=THIEREA
30 June 2016 and as at 31 December 2016 are as BRIk —E—RF+-A=+—H%
follows (restated) (Continued): EMEBAIRN T (K&l ) (&) -

(@) Segment information for the six months (@ BE_ZT-—REXA=+HILL
ended 30 June 2016 (restated) (Continued): N E A AR 2 EBE B (A &t )
(%) :
Inter-
Investment segments
Property development and sales properties Undlocated ~ eimination Total
AORH AEE
FHERSHERERER REEHE 28 iy ait
Qutlets
Befing  Shanghai Tianjin -~ Chengyu Others  business ~ Others
BRRE
i Lk RE k] Eff £5 i
Total assets gEeE 64,828,253 17527457 12741767 4509723 15994567  7,634733 9281359 5670784 (18,729,003) 119,459,640
Total liabilties BfsaE (59,062,541) (15,540,370) (8953,529) (1,504,032) (8,088,299) (2,828,346) (1,623954) (6,811,189 12,503,322 (91,908938)
Long-term equityinvestments SEA £
on associates and joint AELEN
ventures SHRERE 82075 89423 537268 - 6912 - 190,54 - - 301849
Increase in non-current assets FEEEAE
eduding long-tem equity &0
investments 1,097,633 265 216 - 23 1819387 1789561 378820 - 5088118
(i) Non-current assets do not include financial () FRDAETRESRAE -
assets, long-term equity investments and deferred RABRER A BTG HE
income tax assets. E-
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) J\.

The revenue generated and total non-current assets
apart from financial assets and deferred income tax
assets from mainland China and overseas countries or
regions were disclosed as follows:

DEME R (#8)

AEBER A K E MK E eI 2
HWALREE - ARAREMRBEAREA
B MR e R & B E MBS A
EZINIIEREBELBEIIRIAT

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2017 2016

BZE #HE

—E—+F —ZE—RF

ANA=+HIE ~NA=+H

NEAEE A EARE

(restated)

Revenue from external customers HIRZZ WA (ge=Eq)
China 2] 7,368,346 5,135,091
30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

ANA=+H +=—A=+—H

(restated)

Total non-current assets FRBEEAEE (&)
China == 20,214,657 18,601,911
France bz ES 151,994 145,358
Total &5 20,366,651 18,747,269

Most business of the Company and the subsidiaries
are operated in mainland China. For six months ended
30 June 2016 and 2017, the Group has no revenue
generated from overseas transaction.

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the Group has
revenue amounted to RMB1, 368,885,000 generated
from a single significant customer, which is included
in Tianjin Segment, accounted for 19% of the Group's
total revenue for the period (for the six months ended
30 June 2016: no revenue generated from a single
significant customer).
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIERS - SRELSARETIT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(1) The parent company

.

(a) The general information of the parent
company

Place of registration

FARE T IR MR S

(1) B2FFER
(a) BLAFEFER

Nature of business

EEdii) EBMUE
Capital Group Beijing Infrastructure, financial securities,
industrial technology, commercial
trade and tourist hotel, etc.
HEIKE PR AR @RES  TERME &

EEHMKRBEBES -

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is
Capital Group, incorporated in Beijing.

RRABHRZIES T BERIE
- EEf AL R

(b) Registered capital and changes in (b) BRRGFMERRHESL
registered capital of the parent company
31 December 30 June
2016 Increase Decrease 2017
—ERF =
+=ZA=+-H ARERSE N RER AA=TH
Capital Group HEIEE 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
(c) The proportions of equity interests and () BLARHEARATMNFREHMN

voting rights in the Company held by the
parent company

30 June 2017

RIRBELLH

31 December 2016

Bt —T—RE
~A=+H +=ZA=+—H
Interest Voting Interest Voting
held held held held
R  FRORBELLHI RG] RORELDI
% % % %
Capital Group ELES 54.47 54.47 54.47 54.47

(2) Subsidiaries

The general information and other related
information of the subsidiaries are set out in note

6(1).

(2) FLABR

FRAMERERRAEEER RH
AE7N(1) °

S S RERRGARAT —T— tFEhEEE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BEAEERERNERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(3) Joint ventures and associates (3) EELENBMELERBR
The general information are set out in note 6(2). BEDEMBEECEBRIMES
(N
Except for the significant joint ventures and BREFERQTPERENEZSEM
associates set out in Note 6(2), the rest of B EMIBRIN  HEpEAEE
information listed as follows: BERBZ S EME & M
ERENBERAT :
Strategic to
Place of main ~ Place of Nature of the Group's Interests held Interests held
operation  registration  business operation 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
HEEES KR LAl Sl
TR st EHKE REARERI ZE-tERA=TH 2 FTZR=1-A

direct (%) Indirect (%)  direct(%) Indirect (%)
E&(%) (%) BE(%) R (%)

Joint ventures

aEbE

Tonghua Qiangyu Tianjin Tianjin Enterprise No 40 - 40 -
and property
management

BERT RET REd PRERRNZER B

Beijing Wanzhu Beijing Beijing Property No 30 - 30 -
development
and sales

Irgs y 970 Frim BHEREREE &

International School Tianjin Tianjin Senior and junior ~ No - 45 - 45
education

AREN RET RET - ar4E 7

Tongchuang Jinlong Beijing Beijing Property No - 25 - 25
development
and sales

[Ekx Jorim JRim BHEREREE &

Shanghai Henggu Shanghai  Shanghai Property No - 28 - 28
development
and sales

LEEE R:T] LA PHEREREE &
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BEATEERERNERS®E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(3) Joint ventures and associates (Continued) (3) EELENBELERBR(E)
Strategic to
Place of main ~ Place of Nature of the Group's Interests held Interests held
Operation  registration  business operation 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
HEEED KR biisud]
TEEEH st £HtE REARERE Z2-tFxA=tH 2 FtZR=t-B

direct (%) Indirect (%)  direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) R (%) E%(%) % (%)

Shanghai Songming Shanghai  Shanghai  Property No - 28 - 28
development
and sales

Lt Ligh L EHEREREE &

Jinlong Yonghui Beijing Beijing Property No - 14.55 - 14.55
development
and sales

SRKE b 7L Frim EHEREREE B

Dacheng Guangyuan Beijing Beijing Property No - 125 - 125
development
and sales

EREE y 920 y 020 EHEREREE &

Shangbodi Beijing Beijing Commercial No 51 - 51 -
rent, property
management

]2 y 20 b7} BELE NEER 3

Shouwan Yuye Shanghai  Shanghai Property No - 51 - 51
management

EEE Li&® LA nxER g
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BABSBEERERS#)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3) Joint ventures and associates (Continued) () FRELENBECEBR(E)
Except for the significant joint ventures and BRITFERQFEREBENEESEM
associates set out in Note 6(2), the rest of BEE R ENIBRIN - HREARE
information listed as follows: B S H) H A& & (b R A

EEENBERIT
Place of main ~ Place of Nature of Strategic to the Interests held Interests held
operation registration ~ business Group's operation 30 June 2017 31 December 2016
HEmED BRI FR L
gagh £BIE REAREEM  —E-tEAA=TH 25 ETZA=1-H

Direct (%)  Indirect (%) Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) (%) B (%) (%)

Associates

Al

Golden Net Bejing Beiing Real estate No 14 - 14 -
sales agent

X p 20 kR FHEHERR &

Financial Street Hotel Beijing Beijing Hotel operating No 10 495 10 495
management

SREEE ) .2y i) a

Capital Qinglv Culture Kunshan Kunshan Tourismand hotel ~~ No - 49 - 49
investment

EE R8¢ BT Bl REEREEERE &
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BEFBEEREIRERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Other related parties (4) HM@EBsERE)
Relationship with the Group
HASEEE
Reco Ziyang Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
E5HRE AARZFRAINEZLHRE

Shanghai Poly Jianjin Real Estate Co., Ltd.

("Poly Jianjin")
FERNEREMERR QR (AT R ])
Kunming Wuhua District Industry

Development Co., Ltd. (“Kunming Wuhua")
ERMAEREXERERAGRIATHE ERRE])

Shouhui Real Estate
BEEXE

Beijing Taihao Shengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Taihao
Shengyuan”)
IERRERBEEFRAR (U TE [FERE])

Shouyong Real Estate
BXKEX

Chengdu Jinhui
P 5 1

Shanghai Liangyue Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Shanghai Liangyue”)
EERMEXEERABATE B2

Capital Financial Service
EL-lEai

Beijing Capital Investment
HEIRE

Sunshine Comprehensive
Xietong Duchang
Rk

Huludao Investment
BESRE

Huludao Industrial

HESER

Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
ARBIZFRANEZVERR

Significant non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
ARBIZFRANBEZDERR

Subsidiary of joint venture of the Company
ARBIZEEEENEREFLA

Subsidiary of the Company, subsidiary of
original joint venture of the Company
ARARIZFRA] REECENEEZFRA

Subsidiary of the Company, subsidiary of
original joint venture of the Company
ARBZFRA REECENERFRF

Subsidiary of joint venture of the Company
ARBIZAELENERZFLA

Subsidiary of joint venture of the Company
AREZEELENEETRA

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
RE—&&EH T EGnE g

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
RE—&BEH RN

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
RE—&&EH T EGnE g

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
RE—&EEH RN

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
RE—&&EH T EGnE g

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
RA— RS T

S fRAF =%

—tERB®E
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—tFRA=THELENEAMSE (BRRERIFERAN

F EREMSARETIT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Other related parties (Continued)

L. AR R

ANERZH ()

(4) HtpABLBER(E)

Relationship with the Group
EAREENBER

Chuangrong Investment
BRI E

Longwan Development
EEER

Beijing XCapital Construction Investment Fund
(Limited Partnership) (“XCapital Fund”)
It REEFRERRRERES (BRAR)

(AT [3mEES )

Capital Securities Co., Ltd. (“Capital Securities”)
HEIBHFEREMEA T(LAT%M%LEU %5 ])

Beijing Capital Assets Management Co., Ltd.

("Capital Assets”)

IEREREEERERATNUATHEERIEE]

Beijing Capital Dahe Investment Co.,Ltd.

("Capital Dahe")

IERERIRNARERRAFTUATHRE [EHEIAA )

Beijing Shuixing Environment Co., Ltd.

(“Shuixing environment”)

ERKERFEBR AR (ATHE KERE])

Beijing Chuangzhi Xinrong Investment Center
(Limited Partnership) (“Chuangzhi Xinrong")
I REIBERRETRL(ERER) UATHE8IEER])

BCG Chinastar International Investment Limited

("BCG Chinastar"”)

BHEIZERRREBRARUATHE 2K )

Beijing Capital Asset Investment and Management
Company (“Capital Asset Investment”)

LRERERREEEBRARUATHE [HEIEAR])

Zhao Guiying
icLEe

Liu Yabo
2T

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
HEZXTI%‘JE$I%‘JEIJEHE

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
RE SR EH AR E S

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
—REEHI RN ER

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
it =v s ok gl foh-

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
—EREERIIENER

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
RE—&&EH T EdnE e

Controlled by the same ultimate controller

TR E R

>4H

Controlled by the same ultimate controller

—RRER T ERINER

><l

Controlled by the same ultimate controller

— R RN ER

)41

Controlled by the same ultimate controller
RE—&LEH RN

Relative of the director of ultimate controller
BIREHITES 2 HB

Relative of the Senior management of the Company
ARAIERERBABZEE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BEFBEEREIRERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (5) BEXS

ARBEETERRME LR 1
RHE\FHELEFEEGHR - BBX
7 E B m AR B R e —
HEETE -

BEEm

The Board of directors considers all transactions
with related parties are on normal commercial
terms, and prices of related party transactions were
agreed by the Group and the related parties.

(a) Purchases or sales of goods, providing or (a) - RENEZER

receiving services

Purchase of goods, receiving services: HEEln  BEXE%

Six months Six months
Pricing policy and ended ended
Related procedure for 30 June 30 June
Related party transaction decision-making 2017 2016
Bz Bz
—B—tF —ERF
AB=1H NA=THILE
)iyl [l EZIakS M 5 T BHUR WS {E A B E AN EDER-]
Golden Net (i) Selling agency
SHEG) HERIERE 13,746 30,315
Capital Group Guarantees
HEIKE ERRH According to 6,100 8,750
Capital Group Keepwell Deed market price
EEESE] HEaf R criterion with 1,950 1,950
Capital Securities friendly
Securities consignment negotiation
HEIE S BHFEITRE AEE %%Eﬁﬁéﬁ?&%%} - 5,840
Shangbodi Property leasing ;%{ﬁﬂi’“i’:} R
Mg FERE S éﬁ o $a_§$; 3,796 2,241
Sunshine City Property leasing 7%5&% ’ Eﬁﬁ?’%%
Commercial o o
W% RERE ERARE 739 :
Financial Street Property leasing
Hotel
EREEE FEHE 492 -
Total
At 26,823 49,096

(i) The Group entrust GoldenNet as sales agent of
certain projects. The commission fee payable was
charged by certain percentage based on property

sales turnover.

(i) AEEZELWEAAEE—

HIE
XEEH

SRAT =%

MIHERE  ZIHEK
—ELPIZAHEMS -

—tERB®E
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BEAEERERNERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BEEEXR B (&)
(a) Purchases or sales of goods, providing or () BHmm RENEZER
receiving services (Continued) (%)
Sales of goods and providing services: HEMM - RHEH
Six months Six months
Pricing policy and ended ended
Related procedure for 30 June 30 June
Related parties transaction decision-making 2017 2016
BZE BE
—E—tF —E—RF
AA=1H AAZ=1H
el Gl lakS B HEBBR 1E7518 B 238 (=7} 1E A HRE
(restated)
(gsit)
Shouhui Real Estate Consulting service
HEZZ RUE AR 4,160 1,743
Taihao Shengyuan Consulting service
LR RUA AR - 47
Chengdu Jinhui Consulting service
P ED$3 & REFHARE 4,489 1,629
Shouyong Real Consulting service
Estate
BHKEHE RUH AR - 2,226
Golden Net Property leasing
S FEHRE : - 419
Capital Financial ~ Property leasing and services Acr;%rilgtgptﬁce
Service o .
B8 EEAE LR criteron with 2,574 2,387
Capital Assets Property leasing and services negotigtion
HEIBE FEERERMERY miﬁﬂwﬂ,;\% 943 860
Capital Group Property leasing and services Tﬁﬁ?e&t*ﬁ;fﬂ
EEI%E FERERMERE RIS o 14,738 6,644
XCapital Fund Property leasing and services Fﬂ;ﬁ;ﬁ%g
FEES ERMERYERE b U 416 402
Capital Dahe Property leasing and services 2 5 B A
EEIAT EERERMERE AT 552 552
Shenyang Jitian Merchandise sales
BEER EmiHE 270 -
Chengdu Jinhui Merchandise sales
B #P 5 iEE EmiHE 3,441 -
Zhao Guiying Merchandise sales
i EETS s 2,116 -
Liu Yabo Merchandise sales
210K EmiHE 1,105 -
Huludao Investment Providing services
HESRE RHUSH 1,746 -
Total
A&t 36,550 16,909
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BEFEERNERS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BEEERZ (&)
(b) Interest income/(expense): (b) AEEEBEBIBENESKL
AWA(&A) :
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016
BE S
—E—tE TR

AA=1+H ANA=+H
EAREAKE  LENEAHIE

(restated)
(g Ea)
Tianjin Yongyuan RIFKTT 59,069 -
Zhongguancun Integrated RN R E IR E
Circuit Garden 24,246 37,518
Capital Qinglv A Ik 14,704 5,577
Tianjin Lianjin KB E 7,407 11,481
Financial Street Hotel S RVATE)E - 3,891
XCapital Fund HPERES (11,746) (23,034)
Beijing Capital Investment HEIRE (4,643) (48,889)
BCG Chinastar =2 FRR (3,001) -
Total &5t 86,036 (13,456)
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Related party transaction (Continued)

(c) Guarantee and keepwell deed

.

FARE TR LA 5 ()

(5) BABEXRZ (&)
(o) EERERHEFHZR

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

AA=tH +=ZA=+—8

Capital Group for the Company (i) HEIEEARD FER() 6,500,000 6,500,000

Capital Group for the subsidiary (ii) BEIEEAF D TERG) 1,220,000 1,220,000

Keepwell deed for subsidiaries of BEISBATARRKA

Capital Group (note 4(29)) i ihhk (M =L (29)) 4,012,280 1,300,000
(i) In 2013, Capital Group provided (i) X202 HEE
irrevocable guarantee for the EER=-ZT—=ZF54
Company’s long-term borrowing RARRAEASR
from China Life Guarantee Co., Ltd. Bl AR QA LR
amounted to RMB2,000,000,000. The DRFRBEAHARE

(ii)

guarantee will expire in December
2018.

In 2014, Capital Group provided
irrevocable guarantee for the
Company’s long-term borrowing from
PICC Investment Holding Co., Ltd.
amounted to RMB2,000,000,000. The
guarantee will expire in October 2019.

In 2015, Capital Group provided
irrevocable guarantee for the
Company’s long-term borrowing from
Taikang Assets Management Co., Ltd.
amounted to RMB2,500,000,000. The
guarantee will expire in August 2022.

In 2014, Capital Group provided
irrevocable guarantee for the
Company's long-term borrowing from
PingAn Bank of Shenzhen Branch
amounted to RMB1,220,000,000. The
guarantee will expire in August 2022.

BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017

(i)

2,000,000,000 7T & HA &
FIRET AT B ES
EERE - EREEA
BZE—NF+=R-

FiN/NIETRE RS S/NESTI=B =1 S
ER—_ZE—NFE AN
NEMARKEERSE
RARIEEMNARKE
2,000,000,000 7T &t A~
A REEE ETIREIE
R ERIBAAE-Z
—NF+A-

PiN/NEST R DR S /NIl =[S
BR-—ZE—RHEAKXA
ANEEEEEEAR
EERAEEMARK
2,500,000,0007T & Hif&
IR AT B A s A
ETRE ERIHA
BZE__FNA-

PiN/NET =V RSE/NETR=R-ES
BER—_ZE—UFAE
BIEA G 1 2 RIT R
oTEANARE
1,220,000,0007T & BA &
FRBR (1 AT BB A s A
EARE - ERIEA
BZE-_—FNA-
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BEATEERERNERS®E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BEEEXRZ (&)
() Guarantee and keepwell deed (Continued) (0 ERREBEFHRE)

The Company for subsidiary KRB BT AR
The subsidiary for subsidiary FREIBFRT
Subsidiary for the Company R/NGIV=Y/NC]

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
~AB=+H +=—A=+—H
10,881,421 13,987,075
10,108,251 10,472,871
700,000 700,000

As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December
2016, the guarantees above are provided
by the Company or certain subsidiaries for
the Group’s short-term borrowings (note
4(19)), long-term borrowings (note 4(28)),
debentures payable (note 4(29)), long-term
payables (note 4(30)) and equity instruments
(note 6(1)(b2)(i)).

As at 30 June 2017, a joint venture of the
Group, bears a long-term borrowing amounted
to RMB1,400,000,000 (31 December
2016: RMB1,200,000,000), among which
RMB700,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB600,000,000) is guaranteed by the Group.

R-ZE—tFXA=THERZ
E-R"F+=-A=+—8"
FPREREEBEARB LT
RE R RE 2 5 HE R (P
FEP(19)) ~ REE R (M
rm(28)) « ERHEZ (D
(29)) -~ REEN K (K EM
(30)) Rtz T A (M &E7<(1)
(b2)(i)) R AV FELR -

R-Z—+FA=Z+H XK
EEZEERTRESRBER
AR#1,400,000,0007C( =&
—NFE+ZA=Z+—8: AR
¥ 1,200,000,000 7T ) © H
A R #700,000,000L ( ==&
—RNE+ZA=+—08: AR
# 600,000,000 7T ) M AN &
REREREA -

BRAR —T—tETHKE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BB TEERERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BEEEXR B (&)
(d) (Receive)/provide funding d) (%3 REES
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016
5= #H=E
—E—tE TR

ANA=+8 ~NA=+H
IExEAHE @B HRE

(restated)
(Je&Eam)
Beijing Capital Investment HEIEE (1,492,754) 119,425
BCG Chinastar = 2 FRR (558,075) -
Shanghai Shoujia FEEE (288,000) (31,379)
Tianjin Lianjin A= 3: )= (204,352) 271,500
Poly Jianjin (2= 88 (122,120) (1,690,503)
Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan KERERTREES
Jialing Fund (108,066) -
Kunming Wuhua ERRE (85,411) -
Chengdu Jinhui &R i 0E (38,052) 1,726
Tianjin Xinging RS (28,000) (10,000)
Zhongguancun Integrated FEANERNERER
Circus Garden (25,701) (295,771)
Capital Financial Service EENH (19,942) 20,000
Dacheng Guangyuan EROLIR (12,500) (57,500)
Shanghai Henggu LEER (2,800) (11,200)
Shanghai Songming B (2,800) (8,400)
GoldenNet SR (112) 63
Financial Street Hotel ©REDBE - (260,493)
Jinlong Yonghui & BEKIE - (47,480)
Shenyang Xinzi BISHE S (10,000)
Shouhui Real Estate BHEZZE 263,000 42,295
Tianjin Yongyuan RIFZKTT 149,507 -
Tianjin Xinming REFTH 70,000 258,000
Capital Qinglv B 49,500 158,854
Capital Group EES 291 -
Tiancheng Yongtai PN IS - 642,525
Taihao Shengyuan et - 14,828
Capital Jiaming By - 10,000
Shouyong Real Estate BXRKEX - 2,360
Total A&t (2,456,387) (881,150)
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BABSBRERERS#)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BEEEXRZ (&)
(e) Key executives compensation (e) FAREEASHM
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2017 2016
BZ Bz
—E—+tF —ERF
ANA=TH ~NA=T+H
AREAMSE LN EAHE
Remuneration of key executives RAfRETE A B E B 11,692 9,686
Others Hh 305 269
Total a&t 11,997 9,955
(f) In June 2016, the Group entered into an (f) RZZ—XRFXA KxEEHR
agreement with Capital Investment to acquire BEIRERA I WE  BERS
100% equity interests of Shenyang Haohua. ZE100%MHE - R -F—+
The transaction was completed in March FZARGTHE  BEEE
2017 and Shenyang Haohua became a RAREEZ2E T QA (M
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group (Note F(1)) e
5(1)).
(g) In February 2017, the Company entered (9) R=ZZE—tF=H AQRFH

into an Asset Management Agreement with
Capital Securities. Capital Securities shall
provide asset management and investment
services in respect of the Entrusted Assets not
more than RMB2,000,000,000 in accordance
with the investment policies under the Asset
Management Agreement. The Company
will pay, on an annual basis and upon the
termination of the Asset Management
Agreement, the Performance Fee to Capital
Securities based on the aggregate amount of
the investment return(s) exceeding the annual
benchmark return.

BEBEAFREERITEIEE
ERWE AT EAIFESFRAR
AREREEEEEREKER
% ZitBAEMSETBBA
R #2,000,000,0007C © &AAQ
AR FEREFENTEEE
EREMHERILERNEAESX
B R -

BIRAR —F— tEhMEs
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances

Receivables due from related parties:

N. BETREERERS#E)

(6) EAMELIEW - B FIRERER
FEURBEESE 77 3R0A

30 June 2017 31 December 2016
“E-tEXRA=+tHE  ZE-R"ET°A=+-H
Provisions Provisions
Carrying for bad Carrying for bad
amount debts amount debts
FREERE RERER FRE BREE ERER
Trade receivables Shuixing Environment - - 250 -
JEHBR K KERIE
Chuangrong Investment = - 250 -
BIRIRE
Huludao Industrial = = 125 -
pEEEE
Huludao Longwan - - 125 -
EEER
Huludao Investment = - 250 -
HEERE
Xietong Duchang = — 250 -
iR
Yangguang = = 500 -
Comprehensive
Bitira
Total - - 1,750 -
At
Advanced to suppliers  Capital Group - - 6,100 -
BT R R ELEL
Golden Net 18,573 - 21,498 -
B
Total 18,573 - 27,598 -
At
Long-term receivables  Fianacial Street Hotel (i) 66,706 - 66,706 -
REEYR SREBE()
Zhongguancun Integrated 598,080 - 598,080 -
Circus Garden (ii)
RREAHT SRR B IR E (i)
Tianjin Lianjin (iii) - - 196,500 -
R 2R(i)
Total 664,786 - 861,286 -
A
(=)
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BEATEERERNERS®E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(6) Related party balances (Continued) (6) BAEESFEUR - FETFUEERER(E)
Receivables due from related parties (Continued): FE W BAR T RIB () -

31 December 2016

30 June 2017 (restated)
“E-RE+TZA=1+—H

—E—t+tFXB=1H (L&)
Provisions Provisions
Carrying for bad Carrying for bad
amount debts amount debts

RESRE  HREE  EERE  BRER

Others receivables Tianjin Yongyuan (iv)

H fth LUK RAEKTT(iv) 867,609 - - -
Capital Qinglv (v)
B i) 245,859 - 180,774 -
Shanghai Liangyue
LBRH 230,000 - 230,000 -
Chuangzhi Xinrong
BB =R 54,079 = 54,079 -
Shangbodi
fe] 134D 46,662 - 46,662 -
Shouwan Yuye
BBEX 26,398 - 26,398 -
Capital Jiaming
ELEE 22,060 - 22,060 -
Shouhui Real Estate
BEEX 10,398 - 5,988 -
Chengdu Jinhui
PR RE 7,369 - 40,663 -
International School
BIFR 2R 3,000 - 3,000 -
Zhuhai Henggi Chengdu

Weihua Fund
WERENHEELS 1,063 - 38,522 -
GoldenNet
SRE 979 - 1,085 -
Capital Group
EEE3E 292 - 1 -
Zhongguancun Integrated
Circus Garden

IR R E R E 228 - 228 -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued)

Receivables due from related parties (Continued):

N. BETREERERS#E)

(6) FAEESIEUWR - FETFNIESREE(E)
JEU B8R 5 B (1) ¢
31 December 2016

30 June 2017 (restated)
—E-RF+-A=+—H

—E—tEXRB=TH (&)
Provisions Provisions
Carrying for bad Carrying for bad
amount debts amount debts

RESRE  EREGE  RERE  ERER

Capital Financial Service

ELlEA 58 - 20,000 -
Beijing Capital Investment
BEIRE - - 166,290 -
Capital Asset Investment
BEIER 4 - - -
Zhuhai Hengqin Ruiyuan
Jialing Fund
KERERTRERED - - 437,355 -
Total
At 1,516,058 - 1,273,105 -

Dividends receivable is disclosed in note 4(3).
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued)

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016, the amounts
were the interests due from Financial Street Hotel, an
associate of the Group. Interests began to charge at
the rate of bank loan interest rate in the same period
since 1 January 2013. Since the receivable has no fixed
maturity date and the Group expected that the receivable
would not be collected within one year, such amount is
classified as long-term receivables.

As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016, the amounts
were the principal of shareholders loan to Zhongguancun
Integrated Circus Garden, an associate of the Group,
carrying a fixed annual interest rate of 8.5%. The
receivable will be collected before the end of 2018 and
therefore was classified as long-term receivables.

The amounts were the principals of the entrusted loans
to Tianjin Lianjin, a joint venture of the Group, carrying a
fixed annual interest rate of 9%. The principal has been
repaid in June 2017.

As at 30 June 2017, the amounts were the principal and
interests due from Tianjin Yongyuan. The principal is
charged at the rate of 7.64% and with no fixed maturity
date.

As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016, the amounts
were the principal and interests due from Capital Qinglv.
The principal is charged at the rate of bank loan interest
rate in the same period, 20% and with no fixed maturity
date.

Except for the receivables above, the other receivables
due from related parties were interest free, unmortgaged
and unguaranteed, and with no fixed maturity date.

it

BARE T R R R X 5 ()

(6) EAMELIEW - ERIREREE ()

@M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RZTE—tFXAZ+BRZ-ZZT—X
FE+ZA=+—H0 ZFEALALH
FEUEE & A R AR EMFE - 18
BAERGHBEE T —=F—A—H
BIZBBITRPERFEE - £F
FERY  AEEBE;F —FREEK
BlZZE - Bt RBERHIZE -

RZEBE—tFXNAZF+BRER=ZZT—RX
F+-_A=+—R0 ZFEALFEE
FEURES % R B R BA AT S AR B B B W
® - HETRABRBEERRARIERE
EEFFESS%TE - BR TN
FERATME - B ERBAERGTZE

FZHARAEEER S SR T RER
ENRREFRAS - HERRRZRE
EFENEI%FE  BENE  RE
—tERA - REBEDHEHEZAA
%o

NZZ—tFXA=1H " %ZAEA
AEBEREE QAR REXTHE
ARASRFL - RBEASIEBFF
K7.64%508 - BETERR -

R-ZBE-—EFRNAZ+TAR-ZE—RX
Fr-A=+—H ZRERFEE
JEH & BB AR 5B R AR £ R F
B RBRBEMNE20%E - EE
TEEFEIR -

B bt BB SN - HogR BB 7T £ R
BYTEE - BERRERER A
EEEEED

263



264

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9.

BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017

Payables due to related parties:

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY n
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued)

BARE T B R R X 5 (48)

(6) EAMELIEW - ERIREREE ()
& 1 R B 03 3RO -

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E-tF  ZE-RF
AB=+H +—A=+—H

(restated)
(&)
Trade Payables Golden Net
JE bR X © % 12,305 21,409
Advances from customers Chengdu Jinhui
TEW AR X R #B £ 8 2,807 1,466
Shouhui Real Estate
BEEX 1,856 -
Total
A&t 4,663 1,466
Other payables Poly Jianjin
Ho{th & 7K TRA 28R 1,820,279 1,698,159
Beijing Capital Investment (i)
BEIRA() 1,524,643 193,536
BCG Chinastar (ii)
= 2 B (ii) 555,863 -
Shanghai Shouijia
=g 393,689 105,689
Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan
Jialing Fund
KEEEmTREES 125,536 -
Shanghai Henggu
LrigE 109,200 106,400
Kunming Wuhua
EBEARE 85,411 -
Shanghai Songming
M2/ 84,000 81,200
XCapital Fund
EES 76,500 76,500
Tongchuang Jinlong
&SR 75,000 75,000
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BEFEERNERS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(6) Related party balances (Continued) (6) BAEESFEUR - FETFUEERER(E)

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF  ZE-RF
ANB=+H +-HA=+—H

(restated)
(F&&E i)
Reco Ziyang
KB E 69,987 69,987
Tianjin Xinging
REME 38,000 10,000
Dacheng Guangyuan
ERR 37,500 25,000
Jinlong Yonghui
BHEEKIE 29,100 29,100
Tianjin Xinming
RAEFTEA 28,420 98,420
Tianjin Yongyuan
RAFBKTT 25,661 -
Huludao Investment
HESKRE 1,746 2,438
GoldenNet
ity 99 93
Shouhui Real Estate
BEEX - 263,000
Total
CE 5,080,634 2,834,522
Interests payable XCapital Fund
JETR B MR EES 18,207 7,113
BCG Chinastar
# 2 HR 3,001 -
Total
&t 21,208 7,113
Dividends payable is disclosed in note 4(25). FERTAR 752 R M 5E D (25) ©
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BEAEERERNERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(6) Related party balances (Continued) (6) BAEE S FEUWR - EETFUIEERER(E)

(i) As at 30 June 2017, borrowings from Beijing (i) R-ZZT—LEXNA=Z+AH ~NEEE
Capital Investment of the Group amounted to HEHAREFEARKEE AR
RMB1,500,000,000 with annual interest rate of 6.19%, 1,500,000,0007T * G 7% 56.19% -
unpledged and unguaranteed. AR EmER -

(i) As at 30 June 2017, borrowings from BCG Chinastar (ii) R-ZZT—LEXNA=+H ~EEE
of the Group amounted to USD60,000,000 and NEEBBRASERREERET
NZD30,000,000 with annual interest rate of 3.76% 60,000,000 7T K #7 75 B 7T 30,000,000
and 3.6% respectively, unpledged and unguaranteed, TC FREDFIR3.76% K%3.6% &
and the borrowing period is from 8 March 2017 to 28 R BER BRERA-ZT—+
February 2018. FRANBE-ZE-NF-A-+N

H o

Except for the payables above, the other payables due to related B _EGRIELASN - HERFEA B 5 RIS AT

parties were interest free, unmortgaged and unguaranteed, and B WS ERER - BEETEEES -

with no fixed maturity date.

(7) Remuneration payable to the Board of (7) ENEESMHS (MEmEE2))
directors (Note 4(22))

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
ANA=+H +=—A=+—H

Remuneration EE=W4 20,648 16,848
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRA=THEIENEAMSE (BRRERIFEHRD -

SREMSARETIT)

10. CONTINGENCIES

(1)

(2)

Borrowings guarantees and commitments

As at 30 June 2017, expect for the guarantees
(note 9(5)(c)) provided by the Company or certain
subsidiaries for short-term borrowings, long-
term borrowings, debentures payable, long-term
payables and equity instruments acquired by the
Group or joint ventures and associates, the Group
has no other material external guarantee. The
Group believes that the guarantees above will not
have a significant impact on its financial position.

Mortgage guarantees and commitments

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
customers and has provided guarantees to secure
repayments obligations of these customers.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group's properties.
These guarantees will be expired when relevant
property ownership certificates are lodged with
the various banks by the purchasers. As at 30
June 2017, outstanding guarantees amounted
to RMB7,299,752,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB6,648,906,000).

+T. HEZE

(1)

(2)

ERERR AR

RZZTE—tFRA=1TH BER
A TFRARNEAKEEREBZE R
Az EHER - REIER - EBNE
7 REBNARRED TAREHO
EREENLGD) I AEETTF
EHMEREINER - ARERR
EAERT S E ALK BTN
ELEBRATE -

BIBER KA

AEECRETHEREUBELR
BERTTRLE - YHRFBEIME
REERHEER -

REENTH»EPLRIIEITRE
(EREZ) TRNEEAEBMHAEDN
ARER  RERTEREAER
HKHEBERNESR  AEEHFI AR
THBEEPEMNERE RS
PEERMEIEIR - ZBERETERE
EENETEREMEEEL Y
EEERRELFEEER -R_F
—+tEXNA=1+H " KEFEERS
%A NRE7,299,752,000 7T ( —
T-—RF+_A=1+—8: AR
6,648,906,0007T) °
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

11. COMMITMENTS +— A EIA
(1) Capital commitments (1) EXRMZHARESE
(a) Capital expenditures contracted for but not (@) UTAXREEREEAFGSR
yet necessary to be recognized in the balance H BEAMETHEEES
sheet by the Group at the balance sheet date fER ESIREE AR M 2 H &
are as follows: wh

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—tH —E—RF

AA=+H +=—A=+—8

Authorized but not contracted EHOERELD 28,041,194 24,934,752

Contracted but not paid BEARIA 5,574,061 9,031,300

Total &5 33,615,255 33,966,052
(b) The Group’s percentage shared on the (b) UTRAEEEGEESS
commitments of joint ventures are as follows: B & AN S AR R TS 19

B

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

~NA=+H +t=—A=+—H

Authorized but not contracted BHUERZEL 957,103 2,601,000
Contracted but not paid BEARIA 1,547,070 1,178,170
Total &3 2,504,173 3,779,170
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

11. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(2) Operating lease commitments

T— AGEEIEE)
(2) EEBERHEE

REBERTW T AT BHNEEMEE
EAR  AEBERRFEE(SHE

According to the irrevocable operating leases
contracts signed, the minimum of Group's future

lease payments are as follows: RIEANT
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZE—RF
AA=+H +=RA=+—8
Within 1 year —FUA 9,174 17,416
1 to 2 years —B| 4 1,433 10,085
2 to 3 years —E=F 314 -
Total A&t 10,921 27,501
(3) Investment commitments (3) HIIMREARFHEE
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZE—RF
AA=tH +t=ZHA=+—H
Investment for major acquisition of  WHF A FHIRE

subsidiaries 20,000 275,556

Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit RN ERERE
Garden 390,000 390,000
Changsha Investment RO®RE 10,000 43,300
Total A&t 420,000 708,856

—— S AEERGARAT -

—tEHRHHRE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

12. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE T EERERAKRSE

(1) Significant unadjusted items

(1) EENFARSEE

Impact on financial Reason for
condition and operation impact
ltem Description results inestimable
HRIRR AN RfGE
HH AFS IRE RN E T EYNRA
The issuance of In July 2017, the Group ~ The assets and liabilities N/A
medium-term successfully issued would increased
notes by subsidiary medium-term notes of by RMB700 million
overseas USD100 million with approximately
issuance coupon rate of
3.7%.
BINA R IR R RZEBE—+F+H X BEMAGHEM iE
HEEX SERDENTHEER OARBIET

MEETT  BITEEF
K3 7% o
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including market risk (foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

(1) Market risk
(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major operational activities are
carried out in Mainland China and a majority
of the transactions are dominated in RMB.
The Group is subject to foreign exchange risk
arising from future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities in foreign
currency (most of the Group’s foreign
currency transactions and balances are
dominated in United States dollars (“USD"),
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), Australian
dollars (“AUD"), Euro (“EUR") and New
Zealand dollars (“NZD")) and net investment
overseas. The Group's headquarter is
responsible for monitoring the amount
of assets and liabilities, and transactions
denominated in foreign currencies to
minimize potential foreign exchange risk.
Therefore the management of the Group
may consider entering into forward exchange
contracts or currency swap contracts to
mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

=

TR T A N EE R

ARENEEEDEEHEBHNBAR
THER (RENERBAFIEER K
fERER) - ERRRTRDIERR -
A B R BB HE 2 IS 6 5
MFRTBRE - AR E AR T2
EOBETFIRE -

(1) mEER
(a) SERRE

AEBEZEEUN PR
N FTBEBAARKEEE -
AEEDHERHINEEENE
BRRRNINER 5 (INEE
EMBEMIINER S ER
BEXER/RET B BT
BT K H7 B T ) TR SME R
o AEBEARMBHIIEE
EREEINERZMINEBRE
REBBEHNRE  UsKZER
KR A SNE R R ¢ AlE - R
SEABEEARZERINES
MBEEEREKNTT AR E
BFREINERBAE Y ©
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016,
the carrying amounts in equivalent RMB of
the Group's assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are summarized as

T=. R ITENERR @)

(1) mEmREE)

(a) SMERER(E)

KB tFAA=ZHARS
T-XE+ZA=t+—8 &
- B A 09V & R A AR
EEBEBTERARENS

follows: IR
30 June 2017
“E-tFRA=TH
usD HKD AUD EUR NzD Total
EY ik A Br HEET
EH L E HE HE Rt
Financial assets NECREE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Cashatbankandon — &¥&4 66,512 193,188 120,867 20,777 - 401,344
hand
Financial assets at WRREE:E - 205,589 - - - 205,589
fair value through BEEHHA
profit or loss BEHERN
Long-term receivables  RHEKH - - 3,354,200 - - 3,354,200
Total &t 66,512 398,777 3,475,067 20,777 - 3,961,133
Financial liabilities NEERAE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Short-term borrowings £ £ 7% 233,717 - - - - 233717
Dividends payable FEf AR FI 72,314 - - - - 72,314
Interests payable FERF &8 2,970 2,417 - - 779 6,166
Other payables HitEAR 406,766 - - - 149,097 555,863
Debentures payables  fEff{&E% 2,689,011 - - - - 2,689,011
Long-term borrowings &R 3% 33,904 890,299 - - - 924,203
Total At 3,438,682 892,716 - - 149876 4,481,274
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (Continued) — +=. & @t TE & E PR (4#)

(1) Market risk (Continued) (1) HEREE)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a) SNERRRE)

31 December 2016

“E-REtZA=1+-H
usb HKD AUD EUR Total
e B BT BT
HR ER R HA ait
Financial assets denominated ~ 4M&4REE
in foreign currencies
Cash at bank and on hand EMEd 274686 1,010,370 216,109 18,779 1,519,944
Financial assets at fair value WAREBEFHERE
through profit or loss EPTAEHER
MeREE - 217,14 - - 217,14
Long-term receivables RHERE Yk - - 242119 - 2421192
Total At 274,686 1,227,511 2,637,301 18,779 4,158,277
Financial liabilities denominated  4M&4RIE (&
in foreign currencies
Short-term borrowings EHER 239,327 - - - 239327
Dividends payable JERTERR 74,412 - - - 74412
Interests payable FER I8 674 1,701 - - 2,375
Long-term borrowings REER - 742,040 - - 742,040
Total At 314413 743,741 - - 1,058,154
As at 30 June 2017, for all USD dominated RZZE—+FA=1H" %
financial assets and liabilities, if RMB had RAEBZEETEREE
increased/decreased by 5% against USD METERAE  MRAR
with all other variables held constant, M E LA AN ES% - H
post-tax profit for the period would have EZRFIAE - BIRNEEK
been increased/decrease by approximately SRBEMBB D FFEHOAR
RMB126,456,000 (31 December 2016: #126,456,00070 ( =& — <
increase/decrease by approximately F+ZA=1+—08 - ZinsR
RMB1,490,000). AR 4 A R % 1,490,000
JT) e

Al —F—tHEHRH®RE 273

_

5 1R A




274
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2017, since the foreign
exchange risk of the HKD borrowings
has been offset by the purchased foreign
exchange contracts (note 4(31)), for the
other HKD dominated financial assets and
liabilities, if RMB had increased/decreased
by 5% against HKD with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the period
would have been decreased/increased by
approximately RMB9,304,000 (31 December
2016: decrease/increase by approximately
RMB45,968,000).

As at 30 June 2017, since the foreign
exchange risk of the AUD investment in
real estate development project in Australia
has been offset by the purchased foreign
exchange contracts (note 4(31)), for all the
other AUD dominated financial assets, if
RMB had increased/decreased by 5% against
AUD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the period would have
been decreased/increased by approximately
RMB4,533,000 (31 December 2016:
decrease/increase by RMB8&,104,000).

As at 30 June 2017, for all EUR dominated
financial assets, if RMB had increased/
decreased by 5% against EUR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
period would have been decreased/increased
by approximately RMB779,000 (31 December
2016: decrease/increase by RMB704,000).

As at 30 June 2017, for all NZD dominated
financial liabilities, if RMB had increased/
decreased by 5% against NZD with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the period would have been increased/
decreased by approximately RMB5,620,000
(31 December 2016: Nil).
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

T ERMTARHERR )
(1) TERBRGE)

(a)

SMER B (4F)

R-ZE—+FA=1+H" @&
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R EIA H3R B HNE RS (B 5
rH31)) » RN EmAEEB
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MR AR EEAEREE
5% @ B EKRRFTE - A
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JT) °
R-F—+FA=1+H " H
RAESEERTERERED B
BEHR A 40 R 8 SN E R B (P
FEPU(3T)) c R AEBEEA
BHERBTEMEE  MRAR
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRA=THEIENEAMSE (BRRERIFEHRD -

SREMSARETIT)

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposed to interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on borrowings which
carry at prevailing market interest rates.
Borrowings issued at floating interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-
risk, and borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. The Group determines the contracts
proportions of fixed rate and floating rate
depending on the market conditions. As at
30 June 2017, the Group's long-term interest
bearing borrowings were mainly RMB-
denominated with floating rates, amounting
to RMB16,534,642,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB13,247,903,000).

The financial department in headquarters of
the Group continuously monitors the Group’s
interest rate condition. Increases in interest
rates will increase the cost of new borrowing
and the interest expenses of to the Group's
outstanding borrowings with floating rate,
and therefore could have a material adverse
impact on the Group’s financial position.
The Group’s finance department of its
headquarters continuously monitors the
interest rate position of the Group and makes
decisions with reference to the latest market
conditions. In January 2017, the Group
entered into interest rate swap agreements,
in which a 3-year medium term note debt
with the amount of USD400,000,000 and a
coupon rate of 3.875% would convert into
RMB debts with fixed interest rate.

As at 30 June 2017, if interest rates of
borrowings with floating rate increased/
decreased by 5 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the profit for the
year of the Group would decrease/increase
by approximately RMB62,005,000 (31
December 2016: RMB49,680,000).

T=. @RI ARAERRE)
(1) WmEERE)

(b)

=@k

AEENMNERBFEEER
REPFITERRENESER
S EER - FEFNENDH
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ZER - BTEMENSHEE
FAREEMERE A EEFEER
o AEEREERNTHIR
B HORTE B E B K 2 B FI K
ARMBELG - RZT—+
FRNAZ+H AEEEREH
HEEBKETEAARKIERN
FEAEER - eEAARE
16,534,642,0007C ( =& — X
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Credit risk

The Group manages its credit risk on a classified
basis. Credit risk mainly arises from cash at bank,
trade receivables and other receivable.

Since cash at bank of the Group are mainly
deposited at state-owned banks and other large
and medium-sized listed banks, the Group expects
no significant credit risk associated and that there
would not be any significant losses due to non-
performance by these counterparties.

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the
credit risk exposure on trade and other receivables.
The Group assesses the credit quality and sets
credit limits on its customers by taking into
account their financial position, the availability
of guarantee from third parties, their credit
history and other factors such as current market
conditions. The credit history of the customers is
regularly monitored by the Group. In respect of
customers with a poor credit history, the Group
will use payment reminders, reducing or canceling
credit periods, to ensure the overall credit risk of
the Group is limited to a controllable range.
Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each
subsidiary of the Group and aggregated by the
Group's finance department in its headquarters.
On such basis, the Group's finance department
at its headquarters monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s short-term and longterm liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash and
securities that are readily convertible to cash
to meet operational needs, while maintaining
sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities from major financial institution
so that the Group does not breach borrowing
limits or covenants on any of its borrowing facilities
to meet the short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements.
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (Continued) — +=. & @t TE & E PR (4#)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued) (3) REMERER(Z)
The financial liabilities of the Group at the balance REEBEXRAD  AEESESH
sheet date at their undiscounted contractual cash BEUARFTRNEGARERERE
flows by their maturity date are analyzed below: HRZIRINT -
30 June 2017
ZE-tERA=TH
Within 1t02 2t05 Over
1year years years 5 years Total

—FHR  -HZF  ZHEF  EFNE CH

Short-term borrowings Skl EES 1,626,725 - - - 1,626,725
Payables [ERZUE 13,206,336 - - - 13,206,336
Long-term borrowings REBES 1,018,379 4,999,440 12,775,846 3,377,915 22,171,580
Debentures payables R 726,077 10,519,518 6,855,067 - 18,100,662
Long-term payables RAERT 254,935 2,679,718 1,243,813 - 4,178,466
Current portion of —FRIBFRHERE
non-current liabilities 15,961,727 - - - 15,961,727
Total Azt 32,794,179 18,198,676 20,874,726 3,377,915 75,245,496
31 December 2016 (restated)
“E-rFt-A=t+-H(EER)
Within Tt02 2105 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
—Fm —HZf  ZHRF  RENE ait
Short-term borrowings Skl ps 1,963,182 - - - 1,963,182
Payables JERFE 12,906,284 - - - 12,906,284
Long-term borrowings REER 1,183,201 9,779,511 10,003,211 2,981,107 23,947,030
Debentures payables EftES 743,384 4,496,614 14,124,504 - 19,364,502
Long-term payables REERH 270,200 3,963,865 - - 4,234,065
Current portion of —FRIHBFRHERE
non-current liabilities 15,419,264 - - - 15,419,264
Total i 32,485,515 18,239,990 24,127,715 2,981,107 77,834,327

 EAEERAERA

Al B - tFHHRE
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (Continued)
(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2017, the financial derivative
liabilities of the Group at the balance sheet date at
their undiscounted contractual cash flows by their
maturity date are analyzed below:

(a)

In 2017, sell AUD111,840,000 to exchange
RMB538,693,000.

In 2018, sell AUD241,205,000 to exchange
RMB1,200,779,000; sell RMB744,494,000 to
exchange HKD825,000,000.

In 2019, sell AUD407,620,000 to exchange
RMB2,067,549,000.

In 2020, sell AUD37,906,000 to exchange
RMB206,284,000.

As at 31 December 2016, the financial derivative
liabilities of the Group at the balance sheet date at
their undiscounted contractual cash flows by their
maturity date are analyzed below:

(a)

In 2017, sell AUD114,838,000 to exchange
RMB553,596,000.

In 2018, sell AUD241,205,000 to exchange
RMB1,200,779,000; sell RMB744,494,000 to
exchange HKD825,000,000.

In 2019, sell AUD249,837,000 to exchange
RMB1,227,268,000.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (Continued) — +=. & @t TE & E =P (4#)

i

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued) (3) mEMEM(E)
Bank and other borrowings analyzed by repayment AR R EMEREERSTAT

terms are as follows:

30 June 2017 31 December 2016

“2-tFRA=tHE ZB-R"Ft+ZR=1+—H

Bank Other Bank Other

borrowings borrowings  borrowings  borrowings

B EFRHEAM B BEHF RHAM

Within 1 year 1F AR 10,274,755 6,888,150 9,082,467 7,793,862
1 to 2 years 1224 4,119,198 12,623,655 8,862,630 7,595,786

2 1o 5 years 2E5F 11,665,405 7,874,916 9,444,633 13,196,401
Over 5 years SFEP 2,972,000 - 2,213,000 -
Total A&t 29,031,358 27,386,721 29,602,730 28,586,049
According to the terms of individual housing REBRE D E P RIERITIRE (K
mortgage loans, The Group provides temporary HEF) AABEAREERENE D
guarantee to the mortgage loans provided by B - BIBRITENEAABEET
the banks to the customers, who purchase the ERNER  NEBHRIAIRITHE
Group's available-for-sell properties by housing BEEF MRS IR
mortgage. The guarantee would expire after the ER ZBEERETEBEESH
customers obtain owners certification or other BrEFEMAREEIHMESR
relevant warrant and completing the registration of WHEEEBRELFEERR -
mortgage on properties. As at 30 June 2017 and RZE—+tFSA=THRERZ=Z
31 December 2016, the balance of such guarantee —R"F+ZA=+—8 £5EA
refers to note 10. RITMBEEPBEMNERERE

HERMEERGEZ2LMELT -

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES T A EEME
The level of fair value measurement result is determined AR BEEFEERMBHNER  AEAR
by the lowest level of the input value, which is of great BEIEEENEAEEZERNEAEB
significance to the overall fair value measurement. FITIB H) S AR B JORTE
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for E—ER: HREEXABTEREMS L
identical assets or liabilities. RICHEHME o
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within FEZER:BRE-EBRBABIIMBBAEE
level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, LB EEENEETHRENEAE -

either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not F=FBX: HEEEXEBENTAIEEE
based on observable market data (that is, unobservable AME
inputs).

RAT —2—tFHHRE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T AR BEME )

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value 1) SENUAAEBETFEDN
on an ongoing basis gE (88)

As at 30 June 2017, the financial assets and RZZE—tFAA=1+H - HE®
liabilities measured at fair value on an ongoing RAnBEFENEER L =1F
basis by three levels are analyzed below: BIRFIRET

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—BR EFZBIX E=BR &5t
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair LARnEEFER
value through profit HE85i ASH
or loss BalEmEE
Trading financial asset REMSMEE 205,589 50,374 - 255,963
Available-for-sale AHHESREE
financial assets
Available-for-sale At EERTA
equity instrument - 2,320,462 - 2,320,462
Total financial assets SREEAL 205,589 2,370,836 - 2,576,425
Non-financial assets FEERMEE
Investment properties WEEEE
North region ESig: i) - - 10,915,501 10,915,501
Central region #Eeh i 2 - - 3,204,250 3,204,250
South region T R - - 1,085,000 1,085,000
Total non-financial assets FE& @ EES - - 15,204,751 15,204,751
Financial liabilities at LAnEEFER
fair value through HE85i ASH
profit or loss BRENEHEE - (67,189) - (67,189)
Derivative financial NESBAaR
liabilities - (265,289) - (265,289)
Total assets BEAET 205,589 2,038,358 15,204,751 17,448,698

BEUING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T AR EBERT (&)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value 1) FENULDAEBETFENSE
on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (8 #E)
As at 31 December 2016, ongoing financial assets RZE—RF+ZA=+—80 " F
measured in fair value are as follow: BRNUARBEFENEER b
—fEERFIRIAT ¢
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—ER FEER E=EK BEFF
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at fair UWAREEFEAEE
value through profit FE T AEHER
or loss E’J%wﬂé%
Trading financial asset S 4 FAE 217,141 - - 217,141
Available-for-sale AHHESREE
financial assets
Available-for-sale Al SR
equity instrument TE - 2,320,462 - 2,320,462
Total financial assets SREEAL 217,141 2,320,462 - 2,537,603
Non-financial assets FLREE
Investment properties BE M EE
North region FESb i@ - - 10,279,501 10,279,501
Central region i@ - - 2,984,950 2,984,950
South region =@ - - 1,133,000 1,133,000
Total non-financial assets FE& @& ES St - - 14,397,451 14,397,451
Financial liabilities at WAREEGFZEE
fair value through BEET AR HER
profit or loss E’jﬁy;ﬁé? - - - -
Derivative financial TESREE
liabilities - (178,724) - (178,724)
Total assets/(liabilities) BE/(AFE)AEt 217,141 2,141,738 14,397,451 16,756,330

*ﬁ-mﬂ? Ex

tﬁﬁPﬁHiFt
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) TH. AR EBEME (&)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value 1) FENULXAEBETFENE

on an ongoing basis (Continued)

The Group recognizes transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of
the event that caused the transfer. There was no
transfer occurred among level 1 and 2 during the
year.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
in active markets. The fair value of financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market
is determined by valuation techniques. Specific
valuation techniques mainly include discounted
cash flow analysis and so on. The inputs in those
valuation techniques mainly include risk-free rate,
benchmark interest rate and exchange rate.

The Group obtains independent valuations for
investment properties from an independent
professional valuer as a third party. The valuations
are based on income capitalization and residual
approach which mainly uses input such as market
rent, discount rate, interest rate and profit rate.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value
on an ongoing basis (Continued)

T AR EEG(E)

(1) FENUQXABESFENE
E/(afE @)

The change of assets in level 3 are as follows: LME=EREEZHUT :

Investment properties

REMEE
North Central South
region region region Total
EUHE EFHE EERE &t
As at 1 January 2017 —E—+%—HF—H 10,279,501 2,984,950 1,133,000 14,397,451
Additions B 446,778 125,380 - 572,158
Transferred from ARG B ERE
investment properties HEE A
at cost 110,948 - - 110,948
Transferred from FEEA
inventories - 56,344 - 56,344
Gains recognized in profit + ABZZHF S
or losses 78,274 37,576 (48,000) 67,850
As at 30 June 2017 —E—F
~NA=+AH 10,915,501 3,204,250 1,085,000 15,204,751
Realized gains or losses 5+ A& Bi4E25 1Y
recognized in current 2EIHRMNE K
profit or losses S - - - -
Unrealized gains or AR HIEED
losses recognized in BIRFE
current profit or losses 84
— Profit from change — DR EBEZE
in fair value 2 78,274 37,576 (48,000) 67,850
[ — T BABERGERA —tER RS

A7 =%
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

T AR BEME )

(1) FENWUQXABESFENE
E(8fE)#E)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value
on an ongoing basis (Continued)

Investment properties

284

REMNEHE
North Central South
region region region Total
iR FErhit s FEEith R a5t
As at 1 January 2016 —T—XF—HF—H 7,785541 1,508,000 1,008,000 10,301,541
Additions & 347,561 - - 347,561
Transferred from AGTE /IR E
investment properties BHEE A
at cost 665,980 545,486 - 1,211,466
Gains recognized in FTABEMFE
profit or losses 709,459 102,594 121,000 933,053
As at 30 June 2016 ZE—REXA
(restated) =+H(EEM) 9,508,541 2,156,080 1,129,000 12,793,621
Realized gains or losses 5+ A& Bi4E25 1Y
recognized in current 2EIRFE
profit or losses 1B %k - - - -
Unrealized gains or losses =t A& B3B8 2519
recognized in current AEBANE
profit or losses sk
- Profit from change in ~ — A BEE S
fair value (restated) Weas (e & it) 709,459 102,594 121,000 933,053
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T AR EBEMF (&)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value 1) SEWNWUAAEBETFEDN
on an ongoing basis (Continued) B5E (86 #)
Information about fair value measurements in level F_EBAXARBEF=MHEBESR
3 are as follows: wnr

Unobservable inputs

AIBEBAE
Relationship
Fair value as at Range/weighted  of unobservable
Investment properties 30 June 2017 Valuation techniques Name average  inputs of fair value
“3-tf
AA=TH §E/ME BRARE
RElRE MrEE fHERN 4 Tk LB
North region 10,915,501 Income approach Discount rate 6% 108% The higher
e Wk kS 6%Z8% discount rate,
the lower fair value.
EESIER
MrBEEE
Market rents RMB42 to The higher
ka2 RMB535 market rent,
per square metre the higher
per month fair value.
YRR iR
BAARBMT MRS
EAREST
Rents growth rate 0%tod%  Thehigher rents
HekRX 0%Z4% growth rate,
the higher
fair value.
MrEEER
Residual approach Interestrate ~ 4.35% to 4.75% The higher
RRFRE FIBE  435%Z4.75% inferest rate,
the lower
fair value.
flExdR
RREEEE
Profit rate 10% to 30% The higher
fE= 10%%30% profit rate,
the lower
fair value.
flE=gs
RREEEE

EFE 7—7 tﬁﬂPﬂHiﬁtt
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value

T AR EEG )
(1) FENULAAREETEN

on an ongoing basis (Continued) B5E (&6 #)
Unobservable inputs
ABEGAE
Relationship
Fair value as at Rangefweighted  of unobservable
Investment properties 30 June 2017 Valuation techniques Name average  inputs of fair value
I
~A=1R 68/ BRAEE
RENREE MEE (HERE gt T ZFEE
Central region 3,204,250 Income approach Discount rate 6.5% to7.5% The higher
=] Yt Rk 6.5%Z75% discount rate,
the lower
fair value.
AR
ArEEEE
Market rents RMB37 to The higher
fiksiiika RMB106 market rent,
per square metre the lower
per month fair value.

Residual approach

BRR%L

FIHR Beds
BANRMIITE  DAREHR
AEH1067T
Rents growth rate 0%t02%  Thehigherrents
figER% 0%Z2% growth rate,
the higher
fair value.
MEEER

Interest rate 4.35% The higher
g% 435% interest rate,
the lower

fair value.

HEXHR

AREREEE

Profit rate 8% t020% The higher
HE® 8%Z20% profit rate,
the lower

fair value.

HiExis

ArEBREEE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) TH AR BEME (&)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value 1) SEWNWUAAEBETFEDN
on an ongoing basis (Continued) B5E (86 #)
Unobservable inputs
ABEGAE

Relationship

Fair value as at Rangefweighted ~ of unobservable

Investment properties 30 June 2017 Valuation techniques Name average  inputs of fair value

ZE-tf

~A=TA 6E/NE BRAEE

RENRIE MrEE fHERHE £ T pa- (] 43
South region 1,085,000 Income approach Discount rate 7% t07.5% The higher
= G R% T%%75% discount rate,
the lower

fair value.

RS

RAEEEE

Market rents RMB43 to The higher

ki RMBS6 market rent,

per square metre the higher

per month fair value.

BANRESTE I

AEH86T
Rents growth rate 0%  Thehigherrents
HeKER 0% growth rate,
the higher
fair value.
$ERUS
MEEER

B RGN —T—tErEBE 287
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—LFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIFERS - SREMSARETT)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) TH AREBEME (&)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair value 1) FENUAAEBETENE
on an ongoing basis (Continued) B/ (8 @)
Information about fair value measurements in level FBRARBEFENHEBRER
2 are as follows: LU
Observable input
BN
Fair value as at Range/weighted
30 June 2017 Valuation techniques Name average
EtE
/\\H _JFB
RiBfE  fhER & &E/ METHE
Financial derivative liabilities 265,289  Discounted future  AUD forward exchange rate 4.9695 10 5.1848
cash flow at balance sheet date
fTEeRat ARBERATR BEBERA 4.9695%5.1848
Discounted rate 1.76% 10 2.10%
RTRBERARE 1.76%%2.10%
Discounted future  HKD forward exchange rate at 0.9059
cash flow balance sheet date
ARAL IR EEBERAALRIESR
Discounted rate 0.90%
AR
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,320,462 Market approach Average selling price RMB28,878 to
A ESHAR koY aHIBE% RMBS58,200 per
square metre per
month
BYAK
ARH28,878LF
ARH58,2007C
Sales area 92,790 square metre
AEmEE 92,790F K

(2) Assets measured at fair value not on an
ongoing basis

The non-current assets held for sale are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. As at 30 June 2017, the non-current
assets held for sale measured at fair value of the
Group amounted to RMB9,921,000 (31 December
2016: RMB9,921,000).
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(2) FFENUARAREEFENEE

REFENIERDEE - UKRAE
BHAREEREEEEANK
MEBEitE  R-_ZT—+tF KA
=48 ANEBEEFENUDRE
B ENREGTEEERARE
9,921,000 (ZZE— X+ = A
=+—H: AR#%9,921,0007T) °
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_Z—EFRNA=TRIENEASE CRERIERS - SRELSARETIT)

14. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) TH AR EBEME (&)
(3) Assets and liabilities not measured at fair (3) FULAABENEEREEAA
value but disclosed on fair value BENEENERE
Financial assets and liabilities measured at REEBNESRKNATENEREE
amortized cost mainly include receivables, long- MeMmBEEXERRE « BUHIE -
term receivables, short-term borrowings, payables, REFEK R - RHIEZR - B
long-term borrowings, debentures payables and B RHAGR  ENEFMREE
long-term payables. HREE -
Except for the financial assets and liabilities listed BRTiemEEMSRBEEUN
below, the carrying amount of other financial EMAARAEBEFENEREE
assets and liabilities not measured at fair value is a MBEENFEEERAREEMEE
reasonable approximation of their fair value: RN o
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
ZE-tFRAZTH “E-A"ET-A=1-H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
EHEE AREE FEEE AnEE
Long-term borrowings REER 11,704,000 12,184,144 12,575,500 13,206,889
Bonds payable EfitEs 22,180,946 22,180,946 22,479,374 22,480,074
Long-term payable REER 5,200,000 5,275,433 5,500,000 5,664,067
Total Azt 39,084,946 39,640,523 40,554,874 41,351,030

The fair value of long-term borrowings and

EHERA R FEERTISOE

debentures payables without active market
price are determined by the present value
of the contracted future cash flow, which is
calculated using the discount rate in the market

NES - WERREMNRIRER
ERRmS AR LERSRY
ERRGFTRELFHERRSR
EMMEETINRROBEREE

of comparable credit rating that can provide much
the same cash flows in the same conditions. This
situation belongs to Level 3.

NABE BEZEHR-

BRAR —T—tETHKE
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15. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives of capital management are to
safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders,
benefits for other stakeholders and to reduce cost of
capital by maintaining an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Same as other companies in this industry, the group
monitors capital on the basis of the asset-liability ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total liabilities divided by total
assets.

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

Th EREIRE

AEEERNERHENBBERATRER
SEREABERLE  KEMARREMHD
- jI@Eﬁ’rM"Jm*HE@%?%é - R AR
RENERNEBAREERKAR

RTEFIABRELRGE  AKEAES
AR NERRABA SR - MERERE
B BITHRE R EEENRIEET -

HRTTEAEMBA F REEMAE
ERELRE I,\é{K E%tl:%??z,ﬁﬁ%@i%
B NREETE

The asset-liability ratios as at 30 June 2017 and 31 RZE—+FARNA=ZTARZ-ZZT—RF
December 2016 were as follows: TZA=1+—H AEEMNEEBRELE
HIREAT:

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

AA=+H +=ZA=+—H

(restated)

(g&E )

Total liabilities wafE 96,193,951 91,908,938
Total assets BB E 123,241,947 119,459,640
Asset-liability ratio BEAGBHE 78% 77%
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL AAWANEIER e
STATEMENTS
(1) Other receivables (1) HbEWK
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRE
AA=+A +=A=+—~
Receivables due from JE UK T B R ER ()
subsidiaries (i) 45,306,692 46,449,297
Receivables due from associates FEUG S &N B R 228 228
Receivables due from joint ventures FEU4& & A F1E KX 68,324 59,156
Tender bonds and KERRES
other guarantee deposits 16,900 16,900
Others Hith 25,985 23,695
Total &5t 45,418,129 46,549,276
Less: provisions for bad debts o EEREE (24,000) (24,000)
Net R 45,394,129 46,525,276
(i) The loans from the Company to certain subsidiaries 0) ARBEWFARERKEAS -
amounted to RMB630,000,000 (31 December 2016: HAETFRAARERBEARK
RMB630,000,000) with interest rate of 4.35%, 630,000,000t ( —ZE— X+ A
RMB639,360,000 (31 December 2016: Nil) with interest =+—H : AR®%630,000,0007T) °
rate of 10%, and RMB242,320,000 (31 December 2016: FHMEEHBA3%  REHBEBARKE
Nil) with interest rate of 20%. All the loans above are 639,360,000 L (=T —~F+ = A
unmortgaged, unguaranteed, and with no contracted =+t—B8: &) FAX[KI10% : KA
maturity date. #r5E AR ¥242,320,000T(=ZF — <
F+ZA=+—8: &) FAXRA
20%; FIFUEY IR - EIER &
BB -
Except for the receivables above, the other receivables MR b 2 S H At JE U F 2 B AE R KIA
due from related parties were interest free, unmortgaged HRHE - mERMNER BEE
and unguaranteed, and with no fixed maturity date. B
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) Other receivables (Continued)

(@) The aging of other trade receivables is

analyzed as follows:

AWAWANEIE b E L EEaE )

(1) HttEWRE)

(a) HMEUHEREDHTOT

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

NA=+H +=-—A=+—H

Within 1 year —F AR 33,911,766 34,756,345
1 to 2 years —H| =4 9,041,096 9,266,266
2 to 3 years —H=F 1,404,155 1,439,126
Over 3 years =FE 1,061,112 1,087,539
Total &5t 45,418,129 46,549,276

(b) The other receivables classified by their (b) EHALEWFUZERIDTAT ¢
categories are analyzed as follows:
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
“E-tERAZ1A ZE-ETRzT-A
Of total 0f the Of total Of the
Amount  amount  Amount provision  Amount  amount  Amount provision
F CEERH  SREE  HRUA 8 hEEND  BREE R
% % % %
Receivables subject o REsTRERER
provision for bad debts
on the grouping basis
-Group of related parties  ~BB 784 45,375,244 100 - - 46,508,681 100 - -
Receivables subject to EENER
separate provisionwith - BB -
no similar credit EEHIENE
characteristic B 18,885 - - - 165% - - -
Notindividually significant ~ 8455
but subject to separate  AEXBEEH
assessment for provision S
for bad debts 24,000 - (24,000) 100 24,000 - (24,000) 100
Total st 45,418,129 100 (24,000) 0.1 46,549,276 100 (24,000 0.1
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL AWAWANEIE N E L EEdE )
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Long-term equity investments (2) RERERE
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRE
ANA=t+tH +-A=+—8
Subsidiaries (a) FAANa)—FELTAA 5,105,939 4,605,939
Joint ventures (b) SERED) - LETRA 185,077 187,061
Associates (c) BtE b ()—IELmAaAl 214,282 203,783
Subtotal /NEF 5,505,298 4,996,783

Less: impairment of long-term B REARERE REEE
equity investment - -

Net &5 5,505,298 4,996,783
There is no significant restriction on sale of the RRAB T FERBKREZR RS
long-term equity investments and collection of the FAEIENESW N
investment income for the Company.

(a) Subsidiaries (a) F2H
Changes in this period
K§E52
Provision
3 Provisions 30 for  Dividends
December  Increase i~ Decrease in for June  impairment  declared in
2016 investment  investment impairment ~ Others 2017 balance  this period
Bk 1455
24 i RE Z%-tF b
=B BNRE ORE £ B ARZTR HEER  BeRW
Capital Chaoyang EEEL 734,095 - - - - T34,0% - -
Rongjin Company #end 21968 - - - - 2198 - -
IFC IFC 20,480 - - - - 20480 - -
Centra IPlaza Centra IPlaza 39,466 - - - - 39,466 - -
Jindu Company Fred 369,970 - - - - 369970 - -
Beijing Xinzi TRiE 642,625 - - - - 642625 - -
Anhua Shiji RELL 136,303 - - - - 136303 - -
Shangboya Gl 30,000 - - - - 30,000 - -
Jiangsu Capital IE &8 60,375 - - - - 60375 - -
Capital Chengdu EE 6] 150,000 - - - - 150,000 - -
Sunshine City il 82,766 - - - - 82766 - -
Wuxi Xindong ERIR 100,000 - - - - 100,000 - -

B R 0 ERAE - teamEs 203
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(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

F EREMSARETIT)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—tFRA=THELENEAMSE (BRRERIFERAN

TR AR BHRERWE(E)

(2) REREREE)
(a) FRAR(E)

Changes in this period
¥ )
Provision

31 Provisions 30 for  Dividends

December  Increase i~ Decrease in for June  impairment  declared in
2016 investment  investment  impairment ~ Others 2017 balance  this period

ZE0E ¥
. it iRAfE tE-tE Hih

=t-B BNRE WORE £ B AAZTR REEE  ReRA

Capital (Chengdu) EEIRE)

Investment Co,, Ltd. ERARAR 5,000 - - - - 5,000 - -
Tianjin Management REER 5,000 - - - - 5,000 - -
Ruiyuan Fengxiang EngE 10,000 - - - - 10,000 - -
TinjinEco City Jiaming k248525

Ronghe Development BAHMERE

(o, Ltd. BRAA 60,000 - - - - 60,000 - -
Ruiyuan Fengji Rngt 10,000 - - - - 10,000 - -
Capital Nanjing Investment - &&|E %4

(o, Ltd ERAF 5,000 - - - - 5,000 - -
Capital Guoxin BElEE 100,000 - - - - 100,000 - -
Halkou Capital Xinye BOBENERE

Investment Co,, Ltd. BRAT 10,000 - - - - 10,000 - -
Capital Investment EERE 67,29 - - - - 67,2% - -
Shanghal Zhengheng LETE 10,000 - - - - 10,000 - -
Beijing Chuangyuan Botao 4 RelFE SR &%

Architecture Design Co,  EREARAT

Ltd. 5000 - - - - 5,000 - -
Bejjng Xinyuan Huafu R mEEREER

Investment and EBAT

Management Co., Ltd. 5,000 - - - - 5,000 - -
Beiing Hengyuan Yinking R ETLHEREER

Investment and BRAE

Management Co., Ltd. 5,000 - - - - 5,000 - -
Bejjng Dongoiinzhao L REESBELS

Infrastructure Investment ~ FEFBRAT

(o, Ltd. 30,000 - - - - 30,000 - -
Zhongzhi Dingfu TEDR 100,000 - - - - 100,000 - -
Yongyuan Jintai ATER 216,530 - - - - 216530 - -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

AWAWANEIE N E L EEdE )

(2) REMREREE)
(a) FRAR(#E)

Changes in this period
¥ L)
Provision
31 Provisions 30 for  Dividends
December  Increase i~ Decrease in for June  impairment  declared in
2016 investment  investment impairment ~~ Others 2017 balance  this period
ZE0E LY
TR it iRAfE ZE-tf s
St-A BORE WORE £ B ~AZTR REEE  RERA
Lehui Life (Beijing) ZERE(R)BE
Technology Semvice REERAR
(o, Ltd. 5,000 - - - - 5,000 - -
Juyuan Xincheng Investment ZEE 74 500,000 - - - - 500,000 - -
Donghuan Xinrong RER 1,064,065 - - - - 1,064,065 - -
Shenzhen Capital Investment 7| g8/ 45E%
Real Estate Co, Ltd. BRAT 5,000 - - - - 5,000 - -
Beijing Xiangneng TR - 500,000 - - - 500,000 - -
Total Aif 4605939 500,000 - - - 5105939 - -

Py
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7 i 5% Fff 5

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

16. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL AWAWANEIE b E L EEaE )
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(2) Long-term equity investments (Continued) (2) REREREZE)
(b) Joint ventures (b) E¥L¥E
Changes inthis period
TEEREE
Shareof  Share of Provisions
3 hoease  Decease net ofher Other Cash  Provisions for
December n i pofi  omperersie  equiy  dividend for 30June  impaiment
016 ivestment investment— (osses)  income changes decred  mpaiment  Others W17 babnee
- Sy R A EEE

125 EL ol ot o B RERH  iREE E-tE EEE
TR BNRE ORE  FER 32 EREy 9HE Ef i AASTE  HRBE

BoingWen 7% 5 - - . i i _ "
Tonghua Qiangyu~~ BEET - - - - - - R _ - B
Duhibenggn  HEEEES

Fund Management~ 32/03)

Company 53,776 - - (1694) - - - - - %80 -
Shanghodi FiEt 71380 - -6 - - - - - B -
Tota it 187061 - - (1% - - - - -1 -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

16 NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL AWAWAGIE R e EC )
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(2) Long-term equity investments(Continued) (2) RERERE#
() Associates () K&t
Long-term equity investment on associates HEE P ENRPRERE
Changes i this period
TEERES
Shareof  Shareof Provisions
3 hoease  Decease net ofher Other Cash  Provisions for
December i i pofi  omperesie equiy  dividend for 30June  impaiment
016 ivestment investment— (osses)  income changes declred  mpaiment  Others W17 babnee
- v R A EEEH
124 2N Fele i RERA  rREE IR GEER
SR OBMRE RORE BER 42 EEy  9HE £ M AA=TE  BRBE
Golden Net i 1324 - - ®) - - - - - 13199 -
Snchine City B
Cormmercil 190,541 - - 1054 - - - - - 201,083 -
Financa Steet Hotel 4455 - - - - - - - - - = -
Totd A4 203,783 - - 1049 - - - - - 48 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7% i 5% Fff 5

16 NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(3) Other equity instruments

In July 2016, Xinghan Asset set up a special
asset management plan to raise a total amount
of RMB3,000,000,000 and entered into an
Investment Agreement with the Company to invest
all the raised money in the Company. According
to the Investment Agreement, the raised funds
are not subject to any fixed repayment terms
unless the Company declares any dividends. The
Company may elect to defer the distribution
without any frequency limitations. In addition,
there is no contracted obligation for the Company
to repay the principal and distribute the interests.
As a result, the investment from the special asset
management plan complied the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as other
equity instrument in the consolidated level and in
the Company financial statement. The dividends
declared will be treated as profit distribution.
As at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016,
RMB2,895,291,000 was recognized as other
equity instrument after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.
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(3)

1B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

il

SR M T ()

~

]

HtERTHE

RZE—XNFLtAH BBHEE
TEEHEEMEEESEARK
3,000,000,000 7T * I B AN 2 B 8
IR ERR)  BEHEEESKR
BERART - BRE(EEHZ) B
BARR » RS E T ERAR
BRARBIE IR DAL - A] AIRIE
FERELKEENFEFNBRES
HEZ TN —EAMBBIN  BEX
HAZEARS - BARRILEE
BERERAS SN EMDIKFEH
BHER  ARZERETEER
TENESE  EASEEHEER
AAREEERAEMERTA
EETIRARED AR EAF B
DENERE - R 2T —+F XA
=t+tHERZZE—R"F+A=1+—
H - MR 78RR RS AT 2 8 5
e MARAAMEZTAARR
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

16 NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL AWAWANEIE N E L EEdE )
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Revenue and cost of sales (4) BEWAMEERAK
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BE HE

—B—t#F —F—K

ARA=+RHLE RHA=tHLE
ANEAHE LA HE

Revenue from main operations (@) F 42U A(a) 9,601 5,641
Revenue from other operations (b)  E th 2 U A (b) 1,465 -
Total &5 11,066 5,641

Cost from main operations (a) ESk— 3 % NE)) - -
Cost from other operations (b) H th ZE TP AR (b) = -

Total A&t - -
(a) Revenue and cost of sales from main (a) FEEBWANMEZEZBERAK
operations
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BZ-_ZT—tHXA=TAL BE_T-— " A=TAL
A~ERHEME ~NEAEE

Revenue Cost of sales Revenue  Cost of sales

from main from main from main from main

operations  operations operations operations

FEEBRWA  FEEBRE  EEEBRRA  EEEERAX

Consulting services FHBA 9,601 - 5,641 -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRAAZTELENEARRE (BERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

16 NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL AW S E N ERC )
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(4) Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (4) EXWAMEERRE)
(b) Revenue and cost of sales from other (b) HEHRWAMEMERRKAK
operations
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BE-E—tF BE_ZT—F
ANAZTBLEAEAEH ANAZTHLEAEA A
Revenue Cost of sales Revenue  Cost of sales

from other  from other from other from other
operations  operations operations operations
Hity Hith Hit Hith
EBBA EBHA EBKA EBHA

Temporarily rental R A 1,465 - - -
(5) Investment income (5) ®BREWZR

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BZ HZE
—E—tF S AS
ANA=+H NA=TH
kAREAHE LN ERHME

Share of net profit or loss of RREREZARD ENE
investees under equity method REBMFEENMNER 8,515 17,725
Others Hih 9,987 -
Total &5t 18,502 17,725
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_Z—EFRA=TELENEARRE (BRERIERN  SBEMRARETT)

17. NET CURRENT ASSETS

T ERBEE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
(restated)
“E—tf —E-RE —E-tF —Z-RE
~A=tH tZA=+—H ~A=tH tZRA=t+—H
=i i NG| N
(&E3)
Current assets REAE 96,419,055 94,588,284 50,941,218 53,734,150
Less: current liabilities B RBAR (54,223,733)  (48,065,234)  (29,896,839) (24,778,581)
Net current assets FREBEE 42,195,322 46,523,050 21,044,379 28,955,569

18. TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

TN REERRSRIE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
(restated)
—B-tf ZE-RE —E—tF —ERF
AA=TH tZA=+—H ~A=1+H +tZRA=+—H
aff A D NG
(&)
Total assets BEG 123,241,947 119,459,640 57,209,655 59,293,233
Less: current liabilities W OnRBaE (54,223,733)  (48,065,234)  (29,896,839) (24,778,581)
Total assets less current liabilities  #&ERTEEE 69,018,214 71,394,406 27,312,816 34,514,652

B—— EAERRGARAT —T - tFERRES
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COMPANY INFORMATION
DNAEHR

DIRECTORS
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Li Songping (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Jun (President)
Mr. Li Xiaobin

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Sun Baojie
Mr. Sun Shaolin
Mr. Su Jian

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Hong
Mr. Li Wang
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Hong
Mr. Li Wang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Sun Shaolin
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Li Songping
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Songping (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Jun
Mr. Wang Hong

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Li Zhang
Ms. Tang Yanan
Mr. Jiang Hebin
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SECRETARY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Qin Vi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Sze Wai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Tang Jun

Mr. Lee Sze Wai

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 6008, Block 1,

No. 26 Qingchun Road,
Huairou District,

Beijing, PRC

BEIJING HEADQUARTERS

F17, Red Goldage,

No. 2, Guang Ning Bo Street,

Xicheng District,

Beijing, PRC

HONG KONG OFFICE

Suites 2906-08, AIA Central,

1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
WEBSITE

http://www.bjcapitalland.com

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:
Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong

As to PRC law:
JunZeJun Law Office
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COMPANY INFORMATION 2 7] & ¥}

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Development Bank

China Construction Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

China Merchants Bank

Bank of Communications

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Bank of China

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Note:  The financial statements section in this Report has been prepared in
both Chinese and English. For any discrepancies, the Chinese version
shall prevail.
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